The Connection Machine System

Paris Reference Manual

Version 6.0 February 1991

Thinking Machines Corporation Cambridge, Massachusetts

First printing, February 1989 Revised, February 1991

The information in this document is subject to change without notice and should not be construed as a commitment by Thinking Machines Corporation. Thinking Machines Corporation reserves the right to make changes to any products described herein to improve functioning or design. Although the information in this document has been reviewed and is believed to be reliable, Thinking Machines Corporation does not assume responsibility or liability for any errors that may appear in this document. Thinking Machines Corporation does not assume any liability arising from the application or use of any information or product described herein.

Connection Machine[®] is a registered trademark of Thinking Machines Corporation. C*[®] is a registered trademark of Thinking Machines Corporation. CM, CM-2, and DataVault are trademarks of Thinking Machines Corporation. Paris, *Lisp, and CM Fortran are trademarks of Thinking Machines Corporation. C/Paris, Lisp/Paris, and Fortran/Paris are trademarks of Thinking Machines Corporation. In Parallel[®] is a registered trademark of Thinking Machines Corporation. VAX, ULTRIX, and VAXBI are trademarks of Digital Equipment Corporation. Symbolics, Symbolics 3600, and Genera are trademarks of Symbolics, Inc. Sun, Sun-4, and Sun Workstation are registered trademarks of Sun Microsystems, Inc. UNIX is a registered trademark of AT&T Bell Laboratories.

Copyright © 1991 by Thinking Machines Corporation. All rights reserved.

Thinking Machines Corporation 245 First Street Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142–1264 (617) 234–1000/876–1111

Contents

1	Intr	oduction	1
2	Virt	ual Machine Architecture	3
	2.1	Virtual Processors and Virtual Processor Sets	5
	2.2	Mapping VP Sets to the Physical Machine	5
	2.3	VP Ratios	5
	2.4	Fields	6
	2.5	Processor Addresses	7
	2.6	Send Addresses	7
	2.7	NEWS Addresses	8
	2.8	Communication across VP Sets	• 8
	2.9	Geometries	8
	2.10	Flags	10
3	Dat	a Formats	13
	3.1	Bit Fields	14
	3.2	Signed Integers	14
	3.3	Unsigned Integers	14
	3.4	Floating-Point Numbers	15
	3.5	Complex Floating-Point Numbers	16
	3.6	Send Addresses	16
	3.7	Configuration Variables	16
4	One	eration Formats	19
Ŧ	4.1	Field Id's	19
	4.2	Constant Operands	20
	4.3	Unconditional Operations	20
	4.4	Naming Conventions	21
	4.5	Argument Order	23
5	Inst	truction Set Overview	25
	5.1	VP Sets	25
	5.2	Geometries	26
	5.3	Interned Geometries and VP Sets	26
	5.4	Fields	27

		~ .		
	5.5	Соруі		27
	5.6	Field	Aliasing	28
	5.7	Bitwis		28
	5.8	Opera		29
	5.9	Opera		30
	5.10	Unary		30
		Rinary		
	5 19	Ontin	Signal Floating Delet Querent t	32
	5.12	optin		36
	5.13	Arithi	netic Comparisons	37
	5.14	Pseud	o-Random Number Generation	37
	5.15	Array	s	38
	5.16	Gener	10	38
	5.17	NEWS		39
	5.18	Power		41
	5.19	NEW		41
	5.20	Scan		
10	5 91	Clobal	Reduction Operations	42
	5 99	Mama		46
	5.22	Memo		46
	5.23	Sortin		47
	5.24	Timin	g Paris Code	47
	5.25	The L	EDS	48
	5.26	Front		48
	5.27	Enviro		48
				10
6	The	C/Pa	ris Interface	51
	6.1			51
	6.2	C/Par	The Transformer of the The Transformer of t	51
		6.2.1	T 1 / 75	
		6.2.2	Operand Field Addresses	52
		6.2.3		52
				53
		6.2.4	Operand Field Lengths	53
		6.2.5	Miscellaneous Signed and Unsigned Values	54
		6.2.6	Bit Sets and Masks	54
		6.2.7		54
		6.2.8		54
		6.2.9	C 1 1. TT 1	54
	6.3	C/Pari		55
	6.4	Calling		
		0	, rans nom e	55
7	The	Fortra	an/Paris Interface 5	7
5516				7
	7.2	Fortree	n/Paris Header Files	57
	1.4	791		57
		7.2.1	Id Types	58
		7.2.2	Operand Field Addresses 5	8
		7.2.3	Immediate Operands	9

Contents

		7.2.4	Operand I	Field L	engths																59
		7.2.5	Miscellane																		60
		7.2.6	Bit Sets a																		60
		7.2.7	Vectors of																		60
		7.2.8	Multi-dim																		60
		7.2.9						8201													60
	7.0		Symbolic (Decision)																		61
	7.3		n/Paris Co	•																	
	7.4	Calling	Paris from	n Forti	an		••		•••	•••	•	• •	•••	•	• •	×	• •	•	•	·	61
8	The		Paris Inte																		63
	8.1	Lisp/P	aris Instru	ction N	lames	and A	Argu	men	t T	ypes	s .	e x					•	• •	·		63
		8.1.1	Id Types									•					•		•		63
		8.1.2	Operand 1	Field A	ddress	es .															64
		8.1.3	Immediate	e Opera	ands .																64
		8.1.4	Operand 1	-																	65
		8.1.5	Miscellane		-																65
		8.1.6	Bit Sets a																		65
		8.1.7	Vectors of																		66
		8.1.8	Multi-dim	-																	66
		8.1.9	Symbolic					1070													66
	0.0																				66
	8.2		aris Config																		67
	8.3	Calling	g Paris from	n Lisp		• • •	•••		• •	• • •	·	• •	• •	٠	• •	•	• •	• •		•	01
9	Dict	tionary	of Paris	Instru	iction	s															69
9	Dic 9.1	•	of Paris																		69 69
9		Conver		Alphab	etizing																
9	9.1	Conver	ntions for A mming La	Alphab nguage	etizing Synta	 x			•												69
9	9.1	Conver Progra 9.2.1	ntions for A mming La Syntax of	Alphab nguage Names	etizing Synta 5	 x	 	 		 		 	 		 			 		:	69 70
9	9.1	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoe	Alphab nguage Names de Inst	etizing Synta 5 ructior	 x Des	· · · · ·	ions	•	 		 	 		 			 			69 70 70 70
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo	Alphab nguage Names de Inst	etizing Synta S ructior	 x . Des	 cript	ions	•	 		 	 		 		•	 			69 70 70 70 73
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS -C-ABS	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo	Alphab nguage Names de Inst	etizing Synta s ructior 	 x Des	 cript 	ions	• •	· · · ·		 	 		 			 		•	69 70 70 70 73 74
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS F-C-ABS S-ABS	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo	Alphab nguage Names de Inst	etizing Synta s ructior 	 x . Des 	 cript 	ions	•	· · · ·		 	· · · · · · · · ·		 			 		• • • • •	69 70 70 73 74 75
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS C-ABS S-ABS C-ACC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo	Alphab nguage Names de Inst	etizing Synta ructior		 cript 	ions	•	· · · ·		 	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· · · · · ·			· · · · · ·		• • • • •	69 70 70 73 74 75 76
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS S-C-ABS S-ABS C-ACC F-ACC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo 	Alphab nguage Names de Inst	etizing Synta s ructior 	x	 cript 	ions				· · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· · · · · · · · ·	•	•	· · · · · · · · ·	••••••		69 70 70 73 74 75 76 77
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS S-ABS C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo 	Alphab nguage Names de Inst	etizing Synta s ructior 	x	 cript 					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · ·	• • • • • • •	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		•	 			69 70 70 73 74 75 76 77 78
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS C-ABS C-ACC F-ACC F-ACC F-ACC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo 	Alphab nguage Names de Inst	etizing Synta ructior 	x	 cript 	ions				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	• • • • • • •	· · · · · · · · · · · ·		•	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			69 70 70 73 74 75 76 77 78 79
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS S-ABS C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo 	Alphab nguage Names de Inst	etizing Synta s ructior 	x	 cript 							• • • • • • • •	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		•	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			69 70 70 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS S-ABS C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC F-ACC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo 	Alphab nguage Names de Inst	etizing Synta s ructior 	x	 cript 	ions							· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			 69 70 70 70 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS S-ABS C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo 	Alphab nguage Names de Inst	etizing Synta s ructior 	x	 cript 	ions							· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			 69 70 70 70 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 83
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS S-ABS C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC F-ACC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo 	Alphab nguage Names de Inst:	etizing Synta 	x	 cript 	ions													 69 70 70 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 83 85
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS S-ABS C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo 	Alphab nguage Names de Inst:	etizing Synta s ructior 	x	 cript 	ions									•				 69 70 70 70 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 83
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS S-ABS C-ACC F-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo 	Alphab nguage Names de Inst:	etizing Synta s ructior 	x	 cript 	ions													 69 70 70 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 83 85
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS C-ABS C-ACC F-ACC F-ACC F-AC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo 	Alphab nguage Names de Inst:	etizing Synta 5 ructior 	x	 cript 	ions													 69 70 70 70 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 83 85 87
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS S-ABS C-ACC F-ACC F-ACC F-AC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocoo 	Alphab nguage Names de Inst:	etizing Synta 5 ructior 	x	 cript 	ions													 69 70 70 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 83 85 87 89
9	9.1 9.2	Conver Progra 9.2.1 9.2.2 F-ABS S-ABS C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC C-ACC F-ACC S-ADC S-ADC S-ADC S-ADC S-ADC U-ADC S-ADC U-ADC	ntions for A mming La Syntax of Pseudocod 	Alphab nguage Names de Inst:	etizing Synta s ructior 	x	 cript 	ions													 69 70 70 70 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 83 85 87 89 91

ALLOCATE-HEAP-FIELD	96
ALLOCATE-HEAP-FIELD-VP-SET	97
ALLOCATE-STACK-FIELD	98
ALLOCATE-STACK-FIELD-VP-SET	99
ALLOCATE-VP-SET	100
FE-ARRAY-FORMAT	101
AREF	101
AREF32	105
AREF32-SHARED	105
ASET	110
ASET32	112
ASET32-SHARED	112
C-ASIN	114
F-ASIN	117
C-ASINH	118
F-ASINH	119
C-ATAN	
F-ATAN	120
	121
	122
	124
ATTACH	125
ATTACUED	126
	128
	129
C CELLING	131
	132
	134
	135
	137
	138
	139
CLEAD DIT	140
	142
COLD DOOT	143
E COMPADE	144
	146
	147
	148
	149
	150
	151
	152
- 22 22222222 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	
F-COSH	154

CREATE-DETAILED-GEOMETRY 111111111111111111111111111111111111	155
CREATE-GEOMETRY	159
	160
DEALEOCATE-GEOMETRY 111111111111111111111111111111111111	163
DEALEOCATE-TIEAT TIEED TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT	164
DEALEDCATE-STACK THROUGH TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT	165
DEALEOCATEOURSET	166
DEI OSTI-NEITS-COORDINATE	167
TE-DEFOSIT-MEWS-COORDINATE	168
Derken	169
C-DIVIDE	171
	173
ENGINEERATE	175
C-Lw	177
1-Ew	178
J-EQ	179
0-24	$\frac{180}{182}$
C-EXT	182
1-EXT	184
	185
EXTRACT MENS COORDINATE TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT	186
	187
DEALEOCATESTITISETON	188
	191
CHIPSEION IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	191
	194
I STEORI TITTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT	195
	196
	197
STECON TITTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT	199
STILEOOK IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	200
U-F-FLOOR	202
FE-FROM-GRAY-CODE	203
U-FROM-GRAY-CODE	204
F-GE	205
S-GE	206
U-GE	208
GEOMETRY-AXIS-LENGTH	210
GEOMETRY-AXIS-OFF-CHIP-BITS	211
GEOMETRY-AXIS-OFF-CHIP-POS	212
GEOMETRY-AXIS-ON-CHIP-BITS	213
GEOMETRY-AXIS-ON-CHIP-POS	214
GEOMETRY-AXIS-ORDERING	215
GEOMETRY-AXIS-VP-RATIO	Server at the even

GEOMETRY-COORDINATE-LENGTH	217
GEOMETRY-RANK	218
GEOMETRY-SEND-ADDRESS-LENGTH	210
GEOMETRY-SERIAL-NUMBER	219
GEOMETRY-TOTAL-PROCESSORS	220
GEOMETRY-TOTAL-VP-RATIO	221
GET	222
GET-AREF32	$\frac{223}{224}$
GET-FROM-NEWS	224
GET-FROM-POWER-TWO	220
GLOBAL-C-ADD	229
GLOBAL-F-ADD	229
GLOBAL-S-ADD	230
GLOBAL-U-ADD	231
GLOBAL-COUNT-BIT	232
GLOBAL-COUNT-CONTEXT	
GLOBAL-COUNT-flag	234
GLOBAL-LOGAND	235
GLOBAL-LOGAND-BIT	236
GLOBAL-LOGAND-CONTEXT	237
GLOBAL-LOGAND-flag	238
GLOBAL-LOGIOR	239
GLOBAL-LOGIOR-BIT	240
GLOBAL-LOGIOR-CONTEXT	241
GLOBAL-LOGIOR flog	242
GLOBAL-LOGIOR-flag	243
GLOBAL-F-MAX	244
GLOBAL-S-MAX	
GLOBAL-U-MAX	247
GLOBAL-U-MAX-S-INTLEN	248
GLOBAL-U-MAX-U-INTLEN	
	251
GLOBAL-F-MIN	
	255
GLOBAL-U-MIN	256
F-GT	257
S-GT	258
U-GT	260
F-IEEE-TO-VAX	263
	264
INITIALIZE-RANDOM-GENERATOR	265
S-INTEGER-LENGTH	266
U-INTEGER-LENGTH	267
INTERN-DETAILED-GEOMETRY	268
INTERN-GEOMETRY	270
INTERN-IDENTICAL-VP-SET	272

Contents

INVERT-CONTEXT	73
INVERT-flag 27	74
IS-FIELD-AN-ALIAS	75
IS-FIELD-IN-HEAP	76
IS-FIELD-IN-STACK	77
IS-FIELD-VALID	78
IS-STACK-FIELD-NEWER	79
IS-VP-SET-VALID	80
S-ISQRT	81
U-ISQRT	83
LATCH-LEDS	85
F-LE	86
S-LE	87
U-LE	89
C-LN	91
F-LN	92
LOAD-CONTEXT	93
LOAD-flag	94
F-LOG2 2	95
F-LOG10	96
LUGAND	97
LOGAND-CONTEXT 2	98
LOGAND-CONTEXT-WITH-TEST 2	99
LOGAND-flag	00
LOGANDC1	01
LUGANDC2	02
S-LOGCOUNT	03
0-LOGCOUNT	04
	05
LOGIOR	06
LOGIOR-CONTEXT	07
Logion-hag	08
LOGNAND	09
LOGNOR	10
	311
LOGORC1	312
LOGORCZ	313
LOGXOR	314
F-LT	815
S-LT	816
	318
U-LT	
MAKE-FIELD-ALIAS	321
MAKE-FIELD-ALIAS	321 322
MAKE-FIELD-ALIAS	321

S-MATRIX-MULTIPLY	326
F-MAX	328
S-MAX	330
U-MAX	332
F-MIN	334
S-MIN	336
U-MIN	338
F-MOD	340
S-MOD	342
U-MOD	344
C-MOVE	346
F-MOVE	348
S-MOVE	350
U-MOVE	352
F-MOVE-DECODED-CONSTANT	354
MOVE-REVERSED	355
F-MULT-ADD	356
F-MULT-SUB	358
F-MULT-SUBF	
C-MULTIPLY	360
F-MULTIPLY	362
S-MULTIPLY	364
	366
	368
	370
	371
	373
	374
	375
MULTISPREAD-LOGAND	376
MULTISPREAD-LOGIOR	377
MULTISPREAD-LOGXOR	378
MULTISPREAD-F-MAX	379
MULTISPREAD-S-MAX	380
	381
MULTISPREAD-F-MIN	382
	383
	384
MV NEWC COODDINATE	385
MY CEND ADDDCCC	386
CNE	387
ENE	388
CNE	
LINE	389
C-NEGATE	390
	392
F-NEGATE	393

2	94
S-NEGALE	94
U-NEGALE	96
F-NEVVS-ADD	90
F-NEWS-ADD-MOLT	00
F-NEWS-WOLL	00
F-NEWS-MULT-ADD	102 104
F-NEWS-MULT-SUB	0.701700
F-NEVVS-SUB	106
F-NEWS-SUB-WILLI	408 410
NEXT-STACK-FIELD-ID	
FE-PACKED-ARRAT-FORMAT	411
F-C-PHASE	413
PHYSICAL-VP-SET	414
C-C-POWER	415
C-F-POWER	417
C-S-PUWER	419
C-U-POWER	421
F-F-POWER	422
F-S-PUVVER	424
F-U-PUWER	426
S-S-POWER	428
S-U-POWER	430
U-5-POVVER	432
U-U-POWER	434
PUWER-UP	436
F-RANDOM	437
U-RANDOM	438
F-RANK	439
5-KANK	441
U-RANK	443
C-READ-FROM-NEWS-ARRAY	445
F-READ-FROM-NEWS-ARRAY	448
	451
U-READ-FROM-NEWS-ARRAY	454
C-READ-FROM-PROCESSOR	457
F-READ-FROM-PROCESSOR	458
S-READ-FROM-PROCESSOR	459
U-READ-FROM-PROCESSOR	460
C-RECIPROCAL	461
REDUCE-WITH-C-ADD	462
REDUCE-WITH-F-ADD	463
REDUCE-WITH-F-ADD	464
REDUCE-WITH-U-ADD	465
REDUCE-WITH-COPY	466
	467
REDUCE-WITH-LOGAND	101

REDUCE-WITH-LOGIOR	468
REDUCE-WITH-LOGXOR	469
REDUCE-WITH-F-MAX	470
REDUCE-WITH-S-MAX	471
REDUCE-WITH-U-MAX	472
REDUCE-WITH-F-MIN	473
REDUCE-WITH-S-MIN	474
REDUCE-WITH-U-MIN	475
F-REM	476
S-REM	478
U-REM	480
REMOVE-FIELD-ALIAS	482
F-F-ROUND	483
S-ROUND	484
S-F-ROUND	486
U-ROUND	487
U-F-ROUND	489
F-S-SCALE	491
F-U-SCALE	493
SCAN-WITH-C-ADD	495
SCAN-WITH-F-ADD	497
SCAN-WITH-S-ADD	499
SCAN-WITH-U-ADD	501
SCAN-WITH-COPY	503
SCAN-WITH-LOGAND	505
SCAN-WITH-LOGIOR	507
SCAN-WITH-LOGXOR	509
SCAN-WITH-F-MAX	511
SCAN-WITH-S-MAX	513
SCAN-WITH-U-MAX	515
SCAN-WITH-F-MIN	517
SCAN-WITH-S-MIN	519
SCAN-WITH-U-MIN	521
SCAN-WITH-F-MULTIPLY	523
SEND	525
	527
SEND-ASET32-LOGIOR	529
	531
SENID TO NEW/C	533
SENIL TO OTELE22	534
	87. STO 77
	537
SEND WITH S ADD	539
	541
	543
SEND-WITH-LOGAND	545

х

SEND-WITH-LOGIOR	547
	549
	551
	553
	555
	557
	559
	561
	563
	565
	566
	567
	568
SET-SYSTEM-LEDS-MODE	569
	570
	571
	572
S-S-SHIFT	573
	575
	577
	578
S-F-SIGNUM	579
S-S-SIGNUM	580
C-SIN	581
	582
C-SINH	583
F-SINH	584
SPREAD-FROM-PROCESSOR	585
SPREAD-WITH-C-ADD	586
SPREAD-WITH-F-ADD	587
SPREAD-WITH-S-ADD	588
SPREAD-WITH-U-ADD	589
SPREAD-WITH-COPY	590
SPREAD-WITH-LOGAND	591
SPREAD-WITH-LOGIOR	592
SPREAD-WITH-LOGXOR	593
SPREAD-WITH-F-MAX	594
SPREAD-WITH-S-MAX	595
SPREAD-WITH-U-MAX	596
SPREAD-WITH-F-MIN	597
SPREAD-WITH-S-MIN	598
SPREAD-WITH-U-MIN	599
C-SQRT	600
F-SQRT	601
STORE-CONTEXT	602

3
4
6
8
0
2
4
6
8
0
2
3
4
5
5
7
•
2
3
1
7
3
)
5
5
•

List of Figures

21	1 65,536 processors											•							•	•		•	•		•	4
2.1	00,000 processors	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	ं	•	•	8	ं	1	1	1	-								



Customer Support

Thinking Machines Customer Support encourages customers to report errors in Connection Machine operation and to suggest improvements in our products.

When reporting an error, please provide as much information as possible to help us identify and correct the problem. A code example that failed to execute, a session transcript, the record of a back-trace, or other such information can greatly reduce the time it takes Thinking Machines to respond to the report.

To contact Thinking Machines Customer Support:

U.S. Mail:	Thinking Machines Corporation Customer Support 245 First Street Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142–1264
Internet Electronic Mail:	customer-support@think.com
Usenet Electronic Mail:	ames!think!customer-support
Telephone:	(617) 234–4000 (617) 876–1111

For Symbolics Users Only

The Symbolics Lisp machine, when connected to the Internet network, provides a special mail facility for automatic reporting of Connection Machine system errors. When such an error occurs, simply press Ctrl-M to create a report. In the mail window that appears, the To: field should be addressed as follows:

To: customer-support@think.com

Please supplement the automatic report with any further pertinent information.



Part II Paris Dictionary

Version 6.0, February 1991

Chapter 9

Dictionary of Paris Instructions

9.1 Conventions for Alphabetizing

The operations and variables in this dictionary are ordered alphabetically, but with certain conventions that cause parts of the names to be ignored. The purpose is to ignore "prefixes" and "suffixes" in the name so as to group instructions that have the same main operation name.

- If the name contains a colon (and most do), the colon and any characters preceding it (usually "CM") are ignored.
- If the name begins with "fe-" then those three characters are dropped.
- Similarly, if the name begin with a single letter followed by a hyphen, those two characters are dropped.
- Similarly, if the name contains a single letter (or digit) surrounded by hyphens, each such letter (or digit) and the hyphen following it are dropped.
- Any occurrence of the modifier subsequence "-constant-" or "-const-" or "-always-" is replaced by a single hyphen.
- If the name ends in a hyphen, a digit, and the letter "L" then those three characters are dropped.
- Any asterisks in the name are dropped.

These rules are to be applied repeatedly and in any order until a name is reduced to a form where none of the rules apply.

The running heads on the top outside corners of the dictionary pages show the names with characters dropped according to these rules. Any ties in the ordering are broken by reconsidering letters dropped by the preceding rules.

As an example, CM:s-logcount-2-2L and CM:u-logcount-2-2L appear together (and in that order). As another example, CM:extract-news-coordinate-1L and CM:fe-extract-news-coordinate appear together (and in that order).

9.2 Programming Language Syntax

Paris is not a single language, but rather a library to be used within any of several programming languages, including C, Fortran, and Lisp. These languages have different syntactic conventions for names, operations, and procedure calls. This dictionary strikes a compromise among these conventions that allows straightforward transformations into the specific syntax of any of these languages. See chapters 6, 7, and 8 for information about languagespecific aspects of the Paris interface.

9.2.1 Syntax of Names

All names in this dictionary are presented in Lisp syntax (specifically, that of Common Lisp). A simple rule is given below for converting such names to C or Fortran syntax.

Lisp allows names to contain hyphens, asterisks, and colons, among other characters. For the Lisp interface, Paris follows Common Lisp conventions for names:

- Words in a multiword name are separated with hyphens.
- The name of a global variable is surrounded with asterisks.
- Related names are grouped into a single package, indicated by a common prefix ending with a colon. Paris uses the prefix CM: for this purpose. Certain names used as constants, called *keywords*, have a null prefix, and therefore begin with a colon.

These rules are applied in the order given. Examples of names are CM:set-system-leds-mode, CM:s-add-2-1L, :news-order (a keyword), and CM:*maximum-exponent-length* (a global variable).

Fortran and Lisp are not case-sensitive, but C is. Therefore, this dictionary presents Paris instructions names using the upper-case and lower-case letters appropriate for C syntax. Similarly, to satisfy C and Fortran conventions, Paris names are limited to 32 characters (including any suffix and the trailing "L").

The rule for translating a Lisp name to a C or Fortran name has two parts.

- If the Lisp name begins with a colon, first add "CM" to the front.
- Then drop all asterisks, and convert all colons and hyphens to underscores.

Thus the example Lisp names shown above become CM_set_system_leds_mode, CM_s_add_2_1L, CM_news_order, and CM_maximum_exponent_length in C syntax.

For Fortran, this assumes a compiler that accepts 31-character names and permits underscores in names.

9.2.2 Pseudocode Instruction Descriptions

For most of the instructions *two* descriptions of the operation are given. One is in English, and the other is in pseudocode. The pseudocode is written in an *ad hoc* combination of programming constructs, mathematical notation, and occasional dabs of English. For the most part the notation should be self-explanatory, but several features deserve special remarks.

The constructs "let x = y" and " $x \leftarrow y$ " are superficially similar; each causes x to have the value y. There are two differences, however. First, a "let" statement merely defines a temporary variable for later use in the pseudocode description of that instruction, whereas an arrow assignment represents an actual effect on the CM machine state (usually in the processor memories) that may be detected by subsequent Paris operations. Second, a "let" statement is assumed to give x the precise mathematical value computed for y, whereas an arrow assignment may have to truncate, round, or otherwise approximate the infinitely precise mathematical result before storing it.

When referring to actual machine state, square brackets are used to indicate a particular processor. For example, if *dest* names a field, then dest[k] refers to the contents of that field within processor k. Actual subscripts are used rather than square brackets for temporary quantities; thus one has " $dest[k] \leftarrow 1$ " but "let $S_k = 1$ " because the latter does not involve machine state.

Angle brackets are used to select bits within a field (or sometimes within an integer value, to be regarded as a field of bits in binary representation). For example, $dest[k]\langle 0 \rangle$ is the least significant bit of the field dest within processor k, and $dest[k]\langle 0:3 \rangle$ is the four least significant bits.

Multiplication is always indicated explicitly by the symbol \times , never by juxtaposition. The notation $\lfloor x \rfloor$ means the floor of x, the largest integer that is not greater than x; $\lfloor 3.5 \rfloor = 3$ and $\lfloor -3.5 \rfloor = -4$. The notation $\lceil x \rceil$ means the ceiling of x, the smallest integer that is not less than x; $\lceil 3.5 \rceil = 4$ and $\lceil -3.5 \rceil = -3$.

The symbols \neg , \land , \lor , and \oplus respectively represent logical (or bitwise, if appropriate) NOT, AND, inclusive OR, and exclusive OR.

The symbols \cap represents set intersection; \cup is set union; \setminus is set difference (thus $A \setminus B$ is the set of elements of A that are not in B); and \in is the set inclusion predicate (and so $x \in A$ is true if x is an element of A).

Other mathematical notations are used freely, including square roots, summation signs, and set notation. The purpose of the pseudocode is to provide a clear explanation of the *results* of an operation, not to provide clues to performance; the particular algorithm shown is not necessarily the one used in the implementation.



Computes, in each selected processor, the absolute value of a floating-point source field and stores it in the destination field.

Formats		1-1L dest/source, s, e 2-1L dest, source, s, e					
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.					
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.					
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.					
Overlap	Two floati	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.					
Context		ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e <i>context-flag</i> is 1.					
Definition	if contex if sou	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do xt-flag $[k] = 1$ then $arce[k] \ge 0$ then $dest[k] \leftarrow source[k]$ $dest[k] \leftarrow -source[k]$					

The absolute value of the *source* operand is placed in the *dest* operand.

For floating-point numbers, absolute value is calculated by changing the sign bit to 0 (positive). All other bits in the number are unchanged.

F-C-ABS

The absolute value of the source field is returned in the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-c-a	bs-2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of the dest field in this format is $s + e + 1$. The total length of the source field in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap		field must be either identical to <i>source</i> , identical to ($source+s+e+1$), at from <i>source</i> .
Flags	overflow	-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context		eration is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only assors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	For every	y virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{if } context-flag[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ dest[k] \leftarrow \sqrt{(source[k].real)^2 + (source[k].imag)^2} \\ \text{if } \langle \text{overflow occurred in processor } k \rangle \text{ then } overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \end{array}$

The absolute value of the *source* operand is placed in the *dest* operand.

S-ABS

Computes the absolute value of a signed integer source field and stores it in the destination field.

Formats	CM:s-abs- CM:s-abs- CM:s-abs-2	2-1L dest, source, len			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.			
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.				
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.				
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then if source[k] ≥ 0 then $dest[k] \leftarrow source[k]$ else $dest[k] \leftarrow -source[k]$				

if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$

else overflow-flag $[k] \leftarrow 0$

The absolute value of the *source* operand is placed in the *dest* operand. (If the length of the *dest* field equals the length n of the *source* field, overflow can occur only if the *source* field contains -2^n . If the length of the *dest* field is greater than the length of the *source* field, then overflow cannot occur.)

C-ACOS

Computes, in each selected processor, the arc cosine of the complex source field and stores it in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-aco CM:c-aco	s-1-1L dest/source, s, e s-2-1L dest, source, s, e			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.			
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.			
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.				
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.				
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow cos^{-1} source[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

The arc cosine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

The following definition of arc cosine determines the range and branch cuts for a complex number z.

$$-i\log\left(z+i\sqrt{1-z^2}
ight)$$

F-ACOS

Computes, in each selected processor, the arc cosine of the floating-point source field and stores it in the floating-point destination field.

Formats		s-1-1L dest/source, s, e s-2-1L dest, source, s, e				
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.				
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.				
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.				
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.					
Flags	test-flag i cleared.	is set if the <i>source</i> is less than -1 or greater than 1; otherwise it is				
Context	-	ration is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only sors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				
Definition		virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do ext-flag $[k] = 1$ then				

if $context$ - $flag[k] = 1$ then
$dest[k] \leftarrow \cos^{-1} source[k]$
if $source[k] < -1$ or $source[k] > 1$ then
$test$ -flag $[k] \leftarrow 1$
else
$test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$

The arc cosine of the value of the *source* field is stored into the *dest* field.

C-ACOSH

Computes, in each selected processor, the arc hyperbolic cosine of the complex source field and stores it in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-acos CM:c-acos	, , , .						
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.						
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.						
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.						
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.							
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.							
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.							

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \cosh^{-1} source[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

The arc hyperbolic cosine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

The following definition of inverse hyperbolic cosine determines the range and branch cuts of a complex number z.

$$\log\left(z+(z+1)\sqrt{\frac{(z-1)}{(z+1)}}\right)$$

F-ACOSH

Computes, in each selected processor, the arc hyperbolic cosine of the floating-point source field and stores it in the floating-point destination field.

Formats		sh-1-1L dest/source, s, e sh-2-1L dest, source, s, e					
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.					
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.					
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.					
Overlap	Two floa	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.					
Flags	177431 66758	test-flag is set if the source is less than 1; otherwise it is cleared. overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.					
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.						
Definition	For every	y virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do					

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow \cosh^{-1} source[k]$
	if source < 1 then test-flag $[k] \leftarrow 1$
	else $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $\textit{overflow-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1$

The arc hyperbolic cosine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

C-ADD

The sum of two complex source values is placed in the destination field.

Formats	CM:c-add-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, s, eCM:c-add-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, s, eCM:c-add-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, s, eCM:c-add-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, s, eCM:c-add-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, s, eCM:c-add-const-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, s, eCM:c-add-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, s, eCM:c-add-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, s, eCM:c-add-const-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, s, e						
Operands	dest The field ID of the complex destination field.						
	source1 The field ID of the complex first source field.						
	source2 The field ID of the complex second source field.						
	source2-value A complex immediate operand to be used as the second source.						
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.						
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.						
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.						
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.						
Definition	if (always or $context-flag[k] = 1$) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] + source2[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$						

Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are added as complex numbers. The result is stored into memory. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision complex front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

F-ADD

The sum of two floating-point source values is placed in the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-add-2-1L		dest/source1, source2, s, e		
	CM:f-add-always-2-1L		dest/source1, source2, s, e		
	CM:f-add-3-1L		dest, source1, source2, s, e		
		always-3-1L	dest, source1, source2, s, e		
	CM:f-add-constant-2-1L		dest/source1, source2-value, s, e		
	CM:f-add-const-always-2-1L		dest/source1, source2-value, s, e		
		constant-3-1L	dest, source1, source2-value, s, e		
	CM:f-add-	const-always-3-1L	dest, source1, source2-value, s, e		
Operands	dest	The field ID of	the floating-point destination field.		
	source1	The field ID of	the floating-point first source field.		
	source2	The field ID of	the floating-point second source field.		
	source2-v	alue A floating- source.	point immediate operand to be used as the second		
	s, e	The significand source2 fields. $s + e + 1$.	and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and The total length of an operand in this format is		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.				
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.				
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination and flag may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .				
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do				

if (always or $\mathit{context-flag}[k] = 1$) then

 $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] + source2[k]$

if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $\textit{overflow-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1$

Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are added as floating-point numbers. The result is stored into memory. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

The sum of two signed integer source values is placed in the destination field. Carry-out and overflow are also computed.

Formats		2-1L dest/source1, source2, len		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.		
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer first source field.		
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field.		
	source2-ve	alue A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	dlen For CM:s-add-3-3L, the length of the dest field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
	slen1	For CM:s-add-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	slen2	For CM:s-add-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.			
Flags	carry-flag is set if there is a carry-out from the high-order bit position; oth- erwise it is cleared.			
	overflow-flag is set if the sum cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

ADD

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] + source2[k]$ $carry-flag[k] \leftarrow \langle carry \text{ out in processor } k \rangle$ if $\langle overflow \text{ occurred in processor } k \rangle$ then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$ else $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$

Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are added as signed integers. The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields are constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The carry-flag and overflow-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.
U-ADD

The sum of two unsigned integer source values is placed in the destination field. Carry-out and overflow are also computed.

Formats		2-1L dest/source1, source2, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field.
	source2-v	alue An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	For CM:u-add-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non- negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	For CM:u-add-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	For CM:u-add-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	however, fields are	s source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is le for all the fields to be identical.
Flags		y is set if there is a carry-out from the high-order bit position; oth- is cleared.
		flag is set if the sum cannot be represented in the destination field; it is cleared.
Context		ration is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only sors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are added as unsigned integers. The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields are constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The carry-flag and overflow-flag are altered by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

ADD

S-ADD-CARRY

The sum of the *carry-flag* and two signed integer source values is placed in the destination field. Carry-out and overflow are also computed.

Formats	CM:s-add- CM:s-add- CM:s-add-	carry-2-1L dest/source1, source2, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	For CM:s-add-carry-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer- length*.
	slen1	For CM:s-add-carry-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer- length*.
	slen2	For CM:s-add-carry-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	however, fields are	s <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is ble for all the fields to be identical.
Flags		g is set if there is a carry-out from the high-order bit position; oth- is cleared.
		flag is set if the sum cannot be represented in the destination field; e it is cleared.
Context		ration is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only sors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are added as signed integers. The *carry-flag* is used as the carry-in to the low-order bits; the net effect is to compute the sum of *source1*, *source2*, and *carry-flag*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields are constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The carry-flag and overflow-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

U-ADD-CARRY

The sum of the *carry-flag* and two unsigned integer source values is placed in the destination field. Carry-out and overflow are also computed.

Formats	CM:u-add- CM:u-add- CM:u-add-	carry-2-1L dest/source1, source2, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	For CM:u-add-carry-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	For CM:u-add-carry-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	For CM:u-add-carry-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	however, fields are	s source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is le for all the fields to be identical.
Flags		y is set if there is a carry-out from the high-order bit position; oth- is cleared.
		flag is set if the sum cannot be represented in the destination field; it is cleared.
Context		ration is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only sors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	if conte	v virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do ext-flag $[k] = 1$ then $[k] \leftarrow source1[k] + source2[k] + carry-flag[k]$

 $carry-flag[k] \leftarrow \langle carry \text{ out in processor } k \rangle$ if $\langle overflow \text{ occurred in processor } k \rangle$ then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$ else $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$

Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are added as unsigned integers. The *carry-flag* is used as the carry-in to the low-order bits; the net effect is to compute the sum of *source1*, *source2*, and *carry-flag*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields are constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The carry-flag and overflow-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

S-ADD-FLAGS

The carry-out and overflow are computed for the sum of two signed integer source values. The sum itself is not stored.

Formats	CM:s-add-	flags-2-1L source1, source2, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	however, fields are	<i>s source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is le for all the fields to be identical.
Flags	<i>carry-flag</i> erwise it i	is set if there is a carry-out from the high-order bit position; oth- is cleared.
		flag is set if the sum cannot be represented in the destination field; it is cleared.
Context		ration is conditional. The flags may be altered only in processors <i>intext-flag</i> is 1.

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context$ -flag $[k] = 1$ then
	Compute $source1[k] + source2[k]$
	$carry$ -flag $[k] \leftarrow \langle carry \text{ out in processor } k \rangle$
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$
	$\textit{else overflow-flag}[k] \gets 0$

Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are added as signed integers. The sum is not stored; only the *carry-flag* and *overflow-flag* are affected.

U-ADD-FLAGS

The carry-out and overflow are computed for the sum of two unsigned integer source values. The sum itself is not stored.

Formats	CM:u-add	-flags-2-1L dest, source1, source2, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	however, 1 fields are	s source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is le for all the fields to be identical.
Flags	<i>carry-flag</i> erwise it i	is set if there is a carry-out from the high-order bit position; oth- s cleared.
	overflow-j otherwise	flag is set if the sum cannot be represented in the destination field; it is cleared.
Context	This oper whose <i>con</i>	ation is conditional. The flags may be altered only in processors <i>atext-flag</i> is 1.
Definition		virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do

if context-flag[k] = 1 then Compute source1[k] + source2[k] $carry-flag[k] \leftarrow (carry out in processor k)$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $\textit{overflow-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1$ else $\textit{overflow-flag}[k] \leftarrow 0$

Two operands, source1 and source2, are added as unsigned integers. The sum is not stored; only the carry-flag and overflow-flag are affected.

F-ADD-MULT

Calculates a value (a + x)b and places it in the destination.

Formats	CM:f-add- CM:f-add- CM:f-add- CM:f-add- CM:f-add-	mult-1L mult-always-1L const-mult-1L const-mult-always-1L mult-const-1L mult-const-always-1L const-mult-const-1L const-mult-const-3L	dest, source1, source2, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2, source3-value, s, e dest, source1, source2, source3-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3-value, s, e
Operands	dest		loating-point destination field.
	source1		loating-point first source (addend) field.
	source2		loating-point second source (augend) field.
	source2-v	alue A floating-poin source (augend).	at immediate operand to be used as the second
	source3	The field ID of the f	floating-point third source (multiplier) field.
	source3-v	alue A floating-poir source (multiplier).	nt immediate operand to be used as the third
	s, e		exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , <i>source2</i> , The total length of an operand in this format
Overlap	of them, Two float	however, must be eith ing-point fields are id	d source3 may overlap in any manner. Each her disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. entical if they have the same address and the for all the fields to be identical.
Flags	overflow-	<i>flag</i> is set if floating-po	int overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context		always operations are nly in processors whos	conditional. The destination and flag may be e context-flag is 1.
		ys operations are unco gardless of the value of	onditional. The destination and flag may be of the <i>context-flag</i> .
Definition	if (alwa	virtual processor k in sys or context-flag[k] = $[k] \leftarrow (source1[k] + so$	

if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

ADD-MULT

Two operands *source1* and *source2* are added as floating-point numbers, and then the sum is multiplied by a third operand *source3*. The result is stored in the destination field.

The various formats allow the second source operand to be either a memory field or a constant.

The constant operand *source2-value* or *source3-value* should be a double-precision frontend value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

A call to CM:f-add-mult-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:f-add-3-1L temp, source1, source2, s, e CM:f-multiply-3-1L dest, temp, source3, s, e

but may be faster.

ADD-OFFSET-TO-FIELD-ID

Returns a new field ID that specifies the same field but possibly a different offset within that field.

Formats	$result \leftarrow$	CM:add-offset-to-field-id field-id, offset
Operands	field-id	A field ID.
	offset	A signed integer, the number of bits by which to offset the <i>field-id</i> .
Result	A field ID	, identifying the newly offset field ID.
Context	This opera	ation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

Associates a new field ID with the portion of the specified field that begins at the specified bit offset. The size of the field referenced by the new field ID is equal to the size of the original field minus the offset. The offset must be smaller than the size in bits of the original field. Offset fields may themselves have offset fields formed from them.

ALLOCATE-HEAP-FIELD

Allocates a heap field of specified length in the current VP set and returns a unique identifier.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: allocate-heap-field len$
Operands	len An unsigned integer, the length in bits of the field to be allocated.
Result	A field ID, identifying the new field ID.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

A new field of length *len* is allocated in the heap within the current VP set. A field ID for the newly created field is returned.

ALLOCATE-HEAP-FIELD-VP-SET

Allocates a new heap field of the specified length in the specified VP set and returns a unique identifier.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:allocate-heap-field-vp-set$ $len, vp-set-id$
Operands	len An unsigned integer, the length in bits of the field to be allocated.
	<i>vp-set-id</i> A VP set ID. This may specify any VP set, including the current VP set.
Result	A field ID, identifying the new field ID.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .

A new field of length len is allocated on the heap within the specified VP set. A field ID for the newly created field is returned.

ALLOCATE-STACK-FIELD

Allocates a new stack field of specified length in the current VP set and returns a unique identifier.

$result \leftarrow CM: allocate-stack-field len$
<i>len</i> An unsigned integer, the length, in bits, of the field to be allocated.
A field ID, identifying the new field ID.
This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

A new field of length *len* is allocated on the stack within the current VP set. A field ID for the newly created field is returned.

ALLOCATE-STACK-FIELD-VP-SET

Allocates a new stack field of the specified length in the specified VP set and returns a unique identifier.

Formats	$\textbf{result} \leftarrow CM:allocate-stack-field-vp-set len, \ vp-set-id$
Operands	<i>len</i> An unsigned integer, the length in bits of the field to be allocated.
	<i>vp-set-id</i> A VP set ID. This may specify any VP set, including the current VP set.
Result	A field ID, identifying the new field ID.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

A new field of length *len* is allocated on the stack within the specified VP set. A field ID for the newly created field is returned.

ALLOCATE-VP-SET

Create a new VP set, within which fields may be allocated.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: allocate-vp-set geometry-id$
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.
Result	A VP set ID, identifying the newly allocated VP set.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This operation returns a vp-set-id for a newly created VP set. This may be given to other Paris operations in order to create memory fields in which data may be stored. The size and shape of the VP set is determined by the geometry specified by the *geometry-id*. It is possible to alter the geometry later (by using CM:set-vp-set-geometry), but the total number of virtual processors in the VP set remains forever fixed.

FE-ARRAY-FORMAT

This front-end instruction returns an array format descriptor. An array format descriptor may be passed to any array transfer instruction to specify a front-end array format, although this is not required.

See also CM:fe-packed-array-format and CM:fe-structure-array-format.

Formats	result	\leftarrow	CM:fe-array-format	[cm-element-size, array-element-size,
				stride, ordering]

Operands cm-element-size A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the number of bits each Connection Machine element occupies in the front-end array. This must be a power of two between 1 and 128. In Lisp/Paris this is a keyword argument. If not specified, it defaults to array-element-size. If array-element-size is also not specified, cm-element-size defaults to the size of the Connection Machine field being read or written.

> array-element-size A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the number of bits in each front-end array element. This must be a power of two between 1 and 128.

> > In Lisp/Paris this is a keyword argument. If not specified, array-element-size defaults to the actual front-end element size or, if the front-end array elements are general (i.e., of type t), array-element-size defaults to the value of cm-element-size.

stride A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the distance, in units of array-element-size, between adjacent front-end array elements. This must be either a null value or a positive integer between 1 and 65,535 that obeys the following restrictions. The product (stride × array-element-size) must be either a multiple of cm-element-size or a multiple of 32 bits. If stride is specified as a null value (null in C, 0 in Fortran, nil in Lisp), it defaults to the minimum legal value. In Lisp/Paris this is a keyword argument.

ordering The order in which Connection Machine elements are stored in a front-end array. The value of ordering must be either a null value or one of: :front-end-order, :lsb-first (least significant bit first), or :msb-first (most significant bit first). (These are CM_front_end_order, CM_lsb_first, or CM_msb_first from C or Fortran.) If specified as a null value (null in C, 0 in Fortran, nil in Lisp), it defaults to :front-end-order, which is the standard ordering for the front end. (Most significant bit first on Suns; least significant bit first on VAXes.) In Lisp/Paris this is a keyword argument.

Result The array format descriptor specified.

Context This is a front-end operation. It does not depend on the value of the *context-flag*.

The return value is a format descriptor for arrays; it can be passed to any array transfer instruction as the value of *format*. CM:fe-array-format provides the most generality in specifying an array format for transfers. More specific descriptors may be obtained with CM:fe-packed-array-format and CM:fe-structure-array-format.

The value of *cm-element-size* defines the unit of measure for the *fe-offset-vector* argument to the CM:read-from-news-array and CM:write-to-news-array instructions.

The value of array-element-size defines the unit of measure for the fe-dimension-vector argument to the CM:read-from-news-array and CM:write-to-news-array instructions. However, for extended-element array transfers, the unit of measure for the fe-dimension-vector argument is (array-element-size \times stride).

If *cm-element-size* is less than *array-element-size*, a packed transfer is specified. That is, multiple Connection Machine array elements are packed into each front-end array element. If *cm-element-size* is greater than *array-element-size*, an extended-element array is specified. That is, more than one front-end array element is used to store each Connection Machine array element.

For most arrays, the value of *stride* is 1. For packed array transfers, *stride* must be 1. For extended-element array transfers, the stride must be large enough to ensure that consecutive elements do not overlap on the front end. To read or write every other (non-packed, non-extended) front-end array element, use a *stride* value of 2.

For a normal (non-packed, non-extended) array transfer, specify ordering as a null value.

A packed format with :lsb-first ordering stores the Connection Machine element with the smallest coordinates in the least significant bits of the array element. A packed format with :msb-first ordering stores the CM element with the largest coordinates in the most significant bits of the front-end array.

An extended-element format with :lsb-first ordering stores the low-order bits of the Connection Machine element in the front-end array location with the smallest coordinate. An extended-element format with :msb-first ordering stores the high-order bits of the CM element in the front-end array location with the smallest coordinate.

AREF

Takes array elements specified by a per-processor index and copies them into a fixed destination.

Formats	CM:aref-2L	dest, array, index, dlen, index-len, index-limit, element-len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	array	The field ID of the source array field.
	index	The field ID of the unsigned integer index into the array field.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	index-len	The length of the <i>index</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	index-limit	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the exclusive upper bound for the <i>index</i> .
	element-le	n An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the length of an array element.
Overlap		array and index may overlap in any manner. However, the array fields must not overlap the dest field.
Flags		set if the value in the <i>index</i> field is less than the <i>index-limit</i> ; it is cleared.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	if $index[k] < index-limit$ then
	$let \ p = index[k] imes element-len$
	$dest[k] \leftarrow array[k]\langle p: p + dlen - 1 \rangle$
	$test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$
	else
	$\textit{test-flag}[k] \leftarrow 0$

This is a simple form of array reference, for arrays stored in the memory of individual processors. Each processor has an array index stored in the field index. This is used to index into an array, whose length in bits should be *index-limit* \times *element-len*. The element indexed (or a portion of it) is copied into *dest* in all selected processors. Thus different processors may access different elements of their arrays.

More precisely, a field of length dlen and starting at address $array + i \times element$ -len, where i is the unsigned number stored at *index*, is copied to dest in all selected processors.

The argument *index-limit* is one greater than the largest allowed value of the index. Those processors that have index values greater than or equal to *index-limit* do not alter the value of the destination field; they also clear *test-flag*. All processors in which the index field is less than *index-limit* set *test-flag*. The argument *element-len* is the length of individual elements of the array. Usually this will be the same as *dest-length*, but for certain applications it is worthwhile for it to differ. For example, from an array of 128-bit records one may fetch just one 16-bit component of an indexed record by letting *dlen* be 32, letting *element-len* be 128, and by offsetting the *array* address by the offset within each record of the 16-bit quantity to be fetched. As another example, to extract a 4-character substring from a string of 8-bit characters, one may let *dlen* be 32 and *element-len* be 8.

AREF32

Takes array elements specified by a per-processor index and copies them into a fixed destination. The array is stored in a special format that allows fast access.

Formats	CM:aref32 CM:aref32	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	array	The field ID of the source array field. This must contain data stored in a special format by either CM:aset32 or CM:transpose32.
	index	The field ID of the unsigned integer index field. This is used as the per-processor index into the <i>array</i> .
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*. This is taken as the <i>array</i> element length and must be a multiple of 32.
	index-len	The length of the <i>index</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	index-limi	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the exclusive upper bound for the <i>index</i> . This is taken as the <i>array</i> extent.
Overlap		array and index may overlap in any manner. However, the array fields must not overlap the dest field.
Context		lways operations are conditional. The destination may be altered ocessors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
	President and a state of the second s	of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .
Definition	if (alway	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do ys or context-flag $[k] = 1$) then ex[k] < index-limit then

if index[k] < index-limit then let r = geometry-total-vp-ratio(geometry(current-vp-set))let $m = \left\lfloor \frac{k}{r} \right\rfloor \mod 32$ let i = index[k]for all j such that $0 \le j < dlen$ do $dest[k]\langle j \rangle \leftarrow array[k - m \times r + (j \mod 32) \times r]\langle 32 \times (i + \left\lfloor \frac{j}{32} \right\rfloor) \rangle$ else $\langle error \rangle$ This is a simple form of array reference for parallel arrays whose elements are stored across the memory of individual processors. To each processor belongs an array of extent *index-limit* with elements of length *dlen*.

The array element indexed by each active processor is copied into the *dest* field of that processor. Different processors may reference different elements of their arrays. For this reason, this form of array referencing is known as *indirect addressing*.

Each processor has an array index stored in the field *index*. This is used to index into an area of CM memory, *array*, whose allocated length in bits should be at least

$$\left(index\-limit \times \left\lceil \frac{dlen}{32} \right\rceil\right) \times 32$$

The argument *index-limit* is one greater than the largest allowed value of the index. It is an error for any *index* value to equal or exceed this limit.

A field of length *dlen*, and starting at address $array + i \times 32$, where *i* is the unsigned number stored at *index*, is copied to *dest* in all selected processors. Even this is not quite accurate, because the array data is not organized in the same manner as for CM: aref. Instead, it is organized in a peculiar way for fast per-processor access. Parallel arrays stored in this format are termed *slicewise parallel arrays*.

Slicewise parallel array data is arranged with successive bits stored in successive processors within groups of 32 virtual processors. Thus, slicewise array data belonging to one processor is spread over the memories of the 32 processors in its group and the memory of each processor holds data belonging to all 32 processors.

A region of memory set aside for a slicewise array of the format required by CM: aref32 should be accessed only through the operations CM: aset32 and CM: aref32, related operations such as CM: get-aref32 and CM: send-aset32-overwrite, or operations that copy the array as a whole from all processors (such as I/O operations). It is also possible to operate on this memory in blocks of 32-bit square matrices with the CM: transpose32 instruction.

AREF32-SHARED

Takes an array element specified by a per-processor index and copies it into to a fixed destination. The source array is stored in a special format that allows fast access, and is accessed in such a way that all the virtual processors within a group of 32 physical processors share the same array.

Formats	CM:aref32- CM:aref32-	shared-2L dest, array, index, dlen, index-len, index-limit shared-always-2L dest, array, index, dlen, index-len, index-limit
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	array	The field ID of the source array field. This must be a contiguous region in CM memory. It need not be in the current VP set.
	index	The field ID of the unsigned integer index field. This is used as the per-processor index into <i>array</i> .
	dlen	The length of the dest field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*. This is normally taken as the length of array elements and must be a multiple of 32. As a special case, dlen may be 8 or 16 and, if so, access into both the source and the destination fields is offset appropriately.
	index-len	The length of the index field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	index-limi	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the exclusive upper bound for the index. This is taken as the extent of array if dlen is a multiple of 32. However, if dlen is 8 or 16, then index-limit is taken as the number of 32-bit elements that would fit into the array field.
Overlap		array and index may overlap in any manner. However, the array fields must not overlap the dest field.
Context		lways operations are conditional. The destination may be altered occessors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
	-	s operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then if index[k] < index-limit then

```
for all j such that 0 \le j < dlen do

dest[k]\langle j \rangle \leftarrow

array \left[ 32 \left\lfloor \frac{k}{32r} \right\rfloor + (j \mod 32) \right] \left\langle index-limit \left\lfloor \frac{j}{32} \right\rfloor + index[k] \right\rangle

else

\langle error \rangle
```

where r is the VP ratio, and where j is the bit position in each field.

This is a simple form of array reference for arrays whose elements are stored across the memory of individual processors and accessed in such a way that many processors appear to share a single array of extent *index-limit* with elements of length *dlen*.

The shared array element (or a portion of it) indexed is copied into *dest* in all (selected) processors. Different processors may access different elements of the shared array. For this reason, this form of array referencing is known as *indirect addressing*.

Each processor has an array index stored in the field *index*. This is used to index into *array*. The argument *index-limit* is one greater than the largest allowed value of the index. It is an error for any *index* value to equal or exceed this limit.

The data within the source array area is not organized in the same manner as for CM: aref; instead, it is organized in a peculiar way for fast per-processor access. Shared arrays stored in this format are termed *slicewise shared arrays*.

Slicewise shared array data is arranged with successive bits stored in successive processors, within groups of 32 physical processors. Each 32-bit word of each element is stored separately in processor memories, as follows: The low-order 32 bits of all elements are grouped together across processor memories in a field of length $32 \times index-limit$ bits. Similarly, the next 32 bits of all elements are grouped together, and so on, up to the high-order bits of all array elements. This data format allows fast hardware-supported access to the individual elements of a shared array.

A region of memory set aside for an array of the format required by CM:aref32-shared must be contiguous in memory. It must therefore be allocated all at once, at a VP ratio of 1, with a single call to CM:allocate-stack-field or to CM:allocate-heap-field. Alternatively, from Lisp, the memory may be allocated within a with-stack-field form at a VP ratio of 1.

The area of CM memory occupied by *array* should be allocated at a VP ratio of 1 as a field whose length in bits is exactly

index-limit
$$\times \left\lceil \frac{dlen}{32} \right\rceil$$

Shared array memory should be accessed only with the operations CM:aref32-shared and CM:aset32-shared, or with operations that copy the array as a whole from all processors (such as I/O operations). Data in such a region of memory may, however, be reoriented with the CM:transpose32 instruction.

As a special case, if the *dlen* argument is specified as 8 or 16, then each processor accesses one byte or one half-word of a 32-bit element. The *index-limit* argument must be specified as the extent of the array when considered to contain 32-bit elements. Nonetheless, valid *index* values are integers 0 through 2 or 4 times this *index-limit*. The *index* argument may be thought of as consisting of two fields, one that indexes a 32-bit array element and one that indexes an 8- or 16-bit offset into that element. To index bytes, the low 2 bits of *index* specify the offset. To index half-words, the low 1 bit of *index* specifies the offset. ASET

Stores into an array element specified by a per-processor index a value copied from a fixed source field.

Formats	CM:aset-21	source, array, index, slen, index-len, index-limit, element-len
Operands	source	The field ID of the source field.
	array	The field ID of the destination array field.
	index	The field ID of the unsigned integer index into the array field.
	slen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	index-len	The length of the <i>index</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	index-limit	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the exclusive upper bound for the <i>index</i> .
	element-let	n An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the length of an array element.
Overlap	The fields and <i>index</i> :	<i>source</i> and <i>index</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>source</i> fields must not overlap the <i>array</i> field.
Flags		set if the value in the <i>index</i> field is less than the <i>index-limit</i> ; t is cleared.
Context	This opera in processo	tion is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

This is a simple form of array modification, for arrays stored in the memory of individual processors. Each processor has an array index stored in the field *index*. This is used to

index into an array, whose length in bits should be *index-limit* \times *element-len*. The source field is copied into the element indexed (or a portion of it) in all selected processors. Thus different processors may modify different elements of their arrays.

More precisely, the source field is copied to a field of length slen and starting at address $array + i \times element$ -len, where i is the unsigned number stored at *index*, in all selected processors.

The argument *index-limit* is one greater than the largest allowed value of the index. Those processors that have index values greater than or equal to *index-limit* do not alter the value of the destination field; they also clear *test-flag*. All processors in which the index field is less than *index-limit* set *test-flag*. The argument *element-len* is the length of individual elements of the array. Usually this will be the same as *dest-length*, but for certain applications it is worthwhile for it to differ. For example, within an array of 128-bit records one may store into just one 16-bit component of an indexed record by letting *slen* be 32, letting *element-len* be 128, and by offsetting the *array* address by the offset within each record of the 16-bit quantity to be modified. As another example, to modify a 4-character substring of a string of 8-bit characters, one may let *slen* be 32 and *element-len* be 8.

ASET32

Copies data from a fixed source to the destination array elements specified by a per-processor index. The destination array is stored in a special format that allows fast access.

Formats	CM:aset32	-2L source, array, index, slen, index-len, index-limit
Operands	source	The field ID of the source field.
	array	The field ID of the destination array field.
	index	The field ID of the unsigned integer index field. This is used as the per-processor index into <i>array</i> .
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*. This is taken as the <i>array</i> element length and must be a multiple of 32.
	index-len	The length of the <i>index</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	index-limit	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the exclusive upper bound for the <i>index</i> . This is taken as the <i>array</i> extent.
Overlap		<i>source</i> and <i>index</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>source</i> fields must not overlap the <i>array</i> field.
Context	This opera sors whose	tion is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- context-flag is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then if index[k] < index-limit then let r = geometry-total-vp-ratio(geometry(current-vp-set))let $m = \left\lfloor \frac{k}{r} \right\rfloor \mod 32$ let i = index[k]for all j such that $0 \le j < slen$ do $array[k - m \times r + (j \mod 32) \times r]\langle 32 \times (i + \left\lfloor \frac{j}{32} \right\rfloor) \rangle \leftarrow source[k]\langle j \rangle$ else $\langle error \rangle$

This is a simple form of array modification for parallel arrays whose elements are stored across the memory of individual processors. To each processor belongs an array of extent *index-limit* with elements of length *slen*.

The source field value for each active processor is copied into the indexed array element belonging to that processor. Thus different processors may modify different elements of their arrays. For this reason, this form of array access is known as *indirect addressing*.

Each processor has an array index stored in the field *index*. This is used to index into an area of CM memory, *array*, whose allocated length in bits should be at least

$$\left(index\-limit \times \left\lceil \frac{slen}{32} \right\rceil\right) \times 32$$

The argument *index-limit* is one greater than the largest allowed value of the index. It is an error for any *index* value to equal or exceed this limit.

In all selected processors, the *source* field is copied to a field of length *slen* and starting at address $array + i \times 32$, where *i* is the the unsigned number stored at *index*. Even this is not quite accurate, because the data within the destination *array* area is not organized in the same manner as for CM:aset. Instead, it is organized in a peculiar way for fast per-processor access. Parallel arrays stored in this format are termed *slicewise parallel arrays*.

Slicewise parallel array data is arranged with successive bits stored in successive processors within groups of 32 virtual processors. Thus, slicewise array data belonging to one processor is spread over the memories of the 32 processors in its group and the memory of each processor holds data belonging to all 32 processors.

A region of memory set aside for a slicewise array of the format required by CM: aset32 should be accessed only through the operations CM: aref32 and CM: aset32, related operations such as CM: send-aset32-overwrite and CM: get-aref32, or operations that copy the array as a whole from all processors (such as I/O operations). It is also possible to operate on this memory in blocks of 32-bit square matrices with the CM: transpose32 instruction.

ASET32-SHARED

Copies data from a fixed source to the destination array elements specified by a per-processor index. The array is stored in a special format that allows fast access, and is accessed in such a way that all the virtual processors within a group of 32 physical processors share the same array.

Formats	CM:aset32	2-shared-2L source, array, index, slen, index-len, index-limit
Operands	source	The field ID of the source field.
	array	The field ID of the destination array field. This must be contiguous region in CM memory. It need not be in the current VP set.
	index	The field ID of the unsigned integer index field. This is used as the per-processor index into the <i>array</i> .
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*. This must be a multiple of 32 and is taken as the array element length.
	index-len	The length of the <i>index</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	index-limi	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the exclusive upper bound for the <i>index</i> . This is taken as the extent of <i>array</i> .
Overlap	The fields and <i>index</i>	source and index may overlap in any manner. However, the source fields must not overlap the array field.
Context	context-fla receiving p	tion is conditional, but whether data is copied depends only on the g of the originating processor; the data, once transmitted to the processor, is stored into the field indicated by array regardless of t-flag of the receiving processor.

```
Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do

if context-flag[k] = 1 then

if index[k] < index-limit then

for all j such that 0 \le j < dlen do

array \left[ 32 \left\lfloor \frac{k}{32r} \right\rfloor + (j \mod 32) \right] \left\langle index-limit \left\lfloor \frac{j}{32} \right\rfloor + index[k] \right\rangle

\rightarrow source[k]\langle j \rangle

else

\langle error \rangle
```

where r is the VP ratio, and where j is the bit position in each field.

For any two active virtual processors, k and k', if index[k] = index[k'], then either source[k] or source[k'] is stored in dest, depending upon the implementation.

This is a simple form of array modification for arrays whose elements are stored across the memory of individual processors and accessed in such a way that many processors appear to share a single array of extent *index-limit* with elements of length *slen*.

The *source* field in each selected processor is copied into the array element (or a portion of it) indexed. Different processors may modify different elements of the shared array. For this reason, this form of array referencing is known as *indirect addressing*. If several processors sharing the same array attempt to modify the same element in a single CM:aset32-shared operation, then one of the values is stored and the rest are discarded.

Each processor has an array index stored in the field *index*. This is used to index into *array*. The argument *index-limit* is one greater than the largest allowed value of the index. It is an error for any *index* value to equal or exceed this limit.

The data within the destination array area is not organized in the same manner as for CM:aset; instead, it is organized in a peculiar way for fast per-processor access. Shared arrays stored in this format are termed *slicewise shared arrays*.

Slicewise shared array data is arranged with successive bits stored in successive processors, within groups of 32 physical processors. Each 32-bit word of each element is stored separately in processor memories, as follows: The low-order 32 bits of all elements are grouped together across processor memories in a field of length $32 \times index-limit$ bits. Similarly, the next 32 bits of all elements are grouped together, and so on, up to the high-order bits of all array elements. This data format allows fast hardware-supported access to the individual elements of a shared array.

A region of memory set aside for an array of the format required by CM:aset32-shared must be contiguous in memory. It must therefore be allocated all at once, at a VP ratio of 1, with a single call to CM:allocate-stack-field or to CM:allocate-heap-field. Alternatively, from Lisp, the memory may be allocated within a with-stack-field form at a VP ratio of 1.

An area of CM memory occupied by *array* should be allocated at a VP ratio of 1 as a field whose length in bits is exactly

index-limit
$$\times \left\lceil \frac{slen}{32} \right\rceil$$

Shared array memory should be accessed only with the operations CM:aref32-shared and CM:aset32-shared, or with operations that copy the array as a whole from all processors (such as I/O operations). Data in such a region of memory may, however, be reoriented with the CM:transpose32 instruction.

C-ASIN

Calculates the arc sine of the complex source field values and stores the result in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-asin- CM:c-asin-	1-1L dest/source, s, e 2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap		e field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. lex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Flags	overflow-fl	ag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow sin^{-1} source[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

The arc sine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

Length Restriction: This transcendental function is computed in either standard singleor standard double-precision and then the result is moved into the destination, regardless of the declared size of the destination. Therefore use standard lengths only, such that s =23 and e = 8 or s = 52 and e = 11.

The following definition of arc sine determines the range and branch cuts of a complex number z.

 $-i\log\left(i imes z+\sqrt{1-z^2}
ight)$

F-ASIN

Calculates the arc sine of the floating-point source field values and stores the result in the floating-point destination field.

Formats		1-1L dest/source, s, e 2-1L dest, source, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is cleared.	set if the source is less than -1 or greater than 1; otherwise it is	
Context		ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
Definition	if contest	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do xt -flag $[k] = 1$ then	

 $\begin{array}{l} dest[k] \leftarrow \sin^{-1} \ source[k] \\ \text{if } \ source[k] < -1 \ \text{or } \ source[k] > 1 \ \text{then} \\ \ test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \text{otherwise } \ test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0 \end{array}$

The arc sine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

C-ASINH

Calculates the arc hyperbolic sine of the complex source field values and stores the result in the complex destination field.

Formats		h-1-1L dest/source, s, e h-2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap	The source Two comp format.	e field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Nex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Flags	overflow-f	lag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context	This opera in processo	ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow sinh^{-1} source[k]$

The arc hyperbolic sine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

The following definition of the inverse hyperbolic sine determines the range and branch cuts for a complex number z.

 $\log\left(z+\sqrt{1+z^2}\right)$

F-ASINH

Calculates the arc hyperbolic sine of the floating-point source field values and stores the result in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	CM:f-asir CM:f-asir	nh-1-1L dest/source, s, e nh-2-1L dest, source, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For ever	y virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \sinh^{-1} source[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

The arc hyperbolic sine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

C-ATAN

Calculates the arc tangent of the complx source field values and stores the result in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-atan-1-1L dest/source, s, e CM:c-atan-2-1L dest, source, s, e		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected. test-flag is set if source contains i or $-i$, where $i C(0,1)$; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow tan^{-1} source[k]$

The arc tangent of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

The following definition for arc tangent determines the range and branch cuts for a complex number z.

-ilog	$(1 \pm i \times z) \times d$	1)
105	$\left((1+i imes z) imes ight.$	$\overline{(1+z^2)}$
F-ATAN

Calculates the arc tangent of the floating-point source field values and stores the result in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	CM:f-ata CM:f-ata		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then		

The arc tangent of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

 $dest[k] \leftarrow \tan^{-1} source[k]$

F-ATAN2

Calculates the arc tangent of the quotient of two floating-point source fields and stores the result in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	CM:f-atan2	2-3-1L dest, source1, source2, s, e		
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point y source field.		
	source2	The field ID of the floating-point x source field.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.			
	<i>test-flag</i> is a	set if <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> are both zero; otherwise it is unaffected.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

 The arc tangent of the quotient of the *source1* and *source2* fields is stored into the *dest* field. The signs of the source fields are taken into account to produce a result in the correct quadrant of the Cartesian plane.

C-ATANH

Calculates the arc hyperbolic tangent of the complex source field values and stores the result in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-atanh-1-1L dest/source, s, e CM:c-atanh-2-1L dest, source, s, e		
Operands	dest The field ID of the complex destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected. test-flag is set if source is 1 or -1 ; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow tanh^{-1} source[k]$

The arc hyperbolic tangent of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

The following definition of the arc hyperbolic tangent determines the range and branch cuts for a complex number z.

$$\log\left((1+z)\sqrt{1-rac{1}{z^2}}
ight)$$

F-ATANH

Calculates the arc hyperbolic tangent of the floating-point source field values and stores the result in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	CM:f-atan CM:f-atan		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is set if the magnitude of <i>source</i> is greater than or equal to 1; otherwise it is cleared.		
	overflow-j	flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	•	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do ext-flag[k] = 1 then	

if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow tanh^{-1} source[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$ if $|source[k]| \ge 1$ then $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$ otherwise $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$

The arc hyperbolic tangent of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

ATTACH

Attaches the Connection Machine hardware to the front end computer and returns the number of physical processors attached.

This instruction is available only from the Lisp/Paris interface. For Fortran/Paris and C/Paris users, the equivalent functionality is provided by the shell level cmattach command, documented in the CM System User's Guide.

Formats result \leftarrow CM:attach [physical-size], [interface], [wait-p]

- Operands physical-size The number of physical processors to be attached. This argument is an optional argument. interface The integer indicating a particular bus interface to be used. This is
 - an optional keyword argument and defaults to 0. When specified, the invocation must include the keyword :interface followed by an integer.
 - wait-p The answer to the question, "Do you want to wait for processors to become available?". This is an optional keyword argument and defaults to nil. When specified, the invocation must include the keyword :wait-p followed by T or NIL.
- Result An unsigned integer, the exact number of physical processors allocated.

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

From the Lisp/Paris interface, this function allocates Connection Machine processors for use by the front end. To deallocate the processors, use CM:detach.

In the Lisp/Paris interface, CM:attach is a function of several arguments.

The *physical-size* argument is optional; if no *physical-size* argument is specified, then the smallest possible amount of hardware will be allocated. This default is the smallest number of processors associated with one sequencer, and varies between 8,192 and 16,384 physical processors, depending of site requirements.

If specified, the *physical-size* argument indicates the number of processors desired. It may be any one of the following values:

:8kp or 8192 Exactly 8,192 physical processors are to be allocated.

:16kp or 16384 Exactly 16,384 physical processors are to be allocated.

:32kp or 32768 Exactly 32,768 physical processors are to be allocated.

:64kp or 65536 Exactly 65,536 physical processors are to be allocated.

Alternatively, the *physical-size* argument may specify the sequencer or sequencers desired by using one of the following values: (These options are useful primarily for hardware diagnostic procedures.)

- :ucc0, :ucc1, :ucc2, or :ucc3 Exactly the specified sequencer (also known as a microcontroller port) is to be attached, regardless of whether that port controls 8,192 or 16,384 physical processors.
- :ucc0-1, :ucc2-3, or :ucc0-3 Exactly the specified sequencers (0 and 1, 2 and 3, or all four) are to be attached, regardless of the number of physical processors involved.

The :interface keyword argument is used at sites with more than one Connection Machine. If used, it indicates which Connection Machine is to be attached by specifying the integer value of the interface for the desired Connection Machine.

The :wait-p keyword is used if you want to wait for the requested processors to become available. To quit waiting, type Ctrl-C. (From Gmacs, type Ctrl-C, Ctrl-C; from a Lisp Machine front end, type Ctrl-ABORT.)

The value returned by CM:attach is the number of physical processors that were attached.

An error is signalled if the required number of physical processors or the required set of microcontroller ports is not available.

The

variable CM:*before-attach-initializations* and the variable CM:*after-attach-initializations* contain sets of initialization forms that are respectively evaluated before and after anything else occurs.

Note: On a Symbolics Lisp Machine, the Lisp/Paris interface will also accept :8k, :16k, :32k, and :64k as *physical-size* specifications. However, these are not valid symbols in all Common Lisp implementations—technically speaking, they have the syntax of "potential numbers" in Common Lisp—and therefore users are encouraged to use the forms :8kp, :16kp, :32kp, and :64kp in code to ensure portability. The "k" forms will continue to be available to preserve back-compatibility with existing code that uses them.)

In the C/Paris and Fortran/Paris interfaces, the attaching operation is performed by a user command cmattach at shell level. See the *CM System User's Guide* manual or the cmattach man page for more information.

ATTACHED

Returns true if the front end process has Connection Machine processors attached for use.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:attached$
Result	True if the front end process has Connection Machine processors attached for use, and false otherwise.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This predicate allows a program to determine whether there are any Connection Machine processors attached (whether actual hardware or simulated) before it issues other Paris operations.

AVAILABLE-MEMORY

Determines the number of bits of memory, per virtual processor, that remain available for allocation on either the heap or the stack.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:available-memory$
Result	An unsigned integer, the number of bits available.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

The number of bits available for allocation by either CM:allocate-heap-field or CM:allocatestack-field is returned to the front end as an integer. The return value represents the number of bits available for each virtual processor in the current VP set.



F-F-CEILING

Determines the smallest integral value that is not less than the floating-point source field value in each selected processor and stores it in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	CM:f-f-ceiling-1-1L dest/source, s, e CM:f-f-ceiling-2-1L dest, source, s, e			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
Definition	if contea	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do ct-flag[k] = 1 then $ct \in [source[k]]$		

The source field, treated as a floating-point number, is rounded to the nearest integer in the direction of $+\infty$, which is stored into the *dest* field as a floating-point-number.

Note that overflow cannot occur.

200000

S-CEILING

The ceiling of the quotient of two signed integer source values is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

Formats		ng-2-1L dest/source1, source2, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer quotient field.	
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer dividend field.	
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer divisor field.	
	source2-v	alue A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	dlen	For CM:s-ceiling-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen1	For CM:s-ceiling-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen2	For CM:s-ceiling-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the quotient cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.		
	test-flag is	s set if the divisor is zero; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

The signed integer *source1* operand is divided by the signed integer *source2* operand. The ceiling of the mathematical quotient is stored into the signed integer memory field *dest*.

The various operand formats allow the second source operand to be either a memory field or a constant; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag and test-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

S-F-CEILING

The floating-point source field values are converted to signed integer values and stored in the destination field.

Formats	CM:s-f-ceiling-2-2L dest, source, dlen, s, e			
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the signed integer destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The fields dest and source must not overlap in any manner.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the <i>dest</i> field; otherwise it is cleared.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do		

finition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow [source[k]]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

The source field, treated as a floating-point number, is rounded to the nearest integer in the direction of $+\infty$. The result is stored into the *dest* field as a signed integer.

U-CEILING

The ceiling of the quotient of two unsigned integer source values is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

ormats		ng-2-1L	dest, source1, source2, dlen, slen1, slen2 dest/source1, source2, len dest, source1, source2, len dest/source1, source2-value, len dest, source1, source2-value, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of t	he unsigned integer quotient field.
	source1	The field ID of t	he unsigned integer dividend field.
	source2	The field ID of t	he unsigned integer divisor field.
	len		e <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be 1 no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen		-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be I no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1		3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be I no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2		3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be 1 no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the quotient cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.		
	test-flag is	s set if the divisor	is zero; otherwise it is cleared.
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{if } \langle \text{overflow occurred in processor } k \rangle \text{ then } overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \text{else } overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 0 \\ \text{if } source2[k] = 0 \text{ then} \\ test[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \text{else } test[k] \leftarrow 0 \end{array}$

The unsigned integer *source1* operand is divided by the unsigned integer *source2* operand. The ceiling of the mathematical quotient is stored into the unsigned integer memory field *dest*.

The various operand formats allow the second source operand to be either a memory field or a constant; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag and test-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-F-CEILING

The floating-point source field values are converted to unsigned integer values and stored in the destination field.

Formats	CM:u-f-ce	eiling-2-2L dest, source, dlen, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>source</i> field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The field	s dest and source must not overlap in any manner.	
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the dest field; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	-	ration is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only sors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then		

if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest \leftarrow \lceil source \rceil$ if $\langle overflow \ occurred \ in \ processor \ k \rangle$ then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$

The source field, treated as a floating-point number, is rounded to the nearest integer in the direction of $+\infty$, which is stored into the *dest* field as an unsigned integer.

CHANGE-FIELD-ALIAS

Changes the referent of the specified field alias.

Formats	CM:chang	e-field-alias alias-id, field-id	
Operands	alias-id	An alias field ID. This must be an alias field ID returned by CM:make-field-alias. It need not be in the current VP set.	
	field-id	A field ID. This must be a field id returned by CM: allocate-stack- field or CM: allocate-heap-field; it may <i>not</i> be an offset into a field. The field need not be in the current VP set.	
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.		

The alias field ID *alias-id* is made to reference the field identified by *field-id*. This function allows field aliases to be recycled.

After a call to CM: change-field-alias, the field length and the physical length associated with *alias-id* are exactly what they would be if CM: make-field-alias had been called with *field-id*.

An error is signaled if the physical length of the aliased field is not exactly divisible by the VP ratio of the VP set to which *field-id* belongs. (For more on the physical length associated with an alias field see the dictionary entry for CM:make-field-alias.)

The alias field ID can be used in all the same ways as a regular field ID can, with the following exceptions:

- It cannot be passed to CM:deallocate-heap-field.
- It cannot be passed to CM:deallocate-stack-through.

C-F-CIS

Calculates the cosine and sine for the floating-point source field and stores the result in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-f-cis	s-2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of the <i>dest</i> field in this format is $2(s+e+1)$. The total length of the <i>source</i> field in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap		ce field must be either identical to $dest$, identical to $(dest + s + e + 1)$, t from $dest$.
Context		eation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processe <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	•	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do ext-flag $[k] = 1$ then

The result is a complex number whose real part is the cosine of the *source* and whose imaginary part is the sine of the *source*. The term cis signifies $\cos +i \sin i$.

 $dest[k].real \leftarrow cos \ source[k]$ $dest[k].imag \leftarrow sin \ source[k]$

CLEAR-ALL-FLAGS

Clears all flags (but not the context bit).

FormatsCM:clear-all-flags
CM:clear-all-flags-alwaysContextThe non-always operation is conditional.
The always operation is unconditional.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$ $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$

Within each processor, all flags for that processor are cleared (but not the context bit).

CLEAR-BIT

Clears a specified memory bit.

Formats	CM:clear-bit dest CM:clear-bit-always dest	
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination ma only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	y be altered
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination may regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .	y be altered
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-un-set</i> do	.(9 5).

 $\inf (always \text{ or } context-flag[k] = 1) ext{ then } \\ dest[k] \leftarrow 0$

The destination memory bit is cleared within each selected processor.

CLEAR-CONTEXT

Unconditionally makes all processors inactive.

Formats CM:clear-context

Context This operation is unconditional.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do $context-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$

Within each processor, the context bit for that processor is unconditionally cleared.

CLEAR-flag

Clears a specified flag bit.

Formats	CM:clear-test
	CM:clear-overflow
Context	This operation is conditional.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $flag[k] \leftarrow 0$ where flag is test-flag or overflow-flag, as appropriate.

Within each processor, the indicated flag for that processor is cleared.

COLD-BOOT

This operation completely resets the state of the hardware allocated to the executing front end, loads microcode, initializes system tables, and clears user memory.

Formats	result \leftarrow CM:cold-boot microcode-version, dimensions
Operands	microcode-version Either :paris or :diagnostics. This specifies which ver- sion of the microcode is to be used. This argument is optional (actually a keyword argument in the Lisp interface).
	dimensions The dimension information for initializing the NEWS grid. This argument is optional (actually a keyword argument in the Lisp interface).
Result	In the Lisp/Paris interface <i>three</i> results are returned (as Common Lisp "mul- tiple values"):
	An unsigned integer, the number of virtual processors.
	An unsigned integer, the number of physical processors.
	An unsigned integer, the number of bits available per virtual processor.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

The facility for cold-booting Connection Machine hardware is provided in different ways in the Lisp/Paris interface (on the one hand) and the C/Paris and Fortran/Paris interfaces (on the other hand).

In the Lisp/Paris interface, CM:cold-boot is a function that accepts optional keyword arguments.

The :microcode-version argument specifies what set of microcode is to be loaded into the microcontroller(s). There are two choices for this argument: :paris (the default) specifies microcode that interprets the macroinstruction set, and :diagnostics specifies special microcode used for hardware maintenance.

The :dimensions argument is largely obsolete now that multiple VP sets may be allocated, but it is still supported for the sake of compatibility with previous releases of Paris. The :dimensions argument must be an integer, a list of 1 or 2 integers, or unsupplied. (Passing nil as the value is the same as not supplying a value.) An integer or a list of one integer specifies the total number of *virtual* processors desired. A list of two integers specifies the desired size of the *virtual* NEWS grid. Each dimension must be a power of two.

If the :dimensions argument is unsupplied, then the configuration of virtual processors depends on the most recent CM:cold-boot or CM:attach operation preceding this one. If the

most recent such operation was CM: cold-boot, then the same virtual processor configuration set up then will be used this time. If the most recent such operation was CM: attach, then the number of virtual processors will be equal to the number of physical processors, and the virtual NEWS grid will have the same shape as the physical NEWS grid.

Bootstrapping a Connection Machine system includes the following actions:

- Evaluating all initialization forms stored in the variable CM:*before-cold-bootinitializations*. This is done before anything else.
- Loading microcode into the Connection Machine microcontroller and initiating microcontroller execution.
- Clearing and initializing the memory of allocated Connection Machine processors.
- Initializing all of the global configuration variables described in section 3.7.
- Initializing the pseudo-random number generator by effectively invoking the operation CM:initialize-random-number-generator with no seed.
- Initializing the system lights-display mode by effectively invoking the operation CM:set-system-leds-mode with an argument of t.
- Evaluating all initialization forms stored in the variable CM:*after-cold-bootinitializations*. This is done after everything else.

If the cold-booting operation fails, then an error is signalled. If it succeeds, then three values are returned: the number of virtual processors, the number of physical processors, and the number of bits available for the user in each virtual processor. (These are exactly the values of the configuration variables CM:*user-cube-address-limit*, CM:*physical-cube-address-limit*, and CM:*user-memory-address-limit*.

In the C/Paris and Fortran/Paris interfaces, the cold-booting operation is performed by a user command cmcoldboot at shell level. See the *Front End Subsystems* manual.

F-COMPARE

Compares two floating-point source values and stores into the signed integer destination field the result -1, 0, or 1 depending on whether the first source value is less than, equal to, or greater than the second source value.

ormats	CM:f-com	pare-3-2L dest, source1, source2, dlen, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the floating-point second source field.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source1 and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	and source	dest and source1 must not overlap in any manner. The fields dest e2 must not overlap in any manner. The fields source1 and source2 ap in any manner.
Context	This opera sors whose	ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e context-flag is 1.

Two operands are compared as floating-point numbers. The destination receives the signed integer value -1, 0, or 1 depending on whether the first source value is less than, equal'to, or greater than the second source value.

S-COMPARE

Compares two signed integer source values and stores into the signed integer destination field the result -1, 0, or 1 depending on whether the first source value is less than, equal to, or greater than the second source value.

Formats	CM:s-compare-3-3L	dest,	source1,	source2,	dlen,	slen1,	slen2	
---------	-------------------	-------	----------	----------	-------	--------	-------	--

Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	and source	s dest and source1 must not overlap in any manner. The fields dest se2 must not overlap in any manner. The fields source1 and source2 lap in any manner.
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Two operands are compared as signed integers. The destination receives the value -1, 0, or 1 depending on whether the first source value is less than, equal to, or greater than the second source value.

U-COMPARE

Compares two unsigned integer source values and stores into the signed integer destination field the result -1, 0, or 1 depending on whether the first source value is less than, equal to, or greater than the second source value.

Formats	CM:u-com	pare-3-3L dest, source1, source2, dlen, slen1, slen2
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	and source	<i>dest</i> and <i>source1</i> must not overlap in any manner. The fields <i>dest</i> 2 must not overlap in any manner. The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> p in any manner.
Context	This opera sors whose	tion is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- context-flag is 1.

Two operands are compared as unsigned integers. The destination receives the signed integer value -1, 0, or 1 depending on whether the first source value is less than, equal to, or greater than the second source value.

COMPRESS-HEAP

Invokes the heap compression mechanism on demand.

Formats CM:compress-heap

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

Heap compression removes heap memory fragmentation.

By default, the configuration variable CM:*heap-compression-enabled* is T (true), causing automatic heap compression whenever the stack and heap try to grow into each other. Therefore, under normal circumstances it not necessary to use the CM:compress-heap instruction.

Automatic heap compression can, however, make performance calculations unpredictable. To ensure deterministic performance, set CM:*heap-compression-enabled* to NIL (false, 0), arrange data structures to avoid fragmentation where possible, and explicitly invoke CM:compress-heap as necessary.

The variable CM:*heap-compression-messages-enabled* determines whether a message is issued when heap compression occurs. By default, this value is T (true, 1) and heap compression messages are issued. If this variable is NIL (false, 0), heap compression occurs without report.

C-CONJUGATE

The conjugate of the complex source field is placed in the complex dest field.

Formats		njugate-1-1L dest/source, s, e njugate-2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap	The sour Two com format.	rce field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. nplex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Context	This oper sors who:	ration is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processe context-flag is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k].real \leftarrow source[k].real$ $dest[k].imag \leftarrow -source[k].imag$

Given a complex number C the conjugate C' consists of a real part equal to the real part of C and an imaginary part equal to the negation of the imaginary part of C. The conjugate of the complex *source* field is placed in the *dest* field.

C-COS

Calculates the cosine of the complex source field and stores the result in the complex destination field.

ormats	CM:c-cos- CM:c-cos-	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap		ce field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. plex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Flags	overflow-j	flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context		ration is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only sors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

The cosine of the value of the complex source field is stored into the complex dest field.

COS

F-COS

Calculates, in each selected processor, the cosine of the floating-point source field value and stores it in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	CM:f-cos- CM:f-cos-	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The <i>sourc</i> Two float same form	e field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. ing-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the pat.
Context	This oper- sors whose	ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e context-flag is 1.
Definition		virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do $tt-flag[k] = 1$ then

 $dest[k] \leftarrow \cos source[k]$

The cosine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

C-COSH

Calculates, in each selected processor, the hyperbolic cosine of the complex source field value and stores it in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-cosl CM:c-cosl	h-1-1L dest/source, s, e h-2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap		rce field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. aplex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Flags	overflow-	flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context	20 million - 10 mi	ration is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only sors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	For over	wirtual processor k in the current-un-set do

The hyperbolic cosine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

F-COSH

Calculates the hyperbolic cosine of the floating-point source field and stores it in the floating-point destination field.

Formats		n-1-1L dest/source, s, e n-2-1L dest, source, s, e			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.			
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.			
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.				
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.				
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				

The hyperbolic cosine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

CREATE-DETAILED-GEOMETRY

Creates a new geometry given detailed information about how the grid is laid out.

For most applications, the simpler CM: create-geometry instruction is recommended over this one. Use CM: create-detailed-geometry only to tune the performance of an application with stable, known inter-processor communication patterns. (See also CM: intern-geometry and CM: intern-detailed-geometry).

Formats	result	←	CM:create-detailed-geometry	axis-descriptor-array,	[rank]	
---------	--------	---	-----------------------------	------------------------	--------	--

Operands axis-descriptor-array A front-end vector of descriptors for the grid axes.

In the C interface, the elements of the *axis-descriptor-array* must be of type CM_axis_descriptor_t, that is, they must be pointers to structures of type CM_axis_descriptor.

In the Lisp interface, the *axis-descriptor-array* may be either a list of descriptors or an array of descriptors.

- rank An unsigned integer, the rank (number of dimensions) of the geometry being created. This must be between 1 and CM:*maxgeometry-rank*, inclusive. This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.
- Result A geometry ID, identifying the newly created geometry. This is of type CM_geometry_id_t in C, of type CM:geometry-id in Lisp, and an integer in Fortran.
- Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

CM:create-detailed-geometry takes an array of axis descriptors, one for each axis. The operation returns a geometry ID, which may then be used to create a VP set or to respecify the geometry of an existing VP set.

Each axis descriptor specified by CM:axis-descriptor-array is a structure describing one NEWS axis in some detail. Most of the descriptor components are unsigned integers, but the value of the *ordering* component is different. From Lisp, the *ordering* component must be either :news-order, :send-order, or :framebuffer-order. From C or Fortran, it must be either CM_news_order, CM_send_order, or CM_framebuffer_order.

The C definitions of the type of the ordering component and of the axis descriptor are shown below. Notice that the elements of the *axis_descriptor_array* must be pointers to type struct CM_axis_descriptor.

CREATE-DETAILED-GEOMETRY

typedef enum {CM_news_order, CM_send_order } CM_axis_order_t; typedef struct CM_axis_descriptor { unsigned length; unsigned weight; CM_axis_order_t ordering; unsigned char on_chip_bits; unsigned char off_chip_bits; } * CM_axis_descriptor_t;

Actually, this structure has other components as well. C code should use the definition of CM_axis_descriptor from the cmtypes.h include file.

The Fortran/Paris interface defines CM_axis_descriptor as an array:

INTEGER RANK, DESCRIPTOR_ARRAY(7, RANK)

The elements of each Fortran axis descriptor are defined such that:

DESCRIPTOR_ARRAY(1, I) is the length of axis I DESCRIPTOR_ARRAY(2, I) is the weight of axis I DESCRIPTOR_ARRAY(3, I) is the ordering of axis I DESCRIPTOR_ARRAY(4, I) is the on-chip bits of axis I DESCRIPTOR_ARRAY(6, I) is the off-chip bits of axis I

Thus CM: axis-descriptor-array is, in Fortran, an array of axis descriptor arrays.

The Lisp definitions of the type of the ordering component and of the axis descriptor are shown below.

(deftype cm:axis-order () '(member :news-order :send-order)) (defstruct CM:axis-descriptor (length 0) (weight 0) (ordering :news-order) (on-chip-bits 0) (off-chip-bits 0))

The *axis-descriptor-array* operand must be created by first making one axis descriptor for each axis and then using these to assign values to the array elements. An example in C is given below. Notice that *axis1* and *axis2* are *pointers* to axis descriptor structures and that the descriptor structures are zeroed before any values are assigned.

```
CM_geometry_id_t my_geometry;
CM_axis_descriptor_t my_geometry_axes[2];
CM_axis_descriptor_t axis1, axis2;
```
```
axis1 = (cm_axis_descriptor_t)malloc(sizeof(struct CM_axis_descriptor));
axis2 = (cm_axis_descriptor_t)malloc(sizeof(struct CM_axis_descriptor));
bzero(axis1, sizeof(struct CM_axis_descriptor));
bzero(axis2, sizeof(struct CM_axis_descriptor));
axis1->length = 128;
axis2->length = 256;
axis1->weight = 5;
axis2->weight = 10;
axis1->ordering = CM_news_order;
axis2->ordering = CM_news_order;
my_geometry_axes[0] = axis1;
my_geometry_axes[1] = axis2;
my_geometry = CM_create_detailed_geometry(my_geometry_axes, 2);
```

The following example specifies the same axes, descriptor array, and geometry in Lisp. Notice that the constructor CM:make-axis-descriptor is used.

```
(setq my-geometry-axes make-array(2))
(setq axis1
 (CM:make-axis-descriptor :length 128 :weight 5
   :ordering :news-order))
(setq axis2
 (CM:make-axis-descriptor :length 256 :weight 10
   :ordering :news-order)))
(setf (aref my-geometry-axes 0) axis1)
(setf (aref my-geometry-axis 1) axis2)
(setq my-geometry (CM:make-detailed-geometry my-geometry-axes 2)
```

Once the geometry has been created, the user may destroy the descriptors and the array used to provide axis information. All necessary information is copied out of these structures as the geometry is created.

The "length" component of an axis descriptor specifies the length of the axis; it must be a power of two.

The "weight" component of the axis descriptors specifies the relative frequency of interprocessor communication along different axes. For instance, in the above example it is assumed that communication occurs about half as often along *axis1*, which is given a weight of 5, as along *axis2*, which is given a weight of 10. Only the relative values of the weight components matter. The same communication traffic could be specified with weights of 1 and 2, or of 3 and 6. If all weights are 1, it is assumed that all axes are used equally frequently.

CREATE-DETAILED-GEOMETRY

Given a set of weight components, Paris lays out the hypercube grid for optimal performance. Virtual processors are mapped onto the physical hypercube in a pattern that exploits the fact that communication is especially rapid among virtual processors within the same physical processor and among virtual processors within the same physical chip.

The "ordering" component of an axis descriptor specifies how NEWS coordinates are mapped onto physical processors for that axis. The value :news-order specifies the usual embedding of the grid into the hypercube such that processors with adjacent NEWS coordinates are in fact neighbors within the hypercube. The value :send-order specifies that, if processor A has a smaller NEWS coordinate than processor B, then A also has a smaller send-address than B. This ordering is rarely used. However, :send-order ordering *is* useful for specific applications such as FFT. The value :framebuffer-order is provided solely for creating VP sets that are used as image buffers (for details, see chapter 1 of the *Generic Display Interface Reference* Manual).

If the "weight" components are all 1, then the mapping of virtual to physical processors can be specified with the "on-chip-bits" and "off-chip-bits" components of the axis descriptors. This is not recommended. To tune performance for communication, use the weight component.

CREATE-GEOMETRY

Creates a new geometry given the grid axis lengths. See also CM:intern-geometry.

Formats result \leftarrow CM:create-geometry dimension-array, [rank]

- Operands dimension-array A front-end vector of unsigned integer lengths of the grid axes. In the Lisp interface, this may be a list of dimension lengths instead of an array of dimension lengths, at the user's option.
 - rank An unsigned integer, the rank (number of dimensions) of the dimension-array. This must be between 1 and CM:*max-geometry-rank*, inclusive. This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.

Result A geometry ID, identifying the newly created geometry.

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

The dimension-array must be a one-dimensional array of nonnegative integers; each must be a power of 2. The product of all these integers must be a multiple of the number of physical processors attached for use by this process.

This operation returns a geometry ID for a newly created geometry whose dimensions are specified by the *dimension-array*. The length of axis j of the resulting geometry will be equal to *dimension-array*[j]. Such a geometry ID may then be used to create a VP set, or to respecify the geometry of an existing VP set.

The geometry will be laid out so as to optimize performance under the assumption that the axes are used equally frequently for NEWS communication. The operation CM:createdetailed-geometry may be used instead to get more precise control over layout for performance tuning.

Once the geometry has been created, the user may destroy the array used to provide the dimension information. All necessary information is copied out of this array as the geometry is created.

CROSS-VP-MOVE

Copies data from a source field with a particular shape and orientation to a destination field with the same shape, but possibly with a different orientation within the CM. The source and destination VP sets are not required to have matching dimensionality along all axes. However, every source axis selected for inclusion in this copying operation must be mapped to a destination axis of the same length. The source field must be in the current VP set; the destination field may be in a different VP set.

Formats	CM:cross-	vp-move-1L	dest, source, axis-mapping, source-axis-coords, dest-axis-coords, len
	CM:cross-	vp-move-always-1L	dest, source, axis-mapping, source-axis-coords, dest-axis-coords, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of th	ne dest field. This is in the destination VP set.
	source	The field ID of th	ne source field. This is in the current VP set.
	axis-mapp	valid values also i This vector define nation axes during to the number of element 0 correspo each vector eleme corresponding sou For any source axi axis-mapping elem	vector of unsigned integer values. The set of ncludes the null value CM:*cvpm-indexed*. es how the source axes are mapped to the desti- g data transfer. The length of this vector is equal axes in the source VP set. Thus, axis-mapping onds to <i>source</i> axis 0, and so forth. The value of nt should indicate to which destination axis the arce axis is mapped. Is that is <i>not</i> to be copied, give the corresponding tent the value CM:*cvpm-indexed*; treatment of er specified by the next argument.
	source-axi	of valid values also This vector define The length of this source VP set. The source axis 0, and the axis-mapping of CM:*cvpm-mapped by these mapped a The remaining, un integers, each of	nmapped, source-axis-coords elements should be which indexes a specific point along its corre- axis; these coordinates describe the location of

dest-axi	s-coords A front-end vector of unsigned integer values. The set of valid values also includes the null value CM:*cvpm-mapped*.
	This vector defines where within the destination VP set the source data is transferred. The length of this vector is equal to the number of axes in the destination VP set. Thus, dest-axis-coords element 0 corresponds to dest axis 0, and so forth. Any destination axis that is mapped in the axis-mapping vector should have a dest-axis- coords value of CM:*cvpm-mapped*; the final orientation of the copied data is described by these mapped axes. The remaining, unmapped, dest-axis-coords elements should be in-
	tegers, each of which indexes a specific point along its correspond- ing <i>dest</i> axis; these coordinates describe the final location of the copied data.
len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.

Overlap For d, e, s, and t, the fields s, o, u, r, c, and e must be either nonoverlapping or identical.

Context This operation is conditional.

Data values of *len* bits each are copied from the *source* field into the *dest* field, where the *source* field is in the current VP set and the *dest* field may be in the same or a different VP set. During this operation, the copied data is *moved* from one orientation within the Connection Machine – dictated by the layout of the participating *source* axes – into another orientation dictated by the layout of the participating *dest* axes.

The three vector arguments determine *what* source data is copied, *where* within the destination geometry it is put, and *how* it is moved or reoriented within the CM during this process.

The source-axis-coords vector specifies what source data is copied. It contains one element for each source geometry axis such that element 0 corresponds to axis 0, and so forth. It is not necessary to copy all the source data: along each axis, either one point or all points may be included in the shape that is copied. For example, to copy a 2-dimensional shape from a 3-dimensional geometry, we include two entire axes and one point along the third axis.

To include all the data along a particular source axis, specify the corresponding *source-axis-coords* value as CM:*cvpm-mapped* – meaning this axis is mapped in its entirety to some destination axis. The shape of the source data to copy is defined by the lengths of the axes specified as mapped. The exact mapping is given by the *axis-mapping* vector. To include only one point along a particular source axis, specify the corresponding *source-axis-coords* value as an unsigned integer between 0 and one less than the extent of the axis.

CROSS-VP-MOVE

The dest-axis-coords vector specifies where in the destination to put the source data. This vector is analogous to source-axis-coords in that it specifies which destination axes recieve data and where along the remaining axes the copying is carried out. There must be one dest-axis-coords element for each destination geometry axis and each element value must be either an integer or CM:*cvpm-mapped*.

To transfer data to an entire axis, specify the corresponding *dest-axis-coords* value as CM:*cvpm-mapped*. To transfer data only at a specific coordinate along an axis, specify an integer value. In *dest-axis-coords* and *source-axis-coords*, the number and lengths of the axes specified as mapped must exactly match. For example, when copying a 2-dimensional shape from a 3-dimensional vP set into a 2-dimensional vP set, the *source-axis-coords* will include two mapped axes and one coordinate while the *dest-axis-coords* will include two mapped axes and no coordinates.

The axis-mapping vector specifies how the copied data is reoriented as it is transferred from the source geometry to the destination geometry. As discribed above, the source-axis-coords and dest-axis-coords vectors each specify certain source and dest axes as "mapped." The axis-mapping vector determines which source axis is mapped to which destination axis. It contains one element for each source geometry axis such that element 0 corresponds to source axis 0 and so forth. Each element value is either an integer or CM:*cvpm-indexed*.

For each source axis that is not mapped to a destination axis, give the corresponding axis-mapping element the value CM:*cvpm-indexed* – meaning that this axis is indexed. The source-axis-coords vector gives coordinates from which data along an indexed axis is copied. For each source axis that is mapped to a destination axis, give the corresponding axis-mapping element an unsigned integer value indicating which destination axis is to recieve data from this source axis. Each pair of mapped axes must be of the same length.

Note: Proper execution of this instruction requires that the lengths of the source and destination axes not be changed between invocations. Be especially careful if a CM:set-vp-set-geometry call changes the geometry of either the source or destination VP set between invocation of CM:cross-vp-set-move-1L.

The code fragment below demonstrates copying a 2-dimensional shape from a 3-dimensional source geometry into a 2-dimensional destination geometry. Source axes 0 and 1 are copied from coordinate i along source axis 2. Source axis 0 maps to destination axis 1 and source axis 1 maps to destination axis 0.

DEALLOCATE-GEOMETRY

Declare that a geometry will no longer be used.

Formats	CM:deallocate-geometry geometry-id
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

By this operation a user program declares that a geometry will no longer be used. The system is permitted to reclaim any and all resources associated with that geometry. It is an error for the user program to give the specified geometry ID as an argument to any Paris operation once it has been deallocated.

It is an error to deallocate a geometry that is still in use by some VP set.

DEALLOCATE-HEAP-FIELD

Declare that a heap field will no longer be used.

Formats	CM:deallocate-heap-field heap-field-id		
Operands	heap-field-id A field ID.		
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.		

By this operation a user program declares that a field will no longer be used. The system is permitted to reclaim any and all resources associated with that field, in particular the memory that it occupied. It is an error for the user program to give the specified field ID as an argument to any Paris operation once it has been deallocated.

DEALLOCATE-STACK-THROUGH

Declare that a stack field and all fields allocated more recently than it will no longer be used.

Formats	CM:deallocate-stack-through	stack-field-id
Operands	stack-field-id A field ID.	
Context	This operation is uncondition	nal. It does not depend on the context-flag.

By this operation a user program declares that the specified field on the stack, and all fields allocated more recently than it, will no longer be used. (Note that any fields allocated more recently than the specified field are necessarily closer to the top of the stack.) The system is permitted to reclaim any and all resources associated with those fields, in particular the memory that they occupied. It is an error for the user program to give the field ID of a deallocated field as an argument to any Paris operation. ------

DEALLOCATE-VP-SET

Declare that a VP set will no longer be used.

Formats	CM:deallocate-vp-set vp-set-id		
Operands	vp-set-id A VP set ID.		
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.		

By this operation a user program declares that a VP set will no longer be used. The system is permitted to reclaim any and all resources associated with that VP set. It is an error for the user program to give the specified VP set ID as an argument to any Paris operation once it has been deallocated.

It is an error to deallocate a VP set for which there are still fields that have not yet been deallocated. The user should first deallocate all fields belonging to that VP set, except the flags, which are deallocated automatically when the VP set is deallocated.

DEPOSIT-NEWS-COORDINATE

.

Modifies a send address to reflect a specific NEWS coordinate.

Formats	CM:deposi	t-news-coordinate-1L geometry, dest/send-address,	
	CM:deposi	axis, coordinate, slen it-news-constant-1L geometry, dest/send-address, axis, coordinate-value, slen	
Operands	geometry	A geometry ID. This geometry determines the NEWS to be used.	dimensions
	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field instruction formats currently provided, the <i>dest</i> field is same as the <i>send-address</i> source field. The length of implicitly the same as <i>geometry-send-address-length</i> (g	s always the this field is
	send-addre	ess The field ID of the unsigned integer send addre	ss field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as of a NEWS axis.	the number
	coordinate	The field ID of the unsigned integer NEWS coord This specifies the position along the corrsponding axi cessor whose send address is to be calculated.	
	coordinate	e-value An unsigned integer immediate operand to the NEWS coordinate along the specified axis.	o be used as
	slen	The length of the <i>coordinate</i> field. This must be non-non greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	negative and
Overlap	For CM:de dest field.	eposit-news-coordinate-1L, the <i>coordinate</i> field must not	overlap the
Context		ation is conditional. The destination may be altered on e <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	ly in proces-
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do	

if context-flag[k] = 1 then

 $dest[k] \leftarrow deposit-news-coordinate(geometry, send-address, axis, coordinate)$

where *deposit-news-coordinate* is as defined on page 40.

This function calculates, within each selected processor, the send-address of a processor that has a specified coordinate along a specified NEWS axis, with all other coordinates equal to those for the processor identified by *send-address*.

FE-DEPOSIT-NEWS-COORDINATE

Calculates on the front end the modification of a send address to reflect a specific NEWS coordinate.

Formats	result ← CM:fe-deposit-news-coordinate geometry, send-address, axis, coordinate	
Operands	geometry A geometry ID. This geometry determines the NEWS dimensions to be used.	
	send-address An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the send address of some processor.	
	axis An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	coordinate An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along the specified axis.	
Result	An unsigned integer, the send address of the processor whose coordinate along the specified axis is <i>coordinate</i> and whose coordinate along all other axes equals those of <i>send-address</i> .	
Context	This operation is performed on the front end. It does not depend on the CM context-flag.	

Definition Return deposit-news-coordinate(geometry, send-address, axis, coordinate) where deposit-news-coordinate is as defined on page 40.

This function calculates, entirely on the front end, the send-address of a processor that has a specified coordinate along a specified NEWS axis, with all other coordinates equal to those for the processor identified by *send-address*.

DETACH

Detaches the specified front-end computer from the Connection Machine hardware previously allocated for and attached to it.

This instruction is available only from the Lisp/Paris interface. For Fortran/Paris and C/Paris users, the equivalent functionality is provided by the shell level cmdetach command, documented in the *CM System User's Guide*.

Formats CM:detach front-end-name, suppress-confirmation

Operands front-end-name The name of a front end, or a list of a front end name and a bus-interface specifier. This argument is optional.

suppress-confirmation The confirmation suppression flag. This argument is optional. If supplied and not false, then the interactive query and prompt requesting confirmation of the detach operation is suppressed.

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the *context-flag*.

The facility for detaching Connection Machine hardware is provided in different ways in the Lisp/Paris interface (on the one hand) and the C/Paris and Fortran/Paris interfaces (on the other hand).

In the Lisp/Paris interface, CM:detach is a function of two arguments. The arguments are optional.

In most normal use no argument is specified. In this case the front end executing the call to CM:detach releases all Connection Machine hardware to which it had been attached, resetting relevant parts of the Nexus so that the front end can no longer issue macroinstructions to the Connection Machine system. (An error is signalled if in fact no hardware had been attached in the first place.) This use of CM:detach is the normal way of releasing attached hardware and will not disrupt users on other front ends.

If a *front-end-name* argument is specified, it must be the name of a front end that is connected to the same Connection Machine system (that is, Nexus) as the front end executing the call, or perhaps a list of a front end name and a small integer identifying a bus interface on that front end. A front end name may be either a string or a symbol. Examples (assuming, for the sake of exposition, that front end computers are named after Shakespearean characters):

(detach 'hamlet) ;Detach front end named Hamlet

(detach "lear" t) ;Detach front end named Lear, and don't confirm (detach '(desdemona 1)) ;Detach bus interface 1 of front end Desdemona

Specifying the name of the front end that is executing the call has the same effect as specifying no argument; the front end is gracefully detached. But specifying the name of some other front end forcibly detaches that other front end, possibly disrupting any ongoing interaction with the Connection Machine system. The external communications network is used to send a message to the detached front end to inform its user that it has been forcibly detached.

There are two sets of initialization forms, kept in the variables CM:*before-detachinitializations* and CM:*after-detach-initializations*, that are evaluated before and after anything else occurs.

In the C/Paris and Fortran/Paris interfaces, the detaching operation is performed by a user command cmdetach at shell level. See the *Front End Subsystems* manual or the cmdetach man page.

C-DIVIDE

The quotient of two complex source values is placed in the destination field. Note: Integer division is performed by the round, truncate, rem, and mod operations.

Formats	CM:c-divide-2-1L dest/source1, source2, s, e
	CM:c-divide-always-2-1L dest/source1, source2, s, e
	CM:c-divide-3-1L dest, source1, source2, s, e
	CM:c-divide-always-3-1L dest, source1, source2, s, e
	CM:c-divide-constant-2-1L dest/source1, source2-value, s, e
	CM:c-divide-const-always-2-1L dest/source1, source2-value, s, e
	CM:c-divide-constant-3-1L dest, source1, source2-value, s, e
	CM:c-divide-const-always-3-1L dest, source1, source2-value, s, e
	CM:c-divinto-2-1L dest/source2, source1, s, e
	CM:c-divinto-always-2-1L dest/source2, source1, s, e
	CM:c-divinto-constant-2-1L dest/source2, source1-value, s, e
	CM:c-divinto-const-always-2-1L dest/source2, source1-value, s, e
	CM:c-divinto-constant-3-1L dest, source2, source1-value, s, e
	CM:c-divinto-const-always-3-1L dest, source2, source1-value, s, e
Operands	dest The field ID of the complex destination field. This is the quotient.
	source1 The field ID of the complex first source field. This is the dividend.
	source2 The field ID of the complex second source field. This is the divisor.
	source1-value A complex immediate operand to be used as the first source.
	<i>source2-value</i> A complex immediate operand to be used as the second source.
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.
Flags	test-flag is set if division by zero occurs; otherwise it is unaffected. overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

DIVIDE

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k]/source2[k]$ if source2[k] = 0 then $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$

The source1 operand is divided by the source2 operand, treating both as complex numbers. The result is stored into memory. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

F-DIVIDE

The quotient of two floating-point source values is placed in the destination field.

Note: Integer division is performed by the round, truncate, rem, and mod operations.

Formats	CM:f-divid CM:f-divin CM:f-divin CM:f-divin CM:f-divin CM:f-divid CM:f-divid CM:f-divid CM:f-divid CM:f-divin CM:f-divin	e-always-2-1L e-constant-2-1L to-2-1L to-always-2-1L to-constant-2-1L to-constant-2-1L to-const-always-2-1L e-3-1L e-always-3-1L e-constant-3-1L to-const-always-3-1L to-constant-3-1L to-const-always-3-1L	dest/source1, source2, s, e dest/source1, source2, s, e dest/source1, source2-value, s, e dest/source2, source2-value, s, e dest/source2, source1, s, e dest/source2, source1, s, e dest/source2, source1-value, s, e dest, source1, source2, s, e dest, source1, source2, s, e dest, source1, source2, s, e dest, source1, source2, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, s, e dest, source2, source1-value, s, e dest, source2, source1-value, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the quotient.	e floating-point destination field. This is the
	source1	The field ID of the dividend.	e floating-point first source field. This is the
	source2	The field ID of the divisor.	floating-point second source field. This is the
	source1-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the firs source.		
	<i>source2-value</i> A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source.		
	s, e		d exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and total length of an operand in this format is
Overlap	however, floating-pe	must be either disjo pint fields are identic	2 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, int from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two al if they have the same address and the same the fields to be identical.
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is set if division by zero occurs; otherwise it is unaffected. <i>overflow-flag</i> is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.		

DIVIDE

Context The non-always operations are conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose *context-flag* is 1. The always operations are unconditional. The destination and flags may be

altered regardless of the value of the context-flag.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k]/source2[k]$ if source2[k] = 0 then $test-flag \leftarrow 1$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$

The source1 operand is divided by the source2 operand, treating both as floating-point numbers. The result is stored into memory. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

ENUMERATE

The destination field in every selected processor receives the number of processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:enume	rate-1L dest, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit		
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.		
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.		
	inclusion	Either : exclusive or : inclusive.		
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.		
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.		
Overlap	The <i>sbit</i> fi	eld must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
Definition	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do xt -flag $[k] = 1$ then		

let $S_k = scan-subset(k, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow |S_k|$

where *scan-subset* is as defined on page 45.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM:enumerate-1L operation stores into the *dest* field of each selected processor the size of the scan subset for that processor. This means that every processor within a scan set of size N will receive a different integer in the range 0 to N - 1 (for an exclusive enumeration) or in the range 1 to N (for an inclusive enumeration).

A call to CM: enumerate-1L is equivalent to the sequence below, but may be faster.

CM:u-move-constant-1L temp, 1, len CM:scan-with-u-add-1L dest, temp, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit CM:u-subtract-constant-1L dest, 1, len

C-EQ

EQ

Compares two complex source values. The *test-flag* is set if they are equal, and otherwise it is cleared.

CM:c-eq-1Lsource1, source2, s, eCM:c-eq-constant-1Lsource1, source2-value, s, eCM:c-eq-zero-1Lsource1, s, e		
source1 The field ID of the complex first source field.		
source2 The field ID of the complex second source field.		
source2-value A complex immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:c-eq-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.		
s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the source1 and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s+e+1)$.		
The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner.		
test-flag is set if source1 is equal to source2; otherwise it is cleared.		
This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in proces whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then if source1[k] = source2[k] test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 else test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0

Two operands are compared as complex numbers. The first operand is a memory field; the second is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise. Note that comparisons ignore the sign of zero; +0 and -0 are considered to be equal.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision complex front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

F-EQ

Compares two floating-point source values. The *test-flag* is set if they are equal, and otherwise is cleared.

Operandssource1The field ID of the floating-point first source field.source2The field ID of the floating-point second source field.source2-valueA floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:f-eq-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.s, eThe significand and exponent lengths for the source1 and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.OverlapThe fields source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.Flagstest-flag is set if source1 is equal to source2; otherwise it is cleared.	Formats	CM:f-eq-1Lsource1, source2, s, eCM:f-eq-constant-1Lsource1, source2-value, s, eCM:f-eq-zero-1Lsource1, s, e
 source2-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:f-eq-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero. s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the source1 and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is s + e + 1. Overlap The fields source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. Flags test-flag is set if source1 is equal to source2; otherwise it is cleared. 	Operands	source1 The field ID of the floating-point first source field.
source. For CM:f-eq-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.s, eThe significand and exponent lengths for the source1 and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.OverlapThe fields source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.Flagstest-flag is set if source1 is equal to source2; otherwise it is cleared.		source2 The field ID of the floating-point second source field.
fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$. Overlap The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Flags <i>test-flag</i> is set if <i>source1</i> is equal to <i>source2</i> ; otherwise it is cleared.		source2-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:f-eq-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.
Flags test-flag is set if source1 is equal to source2; otherwise it is cleared.		s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the source1 and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
o y y state i trancor is equal to sources, otherwise it is cleared.	Overlap	The fields source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.
	Flags	test-flag is set if source1 is equal to source2; otherwise it is cleared.
Context This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	Context	This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Two operands are compared as floating-point numbers. The first operand is a memory field; the second is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise. Note that comparisons ignore the sign of zero; +0 and -0 are considered to be equal.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

S-EQ

Compares two signed integer source values. The *test-flag* is set if they are equal, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:s-eq-1L source1, source2, len
	CM:s-eq-2L source1, source2, slen1, slen2
	CM:s-eq-constant-1L source1, source2-value, len
	CM:s-eq-zero-1L source1, len
Operands	source1 The field ID of the signed integer first source field.
	source2 The field ID of the signed integer second source field.
	source2-value A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:s-eq-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.
	len The length of the source1 and source2 fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1 The length of the source1 field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2 The length of the source2 field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The fields source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.
Flags	test-flag is set if source1 is equal to source2; otherwise it is cleared.
Context	This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	if $source1[k] = source2[k]$ then
	$\textit{test-flag}[k] \gets 1$
	else
	$\textit{test-flag}[k] \gets 0$

Two operands are compared as signed integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-EQ

Compares two unsigned integer source values. The *test-flag* is set if they are equal, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:u-eq-1 CM:u-eq-2 CM:u-eq-c CM:u-eq-z	2Lsource1, source2, slen1, slen2constant-1Lsource1, source2-value, len
Operands	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field.
	source2-ve	alue An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:u-eq-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.
	len	The length of the <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non- negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The fields	source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is	set if <i>source1</i> is equal to <i>source2</i> ; otherwise it is cleared.
Context	This operative the second seco	ation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors <i>text-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then if source1[k] = source2[k] then test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 else test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0

Two operands are compared as unsigned integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*. The exponent of the complex source field is stored in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-exp CM:c-exp		lest/source, s, e lest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The f	ield ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The fi	eld ID of the complex source field.
	s, e	The si The t	gnificand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. otal length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For every	virtual	processor k in the current-un-set do

The value e^s is stored into the *dest* field, where s is the value of the *source* field, and e is the base of the natural logarithms; $e \approx 2.718281828...$

F-EXP

Calculates, in each selected processor, the exponential function e^x of the floating-point source field and stores it in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	CM:f-exp-2 CM:f-exp-2	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap		ce field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. ing-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the nat.
Flags	overflow-j	flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context	•	ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only fors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Call the value of the source field s; the value e^s is stored into the dest field, where $e \approx 2.718281828...$ is the base of the natural logarithms.

FE-EXTRACT-MULTI-COORDINATE

Calculates, on the front end, the NEWS multi-coordinate of a processor specified by sendaddress. A multi-coordinate is needed in order to use the CM:multispread-copy-1L instruction.

Formats	$\texttt{result} \leftarrow \texttt{CM:fe-extract-multi-coordinate} geometry, axis-mask, send-address$		
Operands	geometry A geometry ID. This geometry determines the NEWS dimensions to be used.		
	axis-mask An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.		
	send-address An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the send address of some processor.		
Result	An unsigned integer, the NEWS multi-coordinate of the specified processor along the specified axes.		
Context	This operation is performed on the front end. It does not depend on the CM context-flag.		
Definition	Let $axis-set = \{ m \mid 0 \le m < r \land (axis-mask\langle m \rangle = 1) \}$ Return $extract-multi-coordinate(geometry, axis-set, send-address)$		

where extract-multi-coordinate is as defined on page 44.

This function calculates, entirely on the front end, the NEWS multi-coordinate of a processor along specified NEWS axes. The axes are indicated by the *axis-mask* argument; the processor is identified by its send-address.

EXTRACT-NEWS-COORDINATE

Determines the NEWS coordinate of a processor specified by send-address.

Formats	CM:extract	t-news-coordinate-1L geometry, dest, axis, send-address, dlen
Operands	geometry	A geometry ID. This geometry determines the NEWS dimensions to be used.
	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	send-addr	ess The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this identifies the send address of some other processor.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow extract-news-coordinate(geometry, axis, send-address)$

where extract-news-coordinate is as defined on page 40.

This function calculates, within each selected processor, the NEWS coordinate of a processor along a specified NEWS axis. The axis is indicated by the *axis* argument; the processor is identified by its send-address.

.

EXTRACT-NEWS-COORDINATE

FE-EXTRACT-NEWS-COORDINATE

Calculates, on the front end, the NEWS coordinate of a processor specified by send-address.

Formats	$\textbf{result} \leftarrow CM: \textbf{fe-extract-news-coordinate} geometry, \ axis, \ send-address$		
Operands	geometry A geometry ID. This geometry determines the NEWS dimensions to be used.		
	axis An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	send-address An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the send address of some processor.		
Result	An unsigned integer, the NEWS coordinate of the specified processor along the specified axis.		
Context	This operation is performed on the front end. It does not depend on the CM context-flag.		
Definition	Return extract-news-coordinate(geometry, axis, send-address) where extract-news-coordinate is as defined on page 40.		

This function calculates, entirely on the front end, the NEWS coordinate of a processor along a specified NEWS axis. The axis is indicated by the *axis* argument; the processor is identified by its send-address.

DEALLOCATE-FFT-SETUP

Deallocates a front-end setup descriptor that has been used to prepare information for execution of an FFT routine.

Note: For historical reasons, this operation uses the prefix CMSSL: in place of the standard CM: Paris instruction prefix. A more efficient set of FFT routines are included in the CM Scientific Subroutines Library.

Formats	CMSSL:deallocate-fft-setup setup-id		
Operands	setup-id The ID of the FFT setup descriptor to be deallocated.		
Context	This is a front-end operation. It does not depend on the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		

This routine may be used to remove an FFT setup descriptor when it is no longer needed. The setup-id argument must have been obtained by a call to CMSSL:c-fft-setup.

An fft setup descriptor occupies memory both on the front end and on the Connection Machine. It is therefore wise to free this space by calling CMSSL:deallocate-fft-setup after completion of all FFT routines that use the specified setup descriptor.

The Discrete Fourier Transform of the complex source field is calculated using a Fast Fourier Transform (FFT) algorithm. The complex result is stored in the destination field.

A Fourier transform routine converts (possibly multidimensional) sequences between the time or space domain and the frequency domain. This type of transform has a variety of useful applications. For example, an FFT can be used to filter discrete signals, to smooth input data or output images, to interpolate or extrapolate from a given data set, to measure the correlation between two samples, or to multiply polynomials and extremely large integers.

The Fast Fourier Transform is called a fast transform because it exhibits $O(N \log N)$ complexity, where O is the order of complexity and N is the length of the input sequence. By comparison, the Discrete Fourier Transform exhibits only $O(N^2)$ complexity.

Note: For historical reasons, this operation uses the prefix CMSSL: in place of the standard CM: Paris instruction prefix. It also uses the prefix c-c- to signify that single-precision complex operands are involved. A more efficient set of FFT routines are included in the CM Scientific Subroutines Library.

Formats	CMSSL:c-	c-fft dest, source, setup, ops, source-bit-order, dest-bit-order, source-cm-order, dest-cm-order, scale
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	setup	The setup-id. This must be a setup ID returned by CMSSL:c-fft- setup. The geometry information of the setup must be identical to that of the source and destination fields.
	ops	A front-end vector of operation identifiers. Each element spec- ifies whether the corresponding source axis is transformed and, if so, by what method. Valid vector element values are :f-xform (FFT_f_xform in C; 1 in Fortran) for a forward transform, :i-xform (FFT_j_xfrom in C; 2 in Fortran) for an inverse transform, and :nop (FFT_nop in C; 0 in Fortran) for no transform.
	source-bit	-order A front-end vector of input bit orderings. Each element iden- tifies the bit ordering of the corresponding source axis and must be either :normal or :bit-reversed. (The corresponding values are are FFT_normal and FFT_bit_reversed in C, and 0 and 1 in Fortran, respectively.)
	dest-bit-or	rder A front-end vector of output bit orderings. Each element identifies the bit ordering of the corresponding destination axis

and must be either :normal or :bit-reversed. (The corresponding values are are FFT_normal and FFT_bit_reversed in C, and 0 and 1 in Fortran, respectively.)

source-cm-order A front-end vector of input orderings. Each element declares the addressing mode of the corresponding source axis and must be one of the following: :send-order, :news-order, or :default. (The corresponding values are FFT_send_order, FFT_news_order, and FFT_default in C, and 1, 2, and 0 in Fortran, respectively.)
 A value of :default causes the current ordering of an axis to be used.

dest-cm-order A front-end vector of output orderings. Each element declares the addressing mode of the corresponding destination axis and must be one of the following: :send-order, :newsorder, or :default. (The corresponding values are FFT_send_order, FFT_news_order, and FFT_default in C, and 1, 2, and 0 in Fortran, respectively.)

A value of :default causes the current ordering of an axis to be used.

scale A front-end vector of output scaling methods. Each element specifies whether the corresponding destination axis is rescaled and, if so, by what method. Valid values are :noscale for no rescaling, :scale-sqrt for scaling by the inverse square root of the FFT, and :scale-n for scaling by the inverse of the size of the FFT. (The corresponding values are FFT_noscale, FFT_scale_sqrt, and FFT_scale_n in C, and 0, 1, and 2 in Fortran, respectively.)

- Overlap The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. FFT performance is slightly better if the two fields are identical.
- Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.
- **Definition** For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do $dest[k] \leftarrow FFT(source[k])$

The Discrete Fourier Transform of the *source* field is stored in the *dest* field. A multidimensional transform is computed by performing the transform across each dimension in sequence.

The source and destination fields must either belong to the same VP set or to VP sets of identical shape and size.

The ops, source-bit-order, dest-bit-order, source-cm-order, dest-cm-order, and scale arguments are one-dimensional front-end arrays. The length of each is equal to the rank of the setup geometry.

By convention, a Fast Fourier Transform operation reverses the order of the data bits when storing the result in the destination. The vectors *source-bit-order* and *dest-bit-order* specify whether the source and destination data are treated as normal or as bit-reversed.

Along any given dimension of the data's geometry, the Connection Machine FFT instruction is most efficient for data arranged in send order. Many FFT applications do not depend on the order of the data elements. The *dest-cm-order* and *source-cm-order* arguments are therefore provided to permit the most efficient execution possible along each dimension.

C/Paris code that calls the Paris FFT routine must include the line

#include <cm/cmtypes.h>

at the top of the main program file. This declares all C/Paris functions and symbolic constants, including those for the Paris FFT.

Fortran/Paris code should include the line

INCLUDE '/usr/include/cm/cmssl-paris-fort.h'

at the top of any program unit that calls the Paris FFT.

FFT

C-FFT-SETUP

Allocates a front-end setup descriptor for use with the CMSSL:fft Fast Fourier Transform routines and returns a setup ID.

Note: For historical reasons, this operation uses the prefix CMSSL: in place of the standard CM: Paris instruction prefix. It also uses the prefix c- to signify that single-precision complex operands are involved. A more efficient set of FFT routines are included in the CM Scientific Subroutines Library.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CMSSL: c-fft-setup geometry-id$		
Operands	geometry A geometry ID.		
Result	The ID of the newly created FFT setup descriptor.		
Context	This is a front-end operation. It does not depend on the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		

This routine computes information needed to perform a Fast Fourier Transform (FFT), stores it in an FFT setup descriptor, and return the setup-id.

In Lisp/Paris, a setup ID is a structure of type CMSSL:fft-setup. In C/Paris, it is a pointer to a structure of type FFT_fft_setup_t. In Fortran/Paris it is an integer.

The geometry argument must be a geometry ID returned by a call to CM:create-geometry, CM:create-detailed-geometry, intern-geometry, or intern-detailed-geometry.

The returned setup ID is a valid value for the *setup* argument to any CMSSL FFT routine if the following requirement is obeyed. The geometries of the FFT source and destination fields must be identical to that of the setup geometry.

This routine must be reinvoked whenever the geometry of an FFT source field VP set is changed. CMSSL:c-fft-setup allocates memory both on the front end and on the CM. To free this memory, use CMSSL:deallocate-fft-setup.

C/Paris code that calls the Paris FFT routine must include the line

#include <cm/cmtypes.h>

at the top of the main program file. This declares all C/Paris functions and symbolic constants, including those for the Paris FFT.

Fortran/Paris code should include the line

INCLUDE '/usr/include/cm/cmssl-paris-fort.h'

at the top of any program unit that calls the Paris FFT.
FIELD-VP-SET

Returns the VP set associated with a field.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: field-vp-set field$
Operands	field The field ID of the field.
Result	A VP set ID, identifying the VP set to which the field belongs.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

Definition Return *vp-set*(*field*)

This operation may be used to determine the VP set with which any given field is associated. The field need not belong to the current VP set.

e ...

F-S-FLOAT

Converts a signed integer field into a floating-point number field.

Formats	CM:f-s-float-2-2L dest, source, slen, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The fields	dest and source must not overlap in any manner.
Flags	overflow-f	lag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow source[k]$
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag $[k] \leftarrow 1$

The source field, treated as a signed integer, is converted to a floating-point number, which is stored into the *dest* field.

F-U-FLOAT

Converts an unsigned integer field into a floating-point number field.

ormats	CM:f-u-flo	at-2-2L dest, source, slen, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The fields	dest and source must not overlap in any manner.
Flags	overflow-f	<i>flag</i> is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow source[k]$
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow$ -flag $[k] \leftarrow 1$

The source field, treated as an unsigned integer, is converted to a floating-point number, which is stored into the dest field.

F-F-FLOOR

In each selected processor, calculates the largest integer that is not greater than a specified floating-point value and stores the result as a floating-point field.

Formats	CM:f-f-floor-1-1L dest/source, s, e CM:f-f-floor-2-1L dest, source, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow |source[k]|$

The source field, treated as a floating-point number, is rounded to the nearest integer in the direction of $-\infty$, which is stored into the *dest* field as a floating-point number.

Note that overflow cannot occur.

S-FLOOR

The floor of the quotient of two signed integer source values is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

Formats		r-2-1L dest/source1, source2, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer quotient field.
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer dividend field.
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer divisor field.
	source2-v	alue A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	For CM:s-floor-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	For CM:s-floor-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	For CM:s-floor-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	however, 1 fields are	<i>s source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is le for all the fields to be identical.
Flags	field; othe	Mag is set if the quotient cannot be represented in the destination erwise it is cleared. Is set if the divisor is zero; otherwise it is cleared.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

FLOOR

The signed integer source1 operand is divided by the signed integer source2 operand. The floor of the mathematical quotient is stored into the signed integer memory field dest.

The various operand formats allow the second source operand to be either a memory field or a constant; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag and test-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

S-F-FLOOR

Calculates, in each selected processsor, the largest integer that is not greater than a specified floating-point value and stores the result as a signed integer field.

Formats CM:s-f-floor-2-2L dest, source, dlen, s, e

Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The fields	dest and source must not overlap in any manner.
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the dest field; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context	-	ration is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only sors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do $ext-flag[k] = 1$ then

if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \lfloor source[k] \rfloor$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$ else $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$

The source field, treated as a floating-point number, is rounded to the nearest integer in the direction of $-\infty$, which is stored into the *dest* field as a signed integer.

U-FLOOR

The floor of the quotient of two unsigned integer source values is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

Formats		r-2-1L dest/source1, source2, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer quotient field.
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer dividend field.
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer divisor field.
	source2-va	alue An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.
	dlen	For CM:s-floor-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	For CM:s-floor-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	For CM:s-floor-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	however, n fields are i	source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is e for all the fields to be identical.
Flags		dag is set if the quotient cannot be represented in the destination rwise it is cleared.
	<i>test-flag</i> is	set if the divisor is zero; otherwise it is cleared.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only bors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow \left\lfloor \frac{source1[k]}{source2[k]} \right\rfloor$

if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$ if source2[k] = 0 then $test[k] \leftarrow 1$ else $test[k] \leftarrow 0$

The unsigned integer *source1* operand is divided by the unsigned integer *source2* operand. The floor of the mathematical quotient is stored into the unsigned integer memory field *dest*.

The various operand formats allow the second source operand to be either a memory field or a constant; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag and test-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-F-FLOOR

Converts floating-point source field values into unsigned integers by rounding towards $-\infty$.

Formats	CM:u-f-fl	CM:u-f-floor-2-2L dest, source, dlen, s, e		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The field	ls dest and source must not overlap in any manner.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the <i>dest</i> field; otherwise it is cleared.			
Context		eration is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only asors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For every	y virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do		

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{if } \textit{context-flag}[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ \textit{dest} \leftarrow \lfloor \textit{source} \rfloor \\ \textit{if } \langle \textit{overflow occurred in processor } k \rangle \text{ then } \textit{overflow-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1 \end{array}$

The source field, treated as a floating-point number, is rounded to the nearest integer in the direction of $-\infty$. The result is stored into the *dest* field as an unsigned integer.

FE-FROM-GRAY-CODE

Calculates, on the front end, the Gray code representation of a specified integer.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: fe-from-gray-code code$
Operands	code An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the Gray encoding, represented as a nonnegative integer.
Result	An unsigned integer, the nonnegative integer represented by code.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

Definition Let n = integer-length(code)Return $\bigoplus_{j=0}^{n-1} \left\lfloor \frac{code}{2^j} \right\rfloor$

This function calculates, entirely on the front end, the integer represented by a bit-string encoding *code* in a particular reflected binary Gray code.

Note that the binary value 0 is always equivalent to a Gray code string that is all 0-bits.

U-FROM-GRAY-CODE

Converts a bit string representing a Gray-coded integer value to the usual unsigned binary representation.

Formats		n-gray-code-1-1L dest/source, len n-gray-code-2-1L dest, source, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap		e field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. For fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Context		ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then for j from len - 1 to 0 do $dest[k]\langle j \rangle \leftarrow \begin{pmatrix} len-1 \\ \bigoplus \\ i=j \end{pmatrix} source[k]\langle i \rangle \end{pmatrix}$

The source operand is considered to be a value in a particular reflected binary Gray code. The position of that value in the standard Gray code sequence is calculated as an unsigned binary integer. This is done as follows: bit i of the result is 1 if and only if all the bit positions of the source to the left of (and including) bit i contain an odd number of 1's.

Note that a Gray code string that is all 0-bits is always equivalent to the binary value 0.

F-GE

GE

Compares two floating-point source values. The *test-flag* is set if the first is greater than or equal to the second, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:f-ge-1Lsource1, source2, s, eCM:f-ge-constant-1Lsource1, source2-value, s, eCM:f-ge-zero-1Lsource1, s, e	
Operands	source1 The field ID of the floating-point first source field.	
	source2 The field ID of the floating-point second source field.	
	source2-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:f-ge-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.	
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the source1 and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The fields source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.	
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is set if <i>source1</i> is greater than or equal to <i>source2</i> ; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Two operands are compared as floating-point numbers. The first operand is a memory field; the second is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is greater than or equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise. Note that comparisons ignore the sign of zero; +0 and -0 are considered to be equal.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

S-GE

Compares two signed integer source values. The *test-flag* is set if the first is greater than or equal to the second, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:s-ge-1 CM:s-ge-2 CM:s-ge-c CM:s-ge-z	L source1, source2, slen1, slen2 onstant-1L source1, source2-value, len
Operands	source1	The field ID of the signed integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field.
	source2-ve	alue A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:s-ge-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.
	len	The length of the <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM: *maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The fields	source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.
Flags	test-flag is set if source1 is greater than or equal to source2; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context	This oper- whose con	ation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors <i>text-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then if source1[k] \geq source2[k] then test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 else test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0

Two operands are compared as signed integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is greater than or equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

Compares two unsigned integer source values. The *test-flag* is set if the first is greater than or equal to the second, and otherwise is cleared.

U-GE

ormats	CM:u-ge-1 CM:u-ge-2 CM:u-ge-c CM:u-ge-z	2L source1, source2, slen1, slen2 constant-1L source1, source2-value, len
Operands	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field.
	source2-ve	alue An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:u-ge-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.
	len	The length of the <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The fields	source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is cleared.	s set if <i>source1</i> is greater than or equal to <i>source2</i> ; otherwise it is
Context	This operative whose con	ation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors <i>text-flag</i> is 1.

Two operands are compared as unsigned integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is greater than or equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

GEOMETRY-AXIS-LENGTH

GEOMETRY-AXIS-LENGTH

Returns the length of one axis of a geometry.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: geometry-axis-length geometry-id, axis$
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.
	axis An unsigned integer, the number of the axis whose length is de- sired.
Result	An unsigned integer, the length of the indicated axis.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .

Definition Return axis-descriptors(geometry-id)[axis].length

This operation returns the length of the specified axis of the geometry specified by the geometry-id.

GEOMETRY-AXIS-OFF-CHIP-BITS

Returns the number of off-chip bits that are allocated for the specified NEWS axis within the off-chip bits portion of a send address associated with the specified geometry.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: geometry-axis-off-chip-bits geometry-id, axis$	
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.	
	axis An unsigned integer, the number of the axis whose off-chip bits count is desired. This must be between 0 and the rank of the geometry minus one. Note that VP set geometry dimensions are zero-based; the first axis is numbered 0.	
Result	An unsigned integer, the count of the off-chip bits associated with the specified <i>axis</i> . If <i>axis</i> has no off-chip bits, the result is 0.	
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.	

The send addresses associated with a particular geometry are partitioned into three portions: off-chip bits, on-chip bits, and VP bits.

The off-chip bits identify one CM chip. The on-chip bits identify one physical processor on that CM chip. The vP bits give an offset in the memory of the physical processor and thus identify a virtual processor within that physical processor.

Within each partition, a certain number of bits are used for each dimension of the geometry. This instruction indicates how many of the off-chip bits within the off-chip bits partition are used in the send addresses of virtual processors that lie along the specified dimension.

Note that the integer returned does not indicate the total number of all off-chip bits within the send address but the number of off-chip bits used for a particular dimension.

GEOMETRY-AXIS-OFF-CHIP-POS

GEOMETRY-AXIS-OFF-CHIP-POS

Returns the starting position for the off-chip bits that are allocated for the specified NEWS axis within the off-chip bits portion of a send address associated with the specified geometry.

Formats	result	\leftarrow	CM:geometry-axis-off-chip-pos	geometry-id, axis
---------	--------	--------------	-------------------------------	-------------------

Operands geometry-id A geometry ID.

- axis An unsigned integer, the number of the axis whose off-chip bits position is desired. This must be between 0 and the rank of the geometry minus one. Note that VP set geometry dimensions are zero-based; the first axis is numbered 0.
- Result An unsigned integer, the location in the send address of the first off-chip bit associated with the specified axis. This is zero-based; the first location is numbered 0.
- Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

The send addresses associated with a particular geometry are partitioned into three portions: off-chip bits, on-chip bits, and VP bits.

The off-chip bits identify one CM chip. The on-chip bits identify one physical processor on that CM chip. The vP bits give an offset in the memory of the physical processor and thus identify a virtual processor within that physical processor.

Within each partition, a certain number of bits are used for each dimension of the geometry. This instruction indicates where, within the off-chip bits partition, the off-chip bits for the specified dimension lie.

Note that the integer returned does not indicate the absolute position of all off-chip bits within the send address but the position of the off-chip bits for a particular dimension relative to the start of all off-chip bits in an address.

GEOMETRY-AXIS-ON-CHIP-BITS

Returns the number of on-chip bits that are allocated for the specified NEWS axis within the on-chip bits portion of a send address associated with the specified geometry.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: geometry-axis-on-chip-bits geometry-id, axis$	
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.	
	axis An unsigned integer, the number of the axis whose on-chip bits count is desired. This must be between 0 and the rank of the geometry minus one. Note that VP set geometry dimensions are zero-based; the first axis is numbered 0.	
Result	An unsigned integer, the count of the on-chip bits associated with the specified $axis$. If $axis$ has no on-chip bits, the result is 0.	
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.	

The send addresses associated with a particular geometry are partitioned into three portions: off-chip bits, on-chip bits, and VP bits.

The off-chip bits identify one CM chip. The on-chip bits identify one physical processor on that CM chip. The vP bits give an offset in the memory of the physical processor and thus identify a virtual processor within that physical processor.

Within each partition, a certain number of bits are used for each dimension of the geometry. This instruction indicates how many of the on-chip bits within the on-chip bits partition are used in the send addresses of virtual processors that lie along the specified dimension.

Note that the integer returned does not indicate the total number of all on-chip bits within the send address but the number of on-chip bits used for a particular dimension.

GEOMETRY-AXIS-ON-CHIP-POS

GEOMETRY-AXIS-ON-CHIP-POS

Returns the starting position for the on-chip bits that are allocated for the specified NEWS axis within the on-chip bits portion of a send address associated with the specified geometry.

Formats	result ← CM:geometry-axis-on-chip-pos geometry-id, axis
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.
	axis An unsigned integer, the number of the axis whose on-chip bits position is desired. This must be between 0 and the rank of the geometry minus one. Note that VP set geometry dimensions are zero-based; the first axis is numbered 0.
Result	An unsigned integer, the location in the send address of the first on-chip bit associated with the specified axis. This is zero-based; the first location is numbered 0.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

The send addresses associated with a particular geometry are partitioned into three portions: off-chip bits, on-chip bits, and VP bits.

The off-chip bits identify one CM chip. The on-chip bits identify one physical processor on that CM chip. The vP bits give an offset in the memory of the physical processor and thus identify a virtual processor within that physical processor.

Within each partition, a certain number of bits are used for each dimension of the geometry. This instruction indicates where, within the on-chip bits partition, the on-chip bits for the specified dimension lie.

Note that the integer returned does not indicate the absolute position of all on-chip bits within the send address but the position of the on-chip bits for a particular dimension relative to the start of all on-chip bits in an address.

GEOMETRY-AXIS-ORDERING

Returns the ordering of one axis of a geometry.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: geometry-axis-ordering geometry-id, axis$	
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.	
	axis An unsigned integer, the number of the axis whose ordering is desired.	
Result	The ordering of the specified axis (either :news-order or :send-order).	
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .	

Definition Return axis-descriptors(geometry-id)[axis].ordering

This operation returns the ordering of the specified axis of the geometry specified by the geometry-id.

GEOMETRY-AXIS-VP-RATIO

Returns the VP ratio of one axis of a geometry.

Formats	result ← CM:geometry-axis-vp-ratio geometry-id, axis
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.
	axis An unsigned integer, the number of the axis whose VP ratio is desired.
Result	An unsigned integer, the VP ratio of the indicated axis.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .

Definition Return axis-descriptors(geometry-id)[axis].vp-ratio

This operation returns the VP ratio of the specified axis of the geometry specified by the geometry-id.

GEOMETRY-COORDINATE-LENGTH

Returns the number of bits needed to represent a NEWS coordinate.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: geometry-coordinate-length geometry-id, axis$
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.
	axis An unsigned integer, the number of the axis whose coordinate length is desired.
Result	An unsigned integer, the number of bits required to represent a coordinate for the indicated axis.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

Definition Return integer-length(axis-descriptors(geometry-id)[axis].length -1)

This operation returns the number of bits required to represent (as an unsigned integer) a NEWS coordinate for the specified axis of the geometry specified by the geometry-id.

GEOMETRY-RANK

Returns the number of axes for a geometry.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:geometry-rank geometry-id$		
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.		
Result	An unsigned integer, the rank (number of axes) of the specified geometry.		
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.		

Definition Return rank(geometry)

This operation returns the number of grid axes for the geometry specified by the geometry-id.

GEOMETRY-SEND-ADDRESS-LENGTH

Returns the number of bits needed to represent a send-address.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:geometry-send-address-length geometry-id$		
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.		
Result	An unsigned integer, the number of bits required to represent a send-address for a processor in the specified geometry.		
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .		

Definition Let n = rank(geometry-id)Return $\sum_{j=0}^{n-1} integer-length(axis-descriptors(geometry-id)[j].length - 1)$

This operation returns the number of bits required to represent a send-address for a virtual processor in any VP set whose geometry is the one specified by the *geometry-id*. This will be equal to the sum of the numbers of bits needed to represent NEWS coordinates for all the axes.

GEOMETRY-SERIAL-NUMBER

GEOMETRY-SERIAL-NUMBER

Assigns a unique number to the specified geometry.

Formats	result ← CM:geometry-serial-number geometry-id			
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID. This geometry ID must be obtained by call- ing CM:create-geometry or CM:create-detailed-geometry.			
Result	The serial number that uniquely identifies the geometry.			
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.			

A unique number, the serial number, is assigned to the specified geometry. This facilitates geometry-based caching; geometry serial numbers are useful as hash table keys.

Note that geometry ID's are not unique identifiers. After a geometry is deallocated, its ID may be reused for another geometry. In contrast, geometry serial numbers are guaranteed to be unique.

GEOMETRY-TOTAL-PROCESSORS

Returns the number of virtual processors for a geometry.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: geometry-total-processors$ $geometry-id$			
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.			
Result	An unsigned integer, the total number of processors in the specified geometry.			
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.			

Definition Let n = rank(geometry-id)Return $\prod_{j=0}^{n-1} axis-descriptors(geometry-id)[j].length$

This operation returns the total number of virtual processors in any VP set whose geometry is the one specified by the *geometry-id*. This will be equal to the product of the lengths of all the axes.

GEOMETRY-TOTAL-VP-RATIO

Returns the total VP ratio for a specified geometry.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: geometry-total-vp-ratio geometry-id$		
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.		
Result	An unsigned integer, the number of virtual processors represented within each physical processor for the specified geometry.		
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.		

Definition Let n = rank(geometry-id)Return $\prod_{j=0}^{n-1} axis-descriptor(geometry-id)[j].vp-ratio$

This operation returns the total VP ratio for a specified geometry. This is equal to the total number of virtual processors for the geometry, divided by the total number of physical processors.

Each selected processor gets a message from a specified source processor, possibly itself. A source processor may supply messages even if it is not selected. Messages are all retrieved from the same memory address within each source processor, and all the source processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the destination processors.

Formats	CM:get-1L dest, send-address, source, len			
Operands	dest 7	The field ID of the destination field.		
	send-addres t	nd-address The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates from which processor a message is retrieved.		
	source ?	source The field ID of the source field.		
	len .	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields.		
Overlap	The send-address and dest may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and source may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the dest and source to overlap.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
Definition		irtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do - <i>flag</i> [k] = 1 then		

For every selected processor p_d , a message *length* bits long is sent to p_d from the processor p_s whose send-address is in the field *send-address* in the memory of processor p_d . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the field at location *dest* within processor p_d . Although the *send-address* operand is a field in the VP set of the destination processors, its value must specify a valid send address for *source*, which may belong to a different VP set.

 $dest[k] \leftarrow source[send-address[k]]$

Note that more than one selected processor may request data from the same source processor p_s , in which case the same data is sent to each of the requesting processors.

GET-AREF32

Each selected processor gets a message from a specified array field within any specified source processor (possibly itself). A source processor may supply messages even if it is not selected. Messages are all retrieved from the same memory address within each source processor.

Formats	CM:get-aref32-2L dest, send-address, array, index, dlen, index-len, index-limit			
Operands	dest The field ID of the destination field.			
	send-address The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates from which processor a message is retrieved.			
	array The field ID of the source array field. This must be stored in the special format required by CM:aref32.			
	index The field ID of the unsigned integer index into the array field. This is used as a per-processor index into array. It specifies portions of the array memory area in increments of dlen.			
	dlen The length of the dest field.			
	index-len The length of the index field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
	<i>index-limit</i> An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the exclusive upper bound for the <i>index</i> . This is taken as the extent of <i>array</i> .			
Overlap	The send-address and array may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the array and dest to overlap.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then
	if $index[k] < index-limit$ then
	let $r = geometry-total-vp-ratio(geometry(current-vp-set))$
	let $m = \left \frac{k}{r} \right \mod 32$
	let $i = index[k]$
	for all j such that $0 \le j < dlen do$
	$let \; q = \mathit{send-address}[k] - m \times r + (j \bmod 32) \times r$

$$\begin{array}{l} \operatorname{let} b = i + \left\lfloor \frac{j}{32} \right\rfloor \\ dest[k]\langle j \rangle \leftarrow array[q]\langle b \rangle \\ \operatorname{else} \\ \langle \operatorname{error} \rangle \end{array}$$

For every selected processor p_d , a message *length* bits long is sent to p_d from the processor p_s whose send-address is in the field *send-address* in the memory of processor p_d . The message is taken from the *array* field within processor p_s as if by the operation aref32 and is stored into the field at location *dest* within processor p_d .

Note that more than one selected processor may request data from the same source processor p_s , possibly from different locations within the *array*. Note also that in each case the array element to be sent from processor p_s to processor p_d is determined by the value of *index* within p_d , not the value within p_s .

GET-FROM-NEWS

Each processor gets a message from a specified neighbor processor.

Formats	CM:get-from-news-1L CM:get-from-news-always-1L		dest, source, axis, direction, len dest, source, axis, direction, len	
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the destination field.		
	source The field ID of the source field.			
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	direction Either : upward or : downward.			
	len		<i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative an CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.			
Context	The non-always operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1. The always operation is unconditional. The destination may be altered re- gardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .			
	context-flo		case the storing of data depends only on the receiving the data, not on the <i>context-flag</i> of the a is obtained.	
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then let $g = geometry(current-vp-set)$			

 $dest[k] \leftarrow source[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)]$

where news-neighbor is as defined on page 40.

The *dest* field in each processor receives the contents of the *source* field of that processor's neighbor along the NEWS axis specified by *axis* in the direction specified by *direction*.

If *direction* is :upward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one greater, with the processor whose coordinate is greatest retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is zero.

If *direction* is :downward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one less, with the processor whose coordinate is zero retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is greatest.

GET-FROM-POWER-TWO

Each processor gets a message from a processor that is a specified distance away in the NEWS grid. The distance must be a power of two.

Formats		om-power-two-1L dest, source, axis, log-2-distance, direction, len om-power-two-always-1L dest, source, axis, log-2-distance, direction, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	log-2-dista	ance An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the base 2 logarithm of <i>distance</i> , where <i>distance</i> must be a power of 2.	
	direction	Either : upward or : downward.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	ext The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may be alternal only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		
	of the pro	in the conditional case data storage depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> occessor receiving the data, not on the <i>context-flag</i> of the processor the the data is obtained.	
Definition		virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do	

if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then let g = geometry(current-vp-set) $dest[k] \leftarrow source[news-relative(g, k, axis, direction, log-2-distance)]$

where *news-relative* is defined in the NEWS Communication section of the Instruction Set Overview chapter.

The *dest* field in each processor receives the contents of the *source* field of that processor's relative along the NEWS axis specified by *axis*, in the direction specified by *direction*, and at the distance specified by *log-2-distance*.

GET-FROM-POWER-TWO

The immediate operand log-2-distance, is log_2 distance, where distance is the distance, along axis axis, between each destination processor and the source processor from which it retrieves data. In terms of this operand, distance is $2^{log-2-distance}$.

If direction is :upward then each processor retrieves data from a relative whose NEWS coordinate is (coordinate + distance mod axis-length). For most processors, this means getting from a processor whose coordinate is greater. The GET wraps around however; the processor whose coordinate is greatest retrieves data from the processor whose coordinate is (0 + distance).

If direction is :downward then each processor retrieves data from a relative whose NEWS coordinate is (coordinate – distance mod axis-length). For most processors, this means getting from a processor whose coordinate is less. The GET wraps around however; the processor whose coordinate is zero retrieves data from the processor whose coordinate is (max-coordinate(axis) - distance).
GLOBAL-C-ADD

The sum of the values in the complex source field is returned to the front end as a complex number.

Formats	result \leftarrow CM:global-c-add-1L source, s, e		
Operands	source The field ID of the complex source field.		
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.		
Result	A complex number, the sum of the <i>source</i> field.		
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

The CM:global-c-add-1L operation sums the *source* field values from all selected processors, treated as complex numbers. The sum is sent to the front-end computer as a complex number and returned as the result of the operation. If there are no selected processors, then the value +0 is returned.

GLOBAL-F-ADD

One floating-point number is examined in every selected processor, and the sum of all these fields is returned to the front end as a floating-point number.

Formats	$result \leftarrow$	CM:global-f-add-1L source, s, e	
Operands	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Result	A floating-point number, the sum of the source fields.		
Overlap	There are	no constraints, because overlap is not possible.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition	Let $S = \{ m \mid m \in current \text{-}vp\text{-}set \land context\text{-}flag[m] = 1 \}$
	If $ S = 0$ then
	return $+0$ to front end
	else
	return $\left(\sum\limits_{m\in S} \mathit{source}[m]\right)$ to front end

The CM:global-f-add operation sums the *source* fields, treated as floating-point numbers, in all selected processors. The sum is sent to the front-end computer as a floating-point number and returned as the result of the operation. If there are no selected processors, then the value +0 is returned.

GLOBAL-S-ADD

One signed integer is examined in every selected processor, and the sum of all these fields is returned to the front end as a signed integer.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:global-s-add-1L$ source, len		
Operands	source The field ID of the signed integer source field.		
	len The length of the source field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Result	A signed integer, the sum of the source fields.		
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition	Let $S = \{ m \mid m \in current \cdot vp \cdot set \land context \cdot flag[m] = 1 \}$
	If $ S = 0$ then
	return 0 to front end
	else
	return $\left(\sum_{m \in S} source[m]\right)$ to front end

The CM:global-s-add operation sums the *source* fields, treated as signed integers, in all selected processors. The sum is sent to the front-end computer as a signed integer and returned as the result of the operation. If there are no selected processors, then the value 0 is returned.

GLOBAL-U-ADD

One unsigned integer is examined in every selected processor, and the sum of all these fields is returned to the front end as an unsigned integer.

nd no	
An unsigned integer, the sum of the source fields.	
There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.	
This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Definition	Let $S = \{ m \mid m \in current \cdot vp \cdot set \land context \cdot flag[m] = 1 \}$
	If $ S = 0$ then
	return 0 to front end
	else
	return $\left(\sum\limits_{m\in S} \mathit{source}[m]\right)$ to front end

The CM:global-u-add operation sums the *source* fields, treated as unsigned integers, in all selected processors. The sum is sent to the front-end computer as an unsigned integer and returned as the result of the operation. If there are no selected processors, then the value 0 is returned.

GLOBAL-COUNT-BIT

One bit is examined in every selected processor, and the count of bits that are 1 is delivered to the front end.

Formats	result ← CM:global-count-bit source result ← CM:global-count-bit-always source		
Operands	source The field ID of the source bit (a one-bit field).		
Result	An unsigned integer, the number of 1 bits.		
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.		
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
	The always operations are unconditional. The result returned does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .		
Definition	If always then let $S = \{ m \mid m \in current \cdot vp \cdot set \land source[m] = 1 \}$ else let $S = \{ m \mid m \in current \cdot vp \cdot set \land context \cdot flag[m] = 1 \land source[m] = 1 \}$ return $ S $ to front end		

The CM:global-count-bit operation sums the one-bit *bit-source* fields in all selected processors; in other words, it returns a count of how many processors have a 1-bit in that field. The count is then sent to the front-end computer as an unsigned integer and returned as the result of the operation. If there are no selected processors, then the value 0 is returned.

Using CM:global-count-bit is identical in effect to using CM:global-unsigned-add on a one-bit field, but may be faster.

GLOBAL-COUNT-CONTEXT

Returns the number of active processors.

Formats	result	←	CM:global-count-context
Context	This of	perat	ion is unconditional.

The number of processors whose context bit is 1 is returned to the front end.

GLOBAL-COUNT-flag

Returns the number of processors that have a specified flag set.

Formats	CM:global-count-test
	CM:global-count-overflow
Context	This operation is conditional.

Definition Let $S = \{ m \mid m \in current \cdot vp \cdot set \land context \cdot flag[m] = 1 \land flag[m] = 1 \}$ Return |S| to front end where flag is test-flag or overflow-flag, as appropriate.

The number of processors for which the specified flag is 1 is returned to the front end.

GLOBAL-LOGAND

One field is examined in every selected processor, and the bitwise logical AND of all these fields is returned to the front end as an unsigned integer.

$result \leftarrow CM:global-logand-1L source, len$	
source The field ID of the source field.	
len The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
An unsigned integer to be regarded as a vector of bits, the bitwise logical AND of all the <i>source</i> fields.	
There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.	
This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Definition Let $S = \{m \mid m \in current \cdot vp \cdot set \land context \cdot flag[m] = 1\}$ If |S| = 0 then return $2^{len} - 1$ to front end else return $\left(\bigwedge_{m \in S} source[m]\right)$ to front end

The CM:global-logand operation combines the *source* fields in all selected processors by performing bitwise logical AND operations. A bit is 1 in the result field if the corresponding bit is a 1 in *all* of the fields to be combined. The resulting combined field is then sent to the front-end computer as an unsigned integer and returned as the result of the operation. If there are no selected processors, then the value $-2^{\text{len}} - 1$ is returned, representing a field of length *len* containing all ones.

GLOBAL-LOGAND-BIT

One memory bit is examined in each processor; 1 is returned if they are all 1, 0 if any is zero.

Formats	result ← CM:global-logand-bit source result ← CM:global-logand-bit-always source		
Operands	source The field ID of the source field.		
Result	An unsigned integer to be regarded as a vector of bits, the bitwise logical AND of all the <i>source</i> bits.		
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.		
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
	The always operations are unconditional. The result returned does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .		
* <u>1001.000000000000000000000000000000000</u>	on the context-judg.		

Definition	If always then
	let $S = current$ - vp -set
	else
	$let S = \{ m \mid m \in current \text{-} vp\text{-} set \land context\text{-} flag[m] = 1 \}$
	If $ S = 0$ then
	return 1 to front end
	else
	return $\left(\bigwedge_{m \in S} source[m]\right)$ to front end

The CM:global-logand-bit operation combines the *source* bits in all selected processors by performing a bitwise logical AND operation. The result is 1 if all the examined bits are 1; otherwise the result is 0. The result is sent to the front-end computer as an unsigned integer and returned as the result of the operation. If there are no selected processors, then the value 1 is returned.

Using CM:global-logand-bit is identical in effect to using CM:global-logand on a one-bit field, but may be faster.

GLOBAL-LOGAND-CONTEXT

Return 1 if all processors are active, 0 if any processor is inactive.

Formats result

CM:global-logand-context

Context This operation is unconditional.

Definition Return $\left(\bigwedge_{m \in current-vp-set} context-flag[m]\right)$ to front end

If all processors are active, then 1 is returned to the front end; otherwise 0 is returned.

GLOBAL-LOGAND-flag

Return 1 if a specified flag is set in all processors, 0 if it is clear in any processor.

Formats	CM:global-logand-test CM:global-logand-overflow
Context	This operation is conditional.

Definition Let $S = \{m \mid m \in current \cdot vp \cdot set \land context \cdot flag[m] = 1 \land flag[m] = 1 \}$ If |S| = 0 then return 0 to front end else return $\left(\bigwedge_{m \in S} flag[m]\right)$ to front end

where flag is test-flag or overflow-flag, as appropriate.

If all processors have the indicated flag set, then 1 is returned to the front end; otherwise 0 is returned.

GLOBAL-LOGIOR

One field is examined in every selected processor, and the bitwise logical inclusive OR of all these fields is returned to the front end as an unsigned integer.

Formats	result \leftarrow CM:global-logior-1L source, len
Operands	source The field ID of the source field.
	len The length of the source field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Result	An unsigned integer to be regarded as a vector of bits, the bitwise logical INCLUSIVE OR of all the <i>source</i> fields.
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition Let $S = \{m \mid m \in current \cdot vp \cdot set \land context \cdot flag[m] = 1\}$ If |S| = 0 then return 0 to front end else return $\left(\bigvee_{m \in S} source[m]\right)$ to front end

The CM:global-logior operation combines the *source* fields in all selected processors by performing bitwise logical INCLUSIVE OR operations. A bit is 1 in the result field if the corresponding bit is a 1 in *any* of the fields to be combined. The resulting combined field is then sent to the front-end computer as an unsigned integer and returned as the result of the operation. If there are no selected processors, then the value 0 is returned, representing a field of length *len* containing all zeros.

GLOBAL-LOGIOR-BIT

One memory bit is examined in each processor; 1 is returned if any is 1, 0 if they are all zero.

Formats	result ← CM:global-logior-bit source result ← CM:global-logior-bit-always source
Operands	source The field ID of the source field.
Result	An unsigned integer to be regarded as a vector of bits, the bitwise logical OR of all the <i>source</i> bits.
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.
Context	The non-always operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
	The always operation is unconditional. The result returned does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .

Definition	If always then
	let $S = current$ - vp -set
	else
	$ext{let } S = \set{m \mid m \in \mathit{current-vp-set} \land \mathit{context-flag}[m] = 1}$
	If $ S = 0$ then
	return 0 to front end
	else
	return $\left(\bigvee_{m \in S} source[m]\right)$ to front end

The CM:global-logior-bit operation combines the *source* bits in all selected processors by performing a bitwise logical inclusive OR operation. The result is 1 if any examined bit is 1; otherwise the result is 0. The result is sent to the front-end computer as an unsigned integer and returned as the result of the operation. If there are no selected processors, then the value 0 is returned.

Using CM:global-logior-bit is identical in effect to using CM:global-logior on a one-bit field, but may be faster.

GLOBAL-LOGIOR-CONTEXT

Return 1 if any processor is active, 0 if no processors are active.

Formats result ← CM:global-logior-context

Context This operation is unconditional.

Definition Return $\left(\bigvee_{m \in current-vp-set} context-flag[m]\right)$ to front end

If any processor has its context bit set, then 1 is returned to the front end; otherwise 0 is returned.

GLOBAL-LOGIOR-flag

Return 1 if a specified flag is set in any processor, 0 if it is clear in all processors.

Formats	CM:global-logior-test CM:global-logior-overflow
Context	This operation is conditional.

Definition Let $S = \{m \mid m \in current \cdot vp \cdot set \land context \cdot flag[m] = 1 \land flag[m] = 1 \}$ If |S| = 0 then return 0 to front end else return $\left(\bigvee_{m \in S} flag[m]\right)$ to front end where flag is test-flag or overflow-flag, as appropriate.

If any processor has the indicated flag set, then 1 is returned to the front end; otherwise 0 is returned.

GLOBAL-LOGXOR

One field is examined in every selected processor, and the bitwise exclusive OR of all these fields is returned to the front end as an unsigned integer.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: global-logxor-1L source, len$
Operands	source The field ID of the source field.
	len The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Result	An unsigned integer to be regarded as a vector of bits, the bitwise logical exclusive OR of all the <i>source</i> fields.
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

The CM: global-logxor operation combines the *source* fields in all selected processors by performing bitwise logical EXCLUSIVE OR operations. A bit is 1 in the result field if the corresponding bit is a 1 in *an odd number* of the fields to be combined. The resulting combined field is then sent to the front-end computer as an unsigned integer and returned as the result of the operation. If there are no selected processors, then the value 0 is returned, representing a field of length *len* containing all zeros.

GLOBAL-F-MAX

One floating-point number is examined in every selected processor, and the largest of all these integers (that is, the one closest to $+\infty$) is returned to the front end as a floating-point number.

Formats	result \leftarrow CM:global-f-max-1L <i>source</i> , <i>s</i> , <i>e</i>
Operands	source The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Result	A floating-point number, the largest of the source fields.
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is set if the value in a particular processor equals the maximum; otherwise it is cleared.
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

The CM:global-f-max operation returns the largest (that is, closest to $+\infty$) of the floatingpoint source fields of all selected processors. This largest value is sent to the front-end computer as a floating-point number and returned as the result of the operation. In addition, the *test-flag* is set in every selected processor whose field is equal to the finally computed value, and is cleared in all other selected processors. If there are no selected processors, then the value $-\infty$ is returned.

GLOBAL-S-MAX

One signed integer is examined in every selected processor, and the largest of all these integers (that is, the one closest to $+\infty$) is returned to the front end as a signed integer.

Formats	result \leftarrow CM:global-s-max-1L source, len
Operands	source The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	len The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Result	A signed integer, the largest of the source fields.
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is set if the value in a particular processor equals the maximum; otherwise it is cleared.
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	Let $S = \{m \mid m \in current \cdot vp \cdot set \land context \cdot flag[m] = 1\}$ If $ S = 0$ then return -2^{len-1} to front end else let $R = \left(\max_{m \in S} source[m]\right)$ For every virtual processor k in the current $\cdot vp$ -set do if context $\cdot flag[k] = 1$ then if source $[k] = R$ then test $\cdot flag[k] \leftarrow 1$ else test $\cdot flag[k] \leftarrow 0$ return R to front end

The CM:global-s-max operation returns the largest (that is, closest to $+\infty$) of the signedinteger source fields of all selected processors. This largest value is sent to the front-end computer as a signed integer and returned as the result of the operation. In addition, the *test-flag* is set in every selected processor whose field is equal to the finally computed value, and is cleared in all other selected processors. If there are no selected processors, then the value -2^{len-1} is returned.

D C ...

GLOBAL-U-MAX

One unsigned integer is examined in every selected processor, and the largest of all these integers is returned to the front end as an unsigned integer.

Formats	result \leftarrow CM:global-u-max-1L source, len
Operands	source The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.
	len The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Result	An unsigned integer, the largest of the source fields.
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.
Flags	test-flag is set if the value in a particular processor equals the maximum; otherwise it is cleared.
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition	$\text{Let } S = \{ m \mid m \in \textit{current-vp-set} \land \textit{context-flag}[m] = 1 \}$
	If $ S = 0$ then
	return 0 to front end
	else
	$let \ R = \left(\max_{m \in S} source[m]\right)$
	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	if $source[k] = R$ then
	$\textit{test-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1$
	else
	$\textit{test-flag}[k] \leftarrow 0$
	return R to front end

The CM:global-u-max operation returns the largest of the unsigned-integer *source* fields of all selected processors. This largest value is sent to the front-end computer as an unsigned integer and returned as the result of the operation. In addition, the *test-flag* is set in every selected processor whose field is equal to the finally computed value, and is cleared in all other selected processors. If there are no selected processors, then the value 0 is returned.

GLOBAL-U-MAX-S-INTLEN

One signed integer is examined in every selected processor, and the largest *length* of all these integers is returned to the front end as an unsigned integer.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:global-u-max-s-intlen-1L$ source, len
Operands	source The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	<i>len</i> The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Result	An unsigned integer, the length of the source field value of greatest length.
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is set if the value in a particular processor has a length equal to the maximum; otherwise it is cleared.
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

The CM:global-u-max-s-intlen operation computes the integer-length of each signed integer source value. The largest length is sent to the front-end computer as an unsigned integer and returned as the result of the operation. In addition, the test-flag is set in every selected processor whose field is equal to the finally computed value, and is cleared in all other selected processors. If there are no selected processors, then the value 0 is returned.

A call to CM:global-u-max-s-intlen-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:s-integer-length-2-2L temp, source, len, len CM:global-u-max-1L temp, len

but may be faster.

388335

GLOBAL-U-MAX-U-INTLEN

One unsigned integer is examined in every selected processor, and the largest *length* of all these integers is returned to the front end as an unsigned integer.

Formats	result \leftarrow CM:global-u-max-u-intlen-1L source, len		
Operands	source The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.		
	len The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Result	An unsigned integer, the length of the source field value of greatest length.		
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.		
Flags	test-flag is set if the value in a particular processor has a length equal to the maximum; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition	Let $S = \{ m \mid m \in \textit{current-vp-set} \land \textit{context-flag}[m] = 1 \}$
	If $ S = 0$ then
	return 0 to front end
	else
	$\operatorname{let} R = \left(\max_{m \in S} \left\lceil \log_2 \left(1 + \operatorname{source}[m] \right) ight ceil ight)$
	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	$ \text{if } source[k] = R \ \text{then} \\$
	$\textit{test-flag}[k] \gets 1$
	else
	$\textit{test-flag}[k] \gets 0$
	return R to front end

The CM:global-u-max-u-intlen operation computes the integer-length of each unsigned integer source value. The largest length is sent to the front-end computer as an unsigned integer and returned as the result of the operation. In addition, the *test-flag* is set in every selected processor whose field is equal to the finally computed value, and is cleared in all other selected processors. If there are no selected processors, then the value 0 is returned.

A call to CM:global-u-max-u-intlen-1L is equivalent to the sequence

GLOBAL-MAX-INTLEN

CM:u-integer-length-2-2L temp, source, len, len CM:global-u-max-1L temp, len

but may be faster.

GLOBAL-F-MIN

One floating-point number is examined in every selected processor, and the smallest of all these integers (that is, the one closest to $-\infty$) is returned to the front end as a floating-point number.

Formats	result \leftarrow CM:global-f-min-1L source, s, e			
Operands	source The field ID of the floating-point source field.			
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.			
Result	A floating-point number, the smallest of the source fields.			
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.			
Flags	test-flag is set if the value in a particular processor equals the minimum; otherwise it is cleared.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

The CM:global-f-min operation returns the smallest (that is, closest to $-\infty$) of the floatingpoint source fields of all selected processors. This smallest value is sent to the front-end computer as a floating-point number and returned as the result of the operation. In addition, the *test-flag* is set in every selected processor whose field is equal to the finally computed value, and is cleared in all other selected processors. If there are no selected processors, then the value $+\infty$ is returned.

GLOBAL-MIN

GLOBAL-S-MIN

One signed integer is examined in every selected processor, and the smallest of all these integers (that is, the one closest to $-\infty$) is returned to the front end as a signed integer.

Formats	result \leftarrow CM:global-s-min-1L source, len		
Operands	sourceThe field ID of the signed integer source field.lenThe length of the source field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Result	A signed integer, the smallest of the source fields.		
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.		
Flags	test-flag is set if the value in a particular processor equals the minimum; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	Let $S = \{m \mid m \in current \cdot vp \cdot set \land context \cdot flag[m] = 1\}$ If $ S = 0$ then return $2^{len-1} - 1$ to front end else let $R = \left(\min_{m \in S} source[m]\right)$ to front end For every virtual processor k in the current $\cdot vp$ -set do if context - flag[k] = 1 then		

 $egin{aligned} & ext{if } context{-}flag[k] = 1 ext{ then} \ & ext{if } source[k] = R ext{ then} \ & ext{test-}flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \ & ext{else} \ & ext{test-}flag[k] \leftarrow 0 \ & ext{return } R ext{ to front end} \end{aligned}$

The CM:global-s-min operation returns the smallest (that is, closest to $-\infty$) of the signedinteger source fields of all selected processors. This smallest value is sent to the front-end computer as a signed integer and returned as the result of the operation. In addition, the *test-flag* is set in every selected processor whose field is equal to the finally computed value, and is cleared in all other selected processors. If there are no selected processors, then the value $2^{len-1} - 1$ is returned.

GLOBAL-U-MIN

One unsigned integer is examined in every selected processor, and the smallest of all these integers is returned to the front end as an unsigned integer.

Formats	result \leftarrow CM:global-u-min-1L source, len		
Operands	source The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.		
	len The length of the source field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Result	An unsigned integer, the smallest of the <i>source</i> fields.		
Overlap	There are no constraints, because overlap is not possible.		
Flags	test-flag is set if the value in a particular processor equals the minimum; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The result returned depends only upon processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	Let $S = \{ m \mid m \in \textit{current-vp-set} \land \textit{context-flag}[m] = 1 \}$		

```
\begin{aligned} &\text{If } |S| = 0 \text{ then} \\ &\text{return } 2^l en - 1 \text{ to front end} \\ &\text{else} \\ &\text{let } R = \left( \min_{m \in S} source[m] \right) \\ &\text{For every virtual processor } k \text{ in the } current-vp-set \text{ do} \\ &\text{if } context-flag[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ &\text{if } source[k] = R \text{ then} \\ &test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ &\text{else} \\ &test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0 \\ &\text{return } R \text{ to front end} \end{aligned}
```

The CM: global-u-min operation returns the smallest (that is, closest to zero) of the unsignedinteger source fields of all selected processors. This smallest value is sent to the front-end computer as an unsigned integer and returned as the result of the operation. In addition, the *test-flag* is set in every selected processor whose field is equal to the finally computed value, and is cleared in all other selected processors. If there are no selected processors, then the value $2^{len} - 1$ is returned.

F-GT

Compares two floating-point source values. The *test-flag* is set if the first is strictly greater than the second, and otherwise is cleared.

ormats	CM:f-gt-1Lsource1, source2, s, eCM:f-gt-constant-1Lsource1, source2-value, s, eCM:f-gt-zero-1Lsource1, s, e		
Operands	source1 The field ID of the floating-point first source field.		
	source2 The field ID of the floating-point second source field.		
	source2-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:f-gt-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.		
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the source1 and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner.		
Flags	test-flag is set if source1 is greater than source2; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Two operands are compared as floating-point numbers. The first operand is a memory field; the second is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is greater than the second operand, and is cleared otherwise. Note that comparisons ignore the sign of zero; +0 is not greater than -0.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

S-GT

Compares two signed integer source values. The *test-flag* is set if the first is strictly greater than the second, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:s-gt-1 CM:s-gt-2 CM:s-gt-co CM:s-gt-ze	source1, source2, slen1, slen2 pnstant-1L source1, source2-value, len	
Operands	source1	The field ID of the signed integer first source field.	
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field.	
	source2-vo	alue A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:s-gt-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.	
	len	The length of the <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM: *maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner.		
Flags	test-flag is set if source1 is greater than source2; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context		ation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors <i>text-flag</i> is 1.	

Two operands are compared as signed integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is greater than the second operand, and is cleared otherwise.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly

required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-GT

Compares two unsigned integer source values. The *test-flag* is set if the first is strictly greater than the second, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:u-gt-1 CM:u-gt-2 CM:u-gt-cc CM:u-gt-zc	L source1, source2, slen1, slen2 onstant-1L source1, source2-value, len
Operands	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field.
	source2-vo	alue An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:u-gt-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.
	len	The length of the <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non- negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The fields	source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is	set if <i>source1</i> is greater than <i>source2</i> ; otherwise it is cleared.
Context		ation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors <i>text-flag</i> is 1.

Two operands are compared as unsigned integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is greater than the second operand and is cleared otherwise.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.



F-IEEE-TO-VAX

Converts the floating-point source field values from IEEE floating-point format to VAX floating-point format and stores the result in the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-ieee-to-vax-1L vax-dest, ieee-source, len		
Operands	vax-dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	<i>ieee-source</i> The field ID of the floating-point source field.		
	len The length of the vax-dest and ieee-source fields. The value of len must be either 32 or 64.		
Overlap	The fields vax-dest and ieee-source may overlap in any manner.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the ieee-source cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared. If <i>ieee-source</i> represents ∞ or NaN, then vax-dest is set to the "undefined variable" value in VAX format and the overflow-flag is cleared. If <i>ieee-source</i> represents -0.0 , it is converted to VAX 0.0 and the overflow-flag is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

The Connection Machine operates internally on floating point data in IEEE format whereas the VAX uses a VAX floating-point format. In each active processor, this function converts a floating-point field in standard IEEE format to a field in VAX format.

The value of *len* specifies the precision of *vax-dest*. If *len* is specified as 32, then VAX 'F' format is used. If *len* is specified as 64, then VAX 'D' format is used.

VAX and IEEE floating-point formats are incompatible, so there are a number of potential inaccuracies in the translation. In general, if the conversion is accurate then the overflow flag is cleared; if inaccurate, then the overflow flag is set. See the flags description above.

This instruction is useful for rapidly converting floating-point data to VAX format, even if a VAX front end is not being used. For example, if data is to be transferred from a file in the CM file system to a VAX, CM:f-ieee-to-vax-1L should be called before writing the data file.

All Paris CM to front end data transfer functions automatically convert the data to the appropriate front-end format so it is not necessary to call CM:ieee-to-vax before calling, for instance, one of the read-from-news-array instructions.

To convert data back to IEEE floating-point format, see the definition of CM:f-vax-to-ieee-1L.

INIT

For the C/Paris and Fortran/Paris interfaces only. Makes various machine parameters available and performs a warm boot operation.

Formats CM:init

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

The facility for initializing Connection Machine hardware is provided in different ways in the Lisp/Paris interface (on the one hand) and the C/Paris and Fortran/Paris interfaces (on the other hand).

In the Lisp/Paris interface, there is no CM:init operation. Part of the work done by CM:init is performed by CM:cold-boot, and the remainder by CM:warm-boot.

In the C/Paris and Fortran/Paris interfaces, CM:init makes available to the user program various machine parameters that are initialized by the cmattach and cmcoldboot shell commands. It also performs all the functions of CM:warm-boot.

Every C or Fortran program that uses Paris should call CM:init before invoking any other Paris operations.
INITIALIZE-RANDOM-GENERATOR

Formats CM: initialize-random-generator seed

Operands	seed	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the seed
		value for initializing the pseudo-random number generator.

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

Explicitly initializes the pseudo-random generator of numbers used by the Paris random number generator operations CM:f-random-1L and cm:u-random-1L. The seed (a front-end integer, which must be non-zero) determines the initial state.

If it has not been explicitly initialized by a call to this operation, the Paris random number generator is automatically initialized the first time it is called. Automatic initialization uses a seed based on the date and time.

In the Lisp/Paris interface, the *seed* argument is optional; if it is omitted, then a value based on the date and time of day is used.

Note: Less simple but more flexible random number generation routines are provided as part of the CM Scientific Subroutines Library (CMSSL). For instance, the CMSSL random number generators may be checkpointed to guard against accidental interuptions.

S-INTEGER-LENGTH

The minimum number of bits, minus one, needed to represent a signed integer value is placed in the destination field.

Formats	CM:s-integer-length-2-2L dest, source, dlen, slen		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.	
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields	dest and source must not overlap in any manner.	
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

The dest field receives, as an unsigned integer, the result of the computation

$$\begin{array}{l} \lceil \log_2(s+1) \rceil & \text{if } s \ge 0 \\ \lceil \log_2(-s) \rceil & \text{if } s < 0 \end{array}$$

where s is the source value. This quantity is one less than the minimum number of bits required to represent s as a signed number, and will therefore be strictly less than *slen*.

U-INTEGER-LENGTH

The minimum number of bits needed to represent an unsigned integer value is placed in the destination field.

Formats CM:u-integer-length-2-2L dest, source, dlen, slen

Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The fields	s dest and source must not overlap in any manner.
Flags		flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; it is cleared.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only sors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the current up set do

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \lceil \log_2(source[k] + 1) \rceil$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$

The dest field receives, as an unsigned integer, the value $\lceil \log_2(s+1) \rceil$, where s is the source value. This quantity is the minimum number of bits required to represent s as an unsigned number, and will therefore be no greater than *slen*.

INTERN-DETAILED-GEOMETRY

Returns an interned geometry given detailed information about how the grid is laid out.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:intern-detailed$	geometry axis-descriptor-array, [rank]
Operands	the C interface, th be of type CM_axis structures of type C In the Lisp interface	end vector of descriptors for the grid axes. In e elements of the <i>axis-descriptor-array</i> must descriptor_t, that is, they must be pointers to CM_axis_descriptor. e, the <i>axis-descriptor-array</i> may be either a list array of descriptors.
	axis- $descriptor$ - $array$	er, the rank (number of dimensions) of the y. This must be in between 1 and CM:*max- lusive. This argument is not provided when isp.
Result	A geometry ID, identifying the	existing or newly created interned geometry.
Context	This operation is unconditiona	l. It does not depend on the context-flag.

By using interned geometries, modules that require identical geometries can use identical geometries – without having to keep track of the geometryID's.

CM:intern-detailed-geometry takes an array of descriptors. Each descriptor describes one NEWS axis in some detail. Most of the components are unsigned integers, but the value of the *ordering* component must be either :news-order or :send-order. The CM: create-detailedgeometry dictionary entry defines the type of the ordering component and of the descriptor for each language interface.

CM:intern-detailed-geometry is identical to CM:create-detailed-geometry with this exception: it returns an *interned* geometryID. A list of interned geometries is maintained and whenever CM:intern-detailed-geometry or intern-geometry is called, a previously interned geometry is returned if one exists that matches the specifications of the call, otherwise a new geometry is created and added to the list.

An interned geometryID is a geometryID returned by CM:intern-detailed-geometry or by CM:intern-geometry; a geometryID returned by CM:create-detailed-geometry or by CM:create-geometry may *not* be interned.

CM:create-detailed-geometry returns a unique, uninterned geometryID each time it is called. In contrast, CM:intern-detailed-geometry returns an existing interned geometryID if it can. If there is an interned geometry with an axis descriptor array that matches the supplied axis-descriptor-array, it is returned. Otherwise, CM:intern-detailed-geometry returns a new interned geometryID. The returned geometryID may be used to create a VP set or to respecify the geometry of an existing VP set.

Once the interned geometry has been created, the user may destroy the array created to provide the dimension information. All necessary information is copied from this array when the geometry is created.

INTERN-GEOMETRY

Returns an interned geometry given grid axis lengths.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:intern-geometry$ dimension-array; [rank]
Operands	dimension-array A front-end vector of unsigned integer lengths of the grid axes. In the Lisp interface, this may be a list of dimension lengths instead of an array of dimension lengths, at the user's option.
	rank An unsigned integer, the rank (number of dimensions) of the dimension-array. This must be in between 1 and CM:*max- geometry-rank*, inclusive. This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.
Result	A geometry ID, identifying the existing or newly created interned geometry.

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

By using interned geometries, codes that require identical geometries can use identical geometries – without having to keep track of the geometryID's.

CM:intern-geometry is identical to CM:create-geometry with this exception: it returns an *interned* geometryID. An interned geometryID is a geometryID returned by CM:intern-geometry or by CM:intern-detailed-geometry; a geometryID returned by CM:create-geometry or by CM:create-detailed-geometry may *not* be interned.

CM:create-geometry returns a unique, uninterned geometryID each time it is called. In contrast, CM:intern-geometry returns an existing interned geometryID if it can. If there is a geometry, created by CM:intern-geometry and with dimensions that match those specified in *dimension-array*, it is returned. Otherwise, CM:intern-geometry returns a new interned geometryID. The returned geometryID may be used to create a VP set or to respecify the geometry of an existing VP set.

The dimension-array must be a one-dimensional array of nonnegative integers; each must be a power of two. The product of all these integers must be a multiple of the number of physical processors attached for use by this process.

The geometry is laid out so as to optimize performance under the assumption that the axes are used equally frequently for NEWS communication. The operations CM:create-detailedgeometry or CM:intern-detailed-geometry may be used instead to more precisely control layout for performance tuning. Once the interned geometry has been created, the user may destroy the array used to provide the dimension information. All necessary information is copied out of this array when the geometry is created.

INTERN-IDENTICAL-VP-SET

Returns an interned VP set, within which fields may be allocated.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:intern-identical-vp-set$ geometry-id
Operands	geometry-id A geometry ID.
Result	A VP set ID, identifying the existing or newly allocated interned VP set.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This operation returns a VP set ID for an *interned* VP set. An interned VP set is a VP set referenced by a VP set ID returned by CM:intern-identical-vp-set. VP set interning allows different modules to reference identical VP sets and reduces VP set memory management overhead.

CM:intern-identical-vp-set returns an existing, interned VP set ID if there is an existing, interned VP set whose geometry is identical to the geometry specified by geometry-id. Otherwise, CM:intern-identical-vp-set returns a new, interned VP set ID.

Once a VP set has been created as interned, it may never be uninterned. Similarly, an uninterned VP set (created for instance with CM:create-vp-set) may never become interned.

An interned VP set may be used in the same ways as an uninterned VP set. For instance, it may be given to other Paris operations in order to create memory fields in which data may be stored. It may also be deallocated with CM:deallocate-vp-set.

INVERT-CONTEXT

Unconditionally makes all active processors inactive and vice versa.

Formats	CM:invert-context
Context	This operation is unconditional.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do context-flag $[k] \leftarrow \neg context$ -flag[k]

Within each processor, the context bit for that processor is unconditionally inverted.

INVERT-flag

Inverts a specified flag bit.

Formats	CM:invert-test
	CM:invert-test-always
	CM:invert-overflow
	CM:invert-overflow-always
Context	The non-always operations are conditional.
	The always operations are unconditional.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $flag[k] \leftarrow \neg flag[k]$

where flag is test-flag or overflow-flag, as appropriate.

Within each processor, the indicated flag for that processor is inverted.

IS-FIELD-AN-ALIAS

Returns true if the specified field ID is an alias field ID, false otherwise.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:is-field-an-alias$ field-id
Operands	field-id A field ID.
Result	True if <i>field-id</i> is an alias field ID, and false otherwise.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This operation tests whether the provided field ID is an alias field ID created with CM:makefield-alias, as opposed to a regular field ID created with a field allocation instruction such as CM:allocate-stack-field. 202020

IS-FIELD-IN-HEAP

Returns true if the specified field is a heap field, false otherwise.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:is-field-in-heap$ field-id
Operands	field-id A field ID.
Result	True if the fieldID indicates a field allocated in the heap, and false otherwise.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This instruction allows a program to test whether a given field has been allocated in the heap (as opposed to the stack).

IS-FIELD-IN-STACK

Returns true if the specified field is a stack field, false otherwise.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:is-field-in-stack field-id$
Operands	field-id A field ID.
Result	True if the fieldID indicates a field allocated on the stack, and false otherwise.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This instruction allows a program to test whether a given field has been allocated on the stack (as opposed to the heap).

IS-FIELD-VALID

Returns true if the specified field ID corresponds to a currently allocated CM field ID, false otherwise.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: is-field-valid field-id$
Operands	field ID A field ID.
Result	True if <i>field-id</i> is a valid field ID, and false otherwise.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This instruction allows a program to test whether the provided field ID is valid. Valid field ID's are assigned and returned by operations such as CM:allocate-stack-field, CM:allocate-heap-field, CM:add-offset-to-field-id, and CM:make-field-alias.

IS-STACK-FIELD-NEWER

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: is-stack-field-newer stack-query-field, stack-base-field$
Operands	stack-query-field A field ID. The field must be in the stack.
	stack-base-field A field ID. The field must be in the stack.
Result	True if the <i>stack-query-field</i> has been allocated more recently than the <i>stack-base-field</i> , and false otherwise.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This operation compares two stack fields and returns true if the second has been allocated more recently than the first.

IS-VP-SET-VALID

Returns true if the specified VP set ID corresponds to a currently allocated VP set, false otherwise.

lag.
f

This instruction allows a program to test whether the provided VP set ID is valid. Valid VP set ID's are assigned and returned by CM:allocate-vp-set.

S-ISQRT

The integer square root of a signed integer source field is placed in the destination field. This is the largest integer not larger than the true mathematical square root.

Formats	CM:s-isqrt- CM:s-isqrt- CM:s-isqrt-	2-1L dest, source, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap		e field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. er fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Flags	overflow-fi	set if the <i>source</i> value is negative; otherwise it is cleared. <i>lag</i> is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; it is cleared. This can occur only for CM:s-isqrt-2-2L.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

ISQRT

If the source value is non-negative, then the integer square root of that value (the largest integer not greater than the mathematical square root) is placed in the destination, and *test-flag* is cleared. Otherwise the *test-flag* is set and an unpredictable value is placed in the *dest* field.

U-ISQRT

The integer square root of an unsigned integer source field is placed in the destination field. This is the largest integer not larger than the true mathematical square root.

Formats	CM:u-isqı CM:u-isqı CM:u-isqı	rt-2-1L dest, source, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared. This can occur only for CM:u-isqrt-2-2L.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
Definition		y virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do ext-flag[k] = 1 then

Jennition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \lfloor \sqrt{source} \rfloor$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$ as appropriate.

The integer square root of the *source* value (the largest integer not greater than the mathematical square root) is placed in the destination.

LATCH-LEDS

Uses a one-bit field to turn the front-panel lights on or off.

Formats	CM:latch-leds source CM:latch-leds-always source
Operands	source The field ID of the source bit (a one-bit field).
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The always operations are unconditional.

Definition	Let $g = geometry(current-vp-set)$
	Let $r = geometry-total-vp-ratio(g) \times 16$
	Let $n = geometry-total-processors/r$
	For all m such that $0 \le m < n$ do
	if always then
	turn on led m if and only if
	$igg(\bigvee_{j=0}^{r-1} source[m imes n+j] igg) = 0$
	else
	turn on led m if and only if
	$ig(\bigvee_{j=0}^{r-1} (\mathit{source}[m imes n+j] \wedge \mathit{context-flag}[m imes n+j]) ig) = 0$

The specified 1-bit field is read from every selected processor (or every processor, for the always version) and used to determine which LEDs should be illuminated. There is one LED associated with each group of 16 physical processors; each physical processor has some number of virtual processors. Two virtual processors belong to the same group if their virtual processor numbers agree in their $\log_2 n$ most significant bits, where n is the total number of LEDs. A LED is illuminated if every selected virtual processor in the group has a 0 in the selected *source* field (that is, the fields are combined for each group by a logical NOR operation).

Note that the pattern will actually persist in the lights only if CM:set-system-leds-mode has been called with the argument nil (in the Lisp/Paris interface) or 0 (in the C/Paris or Fortran/Paris interface); otherwise the Connection Machine system software will present other patterns in the lights. Compares two floating-point source values. The *test-flag* is set if the first is less than or equal to the second, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:f-le-1Lsource1, source2, s, eCM:f-le-constant-1Lsource1, source2-value, s, eCM:f-le-zero-1Lsource1, s, e
Operands	source1 The field ID of the floating-point first source field.
	source2 The field ID of the floating-point second source field.
	source2-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:f-le-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the source1 and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The fields source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.
Flags	test-flag is set if source1 is less than or equal to source2; otherwise it is cleared.
Context	This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose context-flag is 1.

Two operands are compared as floating-point numbers. The first operand is a memory field; the second is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is less than or equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise. Note that comparisons ignore the sign of zero; +0 and -0 are considered to be equal.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

S-LE

Compares two signed integer source values. The *test-flag* is set if the first is less than or equal to the second, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:s-le-1L CM:s-le-2L CM:s-le-co CM:s-le-ze	source1, source2, slen1, slen2 onstant-1L source1, source2-value, len
Operands	source1	The field ID of the signed integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field.
	source2-vo	alue A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:s-le-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.
	len	The length of the <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The fields	source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is	set if <i>source1</i> is less than or equal to <i>source2</i> ; otherwise it is cleared.
Context		ation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors <i>itext-flag</i> is 1.

Two operands are compared as signed integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is less than or equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly

LE

U-LE

Compares two unsigned integer source values. The *test-flag* is set if the first is less than or equal to the second, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:u-le-1 CM:u-le-2 CM:u-le-co CM:u-le-zo	L source1, source2, slen1, slen2 onstant-1L source1, source2-value, len
Operands	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field.
	source2-v	alue An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:u-le-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.
	len	The length of the <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner.	
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is set if <i>source1</i> is less than or equal to <i>source2</i> ; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context		ration is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors <i>itext-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

Dennition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	if $source1[k] \leq source2[k]$ then
	$\textit{test-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1$
	else
	$\textit{test-flag}[k] \leftarrow 0$

Two operands are compared as unsigned integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is less than or equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise.

289

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

C-LN

The natural logarithm of the complex source field values is placed in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-ln-1-1L dest/source, s, e CM:c-ln-2-1L dest, source, s, e	
Operands	dest The field ID of the complex destination field.	
	source The field ID of the complex source field.	
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.	
Flags	test-flag is set if the source is zero; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current up set do	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \ln source[k]$

The value $\ln s$ is stored into the *dest* field, where s is the value of the *source* field. This is the natural logarithm to the base $e \approx 2.718281828...$

F-LN

The natural logarithm of the floating-point source field values are placed in the floatingpoint destination field.

ormats	CM:f-ln-1-1	
	CM:f-In-2-11	L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
		The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.	
Flags	test-flag is set if the source is non-positive; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context		tion is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only rs whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Call the value of the *source* field s. The value $\ln s$ is stored into the *dest* field; this is the natural logarithm to the base $e \approx 2.718281828...$

LOAD-CONTEXT

Unconditionally reads a bit from memory and loads it into the context bit.

Formats	CM:load-context source		
Operands	source	The field ID of the source bit (a one-bit field).	
Context	This operation is unconditional.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do $context-flag[k] \leftarrow source[k]$

Within each processor, a bit is read from memory and unconditionally loaded into the context bit for that processor.

LOAD-flag

Reads a bit from memory and loads it into a flag.

Formats	CM:load-test	source	
	CM:load-test-always	source	
	CM:load-overflow	source	
	CM:load-overflow-always	source	
Operands	source The field ID	of the source bit (a one-bit field).	
Context	The non-always operations are conditional.		
	The always operations are unconditional.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $flag[k] \leftarrow source[k]$

where flag is test-flag or overflow-flag, as appropriate.

Within each processor, a bit is read from memory and loaded into the indicated flag for that processor.

F-LOG2

The base two logarithm of the floating-point source field is placed in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	-	-1-1L dest/source, s, e -2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.	
Flags	test-flag is set if the source is zero; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \log_2 source[k]$

The value $\log_2 s$ is stored into the *dest* field, where s is the value of the *source* field. This is the logarithm to the base two of the floating-point source field.

F-LOG10

The base ten logarithm of the floating-point source field is placed in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	CM:f-log CM:f-log	10-1-1L dest/source, s, e 10-2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.	
Flags	test-flag is set if the source is zero; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
Definition	For ever	y virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \log_{10} source[k]$

The value $\log_{10} s$ is stored into the *dest* field, where s is the value of the *source* field. This is the logarithm to the base ten of the floating-point source field.

LOGAND

Combines two source values using a bitwise logical AND operation, and places the result in the destination field.

F	CH I		1.1/	
Formats	CM:logand		dest/source1, source2, len	
		l-always-2-1L l-constant-2-1L	dest/source1, source2, len dest/source1, source2-value, len	
	•	l-const-always-2-1L	dest/source1, source2-value, len	
	CM:logand	10 S.S.	dest, source1, source2, len	
	-	l-always-3-1L	dest, source1, source2, len dest, source1, source2, len	
		-constant-3-1L	dest, source1, source2, ien dest, source1, source2-value, len	
	•	l-const-always-3-1L	dest, source1, source2-value, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of th	e destination field.	
	source1	The field ID of th	e first source field.	
	source2	The field ID of th	e second source field.	
	source2-vo	0	l integer immediate operand to be regarded as a used as the second source.	
	len		dest, source1, and source2 fields. This must be no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.			
Context		lways operations a ocessors whose <i>con</i>	re conditional. The destination may be altered <i>text-flag</i> is 1.	
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \land source2[k]$

Each bit of the *dest* field is set if both of the corresponding bits of the *source1* and *source2* fields are 1, and is cleared if either of the corresponding bits of the *source1* and *source2* fields is 0.

LOGAND-CONTEXT

Reads a bit from memory; if it is zero, the context bit is cleared, unconditionally.

Formats	CM:logand-context source	
Operands	source	The field ID of the source bit (a one-bit field).
Context	This operation is unconditional.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do $context-flag[k] \leftarrow context-flag[k] \land source[k]$

Within each processor, a bit is read from memory and is "anded" into the context bit for that processor.

LOGAND-CONTEXT-WITH-TEST

If the test flag is zero, the context bit is cleared.

Formats CM:logand-context-with-test Context This operation is unconditional.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do $context-flag[k] \leftarrow context-flag[k] \land test-flag[k]$

Within each processor, the test flag is "anded" into the context bit for that processor.

LOGAND-flag

Reads a bit from memory; if it is zero, a specified flag is cleared.

Formats	CM:logand-test	source		
	CM:logand-test-always	source		
	CM:logand-overflow	source		
	CM:logand-overflow-always	source		
Operands	source The field ID of the source bit (a one-bit field).			
Context	The non-always operations are conditional.			
	The always operations are unconditional.			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $flag[k] \leftarrow flag[k] \land source[k]$

where flag is test-flag or overflow-flag, as appropriate.

Within each processor, a bit is read from memory and is "anded" into the indicated flag for that processor.
LOGANDC1

Combines the second source and the bitwise logical NOT of the first source using a bitwise logical AND operation. Places the result in the destination field.

Formats	CM:logandc1-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logandc1-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logandc1-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:logandc1-const-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:logandc1-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logandc1-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logandc1-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logandc1-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logandc1-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, lenCM:logandc1-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, len			
Operands	dest The field ID of the destination field.			
	source1 The field ID of the first source field.			
	source2 The field ID of the second source field.			
	source2-value An unsigned integer immediate operand to be regarded as a vector of bits and used as the second source.			
	len The length of the dest, source1, and source2 fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.			
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow (\neg source1[k]) \land source2[k]$

Each bit of the *dest* field is set if the corresponding bit of the *source1* field is 0 and the corresponding bit of the *source2* field is 1; otherwise it is cleared.

LOGANDC2

Combines the first source and the bitwise logical NOT of the second source using a bitwise logical AND operation. Places the result in the destination field.

Formats	CM:logandc2-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logandc2-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logandc2-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logandc2-const-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:logandc2-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logandc2-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logandc2-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logandc2-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logandc2-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logandc2-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, len		
Operands	dest The field ID of the destination field.		
	source1 The field ID of the first source field.		
	source2 The field ID of the second source field.		
	source2-value An unsigned integer immediate operand to be regarded as a vector of bits and used as the second source.		
	len The length of the dest, source1, and source2 fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	:	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \land (\neg source2[k])$

Each bit of the *dest* field is set if the corresponding bit of the *source1* field is 1 and the corresponding bit of the *source2* field is 0; otherwise it is cleared.

S-LOGCOUNT

The destination field receives a count of the number of bits that differ from the sign bit in a two's-complement binary representation of a signed integer source value. For nonnegative values, this is a count of 1 bits.

ormats	CM:s-logco	ount-2-2L dest, source, dlen, slen	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.	
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields dest and source must not overlap in any manner.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	if $source[k] \ge 0$ then $dest[k] \leftarrow count-of-one-bits(source[k])$
	else $dest[k] \leftarrow count-of-one-bits(\neg source[k])$
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$
	else $overflow$ -flag $[k] \leftarrow 0$

The *dest* field receives, as an *unsigned* integer, a count of the number of bits in the two'scomplement representation of the signed source value that are different from the sign bit of that value.

U-LOGCOUNT

The destination field receives a count of the number of 1 bits in the binary representaion of an unsigned integer source value.

Formats	CM:u-log	count-2-2L dest, source, dlen, slen		
Operands	s dest The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.		
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	slen The length of the source field. This must be non-negative greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
Overlap	The fields dest and source must not overlap in any manner.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then			

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{if } context-flag[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ dest[k] \leftarrow count-of-one-bits(source[k]) \\ \text{if } \langle \text{overflow occurred in processor } k \rangle \text{ then } overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \text{else } overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 0 \end{array}$

The *dest* field receives, as an unsigned integer, a count of the number of bits in the binary representation of the unsigned source value.

LOGEQV

Combines two source values using a bitwise logical EQUIVALENCE operation, and places the result in the destination field.

Formats	CM:logeqv-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logeqv-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logeqv-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:logeqv-const-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:logeqv-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logeqv-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logeqv-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logeqv-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logeqv-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logeqv-const-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, len		
Operands	dest The field ID of the destination field.		
	source1 The field ID of the first source field.		
	source2 The field ID of the second source field.		
	<i>source2-value</i> An unsigned integer immediate operand to be regarded as a vector of bits and used as the second source.		
	len The length of the dest, source1, and source2 fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow \neg(source1[k] \oplus source2[k])$

Each bit of the *dest* field is set where corresponding bits of the *source1* and *source2* fields are alike, and is cleared where corresponding bits of the *source1* and *source2* fields differ.

LOGIOR

Combines two source values using a bitwise logical inclusive OR operation, and places the result in the destination field.

Formats	CM:logior-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logior-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logior-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:logior-const-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:logior-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logior-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logior-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logior-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logior-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logior-const-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, len	
Operands	dest The field ID of the destination field.	
	source1 The field ID of the first source field.	
	source2 The field ID of the second source field.	
	source2-value An unsigned integer immediate operand to be regarded as a vector of bits and used as the second source.	
	len The length of the dest, source1, and source2 fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.	
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \lor source2[k]$

Each bit of the *dest* field is set if either of the corresponding bits of the *source1* and *source2* fields is 1, and is cleared if both of the corresponding bits of the *source1* and *source2* fields are 0.

LOGIOR-CONTEXT

Reads a bit from memory; if it is one, the context bit is set, unconditionally.

Formats	CM:logior	-context source	
Operands	source	The field ID of the source bit (a one-bit field).	
Context	This operation is unconditional.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do $context-flag[k] \leftarrow context-flag[k] \lor source[k]$

.....

Within each processor, a bit is read from memory and is "ored" into the context bit for that processor.

LOGIOR-flag

Reads a bit from memory; if it is 1, a specified flag is set.

Formats	CM:logior-test	source		
	CM: logior-test-always	source		
	CM:logior-overflow	source		
	CM: logior-overflow-always	source		
Operands	source The field ID of	the source bit (a one-bit field).		
Context	The non-always operations are conditional.			
	The always operations are unconditional.			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $flag[k] \leftarrow flag[k] \lor source[k]$

where flag is test-flag or overflow-flag, as appropriate.

Within each processor, a bit is read from memory and is "ored" into the indicated flag for that processor.

LOGNAND

Combines two source values with a bitwise logical NAND operation, and places the result in the destination field.

Formats	CM:lognand-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:lognand-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:lognand-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:lognand-const-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:lognand-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:lognand-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:lognand-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:lognand-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:lognand-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:lognand-const-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, len		
Operands	dest The field ID of the destination field.		
	source1 The field ID of the first source field.		
	source2 The field ID of the second source field.		
	source2-value An unsigned integer immediate operand to be regarded as a vector of bits and used as the second source.		
	<i>len</i> The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow \neg(source1[k] \land source2[k])$

Each bit of the *dest* field is set if either of the corresponding bits of the *source1* and *source2* fields is 0, and is cleared if both of the corresponding bits of the *source1* and *source2* fields are 1.

LOGNOR

Combines two source values with a bitwise logical NOR operation, and places the result in the destination field.

Formats	CM:lognor-2-1L CM:lognor-always-2-1L CM:lognor-constant-2-1L CM:lognor-const-always-2-1L CM:lognor-3-1L CM:lognor-always-3-1L CM:lognor-constant-3-1L CM:lognor-const-always-3-1L		dest/source1, source2, len dest/source1, source2, len dest/source1, source2-value, len dest/source1, source2-value, len dest, source1, source2, len dest, source1, source2, len dest, source1, source2-value, len dest, source1, source2-value, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of th	e destination field.
	source1	The field ID of th	e first source field.
	source2	The field ID of th	e second source field.
	source2-va	0	l integer immediate operand to be regarded as a used as the second source.
	len	The length of the non-negative and	dest, source1, and source2 fields. This must be no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1. The always operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow \neg(source1[k] \lor source2[k])$

Each bit of the *dest* field is set if both of the corresponding bits of the *source1* and *source2* fields are 0, and is cleared if either of the corresponding bits of the *source1* and *source2* fields is 1.

LOGNOT

Copies a source field, inverts all the bits, and places them in the destination field.

Formats		t-always-1-1L t-always-2-1L	dest/source, len dest/source, len dest, source, len dest, source, len
Operands	dest	The field II) of the destination field.
	source	The field II) of the source field.
	len		of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative ter than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	Context The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may booly in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
			are unconditional. The destination may be altered of the <i>context-flag</i> .
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do		

if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow \neg source[k]$

Each bit of the dest field is set to the inverse of the corresponding bit of the source field.

LOGORC1

Combines the second source and the bitwise logical NOT of the first source using a bitwise logical inclusive OR operation. Places the result in the destination field.

Formats	CM:logorc1-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logorc1-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logorc1-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, value, lenCM:logorc1-const-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:logorc1-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logorc1-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logorc1-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logorc1-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logorc1-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logorc1-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, len	
Operands	dest The field ID of the destination field.	
	source1 The field ID of the first source field.	
	source2 The field ID of the second source field.	
	source2-value An unsigned integer immediate operand to be regarded as a vector of bits and used as the second source.	
	<i>len</i> The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.	
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .	

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if (always or $context-flag[k] = 1$) then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow (\neg source1[k]) \lor source2[k]$

Each bit of the *dest* field is cleared if the corresponding bit of the *source1* field is 1 and if the corresponding bit of the *source2* field is 0; otherwise it is set.

LOGORC2

Combines the first source and the bitwise logical NOT of the second source using a bitwise logical inclusive OR operation. Places the result in the destination field.

Formats	CM:logorc2-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logorc2-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logorc2-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:logorc2-const-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:logorc2-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logorc2-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logorc2-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logorc2-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logorc2-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, lenCM:logorc2-const-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, len			
Operands	dest The field ID of the destination field.			
	source1 The field ID of the first source field.			
	source2 The field ID of the second source field.			
	source2-value An unsigned integer immediate operand to be regarded as a vector of bits and used as the second source.			
	<i>len</i> The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.			
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \lor (\neg source2[k])$

Each bit of the *dest* field is cleared if the corresponding bit of the *source1* field is 0 and if the corresponding bit of the *source2* field is 1; otherwise it is set.

LOGXOR

Combines two source values using a bitwise logical exclusive OR operation, and places the result in the destination field.

Formats	CM:logxor-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logxor-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logxor-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:logxor-const-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:logxor-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logxor-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logxor-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logxor-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logxor-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:logxor-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, lenCM:logxor-const-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, len	
Operands	dest The field ID of the destination field.	
	source1 The field ID of the first source field.	
	source2 The field ID of the second source field.	
	source2-value An unsigned integer immediate operand to be regarded as a vector of bits and used as the second source.	
	len The length of the dest, source1, and source2 fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.	
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \oplus source2[k]$

Each bit of the *dest* field is set where corresponding bits of the *source1* and *source2* fields differ, and is cleared where corresponding bits of the *source1* and *source2* fields are alike.

F-LT

Compares two floating-point source values. The *test-flag* is set if the first is strictly less than the second, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:f-lt-1Lsource1, source2, s, eCM:f-lt-constant-1Lsource1, source2-value, s, eCM:f-lt-zero-1Lsource1, s, e		
Operands	source1 The field ID of the floating-point first source field.source2 The field ID of the floating-point second source field.		
	source2-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:f-lt-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.		
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the source1 and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner.		
Flags	test-flag is set if source1 is less than source2; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Two operands are compared as floating-point numbers. The first operand is a memory field; the second is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is less than the second operand, and is cleared otherwise. Note that comparisons ignore the sign of zero; -0 is not less than +0.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

Compares two signed integer source values. The *test-flag* is set if the first is strictly less than the second, and otherwise is cleared.

source1 source2 source2-val	The field lue A si	ID of the signed integer first source field. ID of the signed integer second source field.
ource2-val	lue Asi	
		and integer immediate encourt to 1 1
	source. Fo	gned integer immediate operand to be used as the second or CM:s-lt-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.
en	The lengt smaller th	th of the <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no nan 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
len1	The lengt but no gro	h of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 eater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
len2	The lengt but no gre	h of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 eater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
The fields source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.		
test-flag is set if source1 is less than source2; otherwise it is cleared.		
This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
	en1 en2 he fields s st-flag is s his opera	n The lengt smaller th en1 The lengt but no gr en2 The lengt but no gr he fields source1 an st-flag is set if sour

Two operands are compared as signed integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is less than the second operand, and is cleared otherwise.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly

required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

1010031038

U-LT

Compares two unsigned integer source values. The *test-flag* is set if the first is strictly less than the second, and otherwise is cleared.

ormats	CM:u-lt-1 CM:u-lt-2 CM:u-lt-c CM:u-lt-z	L source1, source2, slen1, slen2 onstant-1L source1, source2-value, len	
Operands	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field.	
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field.	
	source2-v	alue An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:u-lt-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.	
	len	The length of the <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non- negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.		
Flags	test-flag is set if source1 is less than source2; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose context-flag is 1.		

Two operands are compared as unsigned integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is less than the second operand, and is cleared otherwise.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.



MAKE-FIELD-ALIAS

Creates a new field ID that points to an existing field.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:make-field-alias$ field-id	
Operands	field-id A field ID. This must be a field ID returned by CM:allocate-stack- field or CM:allocate-heap-field; it may not be an offset into a field. The field need not be in the current VP set.	
Result	A field ID, identifying the alias field ID. This ID initially resides in the current VP set.	
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.	

The return value is a *field alias*. It is a new field ID that identifies the same area of memory as does *field-id*.

The field identified by *field-id* can be in a VP set other than the current VP set. The returned alias field ID initially resides in the current VP set. The alias field ID can be used in all the same ways as a regular field ID can, with the following exceptions:

- It cannot be passed to CM:deallocate-heap-field.
- It cannot be passed to CM:deallocate-stack-through.

Associated with a field alias is a *physical length*: the number of bits that the field occupies in each physical processor. Also associated with a field alias is a *field length*: the number of bits the field occupies in each virtual processor. The physical length is equal to the field length multiplied by the VP ratio of the current VP set. It is an error if the physical length is not exactly divisible by the VP ratio of the current VP set.

It is possible for the field length of an alias field to be different from the field length of the original field. This is the case when make-field-alias is called on a field in a VP set that has a VP ratio different from the VP ratio of the current VP set. Suppose, for example, the current VP ratio is 32. If we make an alias for a 32-bit field that resides in a VP set with a VP ratio of 1, the resulting alias field is a 1 bit field (in a VP ratio of 32).

MAKE-NEWS-COORDINATE

Determine the send-address of a processor with the specified NEWS coordinate.

ormats	CM:make-	news-coordinate-1L geometry, dest, axis, news-coordinate, slen
Operands	geometry	A geometry ID. This determines the NEWS dimensions to be used.
	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination, to receive the send address of the processor whose coordinate along the specified axis is <i>news-coordinate</i> and whose coordinate along all other axes is a zero field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	news-coord	dinate The field ID of the unsigned integer NEWS coordinate along the specified axis field.
	slen	The length of the <i>news-coordinate</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in sors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow make-news-coordinate(axis, news-coordinate)$

where make-news-coordinate is as defined on page 40.

This function calculates, within each selected processor, the send-address of a processor that has a specified coordinate along a specified NEWS axis, with all other coordinates zero.

FE-MAKE-NEWS-COORDINATE

Calculates, entirely on the front end, the send-address of the processor with the specified coordinate along the specified NEWS axis and with all other coordinates zero.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: fe-make-news-coordinate geometry, axis, news-coordinate$				
Operands	geometry A geometry ID. This determines the NEWS dimensions to be u				
	axis An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.				
	<i>news-coordinate</i> An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as to NEWS coordinate along the specified axis.				
Result	An unsigned integer, the send address of the processor whose coordinate along the specified axis is <i>news-coordinate</i> and whose coordinate along all other axes is zero.				
Context	This operation is performed on the front end. It does not depend on the CM context-flag.				

Definition Return make-news-coordinate(axis, news-coordinate) where make-news-coordinate is as defined on page 40.

This function calculates, entirely on the front end, the send-address of a processor that has a specified coordinate along a specified NEWS axis, with all other coordinates zero.

C-MATRIX-MULTIPLY

Computes matrix multiplication using three single-precision complex operands and stores the result in the last.

Note: For historical reasons, this operation uses the prefix CMSSL: in place of the standard CM: Paris instruction prefix. It also uses the prefix c- to signify that single-precision complex operands are used. A more efficient version of this operation is included in the CM Scientific Subroutines Library.

Formats	CMSSL:c-matrix-multiply source1, source2, dest/source3		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.	
	source1	The field ID of the complex first source field.	
	source2	The field ID of the complex second source field.	
	source3	The field ID of the complex third source field.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> , <i>source2</i> , and <i>dest/source3</i> must not overlap in any manner.		
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.		

The calculation $dest \leftarrow source3 + source1 \times source2$ is performed on three conforming matrices, represented as CM fields.

The operands source1, source2, and dest/source3 must be fields of 64-bit single-precision complex values whose real and imaginary parts are 32-bit floating-point values.

All three operands may belong to separate VP sets if the geometries of those VP sets obey the following rule:

- The source1 dimensions are $n \times m$
- The source2 dimensions are $m \times p$
- The dest/source3 dimensions are $n \times p$

where n, m, and p are each powers of two. Otherwise, all three operands must belong to the same square VP set.

The matrix multiply is performed using Cannon's systolic algorithm, which can be summarized in three steps:

- 1. The source1 and source2 matrices are aligned so the elements in each processor have conforming indices for matrix multiplication. In terms of data motion, this implies aligning the diagonal entries of the source1 matrix to the first column and aligning the diagonal entries of the source2 matrix to the first row.
- 2. The systolic part of the algorithm involves local multiplication of *source1* and *source2* elements followed by nearest neighbor data moves that simulate the inner product.
- 3. The *source1* and *source2* matrices are aligned back to the original form supplied by the calling program.

In order to exploit the full potential of the floating-point hardware, a block version of the algorithm is implemented. See the Thinking Machines technical report entitled "Matrix Multiplication on the Connection Machine" for details.

The CM matrix multiplication operation performs best for square matrices and at high VP ratios.

C/Paris code that calls the Paris matrix multiplication routine must include the line

#include <cm/cmtypes.h>

at the top of the main program file. This declares all C/Paris functions and symbolic constants, including those for the Paris matrix multiplication routine.

Fortran/Paris code should include the line

INCLUDE '/usr/include/cm/cmssl-paris-fort.h'

at the top of any program unit that calls the Paris matrix multiplication routine.

S-MATRIX-MULTIPLY

Computes matrix multiplication using three single-precision floating-point operands and stores the result in the last.

Note: For historical reasons, this operation uses the prefix CMSSL: in place of the standard CM: Paris instruction prefix. It also uses the prefix s- to signify that single-precision floatingpoint operands are used. A more efficient version of this operation is included in the CM Scientific Subroutines Library.

Formats	CMSSL:s-matrix-multiply source1, source2, dest/source3		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point first source field.	
	source2	The field ID of the floating-point second source field.	
	source3	The field ID of the floating-point third source field.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> , <i>source2</i> , and <i>dest/source3</i> must not overlap in any manner.		
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.		

The calculation $dest \leftarrow source3 + source1 \times source2$ is performed on three conforming matrices, represented as CM fields.

The operands source1, source2, and dest/source3 must be fields of 32-bit single-precision floating-point values.

All three operands may belong to separate VP sets if the geometries of those VP sets obey the following rule:

- The source1 dimensions are $n \times m$
- The source2 dimensions are $m \times p$
- The dest/source3 dimensions are $n \times p$

where n, m, and p are each powers of two. Otherwise, all three operands must belong to the same square VP set.

The matrix multiply is performed using Cannon's systolic algorithm, which can be summarized in three steps:

- 1. The source1 and source2 matrices are aligned so the elements in each processor have conforming indices for matrix multiplication. In terms of data motion, this implies aligning the diagonal entries of the source1 matrix to the first column and aligning the diagonal entries of the source2 matrix to the first row.
- 2. The systolic part of the algorithm involves local multiplication of *source1* and *source2* elements, followed by nearest neighbor data moves that simulate the inner product.
- 3. The *source1* and *source2* matrices are aligned back to the original form supplied by the calling program.

In order to exploit the full potential of the floating-point hardware, a block version of the algorithm is implemented. See the Thinking Machines technical report entitled "Matrix Multiplication on the Connection Machine" for details.

The CM matrix multiplication routine performs best for square matrices and at high VP ratios.

C/Paris code that calls the Paris matrix multiplication routine must include the line

#include <cm/cmtypes.h>

at the top of the main program file. This declares all C/Paris functions and symbolic constants, including those for the Paris matrix multiplication routine.

Fortran/Paris code should include the line

INCLUDE '/usr/include/cm/cmssl-paris-fort.h'

at the top of any program unit that calls the Paris matrix multiplication routine.

F-MAX

Two floating-point values are compared. The larger is placed in the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-max-2-1 CM:f-max-3-1 CM:f-max-con CM:f-max-con	L dest, source1, source2, s, e nstant-2-1L dest/source1, source2-value, s, e	
Operands	dest Tl	he field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source1 Th	he field ID of the floating-point first source field.	
	source2 Th	he field ID of the floating-point second source field.	
	source2-value so	A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second surce.	
	so	he significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and purce2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $+ e + 1$.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	test-flag is set if the value placed in the dest field is not equal to source1; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Two operands are compared as floating-point numbers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The larger of the two

values is copied to the *dest* field. The *test-flag* is set or cleared to indicate which operand was copied; if the two source operands are equal, then the *test-flag* is cleared.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

S-MAX

Two signed integer values are compared. The larger (the one closer to $+\infty$) is placed in the destination field.

Formats		-2-1L dest/source1, source2, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.	
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer first source field.	
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field.	
	source2-v	alue A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	dlen	For CM:s-max-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen1	For CM:s-max-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen2	For CM:s-max-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	test-flag is set if the value placed in the dest field is not equal to source1; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Two operands are compared as signed integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The larger of the two values is copied to the *dest* field. The *test-flag* is set or cleared to indicate which operand was copied; if the two source operands are equal, then the *test-flag* is cleared.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-MAX

Two unsigned integer values are compared. The larger is placed in the destination field.

Formats		c-2-1L dest/source1, source2, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field.	
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field.	
	source2-vo	alue An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	dlen	For CM:u-max-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen1	For CM:u-max-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen2	For CM:u-max-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is set if the value placed in the <i>dest</i> field is not equal to <i>source1</i> ; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Two operands are compared as unsigned integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The larger of the two values is copied to the *dest* field. The *test-flag* is set or cleared to indicate which operand was copied; if the two source operands are equal, then the *test-flag* is cleared.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

F-MIN

Two floating-point values are compared. The smaller is placed in the destination field.

Formats			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point first source field.	
	source2	The field ID of the floating-point second source field.	
	source2-vo	<i>ulue</i> A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	test-flag is set if the value placed in the dest field is not equal to source1; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Two operands are compared as floating-point numbers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The smaller of the two

values is copied to the *dest* field. The *test-flag* is set or cleared to indicate which operand was copied; if the two source operands are equal, then the *test-flag* is cleared.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

S-MIN

Two signed integer values are compared. The smaller (the one closer to $-\infty$) is placed in the destination field.

Formats		-2-1L dest/source1, source2, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.	
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer first source field.	
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field.	
	source2-v	alue A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	dlen	For CM:s-min-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen1	For CM:s-min-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen2	For CM:s-min-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	<i>test-flag</i> is set if the value placed in the <i>dest</i> field is not equal to <i>source1</i> ; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only		

in processors whose context-flag is 1.
Two operands are compared as signed integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The smaller of the two values is copied to the *dest* field. The *test-flag* is set or cleared to indicate which operand was copied; if the two source operands are equal, then the *test-flag* is cleared.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-MIN

Two unsigned integer values are compared. The smaller is placed in the destination field.

Formats		-2-1L dest/source1, source2, len		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.		
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field.		
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field.		
	source2-ve	alue An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	dlen	For CM:u-min-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non- negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	slen1	For CM:u-min-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	slen2	For CM:u-min-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.			
Flags	test-flag is set if the value placed in the dest field is not equal to source1; otherwise it is cleared.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then if source1[k] \leq source2[k] then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k]$ $\begin{array}{l} test\text{-}flag[k] \leftarrow 0\\ \text{else}\\ dest[k] \leftarrow source2[k]\\ test\text{-}flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \end{array}$

Two operands are compared as unsigned integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The smaller of the two values is copied to the *dest* field. The *test-flag* is set or cleared to indicate which operand was copied; if the two source operands are equal, then the *test-flag* is cleared.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

F-MOD

One floating-point source field is divided by another and the residue is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

This operation's name is derived from the term modulus; the destination field receives the the residue of taking one source field *modulus* another source field.

CM:f-mod- CM:f-mod-	, co al const ci co a	
dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field. This is the quotient.	
source1	The field ID of the floating-point first source field. This is the dividend.	
source2	The field ID of the floating-point second source field. This is the divisor.	
source2-va	<i>lue</i> A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source.	
s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
test-flag is set if division by zero occurs; otherwise it is cleared. overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.		
This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
	CM:f-mod- dest source1 source2 source2-va s, e The fields however, r floating-po format. It test-flag is overflow-fla This opera	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then if source2[k] = 0 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \langle unpredictable \rangle$

$$\begin{array}{l} test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \texttt{else} \\ dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] - source2[k] \times \left\lfloor \frac{source1[k]}{source2[k]} \right\rfloor \\ test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0 \\ \texttt{if (overflow occurred in processor } k) \text{ then } overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \end{array}$$

The residue resulting from the reduction of the floating-point *source1* operand divided by the *source2* operand is stored in the *dest* field. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

S-MOD

One signed integer source field is divided by another and the residue is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

This operation's name is derived from the term modulus; the destination field receives the the residue of taking one source field *modulus* another source field.

Formats			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer residue field.	
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer dividend field.	
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer modulus (divisor) field.	
	source2-va	<i>lue</i> A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	test-flag is set if the modulus (divisor) is zero; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then if source2[k] = 0 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \langle unpredictable \rangle$ else		
	$dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] - source2[k] \times \left\lfloor \frac{source1[k]}{source2[k]} \right\rfloor$		
	if (divisor was zero in processor k) then $test-flag[k] \leftarrow$ else $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$		

1

The residue resulting from the reduction of the signed integer *source1* modulo the signed integer *source2* operand is stored into the *dest* field. The result always has the same sign as the *source2* operand. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

If the divisor is zero occurs, then the *test-flag* is set and the value of the destination is unpredictable

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-MOD

One unsigned integer source field is divided by another and the residue is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

This operation's name is derived from the term modulus; the destination field receives the the residue of taking one source field *modulus* another source field.

Formats			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer residue field.	
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer dividend field.	
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer modulus (divisor) field.	
	source2-value An unsigned integer immediate operand to be second source.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	test-flag is set if the modulus (divisor) is zero; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	if $source2[k] = 0$ then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow \langle unpredictable \rangle$
	else
	$dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] - source2[k] imes \left \frac{source1[k]}{source2[k]} \right $
	if (divisor was zero in processor k) then $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$
	else $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$

The residue resulting from the reduction of the unsigned integer *source1* modulo the unsigned integer *source2* operand is stored into the *dest* field. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

If the divisor is zero occurs, then the *test-flag* is set and the value of the destination is unpredictable

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

C-MOVE

Copies a complex source value into the destination field.

Formats	CM:c-move-2L CM:c-move-1L CM:c-move-always-1L CM:c-move-constant-1L CM:c-move-const-always-1L CM:c-move-zero-1L CM:c-move-zero-always-1L		dest, source, ds, de, ss, se dest, source, s, e dest, source, s, e dest, source-value, s, e dest, source-value, s, e dest, s, e dest, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of t	he complex destination field.	
	source	The field ID of t	he complex source field.	
	source-val	-value The field ID of the complex source field. For CM:c-move zero-1L and CM:c-move-zero-always-1L, this implicitly has the valu zero.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.		
	ds, de	For CM:c-move-2L, the significand and exponent lengths for the $dest$ field. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(ds + de + 1)$.		
	ss, se	For CM:c-move-2L, the significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(ss + se + 1)$.		
Overlap	The fields dest and source may overlap in any manner.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared. This can occur only for CM:c-move-2L.			
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination and flag may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else overflow-flag $[k] \leftarrow 0$ as appropriate.

The source field or value is copied into the dest field.

However, overlapping fields are not handled carefully and should be avoided.

_

F-MOVE

Copies a floating-point source value into the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-move-2L CM:f-move-1L CM:f-move-always-1L CM:f-move-constant-1L CM:f-move-const-always-1L CM:f-move-zero-1L CM:f-move-zero-always-1L		dest, source, ds, de, ss, se dest, source, s, e dest, source, s, e dest, source-value, s, e dest, source-value, s, e dest, s, e dest, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of t	he floating-point destination field.	
	source	The field ID of t	he floating-point source field.	
	source-val			
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
	ds, de	For CM:f-move-2L, the significand and exponent lengths for the $dest$ field. The total length of an operand in this format is $ds + de + 1$.		
	ss, se	For CM:f-move-2 source field. Th ss + se + 1.	L, the significand and exponent lengths for the ne total length of an operand in this format is	
Overlap	The fields dest and source may overlap in any manner.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared. This can occur only for CM:f-move-2L.			
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination and flag may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .			

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if (always or $context$ -flag $[k] = 1$) then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow source[k]$
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow$ -flag $[k] \leftarrow 1$

else overflow-flag $[k] \leftarrow 0$ as appropriate.

The source field or value is copied into the dest field.

Overlapping fields are handled carefully. The operation behaves as if the entire *source* field were first copied to a temporary buffer not overlapping either the *source* or *dest* field, and then the temporary buffer copied to the *dest* field.

S-MOVE

Copies a signed integer source value into the destination field.

Formats	CM:s-move-2L CM:s-move-1L CM:s-move-always-1L CM:s-move-constant-1L CM:s-move-const-always-1L CM:s-move-zero-1L CM:s-move-zero-always-1L		dest, source, dlen, slen dest, source, len dest, source, len dest, source-value, len dest, source-value, len dest, len dest, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of t	the signed integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of t	the signed integer source field.	
	source-va	alue A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the source. For CM:s-move-zero-1L and CM:s-move-zero-always-1L, this implic- itly has the value zero.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than the maximum Paris field length.		
	dlen	For CM:s-move-1L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than the maximum Paris field length.		
	slen	For CM:s-move-1L, the length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than the maximum Paris field length.		
Overlap	The fields dest and source may overlap in any manner.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared. This can occur only for CM:s-move-2L.			
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination and flag may be altered regardless of the value of the context-flag.			

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if (always or context-flag $[k] = 1$) then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow source[k]$
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$
	else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$

The source field or value is copied into the dest field. For CM:s-move-2L, if slen is less than dlen then the source value, regarded as a bit field, is padded at the most significant end with copies of the most significant source bit (sign extension), and if slen is greater than dlen then truncation occurs and overflow may be detected.

Overlapping fields are handled carefully. The operation behaves as if the entire *source* field were first copied to a temporary buffer not overlapping either the *source* or *dest* field, and then the temporary buffer copied to the *dest* field.

U-MOVE

Copies an unsigned integer source value into the destination field.

Formats	CM:u-move-2L CM:u-move-1L CM:u-move-always-1L CM:u-move-constant-1L CM:u-move-const-always-1L CM:u-move-zero-1L CM:u-move-zero-always-1L		dest, source, dlen, slen dest, source, len dest, source, len dest, source-value, len dest, source-value, len dest, len dest, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of t	he unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of t	he unsigned integer source field.	
	source-va		ed integer immediate operand to be used as the -move-zero-1L and CM:u-move-zero-always-1L, this e value zero.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than the maximum Paris field length.		
	dlen	For CM:u-move-1L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than the maximum Paris field length.		
	slen	For CM:u-move-1 smaller than 2 bu	L, the length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no it no greater than the maximum Paris field length.	
Overlap	The fields dest and source may overlap in any manner.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared. This can occur only for CM:u-move-2L.			
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
	The always operations are unconditional. The destination and flag may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$ The source field or value is copied into the dest field. For CM:u-move-2L, if slen is less than dlen then the source value, regarded as a bit field, is padded at the most significent end with zero bits, and if slen is greater than dlen then truncation occurs and overflow may be detected.

Overlapping fields are handled carefully. The operation behaves as if the entire *source* field were first copied to a temporary buffer not overlapping either the *source* or *dest* field, and then the temporary buffer copied to the *dest* field.

...

F-MOVE-DECODED-CONSTANT

Copies a decoded immediate floating-point source value into the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-move	e-decoded-constant-1L dest, low-s-value, high-s-value, e-value, sign-value, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	low-s-value	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the low 32 bits of the integer significand.
	high-s-valu	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the high bits of the integer significand.
	e-value	A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the integer exponent.
	sign-value	A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the integer sign. This must be either 1 or -1.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	There are	no constraints, because overlap is not possible.
Context		tion is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- context-flag is 1.

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow sign-value \times (low-s-value + 2^{32} \times high-s-value) \times 2^{e-value}$

The three quantities $low-s-value + 2^{32} \times high-s-value$, e-value, and sign-value are three integers that together describe a floating-point value. (This is the same decoded form that is used by such Common Lisp operations as integer-decode-float.) This floating-point value is copied into the *dest* field.

In the Lisp interface one may use a "bignum" as the *low-s-value* and always pass zero for the *high-s-value*. In the C interface, however, it is not possible to pass an integer of more than 32 bits. The *high-s-value* operand provides a way around this difficulty that works compatibly in either language.

MOVE-REVERSED

Copies the source values into the destination field, reversing the order of the bits.

Formats		reversed-1L dest, source, len reversed-always-1L dest, source, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	source	The field ID of the source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap		e field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two are identical if they have the same address and the same length.
Context		lways operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
	a service of the service of the	s operation is unconditional. The destination may be altered re- f the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .
Definition	if (alway	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do (s or context-flag[k] = 1) then from 0 to $len - 1$ do

 $dest[k]\langle j \rangle \leftarrow source[k]\langle len - j - 1 \rangle$

The *source* field or value is copied into the *dest* field, with the order of the bits reversed; that is, the least significant bit of the *source* field is copied into the most significant bit of the *dest* field, and so on.

F-MULT-ADD

Calculates a value xa + b and places it in the destination.

Formats	CM:f-mult CM:f-mult CM:f-mult CM:f-mult CM:f-mult	-add-always-1L -const-add-1L -const-add-always-1L -add-const-1L -add-const-always-1L -const-add-const-1L	dest, source1, source2, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2, source3-value, s, e dest, source1, source2, source3-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3-value, s, e
Operands	dest source1		dest, source1, source2-value, source3-value, s, e loating-point destination field.
			oating-point first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the fl	oating-point second source (multiplier) field.
	source2-vo	ulue A floating-poin source (multiplier).	t immediate operand to be used as the second
	source3	The field ID of the fl	oating-point third source (augend) field.
	source3-va	ulue A floating-poin source (augend).	t immediate operand to be used as the third
Sav	s, e		xponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , <i>source2</i> , 'he total length of an operand in this format
Overlap	of them, h Two floati	owever, must be eithen ng-point fields are ide	source3 may overlap in any manner. Each or disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Intical if they have the same address and the or all the fields to be identical.
Flags	overflow-fl	lag is set if floating-poin	nt overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context		lways operations are co ly in processors whose	onditional. The destination and flag may be context-flag is 1.
	The always altered reg	s operations are uncor ardless of the value of	nditional. The destination and flag may be the <i>context-flag</i> .
Definition	For every	wintual processor h in	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow (source1[k] \times source2[k]) + source3[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are multiplied as floating-point numbers and then a third operand, *source3*, is added to the product. The result is stored in the destination field. The various operand formats allow the second and third source operands to be either memory fields or constants.

The constant operands *source2-value* and *source3-value* should be double-precision frontend values (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). The constants are then converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e before the operation is performed.

A call to CM:f-mult-add-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:f-multiply-3-1L temp, source1, source2, s, e CM:f-add-3-1L dest, temp, source3, s, e

but may be faster.

F-MULT-SUB

Calculates a value xa - b and places it in the destination.

Formats	CM:f-mult-o CM:f-mult-o CM:f-mult-s CM:f-mult-s CM:f-mult-o	sub-1L sub-always-1L const-sub-1L const-sub-always-1L sub-const-1L sub-const-always-1L const-sub-const-1L const-sub-const-a-1L	dest, source1, source2, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2, source3-value, s, e dest, source1, source2, source3-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3-value, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the fl	oating-point destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the fl	oating-point first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the fl	oating-point second source (multiplier) field.
	source2-val		t immediate operand to be used as the second
	source3	The field ID of the fl	oating-point third source (subtrahend) field.
	source3-valu		t immediate operand to be used as the third
		The significand and example and source3 fields. T is $s + e + 1$.	xponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , <i>source2</i> , he total length of an operand in this format
Overlap	of them, ho Two floating	wever, must be eithe g-point fields are iden	source3 may overlap in any manner. Each r disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. ntical if they have the same address and the r all the fields to be identical.
Flags	overflow-fla	g is set if floating-poir	nt overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context	The non-alw altered only	vays operations are co in processors whose	onditional. The destination and flag may be <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
	The always altered rega	operations are uncor rdless of the value of	nditional. The destination and flag may be the context-flag.
Definition			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow (source1[k] \times source2[k]) - source3[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ Two operands, source1 and source2, are multiplied as floating-point numbers and then a third operand, source3, is subtracted from the product. The result is stored in the destination field. The various operand formats allow the second and third source operands to be either memory fields or constants.

The constant operands source2-value and source3-value should be double-precision frontend values (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). The constants are then converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e before the operation is performed.

A call to CM:f-mult-sub-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:f-multiply-3-1L temp, source1, source2, s, e CM:f-subtract-3-1L dest, temp, source3, s, e

but may be faster.

F-MULT-SUBF

Calculates a value b - xa and places it in the destination.

Formats	CM.C		1
Formats	CM:f-mult		dest, source1, source2, source3, s, e
		t-subf-always-1L	dest, source1, source2, source3, s, e
		-const-subf-1L	dest, source1, source2-value, source3, s, e
		-const-subf-always-1L -subf-const-1L	dest, source1, source2-value, source3, s, e
			dest, source1, source2, source3-value, s, e
		-subf-const-always-1L -const-subf-const-1L	dest, source1, source2, source3-value, s, e
		-const-subf-const-a-1L	dest, source1, source2-value, source3-value, s, e
	Civi. I-IIIuli	-const-subt-const-a-1L	dest, source1, source2-value, $source3$ -value, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the fl	oating-point destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the fl	oating-point first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the fl	oating-point second source (multiplier) field.
	source2-v	alue A floating-point source (multiplier).	immediate operand to be used as the second
	source3	The field ID of the fl	oating-point third source (minuend) field.
	source3-ve	alue A floating-point source (minuend).	immediate operand to be used as the third
	s, e		ponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , <i>source2</i> , he total length of an operand in this format
Overlap	The fields	source1, source2, and	source3 may overlap in any manner. Each
	of them, l	nowever, must be eithe	r disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field.
			ntical if they have the same address and the r all the fields to be identical.
Flags	overflow-f	lag is set if floating-poin	t overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context	The non-a	lways operations are co	onditional. The destination and flag may be
	altered on	ly in processors whose	context-flag is 1.
	The alway altered reg	s operations are uncon gardless of the value of	ditional. The destination and flag may be the <i>context-flag</i> .
Definition		virtual processor k in t	

if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source3[k] - (source1[k] \times source2[k])$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ Two operands *source1* and *source2* are multiplied as floating-point numbers and the product is subtracted from a third operand, *source3*. The result is stored in the destination field. The various operand formats allow the second and third source operands to be either memory fields or constants.

The constant operands *source2-value* and *source3-value* should be double-precision frontend values (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). The constants are then converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e before the operation is performed.

A call to CM:f-mult-subf-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:f-multiply-3-1L temp, source1, source2, s, e CM:f-subtract-3-1L dest, source3, temp, s, e

but may be faster.

C-MULTIPLY

The product of two complex source values is placed in the destination field.

Formats	CM:c-mult CM:c-mult CM:c-mult CM:c-mult CM:c-mult	tiply-always-2-1L dest/source1, source2, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the complex first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the complex second source field.
	source2-vo	alue A complex immediate operand to be used as the second source.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap	however, a complex fi	source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two elds are identical if they have the same address and the same format. issible for all the fields to be identical.
Flags	overflow-f	<i>lag</i> is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \times source2[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are multiplied as complex numbers. The result is stored into memory. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision complex front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

F-MULTIPLY

The product of two floating-point source values is placed in the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-mult CM:f-mult CM:f-mult CM:f-mult CM:f-mult	iply-always-2-1L	dest/source1, source2, s, e dest/source1, source2, s, e dest, source1, source2, s, e dest, source1, source2, s, e dest/source1, source2-value, s, e dest/source1, source2-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the f	loating-point destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the f	loating-point first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the f	loating-point second source field.
	source2-vo	ulue A floating-poin source.	t immediate operand to be used as the second
	s, e		exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and total length of an operand in this format is
Overlap	however, i floating-po	must be either disjoir bint fields are identical	may overlap in any manner. Each of them, at from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two if they have the same address and the same the fields to be identical.
Flags	overflow-fi	lag is set if floating-poin	nt overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context	The non-a altered onl	lways operations are c y in processors whose	onditional. The destination and flag may be <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
	The always altered reg	s operations are unco ardless of the value of	nditional. The destination and flag may be the <i>context-flag</i> .
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in	the current-vp-set do

if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \times source2[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are multiplied as floating-point numbers. The result is stored into memory. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

2010/03/03/03/03/03/03

S-MULTIPLY

The product of two signed integer source values is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

Formats		tiply-2-1L dest/source1, source2, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field.
	source2-v	<i>alue</i> A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	For CM:s-multiply-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	For CM:s-multiply-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	For CM:s-multiply-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	however, r fields are	source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, nust be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is e for all the fields to be identical.
Flags	overflow-fi field; other	lag is set if the product cannot be represented in the destination rwise it is cleared.
Context	This opera in processo	ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \times source2[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$

Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are multiplied as signed integers. The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields are constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-MULTIPLY

The product of two unsigned integer source values is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

Formats		tiply-2-1L dest tiply-3-1L dest tiply-constant-2-1L dest	t, source1, source2, dlen, slen1, slen2 t/source1, source2, len t, source1, source2, len t/source1, source2-value, len t, source1, source2-value, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the un	signed integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the un	signed integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the un	signed integer second source field.
	source2-ve	ulue An unsigned into second source.	eger immediate operand to be used as the
	len		, <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be reater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	For CM:u-multiply-3-3L non-negative and no gr	, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be reater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1		, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-
	slen2	For CM:u-multiply-3-3L must be non-negative a length*.	, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-
Overlap	however, n fields are i	nust be either disjoint fro	ay overlap in any manner. Each of them, om or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer e same address and the same length. It is identical.
Flags	overflow-fl otherwise	ag is set if the sum cannot is cleared.	not be represented in the destination field;
Context	This opera in processo	tion is conditional. The ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is	e destination and flag may be altered only 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the *current-vp-set* do

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{if } context-flag[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \times source2[k] \\ \text{if } \langle \text{overflow occurred in processor } k \rangle \text{ then } overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \text{else } overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 0 \end{array}$

Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are multiplied as unsigned integers. The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

MULTISPREAD-C-ADD

The destination field in every selected processor receives the sum of the complex floatingpoint source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

Formats	CM: multis	pread-c-add-1L dest, source, axis-mask, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> Two comp format.	e field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. lex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Context	This opera sors whose	tion is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- context-flag is 1.
Definition	if contex	wirtual processor k in the current-vp-set do t-flag $[k] = 1$ then = geometry(current-vp-set)

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{let } y = geometry(current-vp-set) \\ \text{let } r = rank(g) \\ \text{let } axis-set = \{ m \mid 0 \leq m < r \land (axis-mask\langle m \rangle = 1) \} \\ \text{let } C_k = \{ m \mid m \in hyperplane(g, k, axis-set) \land context-flag[m] = 1 \} \\ dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in C_k} source[m] \right) \end{array}$

where hyperplane is as defined on 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-c-add operation combines *source* fields by performing complex floating-point addition.

A call to CM:multispread-c-add-1L is equivalent to the sequence

for all integers j, $0 \le j < rank(geometry(current-vp-set))$, in any sequential order, do if $axis-mask\langle j \rangle = 1$ then

CM:spread-with-c-add-1L dest, source, j, s, e

but may be faster.

MULTISPREAD-F-ADD

The destination field in every selected processor receives the sum of the floating-point source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

Formats	CM: multisp	oread-f-add-1L dest, source, axis-mask, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The <i>sourc</i> Two floati same form	e field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. ng-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the at.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e context-flag is 1.

 $\begin{array}{ll} \textbf{Definition} & \text{For every virtual processor } k \text{ in the } current-vp-set \text{ do} \\ & \text{if } context-flag[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ & \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set) \\ & \text{let } r = rank(g) \\ & \text{let } axis-set = \{m \mid 0 \leq m < r \land (axis-mask\langle m \rangle = 1) \} \\ & \text{let } C_k = \{m \mid m \in hyperplane(g, k, axis-set) \land context-flag[m] = 1 \} \\ & dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

where hyperplane is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-f-add operation combines *source* fields by performing floating-point addition.

A call to CM:multispread-f-add-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:f-move-zero-always-1L temp, s, e CM:f-move-1L temp, source, s, e CM:store-context ctemp CM:set-context for all integers j, 0 ≤ j < rank(geometry(current-vp-set)), in any sequential order, do
 if axis-mask(j) = 1 then
 CM:spread-with-f-add-1L temp, temp, j, s, e
CM:load-context ctemp
CM:f-move-1L dest, temp, s, e</pre>

but may be faster.
MULTISPREAD-S-ADD

The destination field in every selected processor receives the sum of the signed integer source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

Formats	CM:multispread-s-add-1L dest, source, axis-mask, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context		ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

 $\begin{array}{ll} \textbf{Definition} & \text{For every virtual processor } k \text{ in the } current-vp-set \text{ do} \\ & \text{if } context-flag[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ & \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set) \\ & \text{let } r = rank(g) \\ & \text{let } axis-set = \{m \mid 0 \leq m < r \land (axis-mask\langle m \rangle = 1)\} \\ & \text{let } C_k = \{m \mid m \in hyperplane(g, k, axis-set) \land context-flag[m] = 1\} \\ & dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

where hyperplane is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-s-add operation combines *source* fields by performing signed integer addition.

MULTISPREAD-U-ADD

The destination field in every selected processor receives the sum of the unsigned integer source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

ormats	CM:multispread-u-add-1L dest, source, axis-mask, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proc sors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

 $\begin{array}{l} \textbf{Definition} \quad \text{For every virtual processor } k \text{ in the } current-vp-set \text{ do} \\ & \text{if } context-flag[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ & \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set) \\ & \text{let } r = rank(g) \\ & \text{let } axis-set = \{m \mid 0 \leq m < r \land (axis-mask\langle m \rangle = 1)\} \\ & \text{let } C_k = \{m \mid m \in hyperplane(g, k, axis-set) \land context-flag[m] = 1\} \\ & dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

where hyperplane is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-u-add operation combines *source* fields by performing unsigned integer addition.

MULTISPREAD-COPY

The destination field in every selected processor receives a copy of the source value from a particular value within its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:multispread-copy-1L dest, source, axis-mask, len, multi-coordinate		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.	
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	multi-coor	dinate An unsigned integer, the multi-coordinate indicating which element of each hyperplane is to be replicated throughout that hyperplane.	
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	if conte let g	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do xt-flag $[k] = 1$ then = geometry(current-vp-set) = rank(g)	

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{let } axis\text{-set} = \{ \ m \mid 0 \leq m < r \land (axis\text{-}mask\langle m \rangle = 1) \} \\ \text{let } c = deposit\text{-}multi\text{-}coordinate(g, k, axis\text{-}set, multi\text{-}coordinate)} \\ dest[k] \leftarrow source[c] \end{array}$

where deposit-multi-coordinate is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations.

To construct a multi-coordinate, construct a send-address and provide it as an argument to CM:fe-extract-multi-coordinate.

MULTISPREAD-LOGAND

The destination field in every selected processor receives the bitwise logical AND of the source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

Formats	CM:multispread-logand-1L dest, source, axis-mask, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	source	The field ID of the source field.
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> bit fields a	e field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two re identical if they have the same address and the same length.
Context	This opera sors whose	tion is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- context-flag is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let r = rank(g)let $axis-set = \{m \mid 0 \le m < r \land (axis-mask\langle m \rangle = 1)\}$ let $C_k = \{m \mid m \in hyperplane(g, k, axis-set) \land context-flag[m] = 1\}$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\bigwedge_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where hyperplane is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-logand operation combines *source* fields by performing bitwise logical AND operations.

MULTISPREAD-LOGIOR

The destination field in every selected processor receives the bitwise logical inclusive OR of the source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

Formats	CM:multispread-logior-1L dest, source, axis-mask, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	source	The field ID of the source field.
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-logior operation combines *source* fields by performing bitwise logical inclusive OR operations.

MULTISPREAD-LOGXOR

The destination field in every selected processor receives the bitwise logical exclusive OR of the source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

Formats	CM:multispread-logxor-1L dest, source, axis-mask, len		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the source field.	
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This opera sors whose	tion is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- context-flag is 1.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let r = rank(g)let axis-set = $\{m \mid 0 \le m < r \land (axis-mask\langle m \rangle = 1)\}$ let $C_k = \{m \mid m \in hyperplane(g, k, axis-set) \land context-flag[m] = 1\}$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\bigoplus_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where hyperplane is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-logxor operation combines *source* fields by performing bitwise logical exclusive OR operations.

MULTISPREAD-F-MAX

The destination field in every selected processor receives the largest of the floating-point source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

Formats	CM:multispread-f-max-1L dest, source, axis-mask, s, e			
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.		
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

 $\begin{array}{ll} \textbf{Definition} & \text{For every virtual processor } k \text{ in the } current-vp-set \text{ do} \\ & \text{if } context-flag[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ & \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set) \\ & \text{let } r = rank(g) \\ & \text{let } axis-set = \{m \mid 0 \leq m < r \land (axis-mask\langle m \rangle = 1) \} \\ & \text{let } C_k = \{m \mid m \in hyperplane(g, k, axis-set) \land context-flag[m] = 1 \} \\ & dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\max_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

where hyperplane is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-f-max operation combines *source* fields by performing a floating-point maximum operation.

MULTISPREAD-S-MAX

The destination field in every selected processor receives the largest of the signed integer source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

Formats	CM:multispread-s-max-1L dest, source, axis-mask, len		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.	
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
D. C. ''			

 $\begin{array}{ll} \textbf{Definition} & \text{For every virtual processor } k \text{ in the } current-vp-set \text{ do} \\ & \text{if } context-flag[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ & \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set) \\ & \text{let } r = rank(g) \\ & \text{let } axis-set = \{ m \mid 0 \leq m < r \land (axis-mask\langle m \rangle = 1) \} \\ & \text{let } C_k = \{ m \mid m \in hyperplane(g,k,axis-set) \land context-flag[m] = 1 \} \\ & dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\max_{m \in C_k} source[m] \right) \end{array}$

where hyperplane is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-s-max operation combines *source* fields by performing a signed integer maximum operation.

MULTISPREAD-U-MAX

The destination field in every selected processor receives the largest of the unsigned integer source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

Formats	CM:multispread-u-max-1L dest, source, axis-mask, len		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.	
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do	

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{if context-flag}[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set) \\ \text{let } r = rank(g) \\ \text{let } axis-set = \{m \mid 0 \leq m < r \land (axis-mask\langle m \rangle = 1)\} \\ \text{let } C_k = \{m \mid m \in hyperplane(g, k, axis-set) \land context-flag[m] = 1\} \\ dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\max_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

where hyperplane is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-u-max operation combines *source* fields by performing an unsigned integer maximum operation.

MULTISPREAD-F-MIN

The destination field in every selected processor receives the smallest of the floating-point source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

Formats	CM:multispread-f-min-1L dest, source, axis-mask, s, e			
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.		
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

where hyperplane is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-f-min operation combines *source* fields by performing a floating-point minimum operation.

MULTISPREAD-S-MIN

The destination field in every selected processor receives the smallest of the signed integer source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

Formats	CM:multispread-s-min-1L dest, source, axis-mask, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

 $\begin{array}{ll} \textbf{Definition} & \text{For every virtual processor } k \text{ in the } current-vp-set \text{ do} \\ & \text{if } context-flag[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ & \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set) \\ & \text{let } r = rank(g) \\ & \text{let } axis-set = \{m \mid 0 \leq m < r \land (axis-mask\langle m \rangle = 1)\} \\ & \text{let } C_k = \{m \mid m \in hyperplane(g, k, axis-set) \land context-flag[m] = 1\} \\ & dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\min_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

where hyperplane is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-s-min operation combines *source* fields by performing a signed integer minimum operation.

MULTISPREAD-U-MIN

The destination field in every selected processor receives the smallest of the unsigned integer source fields from all processors in the same hyperplane through the NEWS grid.

Formats	CM:multispread-u-min-1L dest, source, axis-mask, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.
	axis-mask	An unsigned integer, the mask indicating a set of NEWS axes.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

 $\begin{array}{ll} \textbf{Definition} & \text{For every virtual processor } k \text{ in the } current-vp-set \text{ do} \\ & \text{if } context-flag[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ & \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set) \\ & \text{let } r = rank(g) \\ & \text{let } axis-set = \{m \mid 0 \leq m < r \land (axis-mask\langle m \rangle = 1)\} \\ & \text{let } C_k = \{m \mid m \in hyperplane(g, k, axis-set) \land context-flag[m] = 1\} \\ & dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\min_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

where hyperplane is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of multispread operations. The CM:multispread-u-min operation combines *source* fields by performing an unsigned integer minimum operation.

MY-NEWS-COORDINATE

Stores the NEWS coordinate of each selected processor along a specified NEWS axis into'a destination field within that processor.

Formats	CM:my-	news-coordinate-1L dest, axis, dlen
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
Definition		ry virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do <i>text-flag</i> $[k] = 1$ then

let g = geometry(current-vp-set)

 $dest[k] \leftarrow extract-news-coordinate(g, axis, k)$

where extract-news-coordinate is as defined on page 40.

This function calculates, within each selected processor, the NEWS coordinate of that processor along a specified NEWS axis.

MY-SEND-ADDRESS

Stores the send-address of each selected processor into a destination field in that processor.

Formats	CM:my-send-address dest		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field. This must be no less than the value returned by CM:geometry-send-address- length.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
D. C	-		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow k$

This function stores into the *dest* field, within each selected processor, the send-address of that processor.

C-NE

Compares two complex source values. The *test-flag* is set if they are not equal; otherwise it is cleared.

Formats	CM:c-ne-1L CM:c-ne-const CM:c-ne-zero-	
Operands	source1 Th	e field ID of the complex first source field.
	source2 Th	ne field ID of the complex second source field.
	source2-value so	A complex immediate operand to be used as the second urce. For CM:c-ne-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.
		he significand and exponent lengths for the <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> lds. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s+e+1)$.
Overlap	The fields sou	arce1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.
Flags	test-flag is set if source1 is not equal to source2; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context	This operation whose context	n is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors <i>t-flag</i> is 1.

Two operands are compared as complex numbers. The first operand is a memory field; the second is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is not equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise. Note that comparisons ignore the sign of zero; +0 and -0 are considered to be equal.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision complex front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

F-NE

Compares two floating-point source values. The *test-flag* is set if they are not equal, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:f-ne-1Lsource1, source2, s, eCM:f-ne-constant-1Lsource1, source2-value, s, eCM:f-ne-zero-1Lsource1, s, e		
Operands	source1 The field ID of the floating-point first source field.		
	source2 The field ID of the floating-point second source field.		
	source2-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:f-ne-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.		
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the source1 and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The fields source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.		
Flags	test-flag is set if source1 is not equal to source2; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then if source1[k] \neq source2[k] test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 else test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0

Two operands are compared as floating-point numbers. The first operand is a memory field; the second is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is not equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise. Note that comparisons ignore the sign of zero; +0 and -0 are considered to be equal.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

S-NE

Compares two signed integer source values. The *test-flag* is set if they are not equal, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:s-ne-1L CM:s-ne-2L CM:s-ne-const CM:s-ne-zero-2		
Operands	source2 Th source2-value source2-value source2-value source2 s	he field ID of the signed integer first source field. A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second arce. For CM:s-ne-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero. He length of the <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no haller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*. He length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 t no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*. He length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2	
Overlap Flags Context	but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*. The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. <i>test-flag</i> is set if <i>source1</i> is not equal to <i>source2</i> ; otherwise it is cleared. This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag $[k] = 1$ then if source1 $[k] \neq$ source2 $[k]$ then		

 $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$ else $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$

Two operands are compared as signed integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is not equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-NE

Compares two unsigned integer source values. The *test-flag* is set if they are not equal, and otherwise is cleared.

Formats	CM:u-ne-1 CM:u-ne-2 CM:u-ne-c CM:u-ne-z	L source1, source2, slen1, slen2 onstant-1L source1, source2-value, len
Operands	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field.
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field.
	source2-vo	alue An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source. For CM:u-ne-zero-1L, this implicitly has the value zero.
	len	The length of the <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non- negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The fields source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner.	
Flags	test-flag is set if source1 is not equal to source2; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

```
Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do
if context-flag[k] = 1 then
if source1[k] \neq source2[k] then
test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1
else
test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0
```

Two operands are compared as unsigned integers. Operand *source1* is always a memory field; operand *source2* is a memory field or an immediate value. The *test-flag* is set if the first operand is not equal to the second operand, and is cleared otherwise.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

1000000

C-NEGATE

Copies a complex number with both signs inverted.

Formats		gate-1-1L dest/source, s, e gate-2-1L dest, source, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For every	y virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do	

A copy of the source operand, with both sign bits inverted, is placed in the dest operand.

F-NEGATE

Copies a floating-point number with its sign inverted.

	:f-negate-2-1L dest, source, s, e	
Operands des	t The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
501	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
5, 1	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Tw	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.	
	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow -source[k]$

A copy of the *source* operand, with its sign bit inverted, is placed in the *dest* operand. This is done even if the operand is a NaN, whether a signalling NaN or a quiet NaN.

This operation therefore differs from the operation of subtracting a floating-point number from the constant zero when the operand is ± 0 or a NaN.

S-NEGATE

Computes the negative (that is, the additive inverse) of a signed integer source field and places it in the destination field.

Formats	CM:s-nega CM:s-nega CM:s-nega	ate-2-1L dest, source, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The source Two integ length.	ce field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. For fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

The negative of the *source* operand is placed in the *dest* operand. If overflow occurs, then the *overflow-flag* is set. (If the length of the *dest* field equals the length n of the *source* field, overflow can occur only if the *source* field contains -2^n . If the length of the *dest* field is greater than the length of the *source* field, then overflow cannot occur.)

U-NEGATE

The "negative" (that is, the unsigned additive inverse) of an unsigned integer source field is placed in the destination field. This is an unsigned value that, when added to the original source field, will produce zero (possibly with overflow).

Formats	CM:u-nega CM:u-nega CM:u-nega	te-2-1L dest, source, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared. Overflow occurs whenever the source value is non-zero.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	if contes	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do xt-flag[k] = 1 then $e_1 \leftarrow -source[k]$	

else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$ The negative of the source operand is placed in the dest operand. If overflow occurs, then the dest field will contain a value equal to 2^{len} - source. This operation matches the

functionality of the unary "-" operator on unsigned integers in the C language.

if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

F-NEWS-ADD

The sum of two floating-point source values (one from a NEWS neighbor) is placed in the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-news CM:f-news CM:f-news CM:f-news	s-add-2-1Ldest, source, axis, direction, s, es-add-always-2-1Ldest, source, axis, direction, s, es-add-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, axis, direction, s, es-add-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, axis, direction, s, es-add-const-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, axis, direction, s, es-add-const-a-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, axis, direction, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point first source field.	
	source2	The field ID of the floating-point second source field.	
	source2-ve	alue A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source.	ond
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the num of a NEWS axis.	ber
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, a source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.		
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
	The alway altered reg	s operations are unconditional. The destination and flag may gardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .	be
	Note that in the conditional cases the storing of data depends only on <i>context-flag</i> of the processor receiving the data.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set) $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] + source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

where *news-neighbor* is is defined in the NEWS Communication section of the Instruction Set Overview Chapter.

Two source operands are added as floating-point numbers and the result is stored in *dest*. The various operand formats allow source operands to be either memory fields or constants. Each instruction takes one source field from a NEWS neighbor; the default is *source2*.

The instructions with two operands take *source* from a NEWS neighbor, sum it with *dest* and store the result back in *dest*.

For the instructions CM:f-news-add-3-1L and CM:f-news-add-always-3-1L, source2 is taken from a NEWS neighbor.

The instructions CM:f-news-add-const-3-1L and CM:f-news-add-const-a-3-1L take source1 is from a NEWS neighbor. Note that the a in CM:f-news-add-const-a-3-1L stands for "always."

If *direction* is :upward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one greater along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is greatest retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is zero.

If *direction* is :downward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one less along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is zero retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is greatest.

The constant operand source2-value should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

A call to CM:f-news-add-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:get-from-news-1L temp, source2, axis, direction, (s + e + 1)CM:f-add-3-1L dest, source1, temp, s, e

but is faster at high VP ratios and requires little temporary memory.

F-NEWS-ADD-MULT

Calculates the value (a + x)b, where one of the operands is taken from a NEWS neighbor, and places the result in the destination.

Formats	CM:f-news-add-mult-4-1Ldest, source1, source2, source3, axis, direction, s, eCM:f-news-add-const-mult-4-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, source3, axis, direction, s, e			
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point first source field.		
	source2	The field ID of the floating-point second source field.		
	source2-ve	alue A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source.		
	source3	A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the third source.		
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1. Note that in the conditional cases the storing of data depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the processor receiving the data.			

The sum of two source operands is multiplied by the value of a third source operand. The result is stored in *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand. Each instruction takes one source field from a NEWS neighbor; the default is *source2*.

The CM:f-news-add-mult-4-1L instruction takes *source2* from a NEWS neighbor. For the CM:f-news-add-const-mult-4-1L instruction, *source2* is a constant and *source3* is taken from a NEWS neighbor.

If *direction* is :upward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one greater along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is greatest retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is zero.

If *direction* is :downward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one less along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is zero retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is greatest.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

A call to CM:f-news-add-mult is equivalent to the sequence

CM:get-from-news-1L temp, source2, axis, direction, (s + e + 1)CM:f-add-mult-1L souce1, temp, source3, s, e

but is faster at high VP ratios and requires little temporary memory.

_

F-NEWS-MULT

The product of two floating-point source values (one from a NEWS neighbor) is placed in the destination field.

F	ormats	CM:f-news CM:f-news CM:f-news CM:f-news	a-mult-2-1Ldest, source, axis, direction, s, ea-mult-always-2-1Ldest, source, axis, direction, s, ea-mult-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, axis, direction, s, ea-mult-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, axis, direction, s, ea-mult-const-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, axis, direction, s, ea-mult-const-a-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, axis, direction, s, e		
	Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
		source1	The field ID of the floating-point first source field.		
		source2	The field ID of the floating-point second source field.		
		<i>source2-value</i> A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source.			
of a NEWS axis. direction Either : upward or : downward. s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, so		An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.			
		direction	Either :upward or :downward.		
		s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
	Overlap The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of the however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. The floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.				
	Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.			
i	Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
altered regardless of the value of the context-flag. N			s operations are unconditional. The destination and flag may be ardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> . Note that in the conditional storing of data depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the processor he data.		
_					

Definition For every virtual processor k in the *current-vp-set* do

if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set) $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \times source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$

Two source operands are multiplied as floating-point numbers. The result is stored in *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand. Each instruction takes one source field from a NEWS neighbor; the default is *source2*.

The instructions with two operands take *source* from a NEWS neighbor, multiply it with *dest*, and store the result back in *dest*.

For the instructions CM:f-news-mult-3-1L and CM:f-news-mult-always-3-1L, source2 is taken from a NEWS neighbor.

For the instructions CM:f-news-mult-const-3-1L and CM:f-news-mult-const-a-3-1L, source1 is taken from a NEWS neighbor. Note that the *a* in CM:f-news-mul-const-always-3-1L stands for "always." This is necessary to meet the 31 character limit on instruction names.

If *direction* is :upward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one greater along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is greatest retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is zero.

If *direction* is :downward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one less along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is zero retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is greatest.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

A call to CM:f-news-mult-3-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:get-from-news-1L temp, source2, axis, direction, (s + e + 1)CM:f-multiply-3-1L dest, source1, temp, s, e

but is faster at high VP ratios and requires little temporary memory.

F-NEWS-MULT-ADD

The product of two floating-point source values (one from a NEWS neighbor) is added to yet another floating-point source value; the result is placed in the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-news-mult-add-4-1L CM:f-news-mult-const-add-4-1L		dest, source1, source2, source3, axis, direction, s, e		
	CIVI: I- News	s-mult-const-add-4-1L de	est, source1, source2-value, source3, axis, direction, s, e		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.			
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point multiplicand field.			
	source2	The field ID of the flo may be taken from a N	ating-point multiplier field. These values EWS neighbor.		
	source2-ve	ulue A floating-point i tiplier.	mmediate operand to be used as the mul-		
	source3	The field ID of the floating-point addend field. These values may be taken from a NEWS neighbor.			
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.			
	direction	Either :upward or :down	nward.		
	s, e	The significand and ex source2 fields. The tot s + e + 1.	ponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and al length of an operand in this format is		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> , <i>source2</i> , and <i>source3</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.				
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.				
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				
	Note that context-fla	in the conditional cases g of the processor receivi	the storing of data depends only on the ng the data.		
			×		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then

-

let g = geometry(current-vp-set) $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \times source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] + source3[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

Two operands are multiplied as floating-point numbers; to the product is added a third operand. The result is stored into memory. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand. Each instruction takes one source field from a NEWS neighbor; the default is *source2*.

For CM:f-news-mult-add-4-1L, source2 is taken from a NEWS neighbor.

For CM:f-news-mult-const-add-4-1L, *source2* is a constant and *source3* is taken from a NEWS neighbor.

If *direction* is :upward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one greater along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is greatest retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is zero.

If *direction* is :downward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one less along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is zero retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is greatest.

The constant operand *source2-value* or *source3-value* should be a double-precision frontend value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

A call to CM:f-news-mult-add-4-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:get-from-news-1L temp, source2, axis, direction, (s + e + 1)CM:f-multiply-3-1L temp, source1, temp, s, e CM:f-add-3-1L dest, temp, source3, s, e

but is faster at high VP ratios and requires little temporary memory.

F-NEWS-MULT-SUB

From the product of two floating-point source values (one from a NEWS neighbor) is subtracted yet another floating-point source value; the result is placed in the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-news-mult-sub-4-1L CM:f-news-mult-const-sub-4-1L dest, source1, source2, source3, axis, direction, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3, axis, direction, s, e			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point multiplicand field.		
	source2			
 source2-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the tiplier. source3 The field ID of the floating-point subtrahend field. 		alue A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the mul-		
		The field ID of the floating-point subtrahend field.		
		alue A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the sub-		
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
 Overlap The fields source1, source2, and source3 may overlap in any manner. Ea of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest fields to floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical. Flags overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected 		owever, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. ng-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the		
		ag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.		
Context This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altere in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
	Note that in the conditional cases the storing of data depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the processor receiving the data.			
Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let $g = geometry(current-vp-set)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \times source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land source1[k] \land source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source1[k] \land so$		t-flag[k] = 1 then = geometry(current-vp-set)] \leftarrow source1[k] \times source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] - source3[k]		

Two operands, *source1* and *source2*, are multiplied as floating-point numbers; from the product is subtracted a third operand, *source3*. The result is stored into memory. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand. Each instruction takes one source field from a NEWS neighbor; the default is *source2*.

For CM:f-news-mult-sub-4-1L, source2 is taken from a NEWS neighbor.

For and CM:f-news-mult-const-sub-4-1L, source2 is a constant and source3 is taken from a NEWS neighbor.

If *direction* is :upward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one greater along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is greatest retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is zero.

If *direction* is :downward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one less along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is zero retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is greatest.

The constant operand source2-value or source3-value should be a double-precision frontend value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

A call to CM:f-news-mult-sub-4-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:get-from-news-1L temp, source2, axis, direction, (s + e + 1)CM:f-multiply-3-1L temp, source1, temp, s, e CM:f-subtract-3-1L dest, temp, source3, s, e

but is faster at high VP ratios and requires little temporary memory.

F-NEWS-SUB

The difference of two floating-point source values (one from a NEWS neighbor) is placed in the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-new CM:f-new CM:f-new CM:f-new	s-sub-2-1Ldest, source, axis, direction, s, es-sub-always-2-1Ldest, source, axis, direction, s, es-sub-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, axis, direction, s, es-sub-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, axis, direction, s, es-sub-const-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, axis, direction, s, es-sub-const-a-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, axis, direction, s, e			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field. This is the difference, the result of the subtraction operation.			
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point first source field) field. This is the minuend.			
	source2	The field ID of the floating-point second source field. This is the subtrahend.			
source.		is nothing point initiate operation to be used as the second			
		An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.			
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.			
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.			
Overlap	however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.				
Flags					
Context The non-always operations are conditional. The destination and flag altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1. The always operations are unconditional. The destination and flag altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		lways operations are conditional. The destination and flag may be y in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
		s operations are unconditional. The destination and flag may be ardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .			
	Note that in the conditional cases the storing of data depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the processor receiving the data.				

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then

let g = geometry(current-vp-set) $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] - source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

The operands are treated as as floating-point numbers and one is subtracted from another. The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields are constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand. Each instruction takes one source field from a NEWS neighbor; the default is *source2*.

The instructions with two operands take *source* from a NEWS neighbor, subtract it from *dest*, and store the result stored back in *dest*.

For the instructions CM:f-news-sub-3-1L and CM:f-news-sub-always-3-1L, source2 is obtained from a NEWS neighbor.

For the instructions CM:f-news-sub-const-3-1L and CM:f-news-sub-const-a-3-1L, source2 is a constant and source1 is obtained from a NEWS neighbor. Note that the a in CM:f-news-sub-const-a-3-1L stands for "always."

If *direction* is :upward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one greater along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is greatest retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is zero.

If direction is :downward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one less along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is zero retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is greatest.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

A call to CM:f-news-sub-3-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:get-from-news-1L temp, source2, axis, direction, (s + e + 1)CM:f-subtract-3-1L dest, source1, temp, s, e

but is faster at high VP ratios and requires little temporary memory.

F-NEWS-SUB-MULT

Calculates the value (a - x)b, when one of the operands is taken from a NEWS neighbor, and places the result in the destination.

Formats	CM:f-news-sub-mult-4-1Ldest, source1, source2, source3, axis, direction, s, eCM:f-news-sub-const-mult-4-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, source3, axis, direction				
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.			
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point first source field.			
	source2	The field ID of the floating-point second source field.			
	source2-ve	alue A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source.			
	source3	The field ID of the floating-point third source field.			
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.			
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.			
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.			
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.				
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.				
Context	This opera in processo	tion is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
	Note that context-flag	in the conditional cases the storing of data depends only on the g of the processor receiving the data.			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set) $dest[k] \leftarrow (source1 - source2[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)]) \times source3[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$
The difference of two operands is multiplied by the value of a third operand. The result is stored into memory. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand. Each instruction takes one source field from a NEWS neighbor; the default is *source2*.

The CM:f-news-sub-mult-4-1L instruction takes *source2* from a NEWS neighbor. For the CM:f-news-sub-const-mult-4-1L instruction, *source2* is a constant and *source3* is taken from a NEWS neighbor.

If *direction* is :upward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one greater along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is greatest retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is zero.

If *direction* is :downward then each processor retrieves data from the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one less along *axis*, with the processor whose coordinate is zero retrieving data from the processor whose coordinate is greatest.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

A call to CM:f-news-sub-mult-4-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:get-from-news-1L temp, source2, axis, direction, (s + e + 1)CM:f-sub-mult-1L dest, source1, temp source3, s, e

but is faster at high VP ratios and requires little temporary memory.

NEXT-STACK-FIELD-ID

Determines the next stack field id that would be returned by a call to CM:allocate-stack-field.

.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:next-stack-field-id$	
	Operands None.	
Result	An unsigned integer, the field ID that will be returned by the next invocation of CM:allocate-stack-field.	
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.	

This function returns the next stack field id to be allocated.

FE-PACKED-ARRAY-FORMAT

This front-end instruction returns an array format descriptor for a packed front-end array format. A format descriptor may be used as the *format* argument to any array transfer instruction, although this is not required.

See also CM:fe-array-format and CM:fe-structure-array-format.

flag.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: fe-packed-array-format cm-element-size, [array-element-size]$
Operands	cm-element-size A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the number of bits each Connection Machine element occupies in the front-end array. This must be a power of two between 1 and 128.
	 array-element-size A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the number of bits in each front-end array element. This must be a power of two between 1 and 128. In Lisp/Paris, this argument is optional. If not specified, it defaults to the actual front-end element size or, if the front-end array elements are general (i.e., of type t), array-element-size defaults to the value of cm-element-size.
Result	The array format descriptor specified.
Context	This is a front-end operation. It does not depend on the value of the context-

The return value is a format descriptor for packed arrays; it can be passed to any array transfer instruction. In this format, multiple Connection Machine array elements are packed into each front-end array element during array transfers in either direction between the Connection Machine and the front-end computer.

By using this instruction, it is also possible to specify an extended-element front-end array format. In an extended-element format, each CM element is stored in multiple front-end array elements.

The value of *cm-element-size* defines the unit of measure for the *fe-offset-vector* argument to the CM:read-from-news-array and CM:write-to-news-array instructions.

The value of *array-element-size* defines the unit of measure for the argument *fe-dimension-vector* to the CM:read-from-news-array and CM:write-to-news-array instructions.

The number of Connection Machine elements packed into each front-end array element is the ratio of array-element-size to cm-element-size. If array-element-size is larger than *cm-element-size*, multiple Connection Machine elements are packed into each front-end array element. Alternatively, if *array-element-size* is smaller than *cm-element-size*, each CM element is stored in more than one front-end array element.

The ordering of the packing defaults to the standard ordering for the front end. For example, on a VAX the Connection Machine element with the smallest coordinates is put into the least significant bits of the front-end array element. On a Sun, the Connection Machine element with the largest coordinates is put into the least significant bits of the front-end array element.

F-C-PHASE

Calculates the phase of the complex source field and puts the result in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	CM:f-c-phase-2-1L dest, source, s, e		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
1.23	source	The field ID of the complex source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of the <i>dest</i> field in this format is $s + e + 1$. The total length of the <i>source</i> field in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.	
Overlap	The dest field must be either identical to source, identical to $(source+s+e+1)$, or disjoint from source.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do	

if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow atan2(source[k].imag, source[k].real)$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

The phase of a number is the angle part of its polar representation as a complex number.

......

PHYSICAL-VP-SET

Returns a VP set that has one virtual processor for each physical processor.

Formats	result ← CM:physical-vp-set		
	Operands None.		
Result	A VP set ID, identifying the VP set whose VP ratio is 1.		
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.		

C-C-POWER

Raises a complex number to a complex power.

Formats	CM:c-c-power-2-1L dest/source1, source2, s, e		
Furniaus	CM:c-c-power-3-1L dest, source1, source2, s, e		
	CM:c-c-power-constant-2-1L dest/source1, source2-value, s, e		
	CM:c-c-power-constant-3-1L dest, source1, source2-value, s, e		
Operands	dest The field ID of the complex destination field.		
	source1 The field ID of the complex first source field.		
	source2 The field ID of the complex second source field.		
	source2-value A complex immediate operand to be used as the second source.		
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected. test-flag is set if zero is raised to a non-positive power; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k]^{source2[k]}$ if $source1[k] = 0.0$ and $source2[k].real \le 0.0$ and $source2[k].imag = 0.0$ then $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$		

The source1 field (the base) is raised to the power source2 (the exponent), using exp and ln operations.

if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $\textit{overflow-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1$

else test-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$

POWER

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision complex front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

C-F-POWER

Raises a complex number to a floating-point power.

Formats				
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.		
	source1	The field ID of the complex first source field.		
	source2	The field ID of the floating-point second source field.		
	source2-vo	<i>ulue</i> A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source1 and source2 fields. The total length of the dest and source1 field in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$. The total length of the source2 field in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected. test-flag is set if zero is raised to a non-positive power; otherwise it is cleared.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k]^{source2[k]}$ if $source1[k] = 0.0$ and $source2[k].real \le 0.0$ and $source2[k].imag = 0.0$ then			

 $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$ else $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$

if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $\textit{overflow-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1$

The source1 field (the base) is raised to the power source2 (the exponent), using exp and ln operations.

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

C-S-POWER

Raises a complex number to a signed integer power.

Formats	CM:c-s-power-3-2Ldest, source1, source2, slen2, s, eCM:c-s-power-2-2Ldest/source1, source2, slen2, s, eCM:c-s-power-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, s, eCM:c-s-power-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, s, e		
Operands	dest The field ID of the complex destination field.		
	source1 The field ID of the complex base field.		
	source2 The field ID of the signed integer exponent field.		
	<i>source2-value</i> A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.		
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source1 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s+e+1)$.		
	slen2 The length of the source2 field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>source2</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source1</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected. test-flag is set if zero is raised to a negative power; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k]^{source2[k]}$		

 $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k]^{converse}$ if source1[k] = 0.0 and source2[k] < 0 then $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$ else $test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$

The source1 field (the base) is raised to the power source2 (the exponent), using repeated multiplications.

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

C-U-POWER

Raises a complex number to an unsigned integer power.

Formats			dest, source1, source2, slen2, s, e dest/source1, source2, slen2, s, e dest/source1, source2-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the	he complex destination field.	
	source1	The field ID of the complex base field.		
	source2	The field ID of t	he unsigned integer exponent field.	
	source2-vo	alue An unsigne second source.	d integer immediate operand to be used as the	
	s, e		and exponent lengths for the dest and source1 length of an operand in this format is $2(s+e+1)$.	
	slen2		e <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no *maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>source2</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source1</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
Definition	For every	virtual processor	k in the current-vp-set do	

if context-flag[k] = 1 then $desk[k] \leftarrow source1[k]^{source2[k]}$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

The source1 field (the base) is raised to the power source2 (the exponent), using repeated multiplications.

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

F-F-POWER

Raises a floating-point number to a floating-point power.

Formats	CM:f-f-power-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, s, eCM:f-f-power-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, s, eCM:f-f-power-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, s, eCM:f-f-power-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, s, e	
Operands	dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source1 The field ID of the floating-point base field.	
	source2 The field ID of the floating-point exponent field.	
	source2-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the expo- nent.	
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.	
Flags	test-flag is set if the base is negative and the exponent is non-zero, or if the base is zero and the exponent is non-positive; otherwise it is cleared. overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

422

```
\begin{array}{l} \text{if } source \mathcal{Z}[k] = 0 \text{ then} \\ dest[k] \leftarrow 1.0 \\ test[k] \leftarrow 0 \\ \text{else} \\ dest[k] \leftarrow \langle \text{undefined} \rangle \\ test-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \end{array}
\begin{array}{l} \text{else} \\ dest[k] \leftarrow \exp(source \mathcal{Z}[k] \times \ln source \mathbb{1}[k]) \\ test-flag[k] \leftarrow 0 \\ \text{if } \langle \text{overflow occurred in processor } k \rangle \text{ then } overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \end{array}
```

The source1 field (the base) is raised to the power source2 (the exponent).

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

F-S-POWER

Raises a floating-point number to a signed integer power.

Forma	ts		, , ,,	2, s, e , s, e	
Operands		dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination	ı field.	
		source1	The field ID of the floating-point base field.		
		source2	The field ID of the signed integer exponent field.		
		source2-va	<i>lue</i> A signed integer immediate operand to source.	be used as the second	
		s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for t fields. The total length of an operand in this		
		slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must is but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-le		
Overla	ap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>source2</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source1</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.			
Flags		overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.			
Conte	ext	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

 $\begin{array}{l} dest[k] \leftarrow temp1_k \\ \text{for } j \text{ from 1 to } slen2 - 1 \text{ do} \\ \text{ if } temp2_k\langle j: slen2 - 1\rangle \neq 0 \text{ then let } temp1_k = temp1_k \times temp1_k \\ \text{ if } temp2_k\langle j\rangle \text{ then } dest[k] \leftarrow dest[k] \times temp1_k \\ \text{ if } (\text{overflow occurred in processor } k\rangle \text{ then } overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1 \end{array}$

The source1 field (the base) is raised to the power source2 (the exponent).

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

F-U-POWER

Raises a floating-point number to an unsigned integer power.

Formats ,	- 24220 - 82			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point base field.		
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer exponent field.		
	source2-va	<i>lue</i> An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source1 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>source2</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source1</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

The source1 field (the base) is raised to the power source2 (the exponent).

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

S-S-POWER

Raises a signed integer to a signed integer power.

Formats	CM:s-s-po	ower-2-1L ower-3-1L ower-constant-2-1L ower-constant-3-1L	dest, source1, source2, dlen, slen1, slen2 dest/source1, source2, len dest, source1, source2, len dest/source1, source2-value, len dest, source1, source2-value, len dest, source1, source2-value, dlen, slen	
Operands	dest	The field ID of th	ne signed integer destination field.	
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer base field.		
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer exponent field.		
	source2-v	alue A signed int source.	eger immediate operand to be used as the second	
	len The length of the dest, source1, and source2 fields. be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximu length*.			
	dlen	 For CM:s-s-power-3-3L and CM:s-s-power-constant-3-2L, the of the dest field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no g than CM:*maximum-integer-length*. For CM:s-s-power-constant-3-2L, the length of the source1 This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*max integer-length*. For CM:s-s-power-3-3L, the length of the source1 field. This be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-ir length*. 		
	slen			
	slen1			
	slen2		3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must n 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.			
Flags	otherwise	it is cleared.	lt cannot be represented in the destination field;	
	test-flag is set if zero is raised to a negative power; otherwise it is unaffected.			

Context This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose *context-flag* is 1.

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do			
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then			
	if $source2[k] < 0$ then			
	if $source1[k] = 1$ then $dest[k] \leftarrow 1$			
	else $dest[k] \leftarrow 0$			
	else if $source2[k] = 0$ then			
	$dest[k] \leftarrow 1$			
	else			
	$dest[k] \leftarrow (source1[k])^{source2[k]}$			
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$			
	else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$			

The source1 field (the base) is raised to the power source2 (the exponent). If the exponent is negative, the result is always 0; if the exponent is zero, the result is always 1.

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag may be altered by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

10000

S-U-POWER

Raises a signed integer to a unsigned integer power.

Formats	CM:s-u-po	ower-3-3L ower-constant-2-1L ower-constant-3-1L ower-constant-3-2L	dest, source1, source2, dlen, slen1, slen2 dest/source1, source2-value, len dest, source1, source2-value, len dest, source1, source2-value, dlen, slen1
Operands	dest	The field ID of th	ne signed integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of th	ne signed integer base field.
	source2	The field ID of th	ne unsigned integer exponent field.
	source2-vo	ulue An unsigned second source.	d integer immediate operand to be used as the
	len		e dest, source1, and source2 fields. This must in 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-
	dlen	of the <i>dest</i> field.	-3-3L and CM:s-u-power-constant-3-2L, the length This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater im-integer-length*.
	slen1	of the <i>source1</i> field	-3-3L and CM:s-u-power-constant-3-2L, the length d. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater m-integer-length*.
	slen2		-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This tive and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. However, <i>source1</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field while <i>source2</i> must be disjoint from the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the *current-vp-set* do

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{if } \textit{context-flag}[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ \text{if } \textit{source2}[k] = 0 \text{ then} \\ \textit{dest}[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \text{else} \\ \textit{dest}[k] \leftarrow (\textit{source1}[k])^{\textit{source2}[k]} \\ \text{if } \langle \textit{overflow occurred in processor } k \rangle \text{ then } \textit{overflow-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \text{else } \textit{overflow-flag}[k] \leftarrow 0 \end{array}$

The source1 field (the base) is raised to the power source2 (the exponent). If the exponent is zero, the result is always 1.

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag may be altered by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-S-POWER

Raises a unsigned integer to a signed integer power.

Formats	CM:u-s-po	ower-3-3L ower-constant-2-1L ower-constant-3-1L ower-constant-3-2L	dest, source1, source2, dlen, slen1, slen2 dest/source1, source2-value, len dest, source1, source2-value, len dest, source1, source2-value, dlen, slen1	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.		
	source1	The field ID of th	he unsigned integer base field.	
	source2	The field ID of th	ne signed integer exponent field.	
	source2-v	alue A signed int source.	eger immediate operand to be used as the second	
	len	The length of th be no smaller tha length*.	e dest, source1, and source2 fields. This must an 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-	
	dlen	For CM:u-s-power of the <i>dest</i> field. CM:*maximum-int	-3-3L and CM:u-s-power-constant-3-2L, the length This must be non-negative and no greater than teger-length*.	
	slen1	of the <i>source1</i> fie	-3-3L and CM:u-s-power-constant-3-2L, the length ld. This must be non-negative and no greater um-integer-length*.	
	slen2	For CM:u-s-power- be no smaller tha length*.	-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must in 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. However, <i>source1</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field while <i>source2</i> must be disjoint from the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.			
	<i>test-flag</i> is	set if zero is raised	l to a negative power; otherwise it is cleared.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

The *source1* field (the base) is raised to the power *source2* (the exponent). If the exponent is negative, the result is the truncation of the reciprocal of *source1* raised to the absolute value of *source2*. If the exponent is zero, the result is always 1.

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag and test-flag may be altered by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit. If, in any particular processor, an attempt is made to raise zero to a negative power, the test flag in that processor is set.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-U-POWER

Raises an unsigned integer to an unsigned integer power.

Formats	CM:u-u-p	ower-2-1L dest/source1, source2, l	en len alue, len alue, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer desti	nation field.
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer base	field.
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer expo	nent field.
	source2-v	alue An unsigned integer immediate ope second source.	rand to be used as the
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source1</i> , non-negative and no greater than CM:*ma	ce2 fields. This must be iximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	For CM:u-u-power-3-3L and CM:u-u-power-o of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negation CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	constant-3-2L, the length ive and no greater than
	slen1	For CM: u-u-power-3-3L and CM: u-u-power-of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-nega CM: *maximum-integer-length*.	constant-3-2L, the length tive and no greater than
2	slen2	For CM:u-u-power-3-3L, the length of the must be non-negative and no greater than length*.	e <i>source2</i> field. This CM:*maximum-integer-
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

The source1 field (the base) is raised to the power source2 (the exponent). If the exponent is zero, the result is always 1.

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag may be altered by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

POWER-UP

This operation resets the Nexus, causing all front-end computers to become logically detached from the Connection Machine system.

Formats CM:power-up

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This function resets the state of the Nexus, causing all front-end computers to become logically detached from the Connection Machine system. When a Connection Machine system is first powered up or is to be completely reset for other reasons, this is the first operation to perform. Any of the front-end computers may be used to do it.

If users on other front-end computers are actively using the Connection Machine system, their computations will be disrupted. Normally all the front-end computers are connected not only through the Connection Machine Nexus but also through some sort of communications network; a front end that executes CM:power-up will attempt to send messages through this network to the other front-end computers on the same Nexus indicating that a CM:power-up operation is being performed.

F-RANDOM

Stores a pseudo-randomly generated floating-point number into the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-ra	ndom-1L dest, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Context	-	peration is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \frac{\langle pseudo-random \ choice \ of \ some \ j, +0 \le j < 2^{len} \rangle}{2^{len}}$ where len is the length of the destination field.

Into the destination field of each selected processor is stored a floating-point number pseudorandomly chosen from a uniform distribution between zero (inclusive) and one (exclusive).

The seed for the Paris random number generator is automaticaly initialized the first time the random number generator is called. A value derived from the system clock is used. It is nonetheless possible to explicitly initialize the random number generator by call CM:initialize-random-generator.

Note: Less simple but more flexible random number generation routines are provided as part of the CM Scientific Subroutines Library (CMSSL). For instance, the CMSSL random number generators may be checkpointed to guard against accidental interuptions.

U-RANDOM

Stores a pseudo-randomly generated unsigned integer into the destination field.

Formats	CM:u-ra	ndom-1L dest, len, limit
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	limit	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the exclusive upper bound on values to be generated.
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
Definition	For ever	v virtual processor k in the summent on and h

The *dest* field in each selected processor receives a pseudo-randomly chosen from a uniform distribution ranging from zero (inclusive) to the specified limit (exclusive).

F-RANK

The destination field in every selected processor receives the rank of that processor's key among all keys in the scan set for that processor.

Formats	CM:f-rank-	2L dest, source, axis, dlen, s, e, direction, smode, sbit	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field. This is the sort key.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*. This must be no larger than the value returned by CM:geometry-coordinate-length.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
	direction	Either : upward or : downward.	
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.	
10 L	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> fields must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	if conte let g let S case :u	wirtual processor k in the current-vp-set do ext-flag[k] = 1 then = geometry(current-vp-set) $k_k = scan-set(g, k, axis, direction, smode, sbit)$ direction of pward: let $L_k = \{m \mid m \in S_k \land ((source[m] < source[k]) \lor (source[m] = source[k] \land m < source[k] > source[k]) \lor (source[m] = source[k] \land m :$	

 $let \ L_k = \{ \ m \mid m \in S_k \land ((source[m] > source[k]) \lor (source[m] = source[k] \land dest[k] \leftarrow |L_k|$

where scan-set is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan sets and the effect of the axis, direction, smode, and sbit operands.

This operation determines the ordering necessary to sort the *source* fields within each scan set. It does not not actually move the data so as to sort it, but merely indicates where the data should be moved so as to sort it. A stable ranking is guaranteed. That is, two identical keys will be ranked in the order in which they occur in the *source* field.

In more detail: The *dest* field in each selected processor receives, as an unsigned integer, the rank of that processor's key within the set of keys in the scan set for that processor. This rank may be used to calculate a send address a CM:send operation may then be used to put the data into sorted order. (An advantage of decoupling the rank determination from the reordering process is that the data to be moved may be much larger than the key that determines the ordering, and indeed it may be desirable to reorder the other data but not the key itself. In this way ranking and reordering each need operate only on the relevant data.)

The way in which the rank operation uses scan sets has one unusual twist: A rank that is partitioned into scan sets restarts the rank *ordering* within each scan set (or segment). However, the rank *indices* assigned are not restarted within each scan set.

Specifically, along the entire *axis* specified, only one processor receives a rank index of 0. Rank indices in the first scan set (segment) begin at 0 and run through n - 1, where n is the number of active processors in the scan set; ranks in the second segment begin at n; and so forth. Thus, the smallest key in the first scan set has rank 0, the next smallest has rank 1; the smallest key in the second scan set has rank n, the next smallest has rank n + 1, and so on. Within each scan set the ranking index assigned to any given processor determines the rank of that processor's key value relative to the keys of all other active processors within that scan set. The non-repeating indices produce correctly sorted values when used by a send operation either along the entire axis (the scan subclass) or within one or more segments (the scan sets).

This operation was originally documented to result in a set of indexes that restart at 0 for each segment. To obtain that effect use the following strategy:

1) Use the rank function.

2) Set the context bit on for processors with segment bits and then call CM: my-news-address.

3) Use a segmented copy-scan operation to copy the NEWS address within each segment.

4) Subtract the results of the segmented copy scan from the results of the rank ordering.

S-RANK

The destination field in every selected processor receives the rank of that processor's key among all keys in the scan set for that processor.

Formats	CM:s-rank	2L dest, source, axis, dlen, slen, direction, smode, sbit	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field. This is the sort key.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*. This must be no larger than the value returned by CM:geometry-coordinate-length.	
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.	
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.	
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.	
Overlap	The fields source and sbit may overlap in any manner. However, the source and sbit fields must not overlap the dest field.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	if conte let g let S case :up :de	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do ext-flag[k] = 1 then = geometry(current-vp-set) $_k = scan-set(g, k, axis, direction, smode, sbit)$ direction of poward: let $L_k = \{ m \mid m \in S_k \land ((source[m] < source[k]) \lor (source[m] = source[k] \land m < converses}$ ownward: let $L_k = \{ m \mid m \in S_k \land ((source[m] > source[k]) \lor (source[m] = source[k] \land m : st[k] \leftarrow L_k $	

where *scan-set* is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan sets and the effect of the axis, direction, smode, and sbit operands.

This operation determines the ordering necessary to sort the *source* fields within each scan set. It does not not actually move the data so as to sort it, but merely indicates where the data should be moved so as to sort it. A stable ranking is guaranteed. That is, two identical keys will be ranked in the order in which they occur in the *source* field.

In more detail: The *dest* field in each selected processor receives, as an unsigned integer, the rank of that processor's key within the set of keys in the scan set for that processor. This rank may be used to calculate a send address a CM: send operation may then be used to put the data into sorted order. (An advantage of decoupling the rank determination from the reordering process is that the data to be moved may be much larger than the key that determines the ordering, and indeed it may be desirable to reorder the other data but not the key itself. In this way ranking and reordering each need operate only on the relevant data.)

The way in which the rank operation uses scan sets has one unusual twist: A rank that is partitioned into scan sets restarts the rank *ordering* within each scan set (or segment). However, the rank *indices* assigned are not restarted within each scan set.

Specifically, along the entire axis specified, only one processor receives a rank index of 0. Rank indices in the first scan set (segment) begin at 0 and run through n - 1, where n is the number of active processors in the scan set; ranks in the second segment begin at n; and so forth. Thus, the smallest key in the first scan set has rank 0, the next smallest has rank 1; the smallest key in the second scan set has rank n, the next smallest has rank n + 1, and so on. Within each scan set the ranking index assigned to any given processor determines the rank of that processor's key value relative to the keys of all other active processors within that scan set. The non-repeating indices produce correctly sorted values when used by a send operation either along the entire axis (the scan subclass) or within one or more segments (the scan sets).

U-RANK

The destination field in every selected processor receives the rank of that processor's key among all keys in the scan set for that processor.

Formats	CM:u-rank	2L dest, source, axis, dlen, slen, direction, smode, sbit	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field. This is the sort key.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*. This must be no larger than the value returned by CM:geometry-coordinate-length.	
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.	
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.	
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>sbit</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let $g = geometry(current-vp-set)$ let $S_k = scan-set(g, k, axis, direction, smode, sbit)$ case direction of		

:upward:

let $L_k = \{ m \mid m \in S_k \land ((source[m] < source[k]) \lor (source[m] = source[k] \land m < : downward: \} \}$

let $L_k = \{ m \mid m \in S_k \land ((source[m] > source[k]) \lor (source[m] = source[k] \land m > k), dest[k] \leftarrow |L_k| \}$

where *scan-set* is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan sets and the effect of the axis, direction, smode, and sbit operands.

This operation determines the ordering necessary to sort the *source* fields within each scan set. It does not not actually move the data so as to sort it, but merely indicates where the data should be moved so as to sort it. A stable ranking is guaranteed. That is, two identical keys will be ranked in the order in which they occur in the *source* field.

In more detail: The *dest* field in each selected processor receives, as an unsigned integer, the rank of that processor's key within the set of keys in the scan set for that processor. This rank may be used to calculate a send address a CM:send operation may then be used to put the data into sorted order. (An advantage of decoupling the rank determination from the reordering process is that the data to be moved may be much larger than the key that determines the ordering, and indeed it may be desirable to reorder the other data but not the key itself. In this way ranking and reordering each need operate only on the relevant data.)

The way in which the rank operation uses scan sets has one unusual twist: A rank that is partitioned into scan sets restarts the rank *ordering* within each scan set (or segment). However, the rank *indices* assigned are not restarted within each scan set.

Specifically, along the entire *axis* specified, only one processor receives a rank index of 0. Rank indices in the first scan set (segment) begin at 0 and run through n - 1, where n is the number of active processors in the scan set; ranks in the second segment begin at n; and so forth. Thus, the smallest key in the first scan set has rank 0, the next smallest has rank 1; the smallest key in the second scan set has rank n, the next smallest has rank n + 1, and so on. Within each scan set the ranking index assigned to any given processor determines the rank of that processor's key value relative to the keys of all other active processors within that scan set. The non-repeating indices produce correctly sorted values when used by a send operation either along the entire axis (the scan subclass) or within one or more segments (the scan sets).
C-READ-FROM-NEWS-ARRAY

Copies a field within a set of processors forming a subarray of the NEWS grid into a subarray (of the same shape) of an array in the memory of the front end. Both the source and destination values are treated as complex numbers.

Note: The read-from-news-array and write-to-news-array operations do *not* require that the specified CM field be in the current VP set.

Formats	CM:c-read-from-news-array-1L front-end-array, fe-offset-vector, cm-start-vector, cm-end-vector, cm-axis-vector, source, s, e, [fe-rank, fe-dimension-vector, format]
Operands	front-end-array A front-end array (possibly multidimensional) of complex data.
	fe-offset-vector A front-end vector of signed integer subscript offsets for the front-end-array.
	<i>cm-start-vector</i> A front-end vector of signed integer inclusive lower bounds for NEWS indices.
	<i>cm-end-vector</i> A front-end vector of signed integer exclusive upper bounds for NEWS indices.
	<i>cm-axis-vector</i> A front-end vector of signed integer numbers specifying NEWS axes.
	source The field ID of the complex source field.
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
	fe-rank A signed integer, the rank (number of dimensions) of the front-end-array. This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.
	fe-dimension-vector A front-end vector of signed integer dimensions of the front-end-array. This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.
	format The array descriptor for front-end-array. This is a keyword argument when calling Paris from Lisp.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

READ-FROM-NEWS-ARRAY

This operation copies a rectangular subblock of the NEWS grid into a similarly shaped subblock of an array in the front end. Complex number values are copied from the Connection Machine processors to the specified *front-end-array*.

The source parameter specifies the memory address within each processor of the field to be copied.

The *front-end-array* parameter specifies the front-end destination array into which one element from each processor specified by *source* is copied.

The *fe-rank* parameter specifies the rank of the front-end array and is normally equal to the rank of the source field geometry. When calling Paris from Lisp, this value can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The vector arguments are one-dimensional front-end arrays of length fe-rank.

The fe-dimension-vector parameter specifies the dimensions of the front-end array. These dimensions are measured in units of array-element-size, which is implicitly specified by format. (See the description of format below.) The front-end array is filled in row major order. That is, the last dimension varies fastest. When calling Paris from Lisp, the front-end array dimensions can be deduced from the value of front-end-array and must not be specified.

The fe-offset-vector parameter contains the coordinate of the first front-end array element to receive Connection Machine data. The length of this argument is measured in units of *cm-element-size*, except during an extended array transfer – when it is measured in units of (*stride* \times *array-element-size*). Notice that *cm-element-size*, *array-element-size*, and *stride* are parameters to the operations that return the format array descriptor. (See the description of format below.)

The *cm-start-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the first CM element to copy to the front end. The *cm-end-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the last CM element to copy to the front end. Both of these are permuted by by the values in *cm-axis-vector*.

The *cm-axis-vector* parameter specifies how Connection Machine axes are mapped to frontend array axes. For example, if *cm-axis-vector*[A] = B, then axis A of the Connection Machine source field geometry is mapped to axis B of the front-end array. The length of this vector must be equal to the rank of the source field geometry.

The format parameter is an array descriptor that specifies the format of the front-end array. An appropriate descriptor may be obtained by a call to CM:array-format, CM:packedarray-format, or CM:structure-array-format. Alternatively, from C or Fortran, one of the following predefined complex format values may be used: CM_complex_float_single or CM_complex_float_double. For complex data types in C, two front-end elements are used for each Connection Machine element.

When calling Paris from Lisp, the *format* parameter is a keyword argument; for complex transfers, only arrays of type t may be used.

Definition For all *i* such that $0 \le i < \prod_{j=0}^{rank-1} (end_j - start_j)$ do

for all m such that $0 \le m < rank$ do

$$let \ s_{\langle i,m \rangle} = \left\lfloor \frac{i}{\prod\limits_{j=m+1}^{rank-1} (end_j - start_j)} \right\rfloor \mod (end_m - start_m)$$
$$let \ k_i = \bigvee_{j=0}^{rank-1} make-news-coordinate(axis_j, start_j + s_{i,j})$$
$$front-end-array_{s_{\langle i,0 \rangle}, s_{\langle i,1 \rangle}, \dots, s_{\langle i,rank-1 \rangle}} \leftarrow source[k_i]$$

Another formulation:

٠.

For all s_0 such that $0 \le s_0 < (end_0 - start_0)$ do for all s_1 such that $0 \le s_1 < (end_1 - start_1)$ do for all s_2 such that $0 \le s_2 < (end_2 - start_2)$ do

> for all s_{rank-1} such that $0 \le s_{rank-1} < (end_{rank-1} - start_{rank-1})$ do let $k_{s_0,s_1,...,s_{rank-1}} = \bigvee_{j=0}^{rank-1} make-news-coordinate(axis_j, start_j + s_j)$ front-end-array offset-vector_0+s_0, offset-vector_1+s_1,..., offset-vector_{rank-1}+s_{rank-1} $\leftarrow source[k_{s_0,s_1,...,s_{rank-1}}]$

F-READ-FROM-NEWS-ARRAY

Copies a field within a set of processors forming a subarray of the NEWS grid into a subarray (of the same shape) of an array in the memory of the front end. Both the source and destination values are treated as floating-point numbers.

Note: The read-from-news-array and write-to-news-array operations do not require that the specified CM field be in the current VP set.

Formats	CM:f-read	-from-news-array-1L front-end-array, fe-offset-vector, cm-start-vector, cm-end-vector, cm-axis-vector, source, s, e, [fe-rank, fe-dimension-vector, format]
Operands	front-end	-array A front-end array (possibly multidimensional) of floating- point data.
	fe-offset-v	nector A front-end vector of signed integer subscript offsets for the front-end-array.
	cm-start-	vector A front-end vector of signed integer inclusive lower bounds for NEWS indices.
	cm-end-ve	ector A front-end vector of signed integer exclusive upper bounds for NEWS indices.
	cm-axis-v	ector A front-end vector of signed integer numbers indicating NEWS axes.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
	fe-rank	A signed integer, the rank (number of dimensions) of the <i>front-end-array</i> . This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.
	fe-dimens	<i>ion-vector</i> A front-end vector of signed integer dimensions of the <i>front-end-array</i> . This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.
	format	The array descriptor for <i>front-end-array</i> . This is a keyword argument when calling Paris from Lisp.
Context	This opera	ation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This operation copies a rectangular subblock of the NEWS grid into a similarly shaped subblock of an array in the front end. Floating-point number values are transferred from the Connection Machine processors to the specified *array*.

The *source* parameter specifies the memory address within each processor of the field to be copied.

The *front-end-array* parameter specifies the front-end destination array into which one element from each processor specified by *source* is copied.

The *fe-rank* parameter specifies the rank of the front-end array and is normally equal to the rank of the source field geometry. When calling Paris from Lisp, this value can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The vector arguments are one-dimensional front-end arrays of length fe-rank.

The fe-dimension-vector parameter specifies the dimensions of the front-end array. These dimensions are measured in units of array-element-size, which is implicitly specified by format. (See the description of format below.) The front-end array is filled in row major order. That is, the last dimension varies fastest. When calling Paris from Lisp, the front-end array dimensions can be deduced from the value of front-end-array and must not be specified.

The fe-offset-vector parameter contains the coordinate of the first front-end array element to receive Connection Machine data. The length of this argument is measured in units of *cm-element-size*, except during an extended array transfer – when it is measured in units of (*stride* \times *array-element-size*). Notice that *cm-element-size*, *array-element-size*, and *stride* are parameters to the operations that return the format array descriptor. (See the description of format below.)

The *cm-start-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the first CM element to copy to the front end. The *cm-end-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the last CM element to copy to the front end. Both of these are permuted by by the values in *cm-axis-vector*.

The *cm-axis-vector* parameter specifies how Connection Machine axes are mapped to frontend array axes. For example, if *cm-axis-vector*[A] = B, then axis A of the Connection Machine source field geometry is mapped to axis B of the front-end array. The length of this vector must be equal to the rank of the source field geometry.

The *format* parameter is an array descriptor that specifies the format of the front-end array. An appropriate descriptor may be obtained by a call to CM:array-format, CM:packed-array-format, or CM:structure-array-format. Alternatively, one of the predefined floatingpoint *format* values may be used. These are CM_float_single or CM_float_double from C or Fortran, and :float-single or :float-double from Lisp.

When calling Paris from Lisp, the *format* parameter is a keyword argument. If not specified, it defaults based on the element type of the front-end array or, if the array is of type t, based on the type and size of the Connection Machine field.

Definition For all *i* such that $0 \le i < \prod_{j=0}^{rank-1} (end_j - start_j)$ do for all *m* such that $0 \le m < rank$ do

 $\det s_{\langle i,m \rangle} = \left\lfloor \frac{i}{\prod\limits_{j=m+1}^{rank-1} (end_j - start_j)} \right\rfloor \mod (end_m - start_m)$ $\det k_i = \bigvee_{j=0}^{rank-1} make-news-coordinate(axis_j, start_j + s_{i,j})$

$$\textit{front-end-array}_{s_{(i,0)},s_{(i,1)},\ldots,s_{(i,rank-1)}} \leftarrow \textit{source}[k_i]$$

Another formulation:

For all s_0 such that $0 \le s_0 < (end_0 - start_0)$ do for all s_1 such that $0 \le s_1 < (end_1 - start_1)$ do for all s_2 such that $0 \le s_2 < (end_2 - start_2)$ do \therefore for all s_{rank-1} such that $0 \le s_{rank-1} < (end_{rank-1} - start_{rank-1})$ do let $k_{s_0,s_1,\dots,s_{rank-1}} = \bigvee_{j=0}^{rank-1} make-news-coordinate(axis_j, start_j + s_j)$ front-end-array offset_0+s_0, offset_1+s_1,\dots, offset_{rank-1}+s_{rank-1} $\leftarrow source[k_{s_0,s_1,\dots,s_{rank-1}}]$

S-READ-FROM-NEWS-ARRAY

Copies a field within a set of processors forming a subarray of the NEWS grid into a subarray (of the same shape) of an array in the memory of the front end. Both the source and destination values are treated as signed integers.

Note: The read-from-news-array and write-to-news-array operations do not require that the specified CM field be in the current VP set.

Formats	CM:s-read-from-news-array-1L front-end-array, fe-offset-vector, cm-start-vector, cm-end-vector, cm-axis-vector, source, len, [fe-rank, fe-dimension-vector, format]
Operands	front-end-array A front-end array (possibly multidimensional) of signed in- teger data.
	fe-offset-vector A front-end vector of signed integer subscript offsets for the front-end-array.
	cm-start-vector A front-end vector of signed integer inclusive lower bounds for NEWS indices.
	<i>cm-end-vector</i> A front-end vector of signed integer exclusive upper bounds for NEWS indices.
	<i>cm-axis-vector</i> A front-end vector of signed integer numbers indicating NEWS axes.
	source The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	len The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	fe-rank A signed integer, the rank (number of dimensions) of the front-end-array. This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.
	fe-dimension-vector A front-end vector of signed integer dimensions of the front-end-array. This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.
	format The array descriptor for front-end-array. This is a keyword argument when calling Paris from Lisp.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .

READ-FROM-NEWS-ARRAY

This operation copies a rectangular subblock of the NEWS grid into a similarly shaped subblock of an array in the front end. Signed integer values are transferred from the Connection Machine processors to the specified *array*.

The *source* parameter specifies the memory address within each processor of the field to be copied.

The *front-end-array* parameter specifies the front-end destination array into which one element from each processor specified by *source* is copied.

When calling Paris from Lisp, the array may be either a general array (of type t) containing signed integers, or a specialized integer-element array (such as an array of type (unsigned-byte 8)).

The *fe-rank* parameter specifies the rank of the front-end array and is normally equal to the rank of the source field geometry. When calling Paris from Lisp, this value can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The vector arguments are one-dimensional front-end arrays of length fe-rank.

The *fe-dimension-vector* parameter specifies the dimensions of the front-end array. These dimensions are measured in units of *array-element-size*, which is implicitly specified by *format*. (See the description of *format* below.) The front-end array is filled in row major order. That is, the last dimension varies fastest. When calling Paris from Lisp, the front-end array dimensions can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The *fe-offset-vector* parameter contains the coordinate of the first front-end array element to receive Connection Machine data. The length of this argument is measured in units of *cm-element-size*, except during an extended array transfer – when it is measured in units of (*stride* \times *array-element-size*). Notice that *cm-element-size*, *array-element-size*, and *stride* are parameters to the operations that return the *format* array descriptor. (See the description of *format* below.)

The *cm-start-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the first CM element to copy to the front end. The *cm-end-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the last CM element to copy to the front end. Both of these are permuted by by the values in *cm-axis-vector*.

The *cm-axis-vector* parameter specifies how Connection Machine axes are mapped to frontend array axes. For example, if *cm-axis-vector*[A] = B, then axis A of the Connection Machine source field geometry is mapped to axis B of the front-end array. The length of this vector must be equal to the rank of the source field geometry.

The format parameter is an array descriptor that specifies the format of the front-end array. An appropriate descriptor may be obtained by a call to CM:array-format, CM:packed-array-format, or CM:structure-array-format. Alternatively, one of the predefined signed format values may be used. From C or Fortran a value of CM_8_bit, CM_16_bit, or CM_32_bit specifies an unpacked frontend array while CM_2_bit_packed, or CM_4_bit_packed specifies a front-end array in which several CM elements are packed into each array element. From Lisp, the predefined signed format keywords are :8-bit, :16-bit, :32-bit, :2-bit-packed, and :4-bit-packed.

When calling Paris from Lisp, the *format* parameter is a keyword argument. If not specified, it defaults based on the element type of the front-end array or, if the array is of type t, based on the type and size of the Connection Machine field.

Definition For all *i* such that $0 \le i < \prod_{j=0}^{rank-1} (end_j - start_j)$ do for all *m* such that $0 \le m < rank$ do let $s_{\langle i,m \rangle} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{i}{rank-1} \\ \prod_{j=m+1}^{rank-1} (end_j - start_j) \end{bmatrix} \mod (end_m - start_m)$ let $k_i = \bigvee_{j=0}^{rank-1} \max e_{i,j} \max e_{i,j}$ front-end-array $s_{\langle i,0 \rangle}, s_{\langle i,1 \rangle}, \dots, s_{\langle i,rank-1 \rangle} \leftarrow source[k_i]$

Another formulation:

For all s_0 such that $0 \le s_0 < (end_0 - start_0)$ do

for all s_1 such that $0 \le s_1 < (end_1 - start_1)$ do

for all s_2 such that $0 \le s_2 < (end_2 - start_2)$ do

for all s_{rank-1} such that $0 \le s_{rank-1} < (end_{rank-1} - start_{rank-1})$ do let $k_{s_0,s_1,\dots,s_{rank-1}} = \bigvee_{j=0}^{rank-1} make-news-coordinate(axis_j, start_j + s_j)$ front-end-array_offset_0+s_0, offset_1+s_1,\dots, offset_{rank-1}+s_{rank-1} $\leftarrow source[k_{s_0,s_1,\dots,s_{rank-1}}]$ 2000/00002-000000-0000000

U-READ-FROM-NEWS-ARRAY

Copies a field within a set of processors forming a subarray of the NEWS grid into a subarray (of the same shape) of an array in the memory of the front end. Both the source and destination values are treated as unsigned integers.

Note: The read-from-news-array and write-to-news-array operations do not require that the specified CM field be in the current VP set.

.

Formats	CM:u-read	l-from-news-array-1L front-end-array, fe-offset-vector, cm-start-vector, cm-end-vector, cm-axis-vector, source, len, [fe-rank, fe-dimension-vector, format]
Operands	front-end-	array A front-end array (possibly multidimensional) of unsigned integer data.
	fe-offset-v	ector A front-end vector of signed integer subscript offsets for the front-end-array.
	cm-start-v	for NEWS indices.
	cm-end-ve	ector A front-end vector of signed integer exclusive upper bounds for NEWS indices.
	cm-axis-ve	ector A front-end vector of signed integer numbers indicating NEWS axes.
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.
	len	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	fe-rank	A signed integer, the rank (number of dimensions) of the <i>front-end-array</i> . This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.
	fe-dimensi	<i>ion-vector</i> A front-end vector of signed integer dimensions of the <i>front-end-array</i> . This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.
	format	The array descriptor for <i>front-end-array</i> . This is a keyword argument when calling Paris from Lisp.
Context	This opera	ation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This operation copies a rectangular subblock of the NEWS grid into a similarly shaped subblock of an array in the front end. Unsigned integer values are transferred from the Connection Machine processors to the specified *array*.

The source parameter specifies the memory address within each processor of the field to be copied.

The *front-end-array* parameter specifies the front-end destination array into which one element from each processor specified by *source* is copied.

The *fe-rank* parameter specifies the rank of the front-end array and is normally equal to the rank of the source field geometry. When calling Paris from Lisp, this value can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The vector arguments are one-dimensional front-end arrays of length fe-rank.

The fe-dimension-vector parameter specifies the dimensions of the front-end array. These dimensions are measured in units of array-element-size, which is implicitly specified by format. (See the description of format below.) The front-end array is filled in row major order. That is, the last dimension varies fastest. When calling Paris from Lisp, the front-end array dimensions can be deduced from the value of front-end-array and must not be specified.

The *fe-offset-vector* parameter contains the coordinate of the first front-end array element to receive Connection Machine data. The length of this argument is measured in units of *cm-element-size*, except during an extended array transfer – when it is measured in units of (*stride* \times *array-element-size*). Notice that *cm-element-size*, *array-element-size*, and *stride* are parameters to the operations that return the *format* array descriptor. (See the description of *format* below.)

The *cm-start-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the first CM element to copy to the front end. The *cm-end-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the last CM element to copy to the front end. Both of these are permuted by by the values in *cm-axis-vector*.

The *cm-axis-vector* parameter specifies how Connection Machine axes are mapped to frontend array axes. For example, if *cm-axis-vector*[A] = B, then axis A of the Connection Machine source field geometry is mapped to axis B of the front-end array. The length of this vector must be equal to the rank of the source field geometry.

The *format* parameter is an array descriptor that specifies the format of the front-end array. An appropriate descriptor may be obtained by a call to CM:array-format, CM:packed-array-format, or CM:structure-array-format. Alternatively, one of the predefined unsigned *format* values may be used.

From C or Fortran a value of CM_8_bit, CM_16_bit, or CM_32_bit specifies an unpacked frontend array while CM_1_bit_packed, CM_2_bit_packed, or CM_4_bit_packed specifies a front-end array in which several CM elements are packed into each array element. From Lisp, the predefined unsigned format keywords are :8-bit, :16-bit, :32-bit, :1-bit-packed, :2-bit-packed, and :4-bit-packed.

When calling Paris from Lisp, the *format* parameter is a keyword argument. If not specified, it defaults based on the element type of the front-end array or, if the array is of type t, based on the type of the CM field.

C-READ-FROM-PROCESSOR

Reads the source field of a single specified processor as a complex number and returns it to the front end.

Formats	$result \leftarrow$	${\tt CM:c-read-from-processor-1L} send-address-value, \ source, \ len$
Operands	send-addr	ess-value An immediate operand, the send address of a single particular processor.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Result	A complex number, the contents of the <i>source</i> field in the specified virtual processor.	
Context	This opera	ation is unconditional. It does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .

Definition Return *source*[*send-address-value*] to front end

The source field of the processor whose send address is the immediate operand send-address-value is read and returned as a floating-point number to the front end.

F-READ-FROM-PROCESSOR

Reads the source field of a single specified processor as a floating-point number and returns it to the front end.

Formats	$result \leftarrow$	- CM:f-read-from-processor-1L send-address-value, source, s, e
Operands	send-addr	<i>ress-value</i> An immediate operand, the send address of a single particular processor.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Result	A floating-point number, the contents of the <i>source</i> field in the specified virtual processor.	
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.	

Definition Return *source*[*send-address-value*] to front end

The source field of the processor whose send address is the immediate operand send-address-value is read and returned as a floating-point number to the front end.

S-READ-FROM-PROCESSOR

Reads the source field of a single specified processor as a signed integer and returns it to the front end.

Formats	$result \leftarrow$	- CM:s-read-from-processor-1L send-address-value, source, len
Operands	send-addr	<i>ress-value</i> An immediate operand, the send address of a single particular processor.
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	len	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Result	A signed integer, the contents of the <i>source</i> field in the specified virtual processor.	
Context	This oper	ration is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

Definition Return *source*[*send-address-value*] to front end

The source field of the processor whose send address is the immediate operand send-address-value is read and returned as a signed integer to the front end.

READ-FROM-PROCESSOR

U-READ-FROM-PROCESSOR

Reads the source field of a single specified processor as an unsigned integer and returns it to the front end.

Formats	$result \leftarrow$	CM:u-read-from-processor-1L send-address-value, source, len
Operands	send-addr	ess-value An immediate operand, the send address of a single particular processor.
2	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.
	len	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Result	An unsigned integer, the contents of the <i>source</i> field in the specified virtual processor.	
Context	This opera	ation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

Definition Return source[send-address-value] to front end

The source field of the processor whose send address is the immediate operand send-address-value is read and returned as an unsigned integer to the front end.

C-RECIPROCAL

Calculates the reciprocal of a complex number.

Formats		procal-1-1L dest/source, s, e procal-2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap		ce field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. plex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Flags	overflow-j	flag is set if floating point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
	test-flag is	s set if divistion by zero occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \frac{1}{source[k]}$

A reciprocal of the complex *source* field is place in the complex *dest* field.

REDUCE-WITH-C-ADD

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the sum of the complex source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

Formats	CM:reduce-with-c-add-1L dest, source, axis, s, e, to-coordinate		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.	
	to-coordine	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 36 of the Paris Reference Manual.

See section 5.16 beginning on page 34 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reduce-with-c-add operation combines *source* fields by performing complex addition.

The operation CM:reduce-with-c-add-1L differs from CM:spread-with-c-add-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

REDUCE-WITH-F-ADD

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the sum of the floating-point source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

ormats	CM:reduce	e-with-f-add-1L dest, source, axis, s, e, to-coordinate
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
	to-coordin	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.	
Context	the second s	ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ if extract-news-coordinate(g, axis, k) = to-coordinate then $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where *scan-subclass* is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reducewith-f-add operation combines *source* fields by performing floating-point addition.

The operation CM:reduce-with-f-add-1L differs from CM:spread-with-f-add-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

REDUCE-WITH-S-ADD

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the sum of the signed integer source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

Formats	CM:reduce-with-s-add-1L dest, source, axis, len, to-coordinate		
Operands	dest The field ID of the signed integer destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	to-coordine	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context		tion is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- context-flag is 1.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ if extract-news-coordinate(g, axis, k) = to-coordinate then $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reducewith-s-add operation combines *source* fields by performing signed integer addition.

The operation CM:reduce-with-s-add-1L differs from CM:spread-with-s-add-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

REDUCE-WITH-U-ADD

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the sum of the unsigned integer source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

Formats	CM:reduce	e-with-u-add-1L dest, source, axis, len, to-coordinate
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	to-coordin	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context		ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- be <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set) let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ if extract-news-coordinate(g, axis, k) = to-coordinate then $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reducewith-u-add operation combines *source* fields by performing unsigned integer addition.

The operation CM:reduce-with-u-add-1L differs from CM:spread-with-u-add-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

REDUCE-WITH-COPY

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives a copy of the source value from a particular value within its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:reduce-with-copy-1L dest, source, axis, len, to-coordinate, from-coordinate	
Operands	dest The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.	
	axis An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	<i>len</i> The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	to-coordinate An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.	
	from-coordinate An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class is to be read.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then	

if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let c = deposit-news-coordinate(g, k, axis, from-coordinate)if extract-news-coordinate(g, axis, k) = to-coordinate then $dest[k] \leftarrow source[c]$

where deposit-news-coordinate is as defined on page 40.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations.

REDUCE-WITH-LOGAND

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the bitwise logical AND of the source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

Formats	CM:reduce	with-logand-1L dest, source, axis, len, to-coordinate
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	source	The field ID of the source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	to-coordin	ate An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ if extract-news-coordinate(g, axis, k) = to-coordinate then $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\bigwedge_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reducewith-logand operation combines *source* fields by performing bitwise logical AND operations.

The operation CM:reduce-with-logand-1L differs from CM:spread-with-logand-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

REDUCE-WITH-LOGIOR

REDUCE-WITH-LOGIOR

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the bitwise logical inclusive OR of the source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

Formats	CM:reduce-with-logior-1L dest, source, axis, len, to-coordinate				
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the source field.			
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.			
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
	to-coordina	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.			
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.				
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reducewith-logior operation combines *source* fields by performing bitwise logical inclusive OR operations.

The operation CM:reduce-with-logior-1L differs from CM:spread-with-logior-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

REDUCE-WITH-LOGXOR

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the bitwise logical exclusive OR of the source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

Formats	CM:reduce	with-logxor-1L dest, source, axis, len, to-coordinate
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	source	The field ID of the source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	to-coordin	ate An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ if extract-news-coordinate(g, axis, k) = to-coordinate then $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\bigoplus_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reducewith-logxor operation combines *source* fields by performing bitwise logical exclusive OR operations.

The operation CM:reduce-with-logxor-1L differs from CM:spread-with-logxor-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

REDUCE-WITH-F-MAX

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the largest of the floating-point source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

Formats	CM:reduce-with-f-max-1L dest, source, axis, s, e, to-coordinate				
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.			
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.			
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.			
	to-coordin	ate An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.			
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.				
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reducewith-f-max operation combines *source* fields by performing an floating-point maximum operation.

The operation CM:reduce-with-f-max-1L differs from CM:spread-with-f-max-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

REDUCE-WITH-S-MAX

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the largest of the signed integer source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

Formats	CM:reduce	with-s-max-1L dest, source, axis, len, to-coordinate
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	to-coordin	ate An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context		ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e context-flag is 1.

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	let $g = geometry(current-vp-set)$
	let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$
	if $extract-news-coordinate(g, axis, k) = to-coordinate$ then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\max_{m \in C_k} source[m] ight)$

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reducewith-s-max operation combines *source* fields by performing a signed integer maximum operation.

The operation CM:reduce-with-s-max-1L differs from CM:spread-with-s-max-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

REDUCE-WITH-U-MAX

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the largest of the unsigned integer source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

Formats	CM:reduce	e-with-u-max-1L dest, source, axis, len, to-coordinate		
Operands	dest The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.		
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	to-coordina	ate An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.		
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reducewith-u-max operation combines *source* fields by performing an unsigned integer maximum operation.

The operation CM:reduce-with-u-max-1L differs from CM:spread-with-u-max-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

REDUCE-WITH-F-MIN

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the smallest of the floating-point source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

Formats	CM:reduce	-with-f-min-1L dest, source, axis, s, e, to-coordinate		
Operands	dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.		
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
	to-coordin	ate An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.		
Overlap		ce field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. ing-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the nat.		
Context		ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	if conte	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do xt -flag[k] = 1 then		

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set) \\ \text{let } C_k = scan-subclass(g,k,axis) \\ \text{if } extract-news-coordinate(g,axis,k) = to-coordinate then} \\ dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\min_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reducewith-f-min operation combines *source* fields by performing an floating-point minimum operation.

The operation CM:reduce-with-f-min-1L differs from CM:spread-with-f-min-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

REDUCE-WITH-S-MIN

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the smallest of the signed integer source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

Formats	CM:reduce-with-s-min-1L dest, source, axis, len, to-coordinate		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	to-coordin	ate An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.	
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This opera sors whose	tion is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- context-flag is 1.	

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reducewith-s-min operation combines *source* fields by performing a signed integer minimum operation.

The operation CM:reduce-with-s-min-1L differs from CM:spread-with-s-min-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

REDUCE-WITH-U-MIN

Within each scan class one particular processor (if it is selected) receives the smallest of the unsigned integer source fields from all the selected processors in that scan class.

Formats	CM:reduce-	with-u-min-1L dest, source, axis, len, to-coordinate	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	to-coordine	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class, if any, is to receive the result.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	if contex let $g =$ let C_k if ext	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do xt-flag[k] = 1 then = geometry(current-vp-set) $a_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ ract-news-coordinate(g, axis, k) = to-coordinate then $t[k] \leftarrow \left(\min_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$	

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of reduce operations. The CM:reducewith-u-min operation combines *source* fields by performing an unsigned integer minimum operation.

The operation CM:reduce-with-u-min-1L differs from CM:spread-with-u-min-1L only in that the result is stored in (at most) one processor of the scan class rather than in all selected processors of the scan class.

F-REM

The remainder from dividing one floating-point source value by another is placed in the destination field.

		3		
Formats				
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field. This is the quotient.		
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point first source field. This is the dividend.		
	source2	The field ID of the floating-point second source field. This is the divisor.		
	<i>source2-value</i> A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source.			
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, and source2 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.			
Flags	test-flag is set if division by zero occurs; otherwise it is cleared.			
Context	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected. This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then if source2[k] $\neq 0$ then let v = source1[k]/source2[k]if $v > \lfloor v + \frac{1}{2} \rfloor$ then let $n = \lfloor v \rfloor$ else if $v < \lfloor v + \frac{1}{2} \rfloor$ then

REM

```
\begin{array}{l} \operatorname{let} n = \lceil v \rceil \\ \operatorname{else} \text{ if } even(\lfloor v \rfloor) \text{ then} \\ \operatorname{let} n = \lfloor v \rfloor \\ \operatorname{else} \\ \operatorname{let} n = \lceil v \rceil \\ \operatorname{dest}[k] \leftarrow source1[k] - source2[k] \times n \\ \operatorname{else} \\ \operatorname{dest}[k] \leftarrow \langle \operatorname{unpredictable} \rangle \\ \operatorname{test-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \operatorname{if} \langle \operatorname{overflow} \operatorname{occurred} \operatorname{in} \operatorname{processor} k \rangle \text{ then } \operatorname{overflow-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1 \end{array}
```

The remainder from the *source1* operand when divided by the *source2* operand is calculated treating both as floating-point numbers. The result is stored into memory. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

S-REM

The remainder from the truncating division of one signed integer by another is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

Formats	CM:s-rem-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenCM:s-rem-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenCM:s-rem-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenCM:s-rem-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, len				
Operands	dest The field ID of the signed integer remainder field.				
	source1 The field ID of the signed integer dividend field.				
	source2 The field ID of the signed integer divisor field.				
	<i>source2-value</i> A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.				
	len The length of the dest, source1, and source2 fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer- length*.				
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.				
Flags	test-flag is set if divisor is zero; otherwise it is cleared.				
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then if source2[k] = 0 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \langle unpredictable \rangle$ else $dest[k] \leftarrow sign(source1[k]) \times \left(source1[k] - source2[k] \times \left\lfloor \frac{ source1[k] }{ source2[k] } \right\rfloor \right)$ if $\langle overflow occurred$ in processor $k \rangle$ then $overflow$ -flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$				

else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$

The remainder resulting from the truncating division of the signed integer source1 by the signed integer source2 operand is stored into the dest field. The result always has the same

sign as the *source1* operand. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The value of the destination is unpredictable if the divisor is zero.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-REM

The remainder from the truncating division of one unsigned integer by another is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

Formats		,,,		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer remainder field.		
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer dividend field.		
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer divisor field.		
	source2-value An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.			
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.			
Flags	test-flag is set if divisor is zero; otherwise it is cleared.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

The remainder resulting from the truncating division of the unsigned integer *source1* by the unsigned integer *source2* operand is stored into the *dest* field. For unsigned integers this is of course the same as the mod operation.
The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The value of the destination is unpredictable if the divisor is zero.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

REMOVE-FIELD-ALIAS

Removes the specified alias field ID from the field to which it refers, leaving the field intact.

Formats	CM:remove-field-alias alias-id	
Operands	alias-id An alias field ID. This must be an alias field ID returned by CM:make-field-alias.	
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.	

Removing an alias field ID does not affect the memory field to which it refers.

F-F-ROUND

Rounds each source field value to the nearest integer value and stores the result as a floatingpoint number in the destination field.

Formats		und-1-1L dest/source, s, e und-2-1L dest, source, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition		y virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do $ext-flag[k] = 1$ then	

 $dest[k] \leftarrow sign(source) \times round(source[k])$

The *source* field, treated as a floating-point number, is rounded to the nearest integer and the result is stored in the *dest* field as a floating-point number.

If the *source* field value is exactly midway between two integers, then it is rounded to the even integer.

S-ROUND

The quotient of two signed integer source values, rounded to the nearest integer, is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

Formats		d-2-1L dest/source1, source2, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer quotient field.
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer dividend field.
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer divisor field.
	source2-v	alue A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	however, 1 fields are	source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is a for all the fields to be identical.
Flags		dag is set if the quotient cannot be represented in the destination rwise it is cleared.
	<i>test-flag</i> is	set if the divisor is zero; otherwise it is cleared.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do

```
if context-flag[k] = 1 then

let v = \frac{source1[k]}{source2[k]}

if v > \lfloor v + \frac{1}{2} \rfloor then

dest[k] \leftarrow \lfloor v \rfloor

else if v < \lfloor v + \frac{1}{2} \rfloor then

dest[k] \leftarrow [v]

else if even(\lfloor v \rfloor) then

dest[k] \leftarrow \lfloor v \rfloor

else

dest[k] \leftarrow \lfloor v \rfloor

else

dest[k] \leftarrow \lfloor v \rfloor

if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1
```

The signed integer *source1* operand is divided by the signed integer *source2* operand. The mathematical quotient, rounded to the nearest integer (or to whichever of two equally near neighbors is even) is stored into the signed integer memory field *dest*.

The various operand formats allow the second source operand to be either a memory field or a constant; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag and test-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

S-F-ROUND

Converts floating-point source field values to signed integer values by rounding to the nearest integer.

Formats	CM:s-f-rou	nd-2-2L dest, source, dlen, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The fields	dest and source must not overlap in any manner.	
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the <i>dest</i> field; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context		tion is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

The source field, treated as a floating-point number, is rounded to the nearest integer (to the nearest even integer if its value is equal to an integer plus $\frac{1}{2}$). The result is stored into the *dest* field as a signed integer.

U-ROUND

The quotient of two unsigned integer source values, rounded to the nearest integer, is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

Formats		d-2-1L dest/source1, d-3-1L dest, source1, d-constant-2-1L dest/source1,	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned	integer quotient field.
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned	integer dividend field.
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned	integer divisor field.
	source2-ve	<i>lue</i> An unsigned integer in second source.	umediate operand to be used as the
	len		e1, and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. greater than CM:*maximum-in	This must be non-negative and no nteger-length*.
	slen1	The length of the <i>source1</i> field greater than CM:*maximum-in	d. This must be non-negative and no nteger-length*.
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field greater than CM:*maximum-in	 This must be non-negative and no nteger-length*.
Overlap	however, 1 fields are	nust be either disjoint from or i	rlap in any manner. Each of them, dentical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer e address and the same length. It is cal.
Flags		ag is set if the quotient canno wise it is cleared.	ot be represented in the destination
	test-flag is	set if the divisor is zero; other	rwise it is cleared.
Context	States and the second	tion is conditional. The destinors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	nation and flags may be altered only
-	inte		~

Definition For every virtual processor k in the *current-vp-set* do if *context-flag*[k] = 1 then

```
\begin{array}{l} \operatorname{let} v = \frac{\operatorname{source1}[k]}{\operatorname{source2}[k]} \\ \operatorname{if} v > \left\lfloor v + \frac{1}{2} \right\rfloor \operatorname{then} \\ \operatorname{dest}[k] \leftarrow \left\lfloor v \right\rfloor \\ \operatorname{else} \operatorname{if} v < \left\lfloor v + \frac{1}{2} \right\rfloor \operatorname{then} \\ \operatorname{dest}[k] \leftarrow \left\lceil v \right\rceil \\ \operatorname{else} \operatorname{if} \operatorname{even}(\lfloor v \rfloor) \operatorname{then} \\ \operatorname{dest}[k] \leftarrow \lfloor v \rfloor \\ \operatorname{else} \\ \operatorname{dest}[k] \leftarrow \lfloor v \rfloor \\ \operatorname{else} \\ \operatorname{dest}[k] \leftarrow \left\lceil v \right\rceil \\ \operatorname{if} \langle \operatorname{overflow} \operatorname{occurred} \operatorname{in} \operatorname{processor} k \rangle \operatorname{then} \operatorname{overflow-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1 \end{array}
```

The unsigned integer *source1* operand is divided by the unsigned integer *source2* operand. The mathematical quotient, rounded to the nearest integer (or to whichever of two equally near neighbors is even) is stored into the unsigned integer memory field *dest*.

The various operand formats allow the second source operand to be either a memory field or a constant; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag and test-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-F-ROUND

Converts the floating-point source field values to unsigned integer values, which are stored in the destination field.

Formats	CM:u-f-ro	ound-2-2L dest, source, dlen, s, e	
Operands	dest The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The fields	s dest and source must not overlap in any manner.	
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the <i>dest</i> field; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context		ration is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only sors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
	in proces	sors whose context-flag is 1.	

The source field, treated as a floating-point number, is rounded to the nearest integer (to the nearest even integer if its value is equal to an integer plus $\frac{1}{2}$), which is stored into the dest field as an unsigned integer.

F-S-SCALE

In each selected processor, multiplies a floating-point number by a specified power of two and stores the result in the destination.

Formats		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point first source field. This is the quantity to be scaled.
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field. This is the base-2 logarithm of the scale factor.
	source2-vo	alue A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source1 fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
	slen2	The length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	<i>source2</i> fi either disj	s source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. However, the eld must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source1</i> must be joint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are if they have the same address and the same format.
Flags	overflow-j	flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context	-	ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only fors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] \times 2^{source2[k]} $
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $\mathit{overflow-flag}[k] \leftarrow 1$

The operand *source1* is scaled by the power of two specified by *source2*. (This is faster than an equivalent multiplication by a power of two.)

322

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

F-U-SCALE

Multiplies a floating-point number by a specified power of two and stores the result into the destination.

formats			dest/source1, source2, slen2, s, e dest, source1, source2, slen2, s, e dest/source1, source2-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of	the floating-point destination field.
	source1	The field ID of quantity to be s	f the floating-point first source field. This is the scaled.
	source2		the unsigned integer second source field. This is the of the scale factor.
	source2-vo	ulue An unsign second source.	ned integer immediate operand to be used as the
	s, e	U	and exponent lengths for the dest and source1 l length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
	slen2		he <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no A:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	<i>source2</i> fie either disj	eld must not ove oint from or iden	<i>urce2</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the erlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source1</i> must be tical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are ame address and the same format.
Flags	overflow-f	<i>lag</i> is set if floatin	g-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context	-	ation is condition ors whose <i>contex</i>	nal. The destination and flag may be altered only et-flag is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \lfloor source1[k] \times 2^{source2[k]} \rfloor$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

The operand *source1* is scaled by the power of two specified by *source2*. (This is faster than an equivalent multiplication by a power of two.)

SCALE

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

SCAN-WITH-C-ADD

The destination field in every selected processor receives the sum of the complex source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

ormats	CM:scan-w	ith-c-add-1L dest, source, axis, s, e, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.
	inclusion	Either : exclusive or : inclusive.
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.
Overlap	must not from or id	source and sbit may overlap in any manner. However, the sbit field overlap the dest field, and the field source must be either disjoint entical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical if they have address and the same length.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

where scan-subset is as defined on page 36 of the Paris Reference Manual.

SCAN-WITH-ADD

See the section beginning on 34 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the *axis*, *direction*, *inclusion*, *smode*, and *sbit* operands.

The CM:scan-with-c-add operation combines *source* fields by performing complex addition. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the complex value +0.0 is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-F-ADD

The destination field in every selected processor receives the sum of the floating-point source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-with-f-add-1L dest, source, axis, s, e, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.	
	inclusion	Either : exclusive or : inclusive.	
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.	
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If smode is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.	
Overlap	must not from or id	source and sbit may overlap in any manner. However, the sbit field overlap the dest field, and the field source must be either disjoint entical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical if they have address and the same length.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition		virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do xt -flag $[k] = 1$ then	

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set)\\ \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set)\\ \text{let } S_k = scan-subset(g,k,axis,direction,inclusion,smode,sbit)\\ \text{if } |S_k| = 0 \text{ then}\\ dest[k] \leftarrow 0\\ \text{else}\\ dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

SCAN-WITH-ADD

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM:scan-with-f-add operation combines *source* fields by performing floating-point addition. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the floating-point value +0.0 is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-S-ADD

The destination field in every selected processor receives the sum of the signed integer source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-with-s-add-1L dest, source, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.	
	inclusion	Either : exclusive or : inclusive.	
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.	
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.	
Overlap	must not from or id	source and sbit may overlap in any manner. However, the sbit field overlap the dest field, and the field source must be either disjoint entical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical if they have address and the same length.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	if conte let g	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do xt-flag $[k] = 1$ then = geometry(current-vp-set) k = scan-subset(g, k, axis, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit)	

if $|S_k| = 0$ then

 $dest[k] \leftarrow 0$

else

$$dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right)$$

where *scan-subset* is as defined on page 45.

499

1

SCAN-WITH-ADD

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM: scan-with-s-add operation combines *source* fields by performing signed integer addition. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the signed integer value 0 is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-U-ADD

The destination field in every selected processor receives the sum of the unsigned integer source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-with-u-add-1L dest, source, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.	
	inclusion	Either : exclusive or : inclusive.	
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.	
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM :*no-field*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>sbit</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $S_k = scan-subset(g, k, axis, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit)$ if $|S_k| = 0$ then $dest[k] \leftarrow 0$ else $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right)$

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM:scan-with-u-add operation combines *source* fields by performing unsigned integer addition. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the unsigned integer value 0 is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-COPY

The destination field in every selected processor receives the *first* source field from the processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-w	ith-copy-1L dest, source, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	direction	Either : upward or : downward.	
	inclusion	Either : exclusive or : inclusive.	
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.	
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>sbit</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context		ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
Definition	if conterval let g let S if $ S_k $ descent less case descent less	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do ext-flag[k] = 1 then = geometry(current-vp-set) k = scan-subset(g, k, axis, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit) = 0 then $st[k] \leftarrow 000000$ see direction of :upward : let $m' = \min_{\substack{m \in S_k \\ m \in S_k}} m$:downward : let $m' = \max_{\substack{m \in S_k \\ m \in S_k}} m$ $st[k] \leftarrow source[m']$	
	where sca	un-subset is as defined on page 45.	

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM: scan-with-copy operation stores into each processor k the source field value from the first processor in the scan subset for processor k (where "first" means the processor with lowest address for an upward scan, or with highest address for a downward scan). Generally speaking, the net effect is to propagate a value from the first processor in a group to all the other processors in the group, although variations on this effect are provided by the various possibilities for the *inclusion* and *smode* arguments.

If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the *dest* field for that processor is set to all zero bits. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-LOGAND

The destination field in every selected processor receives the bitwise logical AND of the source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-with-logand-1L dest, source, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the source field.		
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	direction	Either : upward or : downward.		
	inclusion	Either : exclusive or : inclusive.		
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.		
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM :*no-field*.		
Overlap	must not from or id	source and sbit may overlap in any manner. However, the sbit field overlap the dest field, and the field source must be either disjoint entical to the dest field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the cess and the same length.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
Definition		virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do xt -flag $[k] = 1$ then		

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{In context-fulg}[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ \\ \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set) \\ \\ \text{let } S_k = scan-subset(g,k,axis,direction,inclusion,smode,sbit) \\ \\ \text{if } |S_k| = 0 \text{ then} \\ \\ dest[k] \leftarrow 111\dots111 \\ \\ \text{else} \\ \\ dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\bigwedge_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM:scan-with-logand operation combines *source* fields by performing bitwise logical AND operations. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the unsigned integer value $-2^{len} - 1$ (all ones) is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-LOGIOR

The destination field in every selected processor receives the bitwise logical inclusive OR of the source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-with-logior-1L dest, source, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.	
	inclusion	Either : exclusive or : inclusive.	
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.	
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>sbit</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	$\begin{array}{c} \text{if } conte \\ \text{let } g \\ \text{let } S \end{array}$	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do xt-flag $[k] = 1$ then = geometry(current-vp-set) k = scan-subset(g, k, axis, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit) = 0 then	

$$dest[k] \leftarrow 000...000$$

else

$$dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\bigvee_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right)$$

SCAN-WITH-LOGIOR

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM:scan-with-logior operation combines *source* fields by performing bitwise logical inclusive OR operations. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the unsigned integer value 0 (all zero bits) is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-LOGXOR

The destination field in every selected processor receives the bitwise logical exclusive OR of the source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-with-logxor-1L dest, source, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	direction	Either : upward or : downward.	
	inclusion	Either : exclusive or : inclusive.	
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.	
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM :*no-field*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>sbit</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	en la construction de la	ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e context-flag is 1.	
Definition		virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do xt -flag $[k] = 1$ then	

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{It context-fug}[k] = 1 \text{ then} \\ \\ \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set) \\ \\ \text{let } S_k = scan-subset(g,k,axis,direction,inclusion,smode,sbit) \\ \\ \text{if } |S_k| = 0 \text{ then} \\ \\ dest[k] \leftarrow 000\dots000 \\ \\ \text{else} \\ \\ dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\bigoplus_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM:scan-with-logxor operation combines *source* fields by performing bitwise logical exclusive OR operations. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the unsigned integer value 0 (all zero bits) is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-F-MAX

The destination field in every selected processor receives the largest of the floating-point source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-with-f-max-1L dest, source, axis, s, e, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
	direction	Either : upward or : downward.	
	inclusion	Either : exclusive or : inclusive.	
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.	
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If $smode$ is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>sbit</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	if contest	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do tt-flag[k] = 1 then = geometry(current-vp-set)	

 $\begin{aligned} \text{let } g &= geometry(current-vp-set) \\ \text{let } S_k &= scan-subset(g, k, axis, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit) \\ \text{if } |S_k| &= 0 \text{ then} \\ dest[k] &\leftarrow -\infty \\ \text{else} \\ dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\max_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right) \end{aligned}$

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM:scan-with-f-max operation combines *source* fields by performing an floating-point maximum operation. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the floating-point value $-\infty$ is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-S-MAX

The destination field in every selected processor receives the largest of the signed integer source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-with-s-max-1L dest, source, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.		
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.		
	inclusion	Either :exclusive or :inclusive.		
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.		
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If $smode$ is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>sbit</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
Definition	if contest	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do kt-flag[k] = 1 then = geometry(current-vp-set)		

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{let } g = geometry(current-vp-set)\\ \text{let } S_k = scan-subset(g,k,axis,direction,inclusion,smode,sbit)\\ \text{if } |S_k| = 0 \text{ then}\\ dest[k] \leftarrow -2^{len-1}\\ \text{else}\\ dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\max_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM:scan-with-s-max operation combines *source* fields by performing a signed integer maximum operation. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the signed integer value -2^{len-1} is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-U-MAX

The destination field in every selected processor receives the largest of the unsigned integer source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-with-u-max-1L dest, source, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.	
	inclusion	Either : exclusive or : inclusive.	
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.	
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be $CM:*no-field*$.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>sbit</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition		virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do $rt-flag[k] = 1$ then	

if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then	
let $g = geometry(current-vp-set)$	
let $S_k = scan-subset(g, k, axis, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit)$	
if $ S_k = 0$ then	
$dest[k] \leftarrow 0$	
else	
$dest[k] \gets \left(\max_{m \in S_k} \textit{source}[m] ight)$	

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM: scan-with-u-max operation combines *source* fields by performing an unsigned integer maximum operation. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the unsigned integer value 0 is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.
SCAN-WITH-F-MIN

The destination field in every selected processor receives the smallest of the floating-point source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-w	ith-f-min-1L dest, source, axis, s, e, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit			
Operands	dest	est The field ID of the floating-point destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.			
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.			
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.			
	direction	Either : upward or : downward.			
	inclusion	Either :exclusive or :inclusive.			
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.			
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.			
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>sbit</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.				
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do			

Jennition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $S_k = scan-subset(g, k, axis, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit)$ if $|S_k| = 0$ then $dest[k] \leftarrow +\infty$ else $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\min_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right)$

where *scan-subset* is as defined on page 45.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM:scan-with-f-min operation combines *source* fields by performing an floating-point minimum operation. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the floating-point value $+\infty$ is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-S-MIN

The destination field in every selected processor receives the smallest of the signed integer source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-w	vith-s-min-1L dest, source, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.
	inclusion	Either : exclusive or : inclusive.
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM:*no-field*.
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>sbit</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context	1750	ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e context-flag is 1.
Definition		virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{if } \textit{context-flag}[k] = 1 \textit{ then} \\ \text{let } g = \textit{geometry}(\textit{current-vp-set}) \\ \text{let } S_k = \textit{scan-subset}(g,k,\textit{axis, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit}) \\ \text{if } |S_k| = 0 \textit{ then} \\ \textit{dest}[k] \leftarrow 2^{len-1} - 1 \\ \text{else} \\ \textit{dest}[k] \leftarrow \left(\min_{m \in S_k} \textit{source}[m]\right) \end{array}$

where *scan-subset* is as defined on page 45.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM:scan-with-s-min operation combines *source* fields by performing a signed integer minimum operation. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the signed integer value $2^{len-1} - 1$ is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-U-MIN

The destination field in every selected processor receives the smallest of the unsigned integer source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-w	ith-u-min-1L dest, source, axis, len, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.		
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	direction	Either :upward or :downward.		
	inclusion	Either :exclusive or :inclusive.		
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.		
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be $CM:*no-field*$.		
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>sbit</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $S_k = scan-subset(g, k, axis, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit)$ if $|S_k| = 0$ then $dest[k] \leftarrow 2^{len} - 1$ else $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\min_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right)$

where *scan-subset* is as defined on page 45.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM:scan-with-u-min operation combines *source* fields by performing an unsigned integer minimum operation. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the unsigned integer value $2^{len} - 1$ is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SCAN-WITH-F-MULTIPLY

The destination field in every selected processor receives the product of the floating-point source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:scan-w	ith-f-multiply-1L dest, source, axis, s, e, direction, inclusion, smode, sbit				
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.				
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.				
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.				
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.					
	direction	ection Either : upward or : downward.				
	inclusion Either : exclusive or : inclusive.					
	smode	Either :none, :start-bit, or :segment-bit.				
	sbit	The field ID of the segment bit or start bit (a one-bit field). If <i>smode</i> is :none then this may be CM :*no-field*.				
Overlap	The fields <i>source</i> and <i>sbit</i> may overlap in any manner. However, the <i>sbit</i> field must not overlap the <i>dest</i> field, and the field <i>source</i> must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.					
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.					

where *scan-subset* is as defined on page 45.

SCAN-WITH-MULTIPLY

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of scan operations and the effect of the axis, direction, inclusion, smode, and sbit operands.

The CM:scan-with-f-multiply operation combines *source* fields by performing floating-point multiplication. If the scan subset for a selected processor is empty, then the floating-point value 1.0 is stored in the *dest* field for that processor. Note that this can occur only when the *inclusion* argument is :exclusive.

SEND

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. If a processor receives more than one message, then the message data received by that processor will be unpredictable.

Formats	CM:send-1L dest, send-address, source, len, notify		
Operands	dest The field ID of the destination field.		
	send-address The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.		
	source The field ID of the source field.		
	len The length of the dest and source fields.		
	notify The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). This argument may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message receipt is desired.		
Overlap	The send-address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the source and dest to overlap.		
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is stored into the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context- flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do let $S_k = \{ m \mid m \in current-vp-set \land context-flag[m] = 1 \land send-address[m] =$ if $ S_k = 0$ then if $notify[k] \neq CM$:*no-field* then $notify[k] \leftarrow 0$		

 $\begin{array}{l} \operatorname{let} S_{k} = \{ \ m \mid m \in \operatorname{current-vp-set} \wedge \operatorname{context-flag}[m] = 1 \wedge \operatorname{send-address}[m] = k \ \} \\ \operatorname{if} |S_{k}| = 0 \ \operatorname{then} \\ \operatorname{if} \operatorname{notify}[k] \not\equiv \operatorname{CM:*no-field*} \operatorname{then} \operatorname{notify}[k] \leftarrow 0 \\ \operatorname{else} \operatorname{if} |S_{k}| = 1 \ \operatorname{then} \\ \operatorname{if} \operatorname{notify}[k] \not\equiv \operatorname{CM:*no-field*} \operatorname{then} \operatorname{notify}[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \operatorname{dest}[k] \leftarrow \operatorname{source}[\operatorname{choice}(S_{k})] \\ \operatorname{else} \\ \operatorname{if} \operatorname{notify}[k] \not\equiv \operatorname{CM:*no-field*} \operatorname{then} \operatorname{notify}[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \operatorname{dest}[k] \leftarrow \langle \operatorname{undefined} \rangle \end{array}$

where the *choice* function arbitrarily but deterministically chooses an element from a set.

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d . Note that, although the *send-address* operand is a field in the current VP set, its value must specify a valid send address for *dest*, which may belong to a different VP set.

The CM: send operation combines multiple incoming messages in an unpredictable manner. This operation may be used when the programmer can guarantee that no processor will receive more than one message. Using this operation when it is appropriate may speed message delivery. The destination area need not be prepared.

SEND-ASET32-U-ADD

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor and stores it there, as if by aset32, in an array. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected. All incoming messages are combined with the destination array element using unsigned integer addition.

Formats	CM:send-aset32-u-add-2L array, send-address, source, index, slen, index-len, index-limit		
Operands	array The field ID of the destination array field.		
	send-address The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.		
	source The field ID of the source field.		
	<i>index</i> The field ID of the unsigned integer index into the array field. This is used as a per-processor index into <i>array</i> . It specifies portions of the <i>array</i> memory area in increments of <i>slen</i> .		
	slen The length of the source field. This must be a multiple of 32.		
	index-len The length of the index field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	<i>index-limit</i> An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the exclusive upper bound for the <i>index</i> . This is taken as the extent of the destination array.		
Overlap	The send-address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the source and dest to overlap.		
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the data, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the field indicated by <i>array</i> regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor.		
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do let $S_k = \{ m \mid m \in current-vp-set \land context-flag[m] = 1 \land send-address[m] = k \}$ for every processor k' in S_k do if $index[k'] < index-limit$ then let $r = geometry-total-vp-ratio(geometry(current-vp-set))$		

```
\begin{array}{l} \operatorname{let} m = \left\lfloor \frac{k}{r} \right\rfloor \mod 32 \\ \operatorname{let} i = index[k'] \\ \text{for all } j \text{ such that } 0 \leq j < dlen \text{ do} \\ \operatorname{let} temp_k \langle j \rangle = array[k - m \times r + (j \mod 32) \times r] \langle 32 \times (i + \left\lfloor \frac{j}{32} \right\rfloor) \rangle \\ \operatorname{let} sum_k = temp_k + source[k'] \\ \text{for all } j \text{ such that } 0 \leq j < dlen \text{ do} \\ array[k - m \times r + (j \mod 32) \times r] \langle 32 \times (i + \left\lfloor \frac{j}{32} \right\rfloor) \rangle \leftarrow sum_k \langle j \rangle \\ \text{else} \\ \langle \operatorname{error} \rangle \end{array}
```

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into an array element within processor p_d . Note that in each case the array element to be modified in processor p_d is determined by the value of *index* within p_s , not the value within p_d .

The CM:send-aset32-u-add operation combines incoming messages with unsigned integer addition. To receive the sum of only the messages, the destination *array* should first be cleared in all processors that might receive a message.

SEND-ASET32-LOGIOR

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor and stores it there, as if by aset32, in an array. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected. All incoming messages are combined with the destination array element using bitwise logical inclusive OR.

Formats	CM:send-a	set32-logior-2L array, send-address, source, index, slen, index-len, index-limit	
Operands	array	The field ID of the destination array field.	
	send-addre	this indicates to which processor a message is sent.	
	source	The field ID of the source field.	
	index	The field ID of the unsigned integer index into the array field. This is used as a per-processor index into <i>array</i> . It specifies portions of the <i>array</i> memory area in increments of <i>slen</i> .	
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be a multiple of 32.	
	index-len	The length of the <i>index</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	index-limi	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the exclusive upper bound for the <i>index</i> . This is taken as the extent of the destination array.	
Overlap	The send-address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the source and dest to overlap.		
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the data, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the field indicated by <i>array</i> regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor.		
Definition	let $S_k =$ for even	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do = { $m \mid m \in current-vp-set \land context-flag[m] = 1 \land send-address[m] = k$ } cy processor k' in S_k do lex[k'] < index-limit then	

let r = geometry-total-vp-ratio(geometry(current-vp-set))

```
\begin{array}{l} \operatorname{let} m = \left\lfloor \frac{k}{r} \right\rfloor \mod 32 \\ \operatorname{let} i = index[k'] \\ \text{for all } j \text{ such that } 0 \leq j < dlen \text{ do} \\ \operatorname{let} q = k - m \times r + (j \mod 32) \times r \\ \operatorname{let} b = 32 \times (i + \left\lfloor \frac{j}{32} \right\rfloor) \\ array[q]\langle b \rangle \leftarrow array[q]\langle b \rangle \vee source[k']\langle j \rangle \\ \text{else} \\ \langle \operatorname{error} \rangle \end{array}
```

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into an array element within processor p_d . Note that in each case the array element to be modified in processor p_d is determined by the value of *index* within p_s , not the value within p_d .

The CM:send-aset32-logior operation combines incoming messages with a bitwise logical inclusive OR operation. To receive the logical inclusive OR of only the messages, the destination *array* should first be cleared in all processors that might receive a message.

SEND-ASET32-OVERWRITE

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor and stores it there, as if by aset32, in an array. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected. If a processor receives more than one message destinated for the same array element, then one is stored in that array element and the rest are discarded.

Formats	CM:send-aset32-overwrite-2L array, send-address, source, index, slen, index-len, index-limit		
Operands	array The field ID of the destination array field.		
	send-address The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.		
	source The field ID of the source field.		
	<i>index</i> The field ID of the unsigned integer index into the array field. This is used as a per-processor index into <i>array</i> . It specifies portions of the <i>array</i> memory area in increments of <i>slen</i> .		
	slen The length of the source field. This must be a multiple of 32.		
	index-len The length of the index field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	<i>index-limit</i> An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the exclusive upper bound for the <i>index</i> . This is taken as the extent of the destination array.		
Overlap	The send-address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the source and dest to overlap.		
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the data, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the field indicated by <i>array</i> regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor.		
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do let $S_k = \{m \mid m \in current-vp-set \land context-flag[m] = 1 \land send-address[m] = k \}$ let $k' = choice(S_k)$ if $index[k'] < index-limit$ then let $r = geometry-total-vp-ratio(geometry(current-vp-set))$		

 $\begin{array}{l} \operatorname{let} m = \left\lfloor \frac{k}{r} \right\rfloor \mod 32 \\ \operatorname{let} i = index[k'] \\ \operatorname{for all} j \text{ such that } 0 \leq j < dlen \text{ do} \\ array[k - m \times r + (j \mod 32) \times r]\langle 32 \times (i + \left\lfloor \frac{j}{32} \right\rfloor) \rangle \leftarrow \operatorname{source}[k']\langle j \rangle \\ \operatorname{else} \\ \langle \operatorname{error} \rangle \end{array}$

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into an array element within processor p_d . Note that in each case the array element to be modified in processor p_d is determined by the value of *index* within p_s , not the value within p_d .

The CM:send-aset32-overwrite operation will store one of the messages sent to a particular array element, discarding all other messages as well as the original contents of that array element in the receiving processor.

SEND-TO-NEWS

Each processor sends a message to a neighboring processor along a specified NEWS axis.

Formats	CM:send-to CM:send-to	p-news-1L dest, source, axis, direction, len p-news-always-1L dest, source, axis, direction, len		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the source field.		
	axis	axis An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	direction	Either : upward or : downward.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.			
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether data is copied depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the data, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is stored into the field indicated by <i>dest</i> regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor.			
	Note that in the conditional case the storing of data depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the processor sending the data, not on the <i>context-flag</i> of the processor receiving the data.			
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then let $g = geometry(current-vp-set)$ $dest[news-neighbor(g, k, axis, direction)] \leftarrow source[k]$			

The source field in each processor is stored into the dest field of that processor's neighbor along the NEWS axis specified by axis in the direction specified by direction.

If *direction* is :upward then each processor stores data into the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one greater, with the processor whose coordinate is greatest storing data into the processor whose coordinate is zero.

If *direction* is :downward then each processor stores data into the neighbor whose NEWS coordinate is one less, with the processor whose coordinate is zero storing data into the processor whose coordinate is greatest.

SEND-TO-QUEUE32

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor and stores it there, as if by aset32, in a queue. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors.

Formats CM:send-to-queue32-1L dest, send-address, source, slen, index-limit

- **Operands** dest The field ID of the queue field. The length of this field must accommodate 32 bits for the queue.count subfield, plus $index limit \times slen$ bits for the queue.elements subfield, where index-limit is the number of queue elements in each processor.
 - send address The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.
 - source The field ID of the source field.
 - slen The length of the source field. This is also the length of each queue element. It is currently restricted to 32 bits.
 - index-limit An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the exclusive upper bound for a zero-based index into queue.elements. The value of this argument must be at least 1 and should never exceed the number of elements that can be stored in the queue.
- Overlap The fields send-address and source may overlap in any manner. No overlap with the dest field is allowed.
- Context This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the *context-flag* of the originating processor; the data, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is queued in the field indicated by *dest* regardless of the *context-flag* of the receiving processor.

Note that if $(|S_k| + queue.count > index-limit)$ then there is some choice in picking the elements of T_k .

The destination field is treated as two subfields: *queue.count* and *queue.elements*. *Queue.count* is 32 bits long and records the number of enqueued messages. *Queue.elements* stores the enqueued messages; it is formatted as a slicewise array (accessed using aref32 and aset32), and starts at an offset of 32 bits from the start of the destination field. Its length is a multiple of the message length: at least *index-limit* \times *slen* and possibly greater.

The *index-limit* argument specifies the maximum number of elements that any processor's *queue.elements* subfield may accumulate. If any processor receives more messages than this specified number, the queue overflows and messages are lost. If a *queue.elements* subfield overflows, the *queue.count* subfield for that processor nonetheless accurately reflects the number of messages received.

For any given communication pattern, both the order of message queueing and the selection of messages preserved or discarded in case of queue overflow are deterministic. That is, the order and selection of enqueued messages can be predictably reproduced from one invocation to the next.

This determinism is especially important for applications that use successive CM:send-toqueue32-1L calls to send large data structures by breaking up them up into chunks of length *slen*. By holding the *send-address* argument constant, such applications can send successive chunks of *slen* bits each to corresponding queues.

To prepare an empty queue for a CM:send-to-queue-1L instruction, the *queue.count* subfield should be set to zero. From Lisp/Paris, this is done by executing the following code in the destination context:

```
(let ((zeros (allocate-stack-field 32))
  (context-hold (allocate-stack-field 1)))
  (cm:move-constant-always zeros 0 32)
  (cm:store-context context-hold)
  (cm:set-context)
  (cm:aset32-2L zeros queue zeros 32 32 1)
  (cm:load-context context-hold)
)
```

The CM:send-to-queue32-1L operation is conditional on the context of the source field; the set of queues that will *receive* messages is independent of the currently active set. To zero the *queue.count* subfield in only those queues that are to receive messages, execute the following code in the source context:

```
(let ((zeros (allocate-stack-field 32)))
 (cm:move-constant-always zeros 0 32)
 (cm:send-aset32-overwrite-2L queue dest zeros zeros 32 32 1)
)
```

SEND-TO-QUEUE32

After the CM:send-to-queue32 operation, the local count can be retrieved by executing the following code in the destination context:

```
(let ((zeros (allocate-stack-field 32)))
 (count-field (allocate-stack-field 32))
)
 (cm:move-constant-always zeros 0 32)
 (cm:aref32-2L count-field queue zeros 32 32 1)
)
```

The i(th) message can be retrieved from *queue.elements* by executing the following code in the destination context:

```
(let ((index (allocate-stack-field 32))
 (data-field (allocate-stack-field message-length))
 )
 (cm:move-constant-always index i 32)
 (cm:aref32-2L data-field (+ 32 queue) index len 32 queue-size)
)
```

Note that queue.elements is offset from the queue field by 32 bits.

An artificially small queue size may be used by passing CM:send-to-queue-1L an index-limit value that is less than the number of elements of length slen that could be stored in the *queue.elements* portion of the destination field. If this is done, the queues will be partially filled. However, the correct queue size should always be used as the index-limit argument to CM:aref32-2L when reading elements from the queue.

SEND-WITH-C-ADD

Sends a message from every selected processor to a destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the destination field using complex addition.

Formats	CM:send-with-c-add-1L dest, send-address, source, s, e, notify			
Operands	dest The field ID of the complex destination field.			
	send-address The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.			
	source The field ID of the complex source field.			
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.			
	notify The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field).			
Overlap	The <i>send-address</i> and <i>source</i> may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the <i>send-address</i> and <i>dest</i> may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the <i>source</i> and <i>dest</i> to overlap.			
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .			
Definition	Let $P = \{ m \mid 0 \le m \le CM$: *user-send-address-limit* $\}$ For every virtual processor k in vp-set(dest) do let $S_k = \{ m \mid m \in P \land context-flag[m] = 1 \land send-address[m] = k \}$ if $ S_k = 0$ then if notify[k] $\neq CM$: *no-field* then notify[k] $\leftarrow 0$			

 $\begin{aligned} \text{let } S_k &= \left\{ \begin{array}{l} m \mid m \in P \land \textit{context-flag}[m] = 1 \land \textit{send-address}[m] \\ \text{if } |S_k| &= 0 \text{ then} \\ \text{if } \textit{notify}[k] \not\equiv \text{CM:*no-field* then } \textit{notify}[k] \leftarrow 0 \\ \text{else} \\ \text{if } \textit{notify}[k] \not\equiv \text{CM:*no-field* then } \textit{notify}[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \textit{dest}[k] \leftarrow \textit{dest}[k] + \left(\sum_{m \in S_k} \textit{source}[m]\right) \end{aligned}$

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose absolute send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM:send-with-c-add operation adds incoming messages to the *dest* field, treating all quantities as complex numbers. To receive the sum of only the messages, the destination area should initially be set to zero in all processors that might receive a message.

SEND-WITH-F-ADD

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the destination field using floating-point addition.

Formats	CM:send-with-f-add-1L	dest,	send-address,	source, s, e, notify	1
---------	-----------------------	-------	---------------	----------------------	---

Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	send-addr	ess The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
	notify	The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). This argument may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message receipt is desired.
Overlap	The send-address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the source and dest to overlap.	
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .	

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM:send-with-f-add operation adds incoming messages together with the *dest* field as floating-point numbers. To receive the sum of only the messages, the destination area should first be set to zero in all processors that might receive a message.

SEND-WITH-S-ADD

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the destination field using signed integer addition.

Formats	CM:send-with-s-add-1L dest, send-address, source, len, notify	
Operands	dest The field ID of the signed integer destination field.	
	send-address The field ID of the send address field. For each process this indicates to which processor a message is sent.	
	source The field ID of the signed integer source field.	
	len The length of the dest and source fields.	
	notify The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). The ment may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message redesired.	is argu- eceipt is
Overlap	The send-address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the source and dest to overlap.	
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .	

For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
$let \ S_k = \{ \ m \mid m \in \textit{current-vp-set} \land \textit{context-flag}[m] = 1 \land \textit{send-address}[m] = k \ \}$
if $ S_k = 0$ then
if $notify[k] \neq CM:*no-field*$ then $notify[k] \leftarrow 0$
else
if $notify[k] \neq CM$:*no-field* then $notify[k] \leftarrow 1$
$dest[k] \leftarrow dest[k] + \left(\sum_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right)$

SEND-WITH-ADD

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM: send-with-s-add operation adds incoming messages into the *dest* field as signed integers. Carry-out and arithmetic overflow are not detected. To receive the sum of only the messages, the destination area should first be cleared in all processors that might receive a message.

SEND-WITH-U-ADD

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the destination field using unsigned integer addition.

Formats	CM:send-with-u-add-1L dest, send-address, source, len, notify	
Operands	dest The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.	
	send-address The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.	
	source The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.	
	len The length of the dest and source fields.	
	notify The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). This argument may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message receipt is desired.	
Overlap	The <i>send-address</i> and <i>source</i> may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the <i>send-address</i> and <i>dest</i> may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the <i>source</i> and <i>dest</i> to overlap.	
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .	
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do let $S_k = \{m \mid m \in current-vp-set \land context-flag[m] = 1 \land send-address[m] = k$	

 $\begin{array}{l} \operatorname{let} S_{k} = \{ \ m \mid m \in \operatorname{current-vp-set} \land \operatorname{context-flag}[m] = 1 \land \operatorname{send-address}[m] = k \} \\ \operatorname{if} |S_{k}| = 0 \ \operatorname{then} \\ \operatorname{if} \ \operatorname{notify}[k] \not\equiv \operatorname{CM:*no-field*} \ \operatorname{then} \ \operatorname{notify}[k] \leftarrow 0 \\ \operatorname{else} \\ \operatorname{if} \ \operatorname{notify}[k] \not\equiv \operatorname{CM:*no-field*} \ \operatorname{then} \ \operatorname{notify}[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \operatorname{dest}[k] \leftarrow \operatorname{dest}[k] + \left(\sum_{m \in S_{k}} \operatorname{source}[m]\right) \end{array}$

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM:send-with-u-add operation adds incoming messages into the *dest* field as unsigned integers. Carry-out and arithmetic overflow are not detected. To receive the sum of only the messages, the destination area should first be cleared in all processors that might receive a message.

SEND-WITH-LOGAND

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the destination field using bitwise logical AND.

Formats	CM:send-w	vith-logand-1L dest, send-address, source, len, notify
Operands	dest The field ID of the destination field.	
	send-address The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.	
	source	The field ID of the source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields.
	notify	The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). This argument may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message receipt is desired.
Overlap	The <i>send-address</i> and <i>source</i> may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the <i>send-address</i> and <i>dest</i> may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the <i>source</i> and <i>dest</i> to overlap.	
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do let $S_k = \{ m \mid m \in current-vp-set \land context-flag[m] = 1 \land send-address[m] = k \}$ if $|S_k| = 0$ then if $notify[k] \not\equiv CM$:*no-field* then $notify[k] \leftarrow 0$ else if $notify[k] \not\equiv CM$:*no-field* then $notify[k] \leftarrow 1$ $dest[k] \leftarrow dest[k] \land \left(\bigwedge_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right)$

SEND-WITH-LOGAND

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM:send-with-logand operation will combine all messages and the original contents of the destination field with a bitwise logical AND operation. To receive the logical AND of only the messages, the destination area should first be set to all-ones in all processors that might receive a message.

SEND-WITH-LOGIOR

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the destination field using bitwise logical inclusive OR.

Formats	CM:send-v	vith-logior-1L dest, send-address, source, len, notify
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	send-addr	ess The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.
	source	The field ID of the source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields.
	notify	The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). This argument may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message receipt is desired.
Overlap	The send-address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the source and dest to overlap.	
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any	

processor regardless of the value of the context-flag.

SEND-WITH-LOGIOR

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM: send-with-logior operation combines incoming messages with a bitwise logical inclusive OR operation. To receive the logical inclusive OR of only the messages, the destination area should first be cleared in all processors that might receive a message.

SEND-WITH-LOGXOR

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the destination field using bitwise logical exclusive OR.

Formats	CM:send-with-logxor-1L	dest, send-address,	source, len, notify
---------	------------------------	---------------------	---------------------

Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	send-addre	this indicates to which processor a message is sent.
	source	The field ID of the source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields.
	notify	The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). This argument may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message receipt is desired.
Overlap	The <i>send-address</i> and <i>source</i> may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the <i>send-address</i> and <i>dest</i> may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the <i>source</i> and <i>dest</i> to overlap.	

Context This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the *context-flag* of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the *dest* field regardless of the *context-flag* of the receiving processor. The *notify* bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the *context-flag*.

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM: send-with-logxor operation is similar but combines incoming messages with a bitwise logical EXCLUSIVE OR operation. To receive the logical EXCLUSIVE OR of only the messages, the destination area should first be cleared in all processors that might receive a message.

SEND-WITH-F-MAX

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the *dest* field using a floating-point maximum operation.

Formats	CM:send-with-f-max-1L	dest, send-address,	source, s, e, notify
---------	-----------------------	---------------------	----------------------

Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	send-addr	ess The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
	notify	The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). This argument may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message receipt is desired.	
Overlap	The send-address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the source and dest to overlap.		
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM:send-with-f-max operation combines incoming messages with the *dest* field using floating-point maximum operations. The *test-flag* is not affected by the maximum operation.

To receive the maximum of only the messages, the destination field should first be set to the smallest possible value: $-\infty$.
SEND-WITH-S-MAX

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the *dest* field using a signed integer maximum operation.

Formats	CM:send-w	ith-s-max-1L dest, send-address, source, len, notify	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.	
send-address The field ID of the send address field. For each pro- this indicates to which processor a message is sent.			
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields.	
notify The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). The ment may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message r desired.			
Overlap	Overlap The send-address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the source and dest to overlap.		
Context	Context This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		
Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do let $S_k = \{m \mid m \in current-vp-set \land context-flag[m] = 1 \land send-address[m]$ if $ S_k = 0$ then		$= \set{m \mid m \in \mathit{current-vp-set} \land \mathit{context-flag}[m] = 1 \land \mathit{send-address}[m] = k}$	

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{if } |S_k| = \{m \mid m \in \textit{current-sp-set} \land \textit{context-fug}[m] = 1 \land \textit{sena-autress}[m] = k\} \\ \text{if } |S_k| = 0 \text{ then} \\ \text{if } \textit{notify}[k] \not\equiv \text{CM:*no-field* then } \textit{notify}[k] \leftarrow 0 \\ \text{else} \\ \text{if } \textit{notify}[k] \not\equiv \text{CM:*no-field* then } \textit{notify}[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ \textit{dest}[k] \leftarrow \max\left(\textit{dest}[k], \max_{m \in S_k} \textit{source}[m]\right) \end{array}$

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of

processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM: send-with-s-max operation combines incoming messages with the *dest* field using signed integer maximum operations. The *test-flag* is not affected by the maximum operation.

To receive the maximum of only the messages, the destination field should first be set to athe smallest possible value: -2^{len-1} .

SEND-WITH-U-MAX

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the *dest* field using an unsigned integer maximum operation.

Formats	CM:send-with-u-max-1L dest, send-address, source, len, notify
Operands	dest The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	send-address The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.
	source The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.
	len The length of the dest and source fields.
	notify The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). This argument may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message receipt is desired.
Overlap	The send-address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the source and dest to overlap.
Context This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .	
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do let $S_k = \{ m \mid m \in current-vp-set \land context-flag[m] = 1 \land send-address[m] = k \}$ if $ S_k = 0$ then if $notify[k] \not\equiv CM:*no-field*$ then $notify[k] \leftarrow 0$ else

 $\begin{array}{l} \text{if } notify[k] \not\equiv \mathsf{CM}: \texttt{*no-field} \texttt{* then } notify[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ dest[k] \leftarrow \max\left(dest[k], \max_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right) \end{array}$

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of

SEND-WITH-MAX

processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM: send-with-u-max operation combines incoming messages with the *dest* field using unsigned integer maximum operations. The *test-flag* is not affected by the maximum operation.

To receive the maximum of only the messages, the destination field should first be set to the smallest possible value: zero.

SEND-WITH-F-MIN

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the *dest* field using a floating-point minimum operation.

Formats	CM:send-with-f-min-1L	dest,	send-address,	source, s	, e,	notify	
---------	-----------------------	-------	---------------	-----------	------	--------	--

Operands	dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	send-addr	ess The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
	notify	The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). This argument may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message receipt is desired.	
Overlap	address ar	address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- ad dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the d dest to overlap.	
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do		
	$let S_k = \{ m \mid m \in current \text{-}vp\text{-}set \land context\text{-}flag[m] = 1 \land send\text{-}address[m] = k \}$		
	if $ S_k = 0$ then		
	if $notify[k] \neq CM:*no-field*$ then $notify[k] \leftarrow 0$		
	else		
	if $notify[k] \neq CM:*no-field*$ then $notify[k] \leftarrow 1$		
	$dest[k] \leftarrow \min\left(dest[k], \min_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right)$		

SEND-WITH-MIN

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM:send-with-f-min operation combines incoming messages with the *dest* field using floating-point minimum operations. The *test-flag* is not affected by the minimum operation.

To receive the minimum of only the messages, the destination field should first be set to the largest value possible: $+\infty$.

SEND-WITH-S-MIN

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the *dest* field using a signed integer minimum operation.

Formats CM:send-with-s-min-1L dest, send-address, source, len, notify		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	send-add	ress The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields.
		The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). This argument may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message receipt is desired.
Overlap	The send-address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the send- address and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the source and dest to overlap.	
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do let $S_k = \{m \mid m \in current-vp-set \land context-flag[m] = 1 \land send-address[m] = k \}$ if $|S_k| = 0$ then if $notify[k] \not\equiv CM$:*no-field* then $notify[k] \leftarrow 0$ else if $notify[k] \not\equiv CM$:*no-field* then $notify[k] \leftarrow 1$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \min\left(dest[k], \min_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right)$

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of

processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM: send-with-s-min operation combines incoming messages with the *dest* field using signed integer minimum operations. The *test-flag* is not affected by the minimum operation.

To receive the minimum of only the messages, the destination field should first be set to the largest possible value: $2^{len-1} - 1$.

SEND-WITH-U-MIN

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. All incoming messages are combined with the dest field using an unsigned integer minimum operation.

Formats	CM:send-v	vith-u-min-1L dest, send-address, source, len, notify	
Operands	destThe field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.send-addressThe field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.		
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields.	
	notify The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). This as ment may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message receip desired.		
Overlap	The <i>send-address</i> and <i>source</i> may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the <i>send-address</i> and <i>dest</i> may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the <i>source</i> and <i>dest</i> to overlap.		
Context	This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the <i>context-flag</i> of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is combined with the <i>dest</i> field regardless of the <i>context-flag</i> of the receiving processor. The <i>notify</i> bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		

For every virtual processor k in the *current-vp-set* do Definition $let \ S_k = \{ \ m \mid m \in \mathit{current-vp-set} \land \mathit{context-flag}[m] = 1 \land \mathit{send-address}[m] = k \ \}$ if $|S_k| = 0$ then if $notify[k] \neq CM:*no-field*$ then $notify[k] \leftarrow 0$ else
$$\begin{split} & \text{if } notify[k] \not\equiv \mathsf{CM}:\texttt{*no-field}\texttt{*} \text{ then } notify[k] \leftarrow 1 \\ & dest[k] \leftarrow \min\left(dest[k], \min_{m \in S_k} source[m]\right) \end{split}$$

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location send-address in the memory of

SEND-WITH-MIN

processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM:send-with-u-min operation combines incoming messages with the *dest* field using unsigned integer minimum operations. The *test-flag* is not affected by the minimum operation.

To receive the minimum of only the messages, the destination field should first be set to the largest possible value: $2^{len} - 1$.

SEND-WITH-OVERWRITE

Sends a message from every selected processor to a specified destination processor. Each selected processor may specify any processor as the destination, including itself. A destination processor may receive messages even if it is not selected, and all the destination processors may be in a VP set different from the VP set of the source processors. Messages are all delivered to the same address within each receiving processor. If a processor receives more than one message, then one is delivered and the rest are discarded.

Formats	CM:send-with-overwrite-1L	dest, send-address	, source, len, notify
---------	---------------------------	--------------------	-----------------------

Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.	
----------	------	--	--

- send-address The field ID of the send address field. For each processor, this indicates to which processor a message is sent.
 - source The field ID of the source field.

len The length of the dest and source fields.

- notify The field ID of the notification bit (a one-bit field). This argument may be CM:*no-field* if no notification of message receipt is desired.
- Overlap The send-address and source may overlap in any manner. Similarly, the sendaddress and dest may overlap in any manner. However, it is forbidden for the source and dest to overlap.
- Context This operation is conditional, but whether a message is sent depends only on the context-flag of the originating processor; the message, once transmitted to the receiving processor, is stored into the dest field regardless of the contextflag of the receiving processor. The notify bit may be altered in any processor regardless of the value of the context-flag.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do let $S_k = \{m \mid m \in current-vp-set \land context-flag[m] = 1 \land send-address[m] = k \}$ if $|S_k| = 0$ then if $notify[k] \not\equiv CM$:*no-field* then $notify[k] \leftarrow 0$ else if $notify[k] \not\equiv CM$:*no-field* then $notify[k] \leftarrow 1$ $dest[k] \leftarrow source[choice(S_k)]$

For every selected processor p_s , a message *length* bits long is sent from that processor to the processor p_d whose send address is stored at location *send-address* in the memory of

processor p_s . The message is taken from the *source* field within processor p_s and is stored into the *dest* field within processor p_d .

The CM:send-with-overwrite operation will store one of the messages sent, discarding all other messages as well as the original contents of the *dest* field in the receiving processor.

SET-BIT

Sets a specified memory bit.

 Formats
 CM:set-bit dest

 CM:set-bit-always
 dest

 Context
 The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose context-flag is 1.

 The always operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the context-flag.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow 1$

The destination memory bit is set within each selected processor.

SET-CONTEXT

Unconditionally makes all processors active.

Formats CM:set-context Context This operation is unconditional.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do $context-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$

Within each processor, the context bit for that processor is unconditionally set.

SET-FIELD-ALIAS-VP-SET

Sets the VP set of the specified alias fieldID to the specified VP set.

Formats	CM:set-field-alias-vp-set alias-id, vp-set	
Operands	alias-id	An alias field ID. This must be an alias fieldID returned by CM:make-field-alias. This alias id need not be in the current VP set.
	vp-set	A VP set ID. This need not be the current VP set.
Context	Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .	

This function sets the VP set of alias-id to vp-set.

An error is signaled if the physical length of the aliased field is not exactly divisible by the **VP** ratio of vp-set. (See the definitions of CM:make-field-alias for more information about the physical length of an aliased field.)

SET-SAFETY-MODE

Formats CM:set-safety-mode safety-mode

Operands safety-mode An unsigned integer, the safety level. Currently only the values 0 and 1 are meaningful.

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

The safety mode is set to the specified value. A non-zero value indicates that the Paris interface should perform various extra error checks and consistency checks that may be helpful in detecting bugs in user programs. Of course, the price of these error checks is reduced execution speed.

SET-SYSTEM-LEDS-MODE

Formats CM:set-system-leds-mode leds-mode

Operands leds-mode Either : leds-off, : leds-on, : leds-throb, : leds-diagnostics, : ledsperfmon, : leds-sync, or : leds-blink-sync.

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

The lights on the front and back of the Connection Machine system cabinet can be controlled in a variety of ways. The cm:set-system-leds-mode operation selects what information will be displayed in the lights. If the specified *leds-mode* is :leds-off, then all the lights are turned off, and thereafter the user operations cm:latch-leds and cm:latch-leds-always may be used to control the lights. Other values for *leds-mode* select one of the systemsupplied display modes. (The operations cm:latch-leds and cm:latch-leds-always may still be used when in a system-supplied display mode, but the user-specified pattern is unlikely to persist as it may be immediately altered by the system, depending on the mode.)

The names of the possible modes shown above are for the C/Paris and Fortran/Paris interfaces. Through an accident of history, the names for the leds modes are different in the Lisp/Paris interface:

	C and Fortran	Lisp
7	CM_leds_off	nil
	CM_leds_on	t
	CM_leds_throb	:throb
	CM_leds_diagnostics	: diagnostics
	CM_leds_perfmon	:performance-monitor
	CM_leds_sync	:synch
	CM_leds_blink_sync	:blink-and-synch
	chilledolonnicojne	

C'est la vie.

SET-VP-SET

Declares a specified VP set to be current.

Formats	CM:set-vp-set vp-set-id
Operands	vp-set-id A VP set ID.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

.

 $\textbf{Definition} \quad current\text{-}vp\text{-}set \leftarrow vp\text{-}set\text{-}id$

The VP set specified by the *vp-set-id* becomes the current VP set. Most Paris operations implicitly operate within the virtual processors of the current VP set.

SET-VP-SET-GEOMETRY

Alters the geometry of an existing VP set.

Formats	CM:set-vp-set-geometry vp-set-id, geometry-id
Operands	vp-set-id A VP set ID.
	geometry-id A geometry ID.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .

The VP set specified by the *vp-set-id* is altered so that its geometry is that specified by the *geometry-id*. The new geometry must have the same total number of elements (product of axis lengths) as the old geometry.

SET-flag

Sets a specified flag bit.

Formats	CM:set-test CM:set-overflow	
Context	This operation is conditional.	
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $flag[k] \leftarrow 1$	

where flag is test-flag or overflow-flag, as appropriate.

Within each processor, the indicated flag for that processor is set.

S-S-SHIFT

Shifts a signed integer by an amount specified by a signed integer.

ormats	CM:s-s-shi CM:s-s-shi	ft-2-2Ldest/source1, source2, dlen, slen2ft-constant-3-2Ldest, source1, source2-value, dlen, slen1
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer first source field. This is the quantity to be shifted.
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field. This is the shift distance (positive for a left shift, negative for a right shift).
	source2-va	alue A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source. The same shift distance is applied to each <i>source1</i> value.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	For CM:s-s-shift-2-2L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	For CM:s-s-shift-constant-3-2L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	however, 1 fields are	<i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is le for all the fields to be identical.
Flags		flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; it is cleared.
Context	Strategic and the second	ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only cors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \lfloor source1[k] \times 2^{source2[k]} \rfloor$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$ The operand *source1* is shifted by the number of bit positions specified by *source2*, where a positive shift distance indicates a left shift (that is, a shift toward more significant bit positions) and a negative shift distance indicates a right shift (that is, a shift toward less significant bit positions). A left shift introduces zero bits into the vacated (least significant) bit positions; a right shift introduces copies of the sign bit into the vacated (most significant) bit positions. This operation is sometimes called an *arithmetic shift*.

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow the second source operand to be either a memory field or a constant. In the non-constant version the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *dlen*.

The overflow-flag may be altered by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

U-S-SHIFT

Shifts an unsigned integer by an amount specified by a signed integer.

Formats	CM:u-s-shi CM:u-s-shi	ft-2-2L dest/source1, source2, dlen, slen2 ft-constant-3-2L dest, source1, source2-value, dlen, slen1
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field. This is the quantity to be shifted.
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field. This is the shift distance (positive for a left shift, negative for a right shift.)
	source2-va	<i>lue</i> A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source. The same shift distance is applied to each <i>source1</i> value.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	For CM:u-s-shift-2-2L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	For CM:u-s-shift-constant-3-2L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	<i>source2</i> fie ther disjoi	source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. However, the ld must not overlap the dest field, and the field source1 must be ei- nt from or identical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical we the same address and the same length.
Flags		lag is set if the result cannot be represented in the destination field; it is cleared.
Context	A SHE WAS A CONTRACTOR	ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only ors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \left[source1[k] \times 2^{source2[k]} \right]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$	

The operand *source1* is shifted by the number of bit positions specified by *source2*, where a positive shift distance indicates a left shift (that is, a shift toward more significant bit positions) and a negative shift distance indicates a right shift (that is, a shift toward less significant bit positions). Zero-valued bits are introduced into the vacated bit positions (least significant for a left shift, most significant for a right shift). This operation is sometimes called a *logical shift*.

The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow the second source operand to be either a memory field or a constant. In the non-constant version, the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *dlen*.

The overflow-flag may be altered by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

C-C-SIGNUM

The signum of the complex source field is stored in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-c-sigr CM:c-c-sigr	num-1-1L dest/source, s, e num-2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap		e field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. lex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
Definition	For every y	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow signum(source[k])$

The signum of a complex number is a complex number of the same phase but with unit magnitude, unless the numer is a complex zero, in which case the result is a complex zero.

F-F-SIGNUM

Determines whether the floating-point source field is negative, minus zero, plus zero, or positive and places the value -1.0, +0.0, -0.0, or 1.0 in the destination field accordingly.

Formats	-	num-1-1L dest/source, s, e num-2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap		ce field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. ing-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the nat.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- e <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	if conten if sou else if	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do xt-flag $[k] = 1$ then $urce[k] < 0$ then $dest[k] \leftarrow -1.0$ f $source[k] > 0$ then $dest[k] \leftarrow 1.0$ $lest[k] \leftarrow source[k]$

The signum function of the *source* operand is placed in the *dest* operand. The result is -1.0, -0.0, +0.0, or 1.0 thus indicating whether the source value is negative, minus zero, plus zero, or positive, respectively. If the *source* operand is a NaN, then it is copied unchanged.

S-F-SIGNUM

Determines whether the floating-point source field is negative, zero, or positive and places the value -1, 0, or 1 in the destination field accordingly.

Formats CM:s-f-signum-2-2L dest, source, dlen, s, e

Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The fields	dest and source must not overlap in any manner.
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then if source[k] < 0 then $dest[k] \leftarrow -1$ else if source[k] > 0 then $dest[k] \leftarrow 1$ else $dest[k] \leftarrow 0$

The signum function of the *source* operand is placed in the *dest* operand. The result is -1, 0, or 1 according to whether the source value is negative (but non-zero), zero (+0 or -0), or positive (but non-zero), respectively.

S-S-SIGNUM

Determines whether the signed integer source field is negative, zero, or positive and places the value -1, 0, or 1 in the destination field accordingly.

Formats	CM:s-s-sig	gnum-1-1L dest/source, len gnum-2-1L dest, source, len gnum-2-2L dest, source, dlen, slen
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen	The length of the <i>source</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap		ce field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. ger fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Context		ration is conditional. The destination may be altered only in proces- be <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

if context-flag[k] = 1 then if source[k] < 0 then $dest[k] \leftarrow -1$ else if source[k] > 0 then $dest[k] \leftarrow 1$ else $dest[k] \leftarrow 0$

The signum function of the *source* operand is placed in the *dest* operand. The result is -1, 0, or 1 according to whether the source value is negative, zero, or positive, respectively.

C-SIN

The sine of the complex source field is placed in the complex destination field.

Formats		dest/source, s, e dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest T	he field ID of the complex destination field.
	source T	he field ID of the complex source field.
		The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap		field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. In fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Flags	overflow-flag	is set if floating point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context		on is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	For every vir	tual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow \sin source[k]$
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag $[k] \leftarrow 1$

The sine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

F-SIN

Calculates the floating-point sine of the source field values and stores the result in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	CM:f-sin-1-1L dest/source, s, e CM:f-sin-2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then

The sine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

 $dest[k] \leftarrow sin source[k]$

C-SINH

The hyperbolic sine of the complex source field is placed in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-sinh CM:c-sinh	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap		ce field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. plex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same
Flags	overflow-j	flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.
Context		ation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only fors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.
Definition	For every	virtual processor h in the current up set do

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow \sinh source[k]$

The hyperbolic sine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

F-SINH

Calculates the floating-point hyperbolic sine of the source field values and stores the result in the floating-point destination field.

ormats	CM:f-sinh CM:f-sinh		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

The hyperbolic sine of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

SPREAD-FROM-PROCESSOR

A single source processor is specified. A copy of its source field value is spread to every (selected) processor in the destination field. Neither the destination nor the source field needs to be in the current VP set.

Formats		-from-processor-1L dest, send-address-value, source, len -from-processor-a-1L dest, send-address-value, source, len	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.	
	send-addr	ess-value An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the the send address of the processor whose source value is to be spread.	
	source	The field ID of the source field.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	The non-always operations are conditional.		
	The always operations are unconditional.		
	For this instruction, -a is used instead of the standard -always suffix to indicate unconditional operation.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in vp-set(dest) do if (always or context-flag[k] = 1) then $dest[k] \leftarrow source[send-address-value]$

The value of the source field in the processor specified by *send-address-value* is spread to all (selected) processors in the destination field. The source and destination fields may reside in different VP sets.

SPREAD-WITH-C-ADD

The destination field in every selected processor receives the sum of the complex source fields from processors below or above it in some ordering of the processors.

Formats	CM:spread-with-c-add-1L dest, source, axis, s, e			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.		
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the the number of a NEWS axis.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.		
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let $C_k = scan-subclass(k, \{axis\})$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 36 of the Paris Reference Manual.

See the section beginning on page 36 for a general description of spread operations. The CM:spread-with-c-add operation combines *source* fields by performing complex addition.

A call to CM:spread-with-c-add-1L is equivalent to the sequence

but may be faster.

SPREAD-WITH-F-ADD

The destination field in every selected processor receives the sum of the floating-point source fields from all processors in its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:spread-with-f-add-1L dest, source, axis, s, e				
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.			
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.			
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.			
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.				
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				
<u>Proto a la proto de la composición de la composicinde de la composición de la composición de la compo</u>					

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$ where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations. The CM:spreadwith-f-add operation combines *source* fields by performing floating-point addition.

A call to CM:spread-with-f-add-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:scan-with-f-add-1L temp, source, axis, s, e, :upward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care CM:scan-with-copy-1L dest, temp, axis, s + e + 1, :downward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care

but may be faster.

SPREAD-WITH-S-ADD

The destination field in every selected processor receives the sum of the signed integer source fields from all processors in its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:spread-with-s-add-1L dest, source, axis, len		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$ where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations. The CM:spreadwith-s-add operation combines *source* fields by performing signed integer addition.

A call to CM:spread-with-s-add-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:scan-with-s-add-1L temp, source, axis, len, :upward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care CM:scan-with-copy-1L dest, temp, axis, len, :downward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care

but may be faster.
SPREAD-WITH-U-ADD

The destination field in every selected processor receives the sum of the unsigned integer source fields from all processors in its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:sprea	d-with-u-add-1L dest, source, axis, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context		ration is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processe <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\sum_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations. The CM:spreadwith-u-add operation combines *source* fields by performing unsigned integer addition.

A call to CM:spread-with-u-add-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:scan-with-u-add-1L temp, source, axis, len, :upward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care CM:scan-with-copy-1L dest, temp, axis, len, :downward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care

SPREAD-WITH-COPY

The destination field in every selected processor receives a copy of the source value from a particular value within its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:spread-with-copy-1L dest, source, axis, len, coordinate			
Operands	dest The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.		
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
	coordinate	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the NEWS coordinate along <i>axis</i> indicating which element of the scan class is to be replicated.		
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let c = deposit-news-constant(g, k, axis, coordinate-value) $dest[k] \leftarrow source[c]$ where deposit-news-constant is defined in the dictionary entry for CM:depositnews-coordinate.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations.

SPREAD-WITH-LOGAND

The destination field in every selected processor receives the bitwise logical AND of the source fields from all processors in its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:sprea	d-with-logand-1L dest, source, axis, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	source	The field ID of the source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context		ration is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processe <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations. The CM: spreadwith-logand operation combines *source* fields by performing bitwise logical AND operations.

A call to CM:spread-with-logand-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:scan-with-logand-1L temp, source, axis, len, :upward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care CM:scan-with-copy-1L dest, temp, axis, len, :downward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care

CM

Formate

SPREAD-WITH-LOGIOR

The destination field in every selected processor receives the bitwise logical inclusive OR of the source fields from all processors in its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:spread-with-logior-1L dest, source, axis, len		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.	
	source	The field ID of the source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context		ration is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processe <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\bigvee_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$ where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations. The CM:spreadwith-logior operation combines *source* fields by performing bitwise logical inclusive OR operations.

A call to CM:spread-with-logior-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:scan-with-logior-1L temp, source, axis, len, :upward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care CM:scan-with-copy-1L dest, temp, axis, len, :downward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care

SPREAD-WITH-LOGXOR

The destination field in every selected processor receives the bitwise logical exclusive OR of the source fields from all processors in its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:sprea	d-with-logxor-1L dest, source, axis, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	source	The field ID of the source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context		ration is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processe <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\bigoplus_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations. The CM:spreadwith-logxor operation combines *source* fields by performing bitwise logical exclusive OR operations.

A call to CM:spread-with-logxor-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:scan-with-logxor-1L temp, source, axis, len, :upward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care CM:scan-with-copy-1L dest, temp, axis, len, :downward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care

SPREAD-WITH-F-MAX

The destination field in every selected processor receives the largest of the floating-point source fields from all processors in its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:spread-with-f-max-1L dest, source, axis, s, e			
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.		
	axis An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.			
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\max_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where *scan-subclass* is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations. The CM:spreadwith-f-max operation combines *source* fields by performing an floating-point maximum operation.

A call to CM:spread-with-f-max-1L is equivalent to the sequence

SPREAD-WITH-S-MAX

The destination field in every selected processor receives the largest of the signed integer source fields from all processors in its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:spread	d-with-s-max-1L dest, source, axis, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context		ration is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processe <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\max_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations. The CM:spreadwith-s-max operation combines *source* fields by performing a signed integer maximum operation.

A call to CM:spread-with-s-max-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:scan-with-s-max-1L temp, source, axis, len, :upward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care CM:scan-with-copy-1L dest, temp, axis, len, :downward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care

SPREAD-WITH-U-MAX

The destination field in every selected processor receives the largest of the unsigned integer source fields from all processors in its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:spread	-with-u-max-1L dest, source, axis, len		
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.		
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Overlap		e field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. er fields are identical if they have the same address and the same		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\max_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$ where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations. The CM:spreadwith-u-max operation combines *source* fields by performing an unsigned integer maximum operation.

A call to CM:spread-with-u-max-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:scan-with-u-max-1L temp, source, axis, len, :upward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care CM:scan-with-copy-1L dest, temp, axis, len, :downward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care

SPREAD-WITH-F-MIN

The destination field in every selected processor receives the smallest of the floating-point source fields from all processors in its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:spread	with-f-min-1L dest, source, axis, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\min_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations. The CM:spreadwith-f-min operation combines *source* fields by performing an floating-point minimum operation.

A call to CM:spread-with-f-min-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:scan-with-f-min-1L temp, source, axis, s, e, :upward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care CM:scan-with-copy-1L dest, temp, axis, s + e + 1, :downward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care

SPREAD-WITH-S-MIN

The destination field in every selected processor receives the smallest of the signed integer source fields from all processors in its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:spread	l-with-s-min-1L dest, source, axis, len	
Operands	dest The field ID of the signed integer destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the signed integer source field.	
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.	
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\min_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$

where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations. The CM:spreadwith-s-min operation combines *source* fields by performing a signed integer minimum operation.

A call to CM:spread-with-s-min-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:scan-with-s-min-1L temp, source, axis, len, :upward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care CM:scan-with-copy-1L dest, temp, axis, len, :downward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care

SPREAD-WITH-U-MIN

The destination field in every selected processor receives the smallest of the unsigned integer source fields from all processors in its scan subclass.

Formats	CM:spread	d-with-u-min-1L dest, source, axis, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source	The field ID of the unsigned integer source field.
	axis	An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the number of a NEWS axis.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context		ration is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processe <i>context-flag</i> is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then let g = geometry(current-vp-set)let $C_k = scan-subclass(g, k, axis)$ $dest[k] \leftarrow \left(\min_{m \in C_k} source[m]\right)$ where scan-subclass is as defined on page 44.

See section 5.20 on page 42 for a general description of spread operations. The CM:spreadwith-u-min operation combines *source* fields by performing an unsigned integer minimum operation.

A call to CM:spread-with-u-min-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:scan-with-u-min-1L temp, source, axis, len, :upward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care CM:scan-with-copy-1L dest, temp, axis, len, :downward, :inclusive, :none, dont-care

C-SQRT

Calculates the square root of the complex source field and places it in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-sqr CM:c-sqr	t-1-1L dest/source, s, e t-2-1L dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	
Definition	For every if conte	virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do $ext-flag[k] = 1$ then

In each selected processor, the square root of the *source* field value is placed in the *dest* field.

 $dest[k] \leftarrow \sqrt{source}$

F-SQRT

Calculates the floating-point square root of the source field values and stores the result in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	CM:f-sqrt CM:f-sqrt		dest/source, s, e dest, source, s, e
Operands	dest	The	field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source	The	field ID of the floating-point source field.
	s, e		significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Flags	test-flag is set if the source is negative and non-zero; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
	er\		

If the source value is non-negative, then the square root of that value is placed in the destination. The square root of -0 is defined to be -0.

If the source operand is a NaN, then it is copied to the dest field unchanged.

STORE-CONTEXT

Unconditionally stores the context bit into memory.

Formats	CM:store-context dest			
Operands	dest The field ID of the destination bit (a one-bit field).			
Context	This operation is unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .			

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do $dest[k] \leftarrow context-flag[k]$

Within each processor, the context bit for that processor is unconditionally stored into memory.

STORE-flag

Conditionally stores a flag bit into memory.

Formats	CM:store-test	dest			
	CM:store-test-always	dest			
	CM:store-overflow	dest			
	CM:store-overflow-always	dest			
Operands	dest The field ID of	f the destination bit (a or	ne-bit field).		
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				
	The always operations as regardless of the value of		estination may be altered		

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow flag[k]$ where flag is test-flag or overflow-flag, as appropriate.

Within each processor, the indicated flag for that processor is stored into memory.

STRUCTURE-ARRAY-FORMAT

FE-STRUCTURE-ARRAY-FORMAT

This instruction returns an array format descriptor for a particular slot in an array of structures. A format descriptor may be passed to any array transfer instruction to specify a front-end array format, although this is not required. See also CM:fe-array-format and CM:fe-packed-array-format.

This instruction is not provided for the Lisp interface to Paris.

Formats	$\textbf{result} \leftarrow CM: \textbf{fe-structure-array-format} cm-element-byte-size,\\ structure-byte-size$				
Operands	<i>cm-element-byte-size</i> A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the number of bytes each Connection Machine element occupies in the front-end array. This must be a power of two between 1 and 16.				
	structure-byte-size A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the length of the front-end structure in bytes. This may be any positive integer.				
Result	The array format descriptor specified.				
Context	This is a front-end operation. It does not depend on the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .				

The return value is a format descriptor for a front-end array of structures. Such a format descriptor can be passed to any of the CM array transfer instructions in order to allow transfers in either direction between CM fields and a front-end array of structures. If this is done, one CM element per selected processor is copied into, or receives data from, the specified slot across an array of structures on the front end.

Values for both *cm-element-byte-size* and *cm-structure-byte-size* may be obtained by calls to sizeof(...).

The value of *cm-element-byte-size* specifies the length of the structure slot in bytes. It also defines the unit of measure for the *fe-offset-vector* argument to the CM:read-from-news-array and CM:write-to-news-array instructions.

The value of *structure-byte-size* specifies the length of the entire stucture in bytes. It also defines the unit of measure for the argument *fe-dimension-vector* to the CM:read-from-news-array and CM:write-to-news-array instructions.

If a slot other than the first slot in the front-end structure is the destination of a CM:readfrom-news-array or the source for a CM:write-to-news-array transfer instruction, then a pointer to that slot must be provided as the value of *front-end-array*. This is a bit tricky. The pointer must identify the location of the chosen slot in the structure that is the first element of the array of structures.

Here is an example in C.

```
#define n_foos 256
/* declare array of structure foo */
struct foo { int a; double b; char c; } fooarray[n_foos];
/* declare the format */
CM_array_format_t foo_format;
/* declare an offset for the 'b' slot of struct foo */
/* this is a pointer to a double - b is a double */
double *bslot_pointer;
/* lots of other declarations etc. in here */
. . .
/* create format descriptor for foo.b */
foo_format = CM_structure_array_format(sizeof(double), sizeof(struct foo));
/* create pointer offset to slot b of struct foo */
bslot_pointer = &fooarray[0].b;
/* store src-field values in slot b of each foo struct in foo_array */
/* all variables xxxx_vector should be self explanatory */
CM_f_read_from_news_array_1L(bslot_pointer, offset_vector,
                             start_vector, end_vector, axis_vector,
                             src_field, 23, 8, rank,
                             dimension_vector, foo_format);
```

Slot b of each foo structure in the array foo_array receives a copy of the value stored in the corresponding CM *src-field* processor.

The value of bslot_pointer is a pointer to the b slot of the first foo structure in foo_array. Given this starting place, foo_format indicates how many bytes must be skipped between b slots.

For further examples, refer to the manual entitled Introduction to Programming in C/Paris.

F-SUBF-CONST-MULT

Calculates a value (b - a)x and places it in the destination.

CM:f-subf-const-mult-const-1L dest, source1, source2-value, source3 CM:f-subf-const-mult-const-a-1L dest, source1, source2-value, source3	-value, s, e					
Operands dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.						
source1 The field ID of the floating-point first source (subtrahend)) field.					
source2-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the source (minuend).	second					
source3 The field ID of the floating-point third source (multiplier)	field.					
source3-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as th source (multiplier).	e third					
s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest, source1, s and source3 fields. The total length of an operand in this is $s + e + 1$.						
however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field	The fields source1 and source3 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.					
Flags overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaff	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.					
Context The non-always operations are conditional. The destination and flag a altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	may be					
The always operations are unconditional. The destination and flag rate altered regardless of the value of the context-flag.	nay be					

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do
	if (always or $context$ -flag $[k] = 1$) then
	$dest[k] \leftarrow (source2\text{-}value[k] - source1[k]) \times source3[k]$
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

The operand *source1* is subtracted from *source2-value*, treating them as floating-point numbers, and then the difference is multiplied by a third operand *source3*. The result is stored

in the destination field. The various operand formats allow the second and third source operands to be either memory fields or constants.

The constant operands *source2-value* and *source3-value* should be double-precision frontend values (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). The constants are then converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e before the operation is performed.

A call to CM:f-subf-const-mult-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:f-subfrom-constant-3-1L dest, source1, source2-value, s, e CM:f-multiply-3-1L dest, dest, source3, s, e

F-SUB-MULT

Calculates a value (x - a)b and places it in the destination.

Formats	CM:f-sub-	mult-always-1L const-mult-1L	dest, source1, source2, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3, s, e
	CM:f-sub-1 CM:f-sub-1 CM:f-sub-0	const-mult-always-1L mult-const-1L mult-const-always-1L const-mult-const-1L const-mult-const-a-1L	dest, source1, source2-value, source3, s, e dest, source1, source2, source3-value, s, e dest, source1, source2, source3-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, source3-value, s, e
Operands	dest	The field ID of the f	loating-point destination field.
	source1	The field ID of the f	loating-point first source (minuend) field.
	source2	The field ID of the flo	pating-point second source (subtrahend) field.
	source2-vo	ulue A floating-poin source (subtrahend).	t immediate operand to be used as the second
	source3	The field ID of the f	oating-point third source (multiplier) field.
	source3-va	lue A floating-poin source (multiplier).	t immediate operand to be used as the third
	s, e		xponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , <i>source2</i> , 'he total length of an operand in this format
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> , <i>source2</i> , and <i>source3</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.		
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
		s operations are uncor ardless of the value of	nditional. The destination and flag may be the <i>context-flag</i> .
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in	the <i>current-vp-set</i> do

 The operand *source2* is subtracted from *source1*, treating them as floating-point numbers, and then the difference is multiplied by a third operand *source3*. The result is stored in the destination field.

The various operand formats allow the second and third source operands to be either memory fields or constants.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

A call to CM:f-sub-mult-1L is equivalent to the sequence

CM:f-subtract-3-1L temp, source1, source2, s, e CM:f-multiply-3-1L dest, temp, source3, s, e

C-SUBTRACT

The difference of two complex source values is placed in the destination field.

Formats	CM:c-subtract-2-1L CM:c-subtract-always-2-1L CM:c-subtract-3-1L CM:c-subtract-always-3-1L CM:c-subtract-constant-2-1L CM:c-subtract-const-always-2-1L CM:c-subtract-constant-3-1L CM:c-subtract-const-always-3-1L CM:c-subtract-const-always-3-1L CM:c-subfrom-2-1L CM:c-subfrom-always-2-1L CM:c-subfrom-constant-2-1L		s-3-1L ant-2-1L always-2-1L ant-3-1L always-3-1L :-2-1L	dest/source1, source2, s, e dest/source1, source2, s, e dest, source1, source2, s, e dest, source1, source2, s, e dest/source1, source2-value, s, e dest/source1, source2-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, s, e dest, source1, source2-value, s, e dest/source2, source1, s, e dest/source2, source1, s, e dest/source2, source1, s, e	
			always-2-1L	dest/source2, source1-value, s, e	
		rom-consta		dest, source2, source1-value, s, e	
	CM:c-subt	rom-const-	always-3-1L	dest, source2, source1-value, s, e	
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the complex destination field. This is the difference, the result of the subtraction operation.			
	source1	The field	ID of the co	mplex first source field. This is the minuend.	
	source2	source2 The field ID of the complex second source field. This is the sub- trahend.			
	source1-ve	ulue A c	omplex imm	ediate operand to be used as the first source.	
	source2-vo	ulue A o source.	complex im	mediate operand to be used as the second	
	s, e		ields. The f	exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and total length of an operand in this format is	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.				
Flags	overflow-f	lag is set if	floating-poir	nt overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] - source2[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

The operand *source2* is subtracted from *source1*, treated as as complex numbers. The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand. The "subfrom" operations allow for the destination to be subtracted from the other operand, or for a memory field to be subtracted from an immediate value.

The constant operand source1-value or source2-value should be a double-precision complex front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

SUBTRACT

F-SUBTRACT

The difference of two floating-point source values is placed in the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-subtr CM:f-subtr CM:f-subtr CM:f-subtr CM:f-subtr CM:f-subtr CM:f-subfr CM:f-subfr CM:f-subfr CM:f-subfr	act-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, s, eact-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, s, eact-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, s, eact-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, s, eact-const-always-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, s, eact-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, s, eact-const-always-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, s, e	
		om-const-always-3-1L dest, source2, source1-value, s, e	
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field. This is the difference, the result of the subtraction operation.	
	source1	The field ID of the floating-point first source field. This is the minuend.	
	source2	The field ID of the floating-point second source field. This is the subtrahend.	
	source1-va	<i>lue</i> A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the first source.	
	source2-va	<i>lue</i> A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the second source.	
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.	
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	overflow-fl	ag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.	
Context	The non-always operations are conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

The always operations are unconditional. The destination and flag may be altered regardless of the value of the *context-flag*.

The operand *source2* is subtracted from *source1*, treated as as floating-point numbers. The result is stored into the memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand. The "subfrom" operations allow for the destination to be subtracted from the other operand, or for a memory field to be subtracted from an immediate value.

The constant operand *source1-value* or *source2-value* should be a double-precision frontend value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary). Before the operation is performed, the constant is converted, in effect, to the format specified by s and e.

S-SUBTRACT

The difference of two signed integer source values is placed in the destination field. "Borrowin" and "borrow-out" are simulated by the *carry-flag*, and overflow is also computed.

Formats	CM:s-subt CM:s-subf CM:s-subf	ract-2-1Ldest/source1, source2, lenract-3-1Ldest, source1, source2, lenract-constant-2-1Ldest/source1, source2-value, lenract-constant-3-1Ldest, source1, source2-value, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the signed integer destination field. This is the difference, the result of the subtraction operation.
	source1	The field ID of the signed integer first source field. This is the minuend.
	source2	The field ID of the signed integer second source field. This is the subtrahend.
	source1-va	<i>lue</i> A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the first source.
	source2-va	<i>due</i> A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	For CM:s-subtract-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen1	For CM:s-subtract-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	slen2	For CM:s-subtract-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Overlap	however, n fields are i	source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is

permissible for all the fields to be identical.

Flags carry-flag is set if there no borrow-in to the high-order bit position; otherwise it is cleared.

For subtraction, "carry" is equivalent to "not borrow." Thus, if *source1* is greater than or equal to *source2*, then the *carry-flag* is set – meaning there is no borrow. Conversely, if *source1* is less than *source2*, a borrow *is* required so the *carry-flag* is cleared.

overflow-flag is set if the difference cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.

Context This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose *context-flag* is 1.

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do			
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then			
	$dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] - source2[k]$			
	if (no borrow needed in processor k) then $carry-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$			
	else $carry$ -flag $[k] \leftarrow 0$			
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag $[k] \leftarrow 1$			
	$else \ overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$			

The operand source2 is subtracted from source1, treated as as signed integers. A borrow bit is simulated by inverting the carry-flag. The result is stored into the memory field dest.

The various operand formats allow the first and second source operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand. The "subfrom" operations allow for the destination to be subtracted from the other operand, or for a memory field to be subtracted from an immediate value.

The carry-flag and overflow-flag may be altered by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source1-value* or *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-SUBTRACT

The difference of two unsigned integer source values is placed in the destination field. "Borrow-in" and "borrow-out" are simulated by the *carry-flag*, and overflow is also computed.

Formats	CM:u-subf CM:u-subt	ract-2-1L dest/source1, source2, len from-2-1L dest/source2, source1, len			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field. This is the difference, the result of the subtraction operation.			
	source1	The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field. This is the minuend.			
	source2	The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field. This is the subtrahend.			
	source1-vo	<i>lue</i> An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the first source.			
	source2-vo	<i>llue</i> An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the second source.			
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> , <i>source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
	dlen	For CM:u-subtract-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
	slen1	For CM:u-subtract-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
	slen2	For CM:u-subtract-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
Overlap		source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, nust be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer			

The fields sourcel and source2 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical. Flags *carry-flag* is set if there is no borrow-in to the high-order bit position; otherwise it is cleared.

For subtraction, "carry" is equivalent to "not borrow." Thus, if *source1* is greater than or equal to *source2*, then the *carry-flag* is set – meaning there is no borrow. Conversely, if *source1* is less than *source2*, a borrow *is* required so the *carry-flag* is cleared.

overflow-flag is set if the difference cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.

Context This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose *context-flag* is 1.

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do		
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then		
	$dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] - source2[k]$		
	if (no borrow needed in processor k) then $carry$ -flag $[k] \leftarrow 1$		
	else $carry-flag[k] \leftarrow 0$		
	if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow$ -flag $[k] \leftarrow 1$		
	else $overflow$ -flag $[k] \leftarrow 0$		

The operand source2 is subtracted from source1, treated as as unsigned integers. A borrow bit is simulated by inverting the carry-flag. The result is stored into the memory field dest.

The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields or constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand. The "subfrom" operations allow for the destination to be subtracted from the other operand, or for a memory field to be subtracted from an immediate value.

The *carry-flag* and *overflow-flag* may be altered by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source1-value* or *source2-value* should be an unsigned integer frontend value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

S-SUBTRACT-BORROW

In each selected processor, computes the difference of two signed integer source values and places it in the destination field. "Borrow-in" and "borrow-out" are simulated by the *carry-flag*, and overflow is also computed.

Formats CM:s-subtract-borrow-3-1L dest, source1, source2, len

- Operands dest The field ID of the signed integer destination field. This is the difference, the result of the subtraction operation.
 - source1 The field ID of the signed integer first source field. This is the minuend.
 - source2 The field ID of the signed integer second source field. This is the subtrahend.
 - len The length of the dest, source1, and source2 fields. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integerlength*.
- Overlap The fields source1 and source2 may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.
- Flags carry-flag is set if there is no borrow-in to the high-order bit position; otherwise it is cleared.

For subtraction, "carry" is interpreted as "not borrow." Thus, if *source1* is greater than or equal to *source2*, then the *carry-flag* is set – meaning there is no borrow. Conversely, if *source1* is less than *source2*, a borrow *is* required so the *carry-flag* is cleared.

overflow-flag is set if the difference cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.

Context This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose *context-flag* is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] - source2[k] + (carry-flag[k] - 1)$ if (no borrow needed in processor k) then carry-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else carry-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$ The operand source2 is subtracted from source1, treated as signed integers. A borrow bit is simulated by inverting the carry-flag. The result is stored into the memory field dest.

The carry-flag and overflow-flag may be altered by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

U-SUBTRACT-BORROW

In each selected processor, computes the difference of two unsigned integer source values and places it in the destination field. "Borrow-in" and "borrow-out" are simulated by the *carry-flag*, and overflow is also computed.

Formats CM:u-subtract-borrow-3-1L dest, source1, source2, len

- **Operands** dest The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field. This is the difference, the result of the subtraction operation.
 - source1 The field ID of the unsigned integer first source field. This is the minuend.
 - source2 The field ID of the unsigned integer second source field. This is the subtrahend.
 - *len* The length of the *dest*, *source1*, and *source2* fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
- Overlap The fields *source1* and *source2* may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the *dest* field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.
- Flags carry-flag is set if there no borrow-in to the high-order bit position; otherwise it is cleared.

For subtraction, "carry" is equivalent to "not borrow." Thus, if *source1* is greater than or equal to *source2*, then the *carry-flag* is set – meaning there is no borrow. Conversely, if *source1* is less than *source2*, a borrow *is* required so the *carry-flag* is cleared.

overflow-flag is set if the difference cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.

Context This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose *context-flag* is 1.

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow source1[k] - source2[k] + (carry-flag[k] - 1)$ if (no borrow needed in processor k) then carry-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else carry-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$ The operand *source2* is subtracted from *source1*, treated as as unsigned integers. A borrow bit is simulated by inverting the *carry-flag*. The result is stored into the memory field *dest*.

The carry-flag and overflow-flag may be altered by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

SWAP

Swaps the contents of two bit fields.

Formats	CM:swap-2 CM:swap	e-1L dest1/source1, dest2/source2, len always-2-1L dest1/source1, dest2/source2, len		
Operands	dest1	The field ID of the first destination field.		
	source1	The field ID of the first source (same as first destination) field.		
	dest2	The field ID of the second destination field.		
	source2	The field ID of the second source (same as second destination) field.		
	len	The length of the <i>dest1</i> , <i>source1</i> , <i>dest2</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.		
Overlap	The fields dest1 and dest2 must not overlap in any manner.			
Context		ways operations are conditional. The destination may be altered ocessors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
	The always regardless	s operations are unconditional. The destination may be altered of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .		

Each of the two provided fields is copied into the other so as to exchange their contents.

C-TAN

Calculates the complex tangent of the source field values and stores the result in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-tan-1-1L dest/source, s, e CM:c-tan-2-1L dest, source, s, e		
Operands	dest The field ID of the complex destination field.		
	source The field ID of the complex source field.		
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.		
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do		

if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow tan \ source[k]$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$

The tangent of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

F-TAN

Calculates the floating-point tangent of the source field values and stores the result in the floating-point destination field.

Formats		-1L dest/source, s, e 2-1L dest, source, s, e		
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The source field must be either disjoint from or identical to the dest field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			

The tangent of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.
C-TANH

Calculates the complex hyperbolic tangent of the source field values and stores the result in the complex destination field.

Formats	CM:c-tanh-1-1L <i>dest/source</i> , <i>s</i> , <i>e</i> CM:c-tanh-2-1L <i>dest</i> , <i>source</i> , <i>s</i> , <i>e</i>			
Operands	dest	The field ID of the complex destination field.		
	source	The field ID of the complex source field.		
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.		
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two complex fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.			
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.			
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.			
Definition	For every	virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do		

if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow tanh source$

The hyperbolic tangent of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

F-TANH

Calculates the floating-point hyperbolic tangent of the source field values and stores the result in the floating-point destination field.

Formats	CM:f-tanh-1-1L dest/source, s, e CM:f-tanh-2-1L dest, source, s, e		
Operands	dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	source The field ID of the floating-point source field.		
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.		
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if floating-point overflow occurs; otherwise it is unaffected.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do		

if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow tanh source$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then $overflow-flag[k] \leftarrow 1$

The hyperbolic tangent of the value of the source field is stored into the dest field.

TIME

Times other operations and reports both the total amount of time elapsed and the amount of time spent executing on the Connection Machine system.

This instruction is available only from the Lisp/Paris interface. For Fortran/Paris and C/Paris users, the equivalent functionality is provided by the CM:timer- series of functions – which may also be used from Lisp. The CM:timer- functions are documented in this dictionary and also in the CM System User's Guide.

Formats CM:time form, [return-statistics-p]

Operands form The a Lisp, Lisp/Paris, or *Lisp form to be timed. This must be a single Lisp expression. To time more than one expression, enclose them in a progn form.

return-statistics-p The answer to the question, "Do you want timing statistics returned as the value of the macro?". This is an optional keyword argument and defaults to NIL. When specified, the invocation must include the keyword :return-statistics-p followed by T or NIL.

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

The CM: time facility is a Lisp macro, not a function. It is used in the Lisp/Paris interface to time the execution of other operations on the Connection Machine system.

A call to the CM:time macro may contain a single Lisp expression; this is executed in the normal manner, but before the value is returned, timing information is printed out as for the Common Lisp time macro.

Specifying a NIL value to the :return-statistics-p (the default) causes the statistics to be displayed on standard output.

Specifying a T value to the :return-statistics-p causes the statistics to be returned as two floating-point values in a list that is the return value of the macro call.

The first number reported is elapsed time during execution on both the front-end computer and the Connection Machine system. In addition, timing information related to Connection Machine system performance is printed. The second number reported is the amount of that time that the Connection Machine system was actually executing instructions (not waiting for the front end). For optimal performance, the programmer strives to obtain the maximum percentage of Connection Machine utilization possible.

For further information about timing code from the Lisp/Paris interface, see the CM System User's Guide chaper entitled "In The Lisp Environment."

The timing facility is provided in the C/Paris and Fortran/Paris interfaces through a set of functions whose names all begin with CM:timer.

TIMER

The timing facility. A set of instructions that together determine how much time any part of a program takes to execute on the Connection Machine.

Formats	CM:timer-clear		timer	
	CM:timer-start		timer	
	CM:timer-stop CM:timer-print CM:timer-read-starts		timer	
			timer	
			timer	
	CM:timer-read-elapsed		timer	
	CM:timer-read-cm-busy		timer	
	CM:timer-read-cm-idle		timer	
	CM:timer-read-run-state		timer	
	CM:timer-set-starts		timer, int	
Operands	timer	The integer used to identify the timer being used This must b an unsigned integer immediate operand between 0 (inclusive) and CM*max-number-of-timers* (exclusive).		
	int	For CM:time timer is to b	er-set-starts, the start number to which the specified pe reset.	

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

To activate multiple timers, assign each an integer identifier. Nested calls to different timers is permitted. Each timer can record timings of up to 43 hours, with microsecond precision.

Four basic operations are required in order to use this timing facility. Use them in the following order:

CM:timer-clear

Sets the total elapsed time, total CM busy time, and number of starts for *timer* to zero.

CM:timer-start

Starts the clock running for *timer*. Elapsed time (also known as wall time) and CM busy time are accumulated. Number of starts is incremented.

CM:timer-stop

Stops the clock running for timer. The specified timer's state variables for CM elapsed time and CM busy time are updated. A subsequent call to CM:timer-start – without an intervening call to CM:timer-clear – restarts the timer and *adds* to the accumulated elapsed and busy values for this timer.

CM:timer-print

Prints information about *timer*, including, but not limited to: the number of starts, the total elapsed time, and the total time that the Connection Machine was busy while this timer was active.

To use a timer, first invoke CM:timer-clear to zero the timer values. Then, call CM:timerstart and CM:timer-stop any number of times. Finally call CM:timer-print.

For each timer, state variables for CM elapsed time and CM busy time are maintained. Elapsed time records how much time has elapsed between each pair of CM:timer-start and CM:timer-stop calls that have been made since CM:timer-clear was last called for *timer*. CM busy time records the total time the CM has spent being active between each pair of CM:timer-start and CM:timer-stop calls that have been made since CM:timer-clear was last called for *timer*. CM busy time records the total time the CM has spent being active between each pair of CM:timer-start and CM:timer-stop calls that have been made since CM:timer-clear was last called for *timer*.

The following five functions return state values for a specified timer:

CM:timer-read-starts

Returns an unsigned integer, the number of times CM:timer-start has been called for this timer.

CM:timer-read-elapsed

Returns the total elapsed time, in seconds, accumulated while timer was running.

CM:timer-read-cm-busy

Returns the total CM busy time, in seconds, accumulated while timer was running.

CM:timer-read-cm-idle

Returns the total CM idle time, in seconds, accumulated while *timer* was running. CM idle time is equal to total elapsed time minus the CM busy time.

CM:timer-read-run-state

Returns TRUE (or t or 1) if and only if *timer* is running. Otherwise, returns FALSE (or nil or 0).

One further operation is provided to reset the number of starts for the specified timer:

CM:timer-set-starts

Sets the number of starts for *timer* to the specified integer value. This is useful in code that stops a timer to query it and then restarts the same timer. CM:timer-set-starts can be used to set the number of starts to 1 less than the actual number of starts before restarting the timer. In this way, querying a timer does not change the number of starts ultimately recorded.

For a detailed guide to using the new timing facility, including information about conditions that affect timing accuracy, see the CM System User's Guide.

FE-TO-GRAY-CODE

Converts, on the front end, a nonnegative integer into a bit string representing a Gray-coded integer value.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM: fe-to-gray-code$ integer		
Operands	<i>integer</i> An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the nonnegative integer.		
Result	An unsigned integer, the Gray code equivalent of integer.		
Context	This operation is performed on the front end. It does not depend on the CM context-flag.		
-			

Definition Return integer $\oplus \left\lfloor \frac{integer}{2} \right\rfloor$

This function calculates, entirely on the front end, a bit-string encoding in a particular reflected binary Gray code. The position of that value in the standard Gray code sequence is equal to the specified *integer*.

Note that the binary value 0 is always equivalent to a Gray code string that is all 0-bits.

U-TO-GRAY-CODE

Converts an unsigned binary integer to a bit string representing a Gray-coded integer value.

Formats	CM:u-to-gray-code-1-1L dest/source, len CM:u-to-gray-code-2-1L dest, source, len	
Operands	destThe field ID of the destination field.sourceThe field ID of the unsigned integer source field.	
	<i>len</i> The length of the <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length.	
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.	

Definition For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k]\langle len - 1 \rangle \leftarrow source[k]\langle len - 1 \rangle$ for j from len - 2 to 0 do $dest[k]\langle j \rangle \leftarrow source[k]\langle j \rangle \oplus source[k]\langle j + 1 \rangle$

The source operand is an unsigned binary integer, and is converted to a bit-string value in a particular reflected binary Gray code. The position of that value in the standard Gray code sequence is the source.

Note that the binary value 0 is always equivalent to a Gray code string that is all 0-bits.

TRANSPOSE32

Within each cluster of 32 physical processors, for every group of 32 virtual processors in such a cluster, copies one 32-bit field to another. During this copying operation, transposes the data as a 32-by-32 bit matrix. Thus, each virtual processor receives one bit from the source value of each virtual processor in its group of 32.

Formats		ose32-1-1L dest/source, len ose32-2-1L dest, source, len
Operands	source	The field ID of the source field.
	dest	The field ID of the destination field.
	len	The length of the <i>source</i> and <i>dest</i> fields. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*. This must be a multiple of 32.
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two bit fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. The fields <i>dest</i> and <i>source</i> may overlap in any manner.	
Context	This operation is unconditional. The destination may be altered regardless of the value of the <i>context-flag</i> .	

Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do
	if $context-flag[k] = 1$ then
	for all j such that $0 \le j < dlen$ do
	$dest[k]\langle j\rangle \leftarrow$
	$source \left[32r \left\lfloor \frac{k}{32r} \right\rfloor + (k \bmod r) + r(j \bmod 32) \right] \left\langle 32 \left\lfloor \frac{j}{32} \right\rfloor + \frac{k \bmod 32}{r} \right\rangle$
	where r is the value of CM: *virtual-to-physical-processor-ratio* and j is the 1
	position in each field.

bit

This instruction copies each 32-bit field to the corresponding 32-bit field within each virtual processor. In the course of copying the bits, it "transposes" them so that a 32-bit value lying entirely within the *source* field of one virtual processor is made to occupy a memory slice, that is, one bit in each of 32 virtual processors. The opposite is also true: the 32-bit value that ends up in the *dest* field of a virtual processor is made up of one bit from each of 32 virtual processors. Transposed data is said to be stored in a *slicewise* format.

For the purposes of this instruction, the physical processors are divided into clusters of 32. Two processors are in the same cluster if their physical processor numbers agree in all but the five least significant bits. The virtual processors are similarly divided into groups of 32; a group of virtual processors consists of one virtual processor from each physical processor of a cluster, such that the virtual processors occupy the same physical memory locations within their respective physical processors. Thus, two virtual processors are in the same group if their virtual processor numbers agree in all but bit positions n through n + 4, where n is the number of virtual processors bits in each physical processor.

The CM:transpose32 operation may then be understood as taking the 32 32-bit *source* values from a group of 32 virtual processors as the rows of a 32-by-32 bit matrix, and then storing the columns of this matrix into the *dest* fields of these same virtual processors.

The process may be understood pictorially. Suppose that before the operation the memory of a group of 32 virtual processors looks like this:



Then, after the CM: transpose 32 operation, it will look like this:

TRANSPOSE32



Knowledge of the internal details of Connection Machine VP memory layout is required to use this instruction properly on *source* values represented in more than 32-bits.

This instruction reorients processor data into a slicewise format that permits rapid, indirect field addressing. A memory region containing transposed data may be viewed either as a single, *shared slicewise array* or as a set of *parallel slicewise arrays*. (See the CM:aref32 and CM:aref32-shared dictionary entries for a description of these data formats.) Viewed as a shared slicewise array, this is especially useful for quickly constructing lookup tables.

Transposition is reversed by applying the CM:transpose32 instruction to a field already stored in the slicewise format. To preserve the correlation between processors and data, this instruction should not be used on slicewise data that was orginally stored by providing CM:aset32 or CM:aset32-shared with an *index-limit* other than 32.

F-F-TRUNCATE

Rounds each source field value to the largest integral value not greater than that value and stores the result as a floating-point number in the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-f-truncate-1-1L dest/source, s, e CM:f-f-truncate-2-1L dest, source, s, e				
Operands	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.			
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest and source fields. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.			
Overlap	The <i>source</i> field must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two floating-point fields are identical if they have the same address and the same format.				
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				
Definition		virtual processor k in the <i>current-vp-set</i> do xt -flag $[k] = 1$ then			

The source field, treated as a floating-point number, is rounded to the nearest integer in

the direction of zero, which is stored into the dest field as a floating-point number.

 $dest[k] \leftarrow sign(source) \times \lfloor |source[k]| \rfloor$

S-F-TRUNCATE

Rounds each floating-point source field value to the largest integer not greater than that value and stores the result as a signed integer in the destination field.

Formats	CM:s-f-truncate-2-2L dest, source, dlen, s, e						
Operands	dest	dest The field ID of the signed integer destination field.					
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.					
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.					
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.					
Overlap	The fields dest and source must not overlap in any manner.						
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the <i>dest</i> field; otherwise it is cleared.						
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.						
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest[k] \leftarrow sign(source) \times source[h] $						

 $dest[k] \leftarrow sign(source) \times \lfloor |source[k]| \rfloor$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$ else overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 0$

The source field, treated as a floating-point number, is rounded to the nearest integer in the direction of zero, which is stored into the *dest* field as a signed integer.

S-TRUNCATE

The quotient of two signed integer source values, rounded toward zero to the nearest integer, is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

Formats		cate-2-1L	dest, source1, source2, dlen, slen1, slen2 dest/source1, source2, len dest, source1, source2, len dest/source1, source2-value, len dest, source1, source2-value, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of th	ne signed integer quotient field.
	source1	The field ID of th	ne signed integer dividend field.
	source2	The field ID of th	ne signed integer divisor field.
	source2-vo	<i>ulue</i> A signed int source.	eger immediate operand to be used as the second
	len	-	e dest, source1, and source2 fields. This must an 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-
	dlen		e-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must an 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-
	slen1		e-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This must an 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-
	slen2		e-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This must an 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the quotient cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared. test-flag is set if divisor is zero; otherwise it is cleared.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only		

Context This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose *context-flag* is 1.

TRUNCATE

The signed integer *source1* operand is divided by the signed integer *source2* operand. The mathematical quotient is truncated towards zero and stored into the signed integer memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields are constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-TRUNCATE

The quotient of two unsigned integer source values, rounded toward zero to the nearest integer, is placed in the destination field. Overflow is also computed.

Formats	CM:u-truncate-3-3L CM:u-truncate-2-1L CM:u-truncate-3-1L CM:u-truncate-constant-2-1L CM:u-truncate-constant-3-1L		dest, source1, source2, dlen, slen1, slen2 dest/source1, source2, len dest, source1, source2, len dest/source1, source2-value, len dest, source1, source2-value, len
Operands	dest	The field ID of the	e unsigned integer quotient field.
	source1	The field ID of the	e unsigned integer dividend field.
	source2	The field ID of the	e unsigned integer divisor field.
	source2-va	<i>lue</i> An unsigned second source.	integer immediate operand to be used as the
	len		<i>dest, source1</i> , and <i>source2</i> fields. This must be no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	dlen	-3-3L, the length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	slen1		e-3-3L, the length of the <i>source1</i> field. This tive and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-
	slen2		e-3-3L, the length of the <i>source2</i> field. This tive and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-
Overlap	The fields <i>source1</i> and <i>source2</i> may overlap in any manner. Each of them, however, must be either disjoint from or identical to the <i>dest</i> field. Two integer fields are identical if they have the same address and the same length. It is permissible for all the fields to be identical.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the quotient cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared.		
	<i>test-flag</i> is	set if divisor is zer	o; otherwise it is cleared.
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flags may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

TRUNCATE

The unsigned integer *source1* operand is divided by the unsigned integer *source2* operand. The floor of the mathematical quotient is stored into the unsigned integer memory field *dest*. The various operand formats allow operands to be either memory fields are constants; in some cases the destination field initially contains one source operand.

The overflow-flag may be affected by these operations. If overflow occurs, then the destination field will contain as many of the low-order bits of the true result as will fit.

The constant operand *source2-value* should be a signed integer front-end value. Generally the constant has the same length as the field operand it replaces, although this is not strictly required. Regardless of the length of the constant, however, the operation is performed using exactly the number of bits specified by *len*.

U-F-TRUNCATE

Rounds each source field value to the largest integer not greater than that value and stores the result as an unsigned integer in the destination field.

Formats	CM:u-f-truncate-2-2L dest, source, dlen, s, e				
Operands	dest	est The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.			
	source	The field ID of the floating-point source field.			
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.			
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the source field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.			
Overlap	The fields dest and source must not overlap in any manner.				
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the result cannot be represented in the dest field; otherwise it is cleared.				
Context	This operation is conditional. The destination and flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.				
Definition	For every virtual processor k in the current-vp-set do if context-flag[k] = 1 then $dest \leftarrow sign(source) \times source $				

 $dest \leftarrow sign(source) \times \lfloor |source| \rfloor$ if (overflow occurred in processor k) then overflow-flag[k] $\leftarrow 1$

The source field, treated as a floating-point number, is rounded to the nearest integer in the direction of zero, and the result is stored into the *dest* field as an unsigned integer.



F-VAX-TO-IEEE

Converts the floating-point source field values from VAX floating-point format to IEEE floating-point format and stores the result in the destination field.

Formats	CM:f-vax-to-ieee-1L ieee-dest, vax-source, len		
Operands	ieee-dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.		
	vax-source The field ID of the floating-point source field.		
	len The length of the vax-source and ieee-dest fields. The value of len must be either 32 or 64.		
Overlap	The fields <i>ieee-dest</i> and <i>vax-source</i> may overlap in any manner.		
Flags	overflow-flag is set if the vax-source cannot be represented in the destination field; otherwise it is cleared. If vax-source is the VAX "undefined variable", the IEEE destination is set to NaN(all 1's) and the overflow-flag is cleared. VAX double precision format uses three more mantissa bits than the IEEE double precision format uses. These bits are simply dropped during the con- version. The overflow-flag is always cleared for double-precision conversion.		
Context	This operation is conditional. The flag may be altered only in processors whose <i>context-flag</i> is 1.		

The CM operates internally on floating point data in IEEE format whereas the VAX uses a VAX floating-point format. In each active processor, this function converts a floating-point field in VAX format to a field in standard IEEE format.

The value of *len* specifies the precision of *vax-source*. If *len* is specified as 32, then VAX 'F' format is used. If *len* is specified as 64, then VAX 'D' format is used.

VAX and IEEE floating-point formats are incompatible, so there are a number of potential inaccuracies in the translation. These are described in the flags description above.

This instruction is useful for rapidly converting floating-point data from VAX to IEEE format. For example, if data is transferred from a VAX to a file in the CM file system, CM:f-vax-to-ieee-1L should be called after reading the data file.

All Paris front end to CM data transfer functions automatically convert the data from the front-end format appropriately so it is not necessary to call CM:vax-to-ieee before calling, for instance, one of the write-to-news-array instructions.

To convert data back to VAX floating-point format, see the definition of CM:f-ieee-to-vax-1L.

VP-SET-GEOMETRY

Returns the geometry associated with a given VP set.

Formats	$result \leftarrow CM:vp-set-geometry vp-set-id$
Operands	vp-set-id A VP set ID.
Result	A geometry ID, identifying the current geometry of the specified VP set.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

Definition Return geometry(vp-set-id)

The geometry associated with the specified VP set is returned.

WARM-BOOT

This operation is used by the Lisp/Paris interface to reinitialize the Connection Machine system without disturbing user memory.

Formats CM:warm-boot

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This operation clears error status indicators for the attached Connection Machine hardware. It also clears the IFIFO and OFIFO in the bus interface and possibly loads fresh microcode into the attached microcontroller(s). The user memory areas in the Connection Machine system are not disturbed, but are checked for errors; any memory errors are reported. Certain system memory areas in the Connection Machine system are reinitialized, but the state of the pseudo-random number generator is not altered and the system lights-display mode is not altered. The intent is to recover from an error condition while preserving as much of the machine state as possible.

The facility for warm-booting Connection Machine hardware is provided in different ways in the Lisp/Paris interface (on the one hand) and the C/Paris and Fortran/Paris interfaces (on the other hand).

In the Lisp/Paris interface, CM:warm-boot is a function.

This operation takes no arguments and returns no values. It signals an error if the warmboot process was not successful.

There are two sets of initializations, kept in the variables CM:*before-warm-bootinitializations* and CM:*after-warm-boot-initializations*, that are evaluated before and after anything else occurs.

In the C/Paris and Fortran/Paris interfaces, there is no CM:warm-boot operation. Instead, a related operation called CM:init is used.

C-WRITE-TO-NEWS-ARRAY

Copies a subarray of an array in the memory of the front end into a field within a set of processors forming a subarray (of the same shape) of the NEWS grid. Both source and destination values are treated as complex numbers.

Note: The read-from-news-array and write-to-news-array operations do not require that the specified CM field be in the current VP set.

Formats	CM:c-write	e-to-news-array-1L	front-end-array, fe-offset-vector, cm-start-vector, cm-end-vector, cm-axis-vector, dest, s, e, [fe-rank, fe-dimension-vector, format]
Operands	front-end-	array A front-end data.	l array (possibly multidimensional) of complex
	fe-offset-ve		vector of signed integer subscript offsets for the Must be of length <i>fe-rank</i> .
	cm-start-v		vector of signed integer inclusive lower bounds Must be of length <i>fe-rank</i> .
	cm-end-veo		vector of signed integer exclusive upper bounds Must be of length <i>fe-rank</i> .
	cm-axis-ve		l vector of signed integer numbers indicating be of length <i>fe-rank</i> .
	dest		he complex destination field. Must have length of the <i>dest</i> geometry.
	s, e		nd exponent lengths for the $dest$ field. The total and in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
	fe-rank		r, the rank (number of dimensions) of the This argument is not provided when calling Paris
	fe-dimensio	front-end-array.	t-end vector of signed integer dimensions of the This argument is not provided when calling Paris be of length <i>fe-rank</i> .
	format	The array descrip ment when calling	tor for <i>front-end-array</i> . This is a keyword argu- g Paris from Lisp.
Context	This opera	tion is unconditior	nal. It does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .

This operation copies a rectangular subblock of an array in the front end into a similarly shaped subblock of the NEWS grid. Complex number values are transferred from the specified *front-end-array* to the Connection Machine processors.

The *dest* parameter specifies the memory address within each processor of the field into which the data is stored.

The *front-end-array* parameter specifies the front-end source array from which one element is copied to each processor specified by *dest*.

The *fe-rank* parameter specifies the rank of the front-end array and is normally equal to the rank of the destination field geometry. When calling Paris from Lisp, this value can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The vector arguments are one-dimensional front-end arrays.

The *fe-dimension-vector* parameter specifies the dimensions of the front-end array. These dimensions are measured in units of *array-element-size*, which is implicitly specified by *format*. (See the description of *format* below.) When calling Paris from Lisp, the front-end array dimensions can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The *fe-offset-vector* parameter contains the coordinate of the first front-end array element transferred to the Connection Machine. The length of this argument is measured in units of *cm-element-size*, except during an extended array transfer – when it is measured in units of (*stride* \times *array-element-size*). Notice that *cm-element-size*, *array-element-size*, and *stride* are parameters to the operations that return the *format* array descriptor. (See the description of *format* below.)

The *cm-start-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the first CM element to receive data from the front end. The *cm-end-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the last CM element to receive data from the front end. Both of these are permuted by by the values in *cm-axis-vector*.

The *cm-axis-vector* parameter specifies how Connection Machine axes are mapped to frontend array axes. For example, if *cm-axis-vector*[A] = B, then axis A of the Connection Machine destination field geometry is mapped to axis B of the front-end array. The length of this vector must be equal to the rank of the destination field geometry.

The format parameter is an array descriptor that specifies the format of the front-end array. An appropriate descriptor may be obtained by a call to CM:array-format, CM:packedarray-format, or CM:structure-array-format. Alternatively, from C or Fortran, one of the following predefined complex format values may be used: CM_complex_float_single or CM_complex_float_double. For complex data types in C, two front-end elements are used for each Connection Machine element.

WRITE-TO-NEWS-ARRAY

When calling Paris from Lisp, the *format* parameter is a keyword argument; for complex transfers only arrays of type t may be used

F-WRITE-TO-NEWS-ARRAY

Copies a subarray of an array in the memory of the front end into a field within a set of processors forming a subarray (of the same shape) of the NEWS grid. Both source and destination values are treated as floating-point numbers.

Note: The read-from-news-array and write-to-news-array operations do *not* require that the specified CM field be in the current VP set.

Formats	CM:f-write-	to-news-array-1L front-end-array, fe-offset-vector, cm-start-vector, cm-end-vector, cm-axis-vector, dest, s, e, [fe-rank, fe-dimension-vector, format]
Operands	front-end-o	rray A front-end array (possibly multidimensional) of floating- point data.
	fe-offset-ve	ctor A front-end vector of signed integer subscript offsets for the front-end-array. Must be of length fe-rank.
	cm-start-v	ector A front-end vector of signed integer inclusive lower bounds for NEWS indices. Must be of length <i>fe-rank</i> .
	cm-end-veo	tor A front-end vector of signed integer exclusive upper bounds for NEWS indices. Must be of length <i>fe-rank</i> .
	cm-axis-ve	ctor A front-end vector of signed integer numbers indicating NEWS axes. Must have length equal to the rank of the <i>dest</i> geom- etry.
	dest	The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	s, e	The significand and exponent lengths for the dest field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
	fe-rank	A signed integer, the rank (number of dimensions) of the <i>front-end-array</i> . This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.
	fe-dimensi	on-vector A front-end vector of signed integer dimensions of the front-end-array. This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp. Must be of length fe-rank.
	format	The array descriptor for <i>front-end-array</i> . This is a keyword argument when calling Paris from Lisp.

Context This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

This operation copies a rectangular subblock of an array in the front end into a similarly shaped subblock of the NEWS grid. Floating-point number values are transferred from the specified *array* to the Connection Machine processors.

The *dest* parameter specifies the memory address within each processor of the field into which the data is stored.

The *front-end-array* parameter specifies the front-end source array from which one element is copied to each processor specified by *dest*.

The *fe-rank* parameter specifies the rank of the front-end array and is normally equal to the rank of the destination field geometry. When calling Paris from Lisp, this value can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The vector arguments are one-dimensional front-end arrays.

The *fe-dimension-vector* parameter specifies the dimensions of the front-end array. These dimensions are measured in units of *array-element-size*, which is implicitly specified by *format*. (See the description of *format* below.) When calling Paris from Lisp, the front-end array dimensions can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The *fe-offset-vector* parameter contains the coordinate of the first front-end array element transferred to the Connection Machine. The length of this argument is measured in units of *cm-element-size*, except during an extended array transfer – when it is measured in units of (*stride* \times *array-element-size*). Notice that *cm-element-size*, *array-element-size*, and *stride* are parameters to the operations that return the *format* array descriptor. (See the description of *format* below.)

The *cm-start-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the first CM element to receive data from the front end. The *cm-end-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the last CM element to receive data from the front end. Both of these are permuted by by the values in *cm-axis-vector*.

The *cm-axis-vector* parameter specifies how Connection Machine axes are mapped to frontend array axes. For example, if *cm-axis-vector*[A] = B, then axis A of the Connection Machine destination field geometry is mapped to axis B of the front-end array. The length of this vector must be equal to the rank of the destination field geometry.

The *format* parameter is an array descriptor that specifies the format of the front-end array. An appropriate descriptor may be obtained by a call to CM:array-format, CM:packed-array-format, or CM:structure-array-format. Alternatively, one of the predefined floating-point *format* values may be used. These are CM_float_single or CM_float_double from C or Fortran, and :float-single or :float-double from Lisp.

When calling Paris from Lisp, the format parameter is a keyword argument. If not specified,

it defaults based on the element type of the front-end array or, if the array is of type t, based on the type of the Connection Machine field.

For all i such that $0 \leq j < \prod_{j=0}^{rank-1} (end_j - start_j)$ do Definition for all m such that $0 \le m < rank$ do

$$let \ s_{\langle i,m\rangle} = \begin{bmatrix} i \\ \prod_{j=m+1}^{rank-1} (end_j - start_j) \end{bmatrix} \mod (end_m - start_m)$$
$$let \ k_i = \bigvee_{\substack{j=0\\j=0}}^{rank-1} make-news-coordinate(axis_j, start_j + s_{i,j})$$
$$dest[k_i] \leftarrow front-end-array_{s_{\langle i,0\rangle},s_{\langle i,1\rangle},\dots,s_{\langle i,rank-1\rangle}}$$

Another formulation:

For all s_0 such that $0 \le s_0 < (end_0 - start_0)$ do for all s_1 such that $0 \leq s_1 < (end_1 - start_1)$ do for all s_2 such that $0 \le s_2 < (end_2 - start_2)$ do for all s_{rank-1} such that $0 \leq s_{rank-1} < (end_{rank-1} - start_{rank-1})$ do let $k_{s_0,s_1,\dots,s_{rank-1}} = \bigvee_{j=0}^{rank-1} make-news-coordinate(axis_j, start_j + s_j)$ $dest[k_{s_0,s_1,\ldots,s_{rank-1}}] \leftarrow$ $front-end-array_{offset_0+s_0,offset_1+s_1,\ldots,offset_{rank-1}+s_{rank-1}}$

S-WRITE-TO-NEWS-ARRAY

Copies a subarray of an array in the memory of the front end into a field within a set of processors forming a subarray (of the same shape) of the NEWS grid. Both the source and destination values are treated as signed integers.

Note: The read-from-news-array and write-to-news-array operations do *not* require that the specified CM field be in the current VP set.

Formats	CM:s-write-to-news-array-1L front-end-array, fe-offset-vector, cm-start-vector, cm-end-vector, cm-axis-vector, dest, len, [fe-rank, fe-dimension-vector, format]	,
Operands	front-end-array A front-end array (possibly multidimensional) of signed in- teger data.	
	fe-offset-vector A front-end vector of signed integer subscript offsets for the front-end-array. Must be of length fe-rank.	
	cm-start-vector A front-end vector of signed integer inclusive lower bounds for NEWS indices. Must be of length <i>fe-rank</i> .	
	cm-end-vector A front-end vector of signed integer exclusive upper bounds for NEWS indices. Must be of length fe-rank.	
	<i>cm-axis-vector</i> A front-end vector of signed integer numbers indicating NEWS axes. Must have length equal to the rank of the <i>dest</i> geometry.	
	dest The field ID of the signed integer destination field.	
	len The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.	
	fe-rank A signed integer, the rank (number of dimensions) of the front-end-array. This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.	
	fe-dimension-vector A front-end vector of signed integer dimensions of the front-end-array. This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp. Must be of length fe-rank.	1
	format The array descriptor for front-end-array. This is a keyword argument when calling Paris from Lisp.	5
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.	

This operation copies a rectangular subblock of an array from the front end into a similarly shaped subblock of the NEWS grid. Signed integer values are transferred from the specified *array* to the Connection Machine processors.

The *dest* parameter specifies the memory address within each processor of the field into which the data is stored.

The *front-end-array* parameter specifies the front-end source array from which one element is copied to each processor specified by *dest*.

When calling Paris from Lisp, the array may be either a general array (of type t) containing signed integers, or a specialized integer-element array (such as an array of type (unsigned-byte 8)).

The *fe-rank* parameter specifies the rank of the front-end array and is normally equal to the rank of the destination field geometry. When calling Paris from Lisp, this value can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The vector arguments are one-dimensional front-end arrays.

The *fe-dimension-vector* parameter specifies the dimensions of the front-end array. These dimensions are measured in units of *array-element-size*, which is implicitly specified by *format*. (See the description of *format* below.) When calling Paris from Lisp, the front-end array dimensions can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The fe-offset-vector parameter contains the coordinate of the first front-end array element transferred to the Connection Machine. The length of this argument is measured in units of *cm-element-size*, except during an extended array transfer – when it is measured in units of (stride \times array-element-size). Notice that *cm-element-size*, array-element-size, and stride are parameters to the operations that return the format array descriptor. (See the description of format below.)

The *cm-start-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the first CM element to receive data from the front end. The *cm-end-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the last CM element to receive data from the front end. Both of these are permuted by by the values in *cm-axis-vector*.

The *cm-axis-vector* parameter specifies how Connection Machine axes are mapped to frontend array axes. For example, if *cm-axis-vector*[A] = B, then axis A of the Connection Machine destination field geometry is mapped to axis B of the front-end array. The length of this vector must be equal to the rank of the destination field geometry.

The format parameter is an array descriptor that specifies the format of the front-end array. An appropriate descriptor may be obtained by a call to CM:array-format, CM:packed-arrayformat, or CM:structure-array-format. Alternatively, one of the predefined signed format values may be used.

WRITE-TO-NEWS-ARRAY

From C or Fortran a value of CM_8_bit, CM_16_bit, or CM_32_bit specifies an unpacked frontend array while CM_1_bit_packed, CM_2_bit_packed, or CM_4_bit_packed specifies a front-end array in which several CM elements are packed into each array element. From Lisp, the predefined signed format keywords are :8-bit, :16-bit, :32-bit, :1-bit-packed, :2-bit-packed, and :4-bit-packed.

When calling Paris from Lisp, the *format* parameter is a keyword argument. If not specified, it defaults based on the element type of the front-end array or, if the array is of type t, based on the type of the Connection Machine field.

U-WRITE-TO-NEWS-ARRAY

Copies a subarray of an array in the memory of the front end into a field within a set of processors forming a subarray (of the same shape) of the NEWS grid. Both the source and destination values are treated as unsigned integers.

Note: The read-from-news-array and write-to-news-array operations do not require that the specified CM field be in the current VP set.

Formats	CM:u-writ	e-to-news-array-1L front-end-array, fe-offset-vector, cm-start-vector, cm-end-vector, cm-axis-vector, dest, len, [fe-rank, fe-dimension-vector, format]
Operands	front-end-	array A front-end array (possibly multidimensional) of unsigned integer data.
	fe-offset-v	<i>front-end vector</i> of signed integer subscript offsets for the <i>front-end-array</i> . Must be of length <i>fe-rank</i> .
	cm-start-	vector A front-end vector of signed integer inclusive lower bounds for NEWS indices. Must be of length <i>fe-rank</i> .
	cm-end-ve	ector A front-end vector of signed integer exclusive upper bounds for NEWS indices. Must be of length <i>fe-rank</i> .
	cm-axis-v	ector A front-end vector of signed integer numbers indicating NEWS axes. Must have length equal to the rank of the <i>dest</i> geom- etry.
	dest	The field ID of the unsigned integer dest field.
	len	The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
	fe-rank	A signed integer, the rank (number of dimensions) of the <i>front-end-array</i> . This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp.
	fe-dimens	ion-vector A front-end vector of signed integer dimensions of the front-end-array. This argument is not provided when calling Paris from Lisp. Must be of length fe-rank.
	format	The array descriptor for <i>front-end-array</i> . This is a keyword argument when calling Paris from Lisp.
Context	This oper	ation is unconditional. It does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .

This operation copies a rectangular subblock of an array from the front end into a similarly shaped subblock of the NEWS grid. Unsigned integer values are transferred from the specified *array* to the Connection Machine processors.

The *dest* parameter specifies the memory address within each processor of the field into which data is stored.

The *front-end-array* parameter specifies the front-end source array from which one element is copied to each processor specified by *dest*.

The *fe-rank* parameter specifies the rank of the front-end array and is normally equal to the rank of the destination field geometry. When calling Paris from Lisp, this value can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The vector arguments are one-dimensional front-end arrays.

The *fe-dimension-vector* parameter specifies the dimensions of the front-end array. These dimensions are measured in units of *array-element-size*, which is implicitly specified by *format*. (See the description of *format* below.) When calling Paris from Lisp, the front-end array dimensions can be deduced from the value of *front-end-array* and must not be specified.

The *fe-offset-vector* parameter contains the coordinate of the first front-end array element transferred to the Connection Machine. The length of this argument is measured in units of *cm-element-size*, except during an extended array transfer – when it is measured in units of (*stride* \times *array-element-size*). Notice that *cm-element-size*, *array-element-size*, and *stride* are parameters to the operations that return the *format* array descriptor. (See the description of *format* below.)

The *cm-start-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the first CM element to receive data from the front end. The *cm-end-vector* parameter specifies the coordinate of the last CM element to receive data from the front end. Both of these are permuted by by the values in *cm-axis-vector*.

The *cm-axis-vector* parameter specifies how Connection Machine axes are mapped to frontend array axes. For example, if *cm-axis-vector*[A] = B, then axis A of the Connection Machine source field geometry is mapped to axis B of the front-end array. The length of this vector must be equal to the rank of the source field geometry.

The *format* parameter is an array descriptor that specifies the format of the front-end array. An appropriate descriptor may be obtained by a call to CM:array-format, CM:packed-array-format, or CM:structure-array-format. Alternatively, one of the predefined unsigned *format* values may be used.

From C or Fortran a value of CM_8_bit, CM_16_bit, or CM_32_bit specifies an unpacked frontend array while CM_1_bit_packed, CM_2_bit_packed, or CM_4_bit_packed specifies a front-end array in which several CM elements are packed into each array element. From Lisp, the predefined unsigned format keywords are :8-bit, :16-bit, :32-bit, :1-bit-packed, :2-bit-packed, and :4-bit-packed.

When calling Paris from Lisp, the *format* parameter is a keyword argument. If not specified, it defaults based on the element type of the front-end array or, if the array is of type t, based on the type of the Connection Machine field.

Definition For all *i* such that $0 \le j < \prod_{j=0}^{rank-1} (end_j - start_j)$ do for all *m* such that $0 \le m < rank$ do

$$\begin{array}{l} \operatorname{let} s_{\langle i,m \rangle} = \left[\frac{i}{\prod\limits_{j=m+1}^{rank-1} (end_j - start_j)} \right] \mod (end_m - start_m) \\ \\ \operatorname{let} k_i = \bigvee\limits_{j=0}^{rank-1} make-news-coordinate(axis_j, start_j + s_{i,j}) \\ \\ \operatorname{dest}[k_i] \leftarrow front-end-array_{s_{\langle i,0 \rangle}, s_{\langle i,1 \rangle}, \dots, s_{\langle i,rank-1 \rangle}} \end{array} \right]$$

Another formulation:

For all s_0 such that $0 \le s_0 < (end_0 - start_0)$ do for all s_1 such that $0 \le s_1 < (end_1 - start_1)$ do for all s_2 such that $0 \le s_2 < (end_2 - start_2)$ do

 $\begin{array}{l} & \quad \text{for all } s_{rank-1} \text{ such that } 0 \leq s_{rank-1} < (end_{rank-1} - start_{rank-1}) \text{ do} \\ & \quad \text{let } k_{s_0,s_1,\ldots,s_{rank-1}} = \bigvee_{j=0}^{rank-1} make\text{-}news\text{-}coordinate(axis_j, start_j + s_j) \\ & \quad dest[k_{s_0,s_1,\ldots,s_{rank-1}}] \leftarrow \\ & \quad front\text{-}end\text{-}array_{offset_0+s_0,offset_1+s_1,\ldots,offset_{rank-1}+s_{rank-1}} \end{array}$

C-WRITE-TO-PROCESSOR

Stores an immediate complex number operand value into the destination field of a single specified processor.

Formats	CM:c-write-to-processor-1L send-address-value, dest, source-value, len
Operands	send-address-value An immediate operand, the send address of a single particular processor.
	dest The field ID of the complex destination field.
	source-value A complex immediate operand to be used as the source.
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest field. The total length of an operand in this format is $2(s + e + 1)$.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

Definition $dest[send-address-value] \leftarrow source-value$

The specified *source-value*, a complex number, is stored into the *dest* field of the processor whose send address is the immediate operand *send-address-value*.

The constant operand *source-value* should be a double-precision front-end value (in Lisp, automatic coercion is performed if necessary).

F-WRITE-TO-PROCESSOR

Stores an immediate floating-point number operand value into the destination field of a single specified processor.

1

ormats	CM:f-write-to-processor-1L send-address-value, dest, source-value, s, e
Operands	send-address-value An immediate operand, the send address of a single particular processor.
	dest The field ID of the floating-point destination field.
	source-value A floating-point immediate operand to be used as the source.
	s, e The significand and exponent lengths for the dest field. The total length of an operand in this format is $s + e + 1$.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

 $\textbf{Definition} \quad dest[send-address-value] \leftarrow source-value$

The specified *source-value*, a floating-point number, is stored into the *dest* field of the processor whose send address is the immediate operand *send-address-value*.

S-WRITE-TO-PROCESSOR

Stores an immediate signed integer operand value into the destination field of a single specified processor.

Formats	CM:s-write-to-processor-1L send-address-value, dest, source-value, len
Operands	send-address-value An immediate operand, the send address of a single particular processor.
	dest The field ID of the signed integer destination field.
	source-value A signed integer immediate operand to be used as the source.
	len The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be no smaller than 2 but no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the context-flag.

 $\textbf{Definition} \quad dest[send-address-value] \leftarrow source-value$

The specified *source-value*, a signed integer, is stored into the *dest* field of the processor whose send address is the immediate operand *send-address-value*.

U-WRITE-TO-PROCESSOR

Stores an immediate unsigned integer operand value into the destination field of a single specified processor.

Formats	CM:u-write-to-processor-1L send-address-value, dest, source-value, len
Operands	send-address-value An immediate operand, the send address of a single particular processor.
	dest The field ID of the unsigned integer destination field.
	source-value An unsigned integer immediate operand to be used as the source.
	len The length of the <i>dest</i> field. This must be non-negative and no greater than CM:*maximum-integer-length*.
Context	This operation is unconditional. It does not depend on the <i>context-flag</i> .

Definition $dest[send-address-value] \leftarrow source-value$

The specified *source-value*, an unsigned integer, is stored into the *dest* field of the processor whose send address is the immediate operand *send-address-value*.

